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A. Preliminary Remarks

UBS AG (the “Issuer” or “UBS AG"” or “UBS”) may from time to time issue standard options in
securitized form (the “Securities” or "Warrants''). The Securities will be issued based (i) on the
information set out in this ‘Registration Document for the Issuance of Standard Warrants’, as amended
from time to time (the “Registration Document”) and (ii) on the relevant final terms of each Security (the
“Final Terms”). The Registration Document and the Final Terms shall form the prospectus for each
Security (the “Prospectus”) and should always be read in conjunction with each other. In case of
inconsistency between the Registration Document and the Final Terms, the Final Terms shall prevail.

The Issuer accepts responsibility for all information contained in the Prospectus and has taken all
reasonable care to ensure that the facts stated herein are true and accurate in all material aspects and
that there are no other material facts, the omission of which would make misleading any statement
herein, whether of fact or opinion.

The offering or sale of the Securities in certain jurisdictions may be restricted by law. Persons, who obtain
possession of the Prospectus, are required to inform themselves about and to adhere to any such
restrictions which are set out in more detail in the relevant Final Terms under the section headed ‘Selling
Restrictions’. The Prospectus does not constitute, and may not be used for the purposes of, an offer or
solicitation by anyone in any jurisdiction in which such offer or solicitation is not authorised or to any
person to whom it is unlawful to make such offer or solicitation.

During the whole term of the Security, the Prospectus can be ordered free of charge from the
UBS at P.0. Box, CH-8098 Zurich (Switzerland) via telephone (+41 (0) 44 239 47 03),
fax (+41 (0) 44 239 69 14) or via e-mail (swiss-prospectus@ubs.com). In addition, the Prospectus
is available on the internet at http://keyinvest.ibb.ubs.com.
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B. Risk Factors

An investment in the Securities involves certain risks. If one or more of the risks described below occur,
potential investors in the Securities (the "Potential Investors") may incur a partial loss or even a total loss
of their invested capital. Potential Investors should carefully consider the following factors prior to
investing in the Securities. This section of the Registration Document does not purport to be an extensive
and comprehensive list of all possible risks associated with an investment in the Securities.

Investment decisions should not be made solely on the basis of the risk warnings set out in the
Prospectus, since such information cannot serve as a substitute for individual advice and information
which is tailored to the requirements, objectives, experience, knowledge and circumstances of each
Potential Investor individually.

I. General Risk Factors

1.  Advice from your Principal Bank

This information is not intended to replace the advice Potential Investors should always obtain from their
respective principal bank before making a decision to invest in the Securities. Only Potential Investors
who are fully aware of the risks associated with the investment in the Securities and who are financially
able to bear any losses that may arise, should consider engaging in transactions of this type.

2. Buying Securities on Credit

Potential Investors financing the purchase of Securities with loans should note that, should their
expectations fail to materialise, they would not only have to bear the loss resulting from the investment
in the Securities, but also have to pay interest on the loan as well as repay the principal amount. It is
therefore imperative that Potential Investors verify their financial resources in advance, in order to
determine whether they would be able to pay the interest and repay the loan at short notice should they
incur losses instead of realising the anticipated profit.

3. Independent Review and Advice

Prior to entering into a transaction Potential Investors should consult their own legal, regulatory, tax,
financial and accounting advisors to the extent they consider necessary, and make their own investment,
hedging and trading decisions (including decisions regarding the suitability of an investment in the
Securities) based upon their own independent review and judgment and advice from those advisers they
consider necessary.

Furthermore, Potential Investors should conduct such independent investigation and analysis regarding
the Issuer and all other relevant persons or entities and such market and economic factors as they deem
appropriate to evaluate the merits and risks of an investment in the Securities. However, as part of such
independent investigation and analysis, Potential Investors should consider carefully all the information
set forth in the Prospectus.

Investment in the Securities may involve a loss of principal by virtue of the terms of the Securities even
where there is no default by the Issuer. Potential Investors will at all times be solely responsible for
making their own independent appraisal of, and investigation into, the business, financial condition,
prospects, creditworthiness, status and affairs of the Issuer in respect of the charged assets. None of the
Issuer, the Lead Manager, the Paying Agent, the Calculation Agent, or any other agent nor any affiliate
of any of them (or any person or entity on their behalf) will have any responsibility or duty to make any
such investigations, to keep any such matters under review, to provide the Potential Investors with any
information in relation to such matters or to advise as to the accompanying risks.
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4. Investor Suitability

The purchase of the Securities involves substantial risks. Potential Investors should be familiar with
instruments having the characteristics of the Securities and should fully understand the terms and
conditions set out in the Prospectus and the nature and extent of their exposure to risk of loss.

In addition, Potential Investors must determine, based on their own independent review and such legal,
business, tax and other advice as it deems appropriate under the circumstances, that the acquisition of
the Securities (i) is fully consistent with their financial needs, objectives and conditions, (ii) complies and is
fully consistent with all constituent documents, investment policies, guidelines, authorisations and
restrictions (including as to its capacity) applicable to them, (iii) has been duly approved in accordance
with all applicable laws and procedures and (iv) is a fit, proper and suitable investment for them.

5. Changes in Tax Law and Tax Call

The tax considerations set forth in the Prospectus reflect the view of the Issuer based on the legislation
applicable at the date of issuance of the Prospectus. It cannot, however, be ruled out that the tax
treatment by the tax authorities and courts could be interpreted differently. Additionally, the tax
considerations set forth herein may not be used as the sole basis for the decision to invest in the
Securities from a tax perspective, since the individual situation of each Potential Investor must also be
taken into account. Thus, the considerations regarding taxation contained in the Prospectus do not
constitute any sort of material information or tax advice nor are they in any way to be construed as a
representation or warranty with respect to specific tax consequences.

In accordance with the terms and conditions set out in the Registration Document, the Issuer may
redeem all outstanding Securities early for tax reasons. Accordingly, Potential Investors should consult
their personal tax advisors before making any decision to purchase the Securities and must be aware of
and be prepared to bear the risk of a potential early redemption due to tax reasons. The Issuer and the
Lead Manager do not accept any liability for adverse tax consequences of an investment in the Securities.

6. Effect of Ancillary Costs

Commissions and other transaction costs incurred in connection with the purchase or sale of Securities
may result in charges, particularly in combination with a low order value, which can substantially reduce
any Redemption Amount. Before acquiring Securities, Potential Investors should therefore inform
themselves of all costs incurred with the purchase or sale of the Security, including any costs charged by
their custodian banks upon purchase and redemption of the Securities.

7. No Reliance

The Issuer and all of its affiliates respectively disclaim any responsibility to advise Potential Investors of the
risks and investment considerations associated with the purchase of the Securities as they may exist at
the date hereof or from time to time hereafter.

8. Legality of Purchase

The Issuer has no and assumes no responsibility for (i) the lawfulness of the acquisition of the Securities
by Investors or for (ii) the compliance by Investors with any law, regulation or regulatory policy applicable
to them.
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Il. Market Risk Factors

1. No Liquidity or Secondary Market

As the Securities might not be listed or traded on any exchange, pricing information regarding the
Securities may be more difficult to obtain and the liquidity of the Securities may be adversely affected.
The liquidity of the Securities may also be affected by restrictions on the purchase and sale of the
Securities in some jurisdictions. Additionally, the Issuer has the right (but no obligation) to purchase
Securities at any time and at any price in the open market or by tender or private agreement. Any
Securities so purchased may be held or resold or surrendered for cancellation.

The Issuer or the Lead Manager, as applicable, intends, under normal market conditions, to provide bid
and offer prices for the Securities on a regular basis. However, the Issuer or the Lead Manager, as
applicable, makes no firm commitment to provide liquidity by means of bid and offer prices for the
Securities, and assumes no legal obligation to quote any such prices or with respect to the level or
determination of such prices. Potential Investors therefore should not rely on the ability to sell Securities
at a specific time or at a specific price.

2. Expansion of the Spread between Bid and Offer Prices

In special market situations, where the Issuer is completely unable to enter into hedging transactions, or
where such transactions are very difficult to enter into, the spread between the bid and offer prices may
be temporarily expanded, in order to limit the economic risks of the Issuer.

3. Emerging Markets

Investments in emerging markets should only be effected by persons who have a sound knowledge of
these markets, who are well aware of and are able to weigh the diverse risks (political, social and
economic risks, currency, liquidity and settlement risks, regulatory and legal risks) involved and who have
sufficient financial resources to bear the substantial risks associated with such investments.

4. Risks Factors associated with Currency Exchange Rates

An investment in Securities may involve risk exposure to fluctuations in exchange rates of the relevant
currencies in which the Securities are denominated and the Underlying is traded or evaluated. For
example (i) the Underlying may be denominated in a currency other than that of the Securities, (ii) the
Securities may be denominated in a currency other than the currency of the Investor’s home jurisdiction
and/or (iii) the Securities may be denominated in a currency other than the currency in which an Investor
wishes to receive funds.

Currency values may be affected by complex political and economic factors, including governmental
action to fix or support the value, regardless of other market forces.

If the Potential Investor’s right vested in the Securities is determined on the basis of a currency other than
the Settlement Currency, or if the value of the Underlying is determined in a currency other than the
Settlement Currency, Potential Investors should be aware that investments in these Securities could entail
risks due to fluctuating exchange rates, and that the risk of loss does not depend solely on the
performance of the Underlying, but also on unfavourable developments in the value of the such other
currency.
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lll. Risk Factors relating to the Securities

1.  General Risk Factors relating to the Securities

1.1 Risk-hedging Transactions

The ability to eliminate or to restrict the initial risks of the Securities arising from their purchase by
concluding any hedging transactions during their lifetime depends mainly on the market conditions and
the terms and conditions of the specific Security. As a consequence, such transactions may be concluded
at unfavourable market prices to the effect that corresponding losses may arise.

Potential Investors should therefore not rely on the ability to conclude transactions at any time during the
term of the Securities that will allow them to offset or limit relevant risks.

1.2 Features of Securities on Currencies, Exchange Rates, Commodities or Precious
Metals

In cases where the Underlyings are currencies, exchange rates, commodities or precious metals, it should
be noted that such Underlyings are traded 24 hours a day through the time zones of Australia, Asia,
Europe and America. It is therefore possible that a relevant limit, barrier or threshold pursuant to the
relevant Final Terms may be reached, exceeded or fallen below outside of local or Lead Managers'
business hours.

1.3 Market Disruption Events

In accordance with the terms and conditions set out in the Registration Document, the Lead Manager or
the Calculation Agent may determine in its absolute sole discretion that a Market Disruption Event has
occurred or exists at a relevant time. Any such determination may have an adverse effect on the value of
the Securities.

1.4 Other Factors affecting Value

The value of a Security is determined not only by changes in the price of the Underlying, but also a
number of other factors. Since several risk factors may have simultaneous effects on the Securities, the
effect of a particular risk factor cannot be predicted. In addition, several risk factors may have a
compounding effect which may not be predictable. No assurance can be given with regard to the effect
that any combination of risk factors may have on the value of the Securities.

These factors include, inter alia, the terms and conditions of the specific Security, the frequency and
intensity of price fluctuations (volatility) in the Underlying, as well as the prevailing interest rate. A decline
in the value of the Security may therefore occur even if the price or level, as the case may be, of the
Underlying remains constant.

Potential Investors should be aware that an investment in the Securities involves a valuation risk with
regard to the Underlying. They should have experience with transactions in Securities with a value
derived from an underlying. The value of an underlying may vary over time and may increase or decrease
by reference to a variety of factors which may include corporate actions, macro economic factors and
speculation. If the Underlying comprises a basket of various assets, fluctuations in the value of any one
asset may be offset or intensified by fluctuations in the value of other basket components. In addition,
the historical performance of an underlying is not an indication of its future performance. The historical
price of an underlying does not indicate its future performance. Changes in the market price of an
underlying will affect the trading price of the Securities, and it is impossible to predict whether the
market price of an underlying will rise or fall.

1.5 Information with regard to the Underlying

Information with regard to the Underlying consists of extracts from or summaries of information that is
publicly available in respect of the Underlying and is not necessarily the latest information available. The
Issuer accepts responsibility for accurately extracting and summarizing the underlying information. No
further or other responsibility (express or implied) in respect of the underlying information is accepted by
the Issuer. The Issuer makes no representation that the underlying information, any other publicly
available information or any other publicly available documents regarding the underlying asset, index or
other item(s) to which the Securities relate are accurate or complete. There can be no assurance that all
events occurring prior to the Pricing Date of the relevant Securities that would affect the trading price of
the underlying asset, index or other item(s) to which the Securities relate (and therefore the trading price
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and value of the Securities) have been publicly disclosed. Subsequent disclosure of any such events or the
disclosure or failure to disclose material future events concerning the underlying asset, index or other
item(s) to which the Securities relate could affect the trading price and value of the Securities.

2.  Product Specific Risk Factors — Equity

2.1 Fluctuations in Market Volatility may affect the Value of Share Securities

Market volatility reflects the degree of instability and expected instability of the performance of the
equity market over time. The level of market volatility is not purely a measurement of the actual market
volatility, but is largely determined by the prices for derivative instruments that offer Potential Investors
protection against such market volatility. The prices of these instruments are determined by forces such
as actual market volatility, expected market volatility, other economic and financial conditions and
trading speculations.

2.2 Risk to Share or Basket of Shares

Neither the Issuer nor any affiliates of the Issuer have performed any investigations or review of any
company issuing any share, including any public filings by such companies. Potential Investors should not
conclude that the inclusion of the shares is any form of investment recommendation. Consequently,
there can be no assurance that all events occurring prior to the relevant Issue Date, that would affect the
trading price of the share(s), will have been publicly disclosed. Subsequent disclosure of or failure to
disclose material future events concerning a company issuing any Underlying could affect the trading
price of the share and therefore the trading price of the Security.

2.3 Investing in the Securities is not the same as Investing in Shares

Potential Investors should be aware that the market value of the Securities may not have a direct
relationship with the prevailing price of shares, and changes in the prevailing price of a share will not
necessarily result in a comparable change in the market value of the Securities.

As an Investor of Securities, Investors will not have voting rights or rights to receive dividends, interest or
other distributions, as applicable, or any other rights with respect to any underlying share.
The responsibility for registration of the Shares, where applicable, is borne by the Investor.

2.4. Possible decline in Underlying Value in case of Physical Settlement

To the extent that physical settlement is provided for in the relevant Final Terms, Potential Investors
should note that any fluctuations in the price of the Underlying between the Expiration Date of the
Security and the delivery of the Underlying on the Redemption Date are borne by the Investors. Losses in
the value of the Underlying can therefore still occur after the corresponding Expiration Date, and are
borne by the Investors.

Warrant Registration Document 22052009-clean.doc 8



IV. Risk Factors relating to the Issuer

1. Non-reliance on Financial Information of the Issuer

As a global financial services provider, the business activities of the Issuer are affected by the prevailing
market situation. Different risk factors can impair the Issuer’s ability to implement business strategies and
may have a direct, negative impact on earnings. Accordingly, the Issuer’s revenues and earnings are and
have been subject to fluctuations. The revenues and earnings figures from a specific period, thus, are not
evidence of sustainable results. They can change from one year to the next and affect the Issuer’s ability
to achieve its strategic objectives.

2. General Insolvency Risk

Each Investor bears the general risk that the financial situation of the Issuer could deteriorate. The
Securities constitute immediate, unsecured and unsubordinated obligations of the Issuer, which, in
particular in case of insolvency of the Issuer, rank pari passu with each and all other current and future
unsecured and unsubordinated obligations of the Issuer, with the exception of those that have priority
due to mandatory statutory provisions.

3. Effect of Downgrading of the Issuer’s Rating

The general assessment of the Issuer’s creditworthiness may affect the value of the Securities. This
assessment generally depends on the ratings assigned to the Issuer or its affiliated companies by rating
agencies such as Moody'’s, Fitch and Standard & Poor’s.

4, Potential Conflicts of Interest

The Issuer and affiliated companies may participate in transactions related to the Securities in some way,
for their own account or for account of a client. Such transactions may not serve to benefit the Investors
and may have a positive or negative effect on the value of the Underlying and consequently on the value
of the Securities. Furthermore, companies affiliated with the Issuer may become counterparties in
hedging transactions relating to obligations of the Issuer stemming from the Securities. As a result,
conflicts of interest can arise between companies affiliated with the Issuer, as well as between these
companies and Investors, in relation to obligations regarding the calculation of the price of the Securities
and other associated determinations. In addition, the Issuer and its affiliates may act in other capacities
with regard to the Securities, such as Calculation Agent, Paying Agent and/or Index Sponsor.

Furthermore, the Issuer and its affiliates may issue other derivative instruments relating to the respective
Underlying; introduction of such competing products may affect the value of the Securities. The Issuer
and its affiliated companies may receive non-public information relating to the Underlying, and neither
the Issuer nor any of its affiliates undertake to make this information available to Investors. In addition,
one or more of the Issuer’s affiliated companies may publish research reports on the Underlying. Such
activities could present conflicts of interest and may affect the value of the Securities.

5. Disclosure with regard to Fees

Within the context of the offering and sale of the Securities, the Issuer or any of its affiliates may directly
or indirectly pay fees in varying amounts to third parties, such as distributors or investment advisors, or
receive payment of fees in varying amounts, including those levied in association with the distribution of
the Securities, from third parties. Potential Investors should be aware that the Issuer may retain fees in
part or in full. The Issuer or, as the case may be, the Lead Manager, upon request, will provide
information on the amount of these fees.
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C. Terms and Conditions

I. Definitions

Terms, used but not defined in the Registration Document, shall have the meaning as specified in the

relevant Final Terms.

"Business Day"

"Closing Level"

"Company"

"Conversion Ratio"

"Exchange"

""Exchange Business Day"

"Exchange Rate"

means in connection with any payment procedure, (i) a day on
which SIX SIS AG, DTC, Clearstream Luxembourg and Euroclear
are open for business, and (ii) foreign exchange markets settle
payments in the Settlement Currency.

means (i) the level of the Underlying on the Related Exchange at
the Valuation Time on the respective Expiration Date, (ii) relating
to Currency Warrants or Basket of Currency Warrants the relevant
Spot Market rate at the Valuation Time on the respective
Expiration Date and (iii) any other level as specified in the Final
Terms.

means, for Securities with Shares as Underlying, the company that
has issued such Shares.

relating to Currency Warrants or Basket of Currency Warrants has
the following meaning: (i) "Conversion Ratio per Warrant" means
an amount to which one Warrant refers to and (ii) "Conversion
Ratio per Currency Pair" means the number of units with which
the Underlying Currency is expressed (e.g. USD=1; JPY=100 etc.),
as specified in the Final Terms and used to calculate the
Redemption Amount on the Redemption Date.

means the exchange where the Security is listed, if applicable.

means (i) any Trading Day on which the official closing level of the
relevant Underlying is published by the Related Exchange or the
Index Sponsor, as the case may be; or (ii) for Securities with
Commodity Indices as Underlying, any Trading Day on which the
official closing level of the Underlying Component is published by
the Related Exchange or the Index Sponsor, as the case may be.
This is subject to the provisions set forth in the section headed
'Market Disruption’.

means the exchange rate, which will be used to convert the
relevant amount according to the section headed ''Warrant Rights
/ Exercise of Warrants'' below into the Settlement Currency. The
Exchange Rate will be determined on the Business Day
immediately following the relevant Expiration Date; relating to
Warrants on an Underlying listed in Asia the relevant Expiration
Date shall apply, using the “ask”- price of the relevant currency
pair, expressed on the relevant Reuters page at 13.00 CET. In case
no such Exchange Rate is available on the relevant Reuters page
the Lead Manager will reasonably determine the Exchange Rate
for the purposes of determining the Redemption Amount. The
relevant Reuters page is specified in the Final Terms.
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"Exercise Day"

"Exercise Notice"

"Exercise Period"

"Expiration Date", "Expiration"
or “Valuation Date”

"Expiration Time"

"Index"

"Index Sponsor”

"Investor"

"Issue Price"

"Last Trading Day"

n LOt"

"Paying Agent"

"Payment Date"

"Redemption Amount "

"Redemption Date"

means the Business Day on which an Exercise Notice has been
delivered to an UBS AG Branch in Switzerland during the
Exercise Period.

means a notice requesting exercise of a number of Warrants.
Such Exercise Notice is to be made on a form available at the
counters of any UBS AG Branch in Switzerland.

means the period during which the Warrants can be exercised
as specified in the Final Terms.

means (i) for American-style Warrants the day on which the
exercise of the Warrant becomes effective or the Expiration
Date in case the Investor has not exercised (ii) for European-
style Warrants the Expiration Date as specified in the relevant
Final Terms. If the Expiration Date is not an Exchange Business
Day, the immediately following Exchange Business Day shall be
deemed to be the Expiration Date, subject to Market Disruption
Event provisions.

means the time until which the Warrants can be exercised, as
specified in the Final Terms.

means, for Securities with an Index as Underlying, the Index as
specified in the Final Terms and published by the relevant Index
Sponsor.

means the entity which calculates and announces the Index as
specified in the Final Terms.

means the person entitled to the rights conferred by the
Securities.

means the price at which the Warrants have been issued as
specified in the Final Terms.

means the last day on which the Securities can be traded as
specified in the relevant Final Terms.

means the number of Warrants which refer to one Underlying
as specified in the Final Terms.

means the paying and exercise agent, as specified in the Final
Terms.

means the date pursuant to the Final Terms on which the
payment of the Issue Price is due.

means, in relation to cash settled Warrants, the amount to
which the Investor is entitled in the Settlement Currency in
relation to each such Warrant, as determined by the Calculation
Agent.

means, in respect of (i) American-style Warrant the 3rd Business
Day following the Expiration Date, or the day, specified in the
Final Terms, and (ii) for European-style Warrants the day, as
specified in the Final Terms, on which the Redemption Amount
is due to the Investors or, the delivery of the Underlying takes
place, as the case may be.
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"Related Exchange(s)"

"Scheduled Closing Time"

"Settlement Currency"

"Share(s)"

"Spot Market"

"Strike Level" or
"Strike Price"

"Trading Day"

"Trading Expiration Time"

"Underlying"

""Underlying Component"

"Valuation Time"

means the exchange(s) on which the relevant Underlying is
traded, as specified in the Final Terms.

means, relating to Securities with Commodity Indices as
Underlying, in respect of a Related Exchange and a Scheduled
Trading Day, the scheduled weekday closing time of such
Related Exchange on such Scheduled Trading Day, without
regard to after hours or any other trading outside of the regular
trading session hours.

means the currency used for the payment of any Redemption
Amount or any other amount.

means, for Securities with shares as Underlying, any
outstanding registered or unregistered shares or non-voting
equity securities of the relevant Company.

means, relating to currency Warrants or Basket of currency
Warrants, the global spot foreign exchange market, which, for
these purposes, shall be treated as being open continuously
from 5:00 a.m. Sydney time on a Monday in any week to 5:00
p.m. New York time on the Friday of that week.

means the price per Underlying pursuant to the Final Terms, at
which the Underlying may be purchased or sold or otherwise
settled upon exercise of the related Warrants.

means any day that is a scheduled trading day of the Related
Exchange, subject to the provisions set forth in the section
headed ‘Market Disruption Events'.

means the time on the Last Trading Day until which the
Securities can be traded, as specified in the Final Terms.

means any underlying of the Warrants as specified in the Final

Terms e.g. "Share" or "Basket Shares", "Index" or "Index
Basket", "Commodity" or "Commodity Basket", "Debt
Instruments”, "Basket of Debt Instruments”, "Currency",

"Basket of Currencies"”, or any other.

means, relating to Securities with Commodity Indices as
Underlying, in respect of each physical commodity comprised in
the Index, each exchange traded future or exchange traded
option contracts for that physical commodity, as determined by
the Calculation Agent.

means the time specified in the applicable Final Terms or, in
case that no time is specified, the close of trading of the
Underlying on the Related Exchange.
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Il. Warrant Rights / Exercise of Warrants

1.  Warrant Rights
1.1 American-style Warrants
American Style Warrants are exercisable on any Business Day during the Exercise Period.

1.1.1 Delivery of the Underlying

Call Warrants:
One Lot entitles the Investor during the Exercise Period to receive on the Redemption Date from the Issuer
the delivery of one Underlying against payment of the Strike Price under reservation of any restriction on
registration of the Underlying. Warrants which are not exercised on the Expiration Date will be considered
null and void.

Put Warrants:

One Lot entitles the Investor during the Exercise Period to receive on the Redemption Date from the Issuer
the Strike Price against delivery of one Underlying. Warrants which are not exercised on the Expiration
Date will be considered null and void.

1.1.2 Cash Settlement

One Lot entitles the Investor during the Exercise Period to receive on the Redemption Date from the Issuer
a Redemption Amount calculated by the Lead Manager (which shall not be less than zero) in accordance
with the following scenarios:

Call Warrants:

If Closing Level < Strike Level = No Redemption Amount

If Closing Level > Strike Level = Redemption Amount: (Closing Level minus
Strike Level)

Put Warrants:
If Closing Level > Strike Level = No Redemption Amount
If Closing Level < Strike Level = Redemption Amount: (Strike Level minus

Closing Level)
Relating to Currency Warrants or Basket of Currency Warrants the Redemption Amount is determined by
multiplying the relevant Conversion Ratio per Warrant and divided by the relevant Conversion Ratio per
Currency Pair.

If such Warrants are neither Call Warrants nor Put Warrants, settlement will be as specified in the
applicable Final Terms.

Warrants which are not exercised until the Expiration Time on the Expiration Date will be exercised
automatically. The Investors have no right to a delivery of the Underlying.

Any amount determined pursuant to the above, if not an amount in the Settlement Currency, will be
converted into the Settlement Currency at the Exchange Rate.

1.2 European-style Warrants

European-style Warrants are only exercisable on the Expiration Date.
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1.2.1 Delivery of the Underlying

Call Warrants

One Lot entitles the Investor on the Redemption Date to receive from the Issuer the delivery of one
Underlying against payment of the Strike Price under reservation of any restriction on registration of the
Underlying. Warrants which are not exercised until the Expiration Time on the Expiration Date will be
considered null and void.

Put Warrants

One Lot entitles the Investor on the Redemption Date to receive from the Issuer the Strike Price against
delivery of one Underlying. Warrants which are not exercised until the Expiration Time on the Expiration
Date will be considered null and void.

1.2.2 Cash Settlement
One Lot entitles the Investor on the Redemption Date to receive from the Issuer a Redemption Amount
calculated by the Lead Manager (which shall not be less than zero) in accordance with the following

scenarios:

Call Warrants:

If Closing Level < Strike Level = No Redemption Amount

If Closing Level > Strike Level = Redemption Amount: Closing Level minus
Strike Level

Put Warrants:

If Closing Level > Strike Level = No Redemption Amount

If Closing Level < Strike Level = Redemption Amount: Strike Level minus
Closing Level

Relating to Currency Warrants or Basket of Currency Warrants the Redemption Amount will be multiplied
by the relevant Conversion Ratio per Warrant and divided by the relevant Conversion Ratio per Currency
Pair.

If such Warrants are neither Call Warrants nor Put Warrants, settlement will be as specified in the
applicable Final Terms.

Warrants which are not exercised until the Expiration Time on the Expiration Date will be exercised
automatically. The Investors have no right to a delivery of the Underlying.

Any amount determined pursuant to the above, if not an amount in the Settlement Currency, will be

converted into the Settlement Currency at the Exchange Rate as reasonably determined by the Lead
Manager for the purposes of determining the Redemption Amount.

1.3 Warrants on UBS AG registered shares

One Lot entitles the Investor during the Exercise Period or at Expiration, as the case may be, to receive on
the Redemption Date from the Issuer at its sole discretion either a delivery of the Underlying or a cash
settlement, according to the following scenarios:

1.3.1 Delivery of Underlying

Call Warrants:

One Lot entitles the Investor to receive from the Issuer the delivery of one Underlying against payment of

the Strike Price under reservation of any restriction on registration of the Underlying.

Put Warrants:
One Lot entitles the Investor to receive from the Issuer the Strike Price against delivery of one Underlying.

Warrants which are not exercised until the Expiration Time on the Expiration Date at the latest will be
considered null and void.
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1.3.2 Cash Settlement

One Lot entitles the Investor during the Exercise Period or at Expiration, as the case may be, to receive on
the Redemption Date from the Issuer a Redemption Amount calculated by the Lead Manager (which shall
not be less than zero) in accordance with the following scenarios:

Call Warrants:
If Closing Level < Strike Level
If Closing Level > Strike Level

No Redemption Amount
Redemption Amount: (Closing Level minus Strike Level)

Put Warrants:
If Closing Level > Strike Level
If Closing Level < Strike Level

No Redemption Amount
Redemption Amount: (Strike Level minus Closing Level)

If such Warrants are neither Call Warrants nor Put Warrants, settlement will be as specified in the
applicable Final Terms.

Warrants which are not exercised until the Expiration Time on the Expiration Date will be exercised
automatically. The Investors have no right to a delivery of the Underlying.

Any amount determined pursuant to the above, if not an amount in the Settlement Currency, will be
converted into the Settlement Currency at the Exchange Rate as reasonably determined by the Lead
Manager for the purposes of determining the Redemption Amount.

2. Exercise of Warrants

Where an exercise is required, the Warrants will not be exercised automatically. The following
applies to American-style Warrants and to European-style Warrants:

2.1 American-style Warrants
In order to exercise Warrants, an Investor must

(i) in case of Call Warrants make payment of the aggregate Strike Price (not applicable for cash settled
Warrants) for all Warrants concerned (plus stamp tax or any similar taxes, duties or commissions
arising in Switzerland in connection with the exercise of the Warrants or the delivery of the
Underlying), or

(i) in case of Put Warrants deliver the Shares (not applicable for cash settled Warrants) for all Warrants
concerned (plus stamp tax or any similar taxes, duties or commissions arising in Switzerland in
connection with the exercise of the Warrants or the delivery of the Underlying)

and deliver an Exercise Notice to any UBS AG Branch in Switzerland by 12:00 noon (Zurich time) on any
Business Day during the Exercise Period. Such Business Day and in case of Warrants on an Underlying
listed in Asia the next following Business Day, will be treated as the Expiration Date, subject to any Market
Disruption Event.

The Expiration Date for Warrants with respect to which an Exercise Notice has been delivered after 12:00
noon (Zurich time) on a Business Day during the Exercise Period shall be the Business Day immediately
following the date on which such Exercise Notice has been delivered, subject to any Market Disruption
Event. For Warrants on a Underlying listed in Asia the second Business Day following the date on which
such Exercise Notice has been delivered after 12.00 noon (Zurich time), subject to any Market Disruption
Event, shall apply.

Relating to Currency Warrants or Basket of Currency Warrants the day during the Exercise Period on
which UBS AG has received an Exercise Notice by 10.00 a.m. (New York time) at the latest will be treated
as the Expiration Date. In case the Exercise Notice is received after 10.00 a.m. (New York time) the
Expiration Date for Currency Warrants or Basket of Currency Warrants will be the immediately following
Business Day.
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However, an Exercise Notice which is received after the Expiration Time on the Expiration Date shall
become null and void and all rights of the Investor with respect to any such Warrants shall terminate
automatically.

The Underlying will be delivered on the Redemption Date. The Strike Price will be paid on the Redemption
Date.

Warrants may not be exercised for a fraction of an Underlying. The Warrants may be exercised only for an
integral number of Underlying to which the Investor is entitled, subject to a minimum exercise number as
specified in the relevant Final Terms, subject to any adjustment during the lifetime of the Warrants.

In case of printed Warrants the effective Warrants in the amount to be exercised shall be delivered
together with the Exercise Notice.

2.2 European-style Warrants

In order to exercise Warrants, an Investor must

(i) in case of Call Warrants make payment of the aggregate Strike Price (not applicable for cash settled
Warrants) for all Warrants concerned (plus stamp tax or any similar taxes, duties or commissions
arising in Switzerland in connection with the exercise of the Warrants or the delivery of the
Underlying), or

(i) in case of Put Warrants deliver the Shares (not applicable for cash settled Warrants) for all Warrants
concerned (plus stamp tax or any similar taxes, duties or commissions arising in Switzerland in
connection with the exercise of the Warrants or the delivery of the Underlying)

and deliver an Exercise Notice to any UBS AG Branch in Switzerland at the Expiration Time on the
Expiration Date, subject Market Disruption Event provisions.

However, an Exercise Notice which is received after the Expiration Time on the Expiration Date, shall
become null and void and all rights of the Investor with respect to any such Warrants shall terminate
automatically.

The Underlying will be delivered on the Redemption Date. The Strike Price will be paid on the Redemption
Date.

Warrants may not be exercised for a fraction of an Underlying. The Warrants may be exercised only for an
integral number of Underlying to which the Investor is entitled, subject to a minimum exercise number as
specified in the relevant Final Terms, subject to any adjustment during the lifetime of the Warrants.

In case of printed Warrants the effective Warrants in the amount to be exercised shall be delivered
together with the Exercise Notice.

Cash settled Warrants will be automatically exercised on the Expiration Date.
2.3 American-style Warrants on UBS AG registered shares

2.3.1 Delivery of Underlying

In order to exercise Call Warrants, an Investor must make payment of the aggregate Strike Price for all
Warrants concerned (plus stamp tax or any similar taxes, duties or commissions arising in Switzerland in
connection with the exercise of the Warrants (in order to exercise Put Warrants, an Investor must deliver
the Underlying) and deliver an Exercise Notice at the counters of any UBS AG Branch in Switzerland by
12:00 noon (Zurich time) on any Business Day during the Exercise Period. Such Business Day shall be
treated as the Expiration Date, subject to Market Disruption Event provisions.
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The Expiration Date for Warrants with respect to which an Exercise Notice has been delivered after 12:00
noon (Zurich time) on a Business Day during the Exercise Period shall be the Business Day immediately
following the date on which such Exercise Notice has been delivered, subject to Market Disruption Event
provisions. However an Exercise Notice which is received after the Expiration Time on the Expiration Date,
shall become null and void and all rights of the Investor with respect to any such Warrants shall terminate
automatically.

The Underlying will be delivered on the Redemption Date. The Strike Price will be paid on the Redemption
Date.

2.3.2 Cash Settlement

In order to require a cash settlement the Investor must deliver the Exercise Notice asking for a cash
settlement by 12:00 noon (Zurich time) at least ten Business Days before the Expiration Date.

Warrants may not be exercised for a fraction of an Underlying. The Warrants may be exercised only for
the full number of Underlying to which the Investor is entitled, subject to a minimum exercise as specified
in the relevant Final Terms. Warrants which are not exercised until the Expiration Time on the Expiration
Date will be considered null and void.

In case of printed Warrants the effective Warrants in the amount to be exercised shall be delivered
together with the Exercise Notice.
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lll. General Terms and Conditions

1. Status of the Securities/Classification

The Securities are direct, unconditional, unsecured and unsubordinated obligations of the Issuer and rank
pari passu with all present and future, unsecured and unsubordinated obligations without any preference
among themselves and without any preference one above the other by reason of priority of date of
issue, currency of payment or otherwise, except for obligations given priority by law.

The Securities do not represent a participation in any of the collective investment schemes pursuant to
Art. 7 ss of the Swiss Federal Act on Collective Investment Schemes (CISA) and thus are not subject to the
supervision of the Swiss Financial Market Supervisory Authority (FINMA). Therefore, Investors in the
Securities are not eligible for the specific investor protection under the CISA.

2. Book-entry Form

The Securities will be issued as book-entry securities. They do not take the form of actual securities but
exist purely as book entries.

In accordance with Art. 2 lit. d of the Federal Act on Stock Exchanges and Securities Trading of March 24,
1995 (SESTA) securities can be issued in book-entry form. Book-entry securities are rights not represented
by a security and held and transferred purely in book-entry form. The Investor’s entitlement to the book-
entry securities is based on his/her relevant custody account statement. In addition, Art. 24 of the SIX
Listing Rules states, that securities may be uncertificated provided that the applicable law permits this and
that the clearing of stock exchange transactions and the proof of holding with respect to such securities
are regulated.

During the entire life of the Securities the book-entry securities will be booked in the clearing system at
SIX SIS AG (SIS), the Swiss Securities Services Corporation in Olten, in accordance with an agreement
between SIS and the Issuer. SIS lists the total volume of the book-entry securities in the relevant master
register, which is available to the public.

3. Adjustments

If an event requiring adjustments to the product terms, as defined in this Section 3. Adjustements, occurs,
the Issuer shall be entitled to effect any adjustments to the Terms and Conditions of the Securities in
accordance with the rules set out below.

In determining to what extent an adjustment should be made as a result of the occurrence of such events,
as defined in this Section, if options contracts or futures contracts on the Underlying are traded on a
Related Exchange, the Issuer may take into consideration, but shall not be bound by, any adjustment to
the terms of the relevant options contract or futures contract made and announced by such Related
Exchange.

The Issuer reserves the right to determine in cases of doubt the applicability of the adjustment rules set
out below. Such determination shall be done at the Issuer’s reasonable discretion considering, amongst
others, the then prevailing market conditions.

3.1 Adjustments to Securities with Shares as Underlying

3.1.1 Potential Adjustment Events

Following each Potential Adjustment Event (as defined below), the Issuer shall determine the appropriate
adjustment, if any, to be made to any relevant level, including but not limited to, the Strike Level, the Cap
Level or the Kick-Out Level, or the Conversion Ratio, and/or any other terms of the Securities insofar as
they relate to the Shares to account for the dilutive or concentrative effect of the Potential Adjustment
Event or otherwise necessary to preserve the economic equivalent of the rights of the Investors under the
Securities immediately prior to the Potential Adjustment Event, such adjustment to be effective as of the
date determined by the Issuer. Any so resulting fraction per Security will be paid in cash and will not be
cumulated.
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In the event that a Potential Adjustment Event would involve the distribution of shares and/or other
tradable securities to existing holders of Shares, then the Issuer will endeavour to carry out the adjustment
to the extent possible by way of amending the Terms and Conditions of the Securities such that they
provide for the right to purchase a combination of such shares and/or tradable securities and shares.

For the purposes of this Section 3.1.1., 'Potential Adjustment Event’ means the declaration by the relevant
Company of any of the following:

(i) a subdivision, consolidation or reclassification of Shares (unless they qualify as Extraordinary Event,
as defined in Section 3.1.2 below) or a free distribution of Shares to existing holders by the way of
bonus, capitalisation or similar issue;

(i) a distribution to existing holders of the Shares of (a) additional Shares or (b) other Share capital or
securities granting the right to payment of dividends and/or the proceeds of liquidation of the
Company equally or proportionately with such payments to holders of the Shares or (c) any other
type of securities, rights or Securities or other assets, in any case for payment (in cash or otherwise)
at less than the prevailing market price as determined by the Issuer;

(i) an extraordinary dividend,;

(iv)  any event in respect of the Shares analogous to any of the foregoing events or otherwise having, in
the reasonable opinion of the Issuer, a dilutive or concentrative effect on the market value of the
Shares.

3.1.2 Extraordinary Events
If any of the following events (each an "Extraordinary Event”) occurs prior or on Expiry:

(i) the Share is reclassified or changed (other than a change in par value, if any as a result of a
subdivision or combination);

(i)  the Company consolidates, amalgamates or merges with or into another entity (other than a
consolidation, amalgamation or merger following which the Company is the surviving entity);

(i) the Shares are the subject to a Takeover (as defined below);

(iv) by reason of the adoption of or any change in any applicable law, all assets of the Company or all
the outstanding Shares, are nationalised, expropriated or otherwise required to be transferred to
any government, governmental agency or authority; or

(v) by reason of bankruptcy or insolvency (or other analogous event) of the Company (a) all the Shares
are required to be transferred to any trustee, liquidator or similar official or (b) holders of the Shares
become legally prohibited from transferring them;

then the Issuer shall, in case of the Securities entitle to a delivery of Shares,

(1) if the Extraordinary Event involves an offer solely of Shares (whether of the Company or a third
party) (the ‘New Shares’) determine the number (or fraction) of such New Shares to which a holder
of a Share would have been entitled upon the consummation of such Extraordinary Event and the
Issuer shall deliver such New Shares on the Redemption Date in lieu of each Share, any so resulting
fraction per Security will be paid in cash and will not be cumulated; or

(2) if the Extraordinary Event involves an offer of (i) cash and/or securities or assets other than New
Shares (‘Cash Consideration’) or (ii) Cash Consideration and New Shares, determine the amount
(the ‘Replacement Asset’) in Cash Consideration and/or New Shares to which a holder of a Share
would have been entitled upon the consummation of such Extraordinary Event and the amount of
Replacement Assets shall be payable and/or deliverable by the Issuer on the Redemption Date in lieu
of each Share. Any so resulting fraction per Security will be paid in cash and will not be cumulated;
or
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(3) if the Extraordinary Event involves a merger of two or more Underlying components, or similar
actions are taken, through which the Shares are concerned without a choice of the Investors, the
Calculation Agent will determine the number of New Shares or fraction thereof to which the
Investors would have been entitled to on the respective Redemption Date. The Calculation Agent
reserves the right, in its sole and absolute discretion, to replace the affected Shares by shares of
another company (the "Replacement Shares"). The Replacement Shares shall, if possible, feature a
similar market capitalization, be traded in the same currency and be from the same industry sector.

The obligation by the Issuer in respect of any Securities affected by such Extraordinary Event shall be
satisfied by payment and/or delivery of any Replacement Asset or New Shares pursuant to sub-paragraphs
(1) and (3) above.

For the purpose of this Section 3.1.2., ‘Takeover’ in relation to the Shares means that, in the reasonable
opinion of the Issuer, a person or several people acting in concert has (or have as the case may be)
acquired (whether through a series of transactions or not) Shares amounting to a total of fifty per cent or
more of (i) the aggregate nominal value of all issued Shares then outstanding less (ii) the aggregate
nominal value of any Shares held by such person (or persons as the case may be) as of the Payment Date
provided such acquisition(s) is (are) made on or before the Expiration Date. For the purpose of this Section
the term "person” shall include any legal entity and any government, governmental agencies or
authorities.

3.1.3 Exchange of Shares for other securities of the Company

In the event that the Company would grant to its holders of Shares the right on a discretionary basis to
exchange the Shares for other securities of the Company the Investors shall be duly notified thereof in
accordance with the section headed ‘Notices’. Such notification shall include the date after which the
Issuer, in its absolute discretion, shall have the right to replace the Shares deliverable under the Securities
by such new securities of the Company and such decision shall be binding upon all Investors.

The Lead Manager shall as soon as practicable notify the Investors of any determination made pursuant to
the section headed ‘Notices’.

3.2 Adjustments to Securities with a Basket of Shares as Underlying

If the Calculating Agent determines that an event has occurred which has a dilutive concentrative or other
effect on any one or more of the Shares which make up the Basket, then following each such event, the
Calculation Agent shall determine any corresponding adjustments to the Terms and Conditions (including
adjusting the Basket or the Redemption Amount), which in the opinion of the Calculation Agent are
appropriate to account for the dilutive, concentrative or other effect of the relevant event and which
adjustments shall be effective as of the date determined by the Calculation Agent. These adjustments
shall include the replacement of any one or more of the Shares which are included in the Basket with
shares that are not currently included in the Basket.

If an order is made or an effective resolution is passed for the dissolution or liquidation of the Issuer of any
one or more of the Shares which make up the Basket of the whole or a substantial part of its
undertakings, property or assets, then the relevant Shares will be deemed to have been removed from the
Basket and the Redemption Amount will be adjusted accordingly. If all of the Shares which make up the
Basket are removed from the Basket pursuant to this condition, then the Shares will become void for all
purposes.

The Lead Manager shall as soon as practicable notify the Investors of any determination made pursuant to

the section headed "Notices". The details of any determinations will be available for inspection by
Investors at the office of the Lead Manager.
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3.3 Adjustments to Securities with an Index or a Basket of Indices as Underlying

If the Index is (i) not calculated and announced by the Index Sponsor, but is calculated and announced by
a successor sponsor acceptable to the lIssuer or (i) replaced by a successor index using in the
determination of the Issuer, the same or a substantially similar formula for, and method of calculation as
used in the calculation of the Index, then the Index will be deemed to be the Index so calculated and
announced by that successor sponsor or that successor index, as the case may be.

If (i) on or prior to the Expiration Date the Index Sponsor makes a material change in the formula for, or
the method of calculating the Index or in any other way materially modifies the Index (other than a
modification prescribed in that formula or method to maintain the Index in the event of changes in
constituent stock and capitalisation and other routine events) or (i) on the Expiration Date the Index
Sponsor fails to calculate and announce the Index, then the Issuer shall calculate the relevant redemption
amount using, in lieu of a published level for the Index, the level for the Index as at that date as
determined by the Issuer in accordance with the formula for, and method of calculating the Index, last in
effect prior to that change or failure, but using only those securities that comprised the Index immediately
prior to that change or failure.

The Lead Manager shall as soon as practicable notify the Investors of any determination made pursuant to
the section headed ‘Notices’.

3.4 Adjustment to Securities with Commodities as Underlying

The Issuer shall notify Investors, according to the provisions set out in the section headed "Notices", of
any adjustments as reasonably determined by the Issuer and/or the Calculation Agent. The details of such
adjustments will be available for inspection at the offices of the Calculation Agent.

3.5 Adjustment to Securities with Interest Rates as Underlying

The Issuer shall notify Investors, as described under "Notice", of any adjustments as reasonably

determined by the Issuer and/or the Calculation Agent. The details of such adjustments will be available
for inspection at the offices of the Calculation Agent.

3.6 Adjustment to Securities with Currencies as Underlying
The Issuer shall notify Investors, as described under "Notice", of any adjustments as reasonably
determined by the Issuer and/or the Calculation Agent. The details of such adjustments will be available

for inspection at the offices of the Calculation Agent.

3.7 Other Adjustments

The provisions set out in 3.1. — 3.6. shall apply mutatis mutandis to events other than those mentioned, if
the concentrative or dilutive effects of these events are, in the reasonable determination of Calculation
Agent, comparable.

The Lead Manager shall notify the Investors in accordance with the section headed ‘Notices’ of any

adjustments which have been made. The details of such adjustments will be available for inspection at the
offices of the Lead Manager.

4. Market Disruption Event
4.1 Meaning of Market Disruption Event

4.1.1 Meaning of Market Disruption Event if Underlying of Securities is related to Shares

"Market Disruption Event" means, in relation to Securities with Shares as Underlying, in respect of such
Share, the occurrence or existence on any Trading Day of any one or more of the following events:
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(i) any suspension of or limitation imposed on trading in one or more of the Share(s) by the Related
Exchange or otherwise and whether by reason of movements in price exceeding limits permitted by
the Related Exchange or otherwise;

(i)  failure by the applicable Related Exchange or other price source, as applicable, to announce or
publish the final closing in respect of any Share;

(i) the closure on any Exchange Business Day of the Related Exchange in respect of a Share, prior to its
scheduled closing time;

(iv)  any event (other than an early closure as described above) that disrupts or impairs the ability of
market participants in general to effect transactions in, or obtain market values for any relevant
Share,

if in the determination of the Lead Manager or Calculation Agent, any such event is material and the
disruption affects either

(i) the Shares on the Related Exchange; or

(i) any options contracts or futures contracts relating to the Shares on any exchange on which options
contracts or futures contracts relating to the Shares are traded.

4.1.2 Meaning of Market Disruption Event if Underlying of Securities is related to a Basket of
Shares

"Market Disruption Event" means, in relation to Securities with a Basket of Shares as Underlying, in
respect of such Share, the occurrence or existence on any Trading Day of any one or more of the
following events:

(i) a limitation, suspension, or disruption of trading in one or more of the Share(s) imposed on trading
by the Related Exchange or otherwise and whether by movements in price exceeding limits
permitted by the Related Exchange or otherwise;

(i)  failure by the applicable Related Exchange or other price source, as applicable, to announce or
publish the final closing in respect of any Share;

(i) the closure on any Exchange Business Day of the Related Exchange in respect of a Share, prior to its
scheduled closing time;

(iv)  any event (other than an early closure as described above) that disrupts or impairs the ability of
market participants in general to effect transactions in, or obtain market values for any relevant
Share,

if in the determination of the Lead Manager or Calculation Agent, any such event is material and the
disruption affects either

(i) the exchange in securities that comprise 20 per cent or more of the level of the Basket, or

(i) any options contracts or futures contracts relating to the Shares on any exchange on which options
contracts or futures contracts on the Shares are traded.

4.1.3 Meaning of Market Disruption Event if Underlying of Securities is related to an Index or a

Basket of Indices

"Market Disruption Event" means, in relation to Securities with an Index as Underlying, in respect of an
Index, the occurrence or existence on any Trading Day of any one or more of the following events:

(i) any suspension of or limitation imposed on trading in one or more of the Index/Indices by the

Related Exchange or otherwise and whether by reason of movements in price exceeding limits
permitted by the Related Exchange or otherwise;
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(i)  failure by the applicable Related Exchange or other price source, as applicable, to announce or
publish the final closing in respect of any relevant Index component;

(i) the closure on any Exchange Business Day of the Related Exchange in respect of any Index
component, prior to its scheduled closing time;

(iv)  any event (other than an early closure as described above) that disrupts or impairs the ability of
market participants in general to effect transactions in, or obtain market values for any relevant
Index component,

if in the determination of the Lead Manager or Calculation Agent, any such event is material and the
disruption affects either

(i) the exchange in securities that comprise 20 per cent or more of the level of the relevant Index, or

(i) any exchange on which options contracts or futures contracts on the relevant Index are traded in
options contracts or futures contracts on that Index.

For the purpose of determining whether a Market Disruption Event exists in relation to an Index at any
time, if trading in a component included in that Index is materially suspended or materially limited at that
time, then the relevant percentage contribution of that component to the level of that Index shall be
based on a comparison of (i) the portion of the level of that Index attributable to that component relative
to (i) the overall level of that Index, in each case immediately before that suspension or limitation.

4.1.4 Meaning of Market Disruption Event if Underlying of Securities is related to Commodities
(except Commodity Indices)

"Market Disruption Event" means, in relation to Securities relating to Commodities or a Basket of
Commodities the occurrence or existence on any Trading Day of any one or more of the following events:

(i) a limitation, suspension, or disruption of trading in one or more of the component of the
Underlying imposed on trading by the Related Exchange or otherwise and whether by movements
in price exceeding limits permitted by the relevant Exchange or otherwise;

(i) failure by the applicable Related Exchange or other price source as applicable to announce or
publish the final closing in respect of any underlying component(s);

(i) the closure on any Exchange Business Day of any Related Exchange in respect of a component of
the Underlying, prior to its scheduled closing time;

(iv)  any event (other than an early closure as described above) that disrupts or impairs the ability of
market participants in general to effect transactions in, or obtain market values for any relevant
component.

if in the determination of the Lead Manager or Calculation Agent, any such event is material and the
disruption affects either

() the Commodities on the Related Exchange; or
(i) any options contracts or futures contracts relating to the Commaodity or the Basket of Commodities,

as the case may be, on any exchange on which options contracts or futures contracts on the
Commodities are traded.

4.1.5 Meaning of Market Disruption Event if Underlying of Securities is related to Commodity
Indices

"Market Disruption Event" means, in relation to Securities with Commodity Indices as Underlying, the

occurrence or existence in respect of any Underlying Component on any Trading Day or on any number
of consecutive Trading Days any one or more of the following events:

Warrant Registration Document 22052009-clean.doc 23



(i) a limitation, suspension, or disruption of trading in one or more of the Underlying Components
imposed on trading by the Related Exchange or otherwise and whether by movements in price
exceeding limits permitted by the Related Exchange or otherwise;

(i) the settlement price for any Underlying Component is a “limit price”, which means that the
settlement price for such Underlying Component for a day has increased or decreased from the
previous day’s closing price by the maximum amount permitted under applicable rules of the
Related Exchange;

(i) failure by the Related Exchange or other price source as applicable to announce or publish the
settlement price in respect of any Underlying Component;

(iv)  the Related Exchange fails to open for trading during its regular trading session;

(v)  the closure on any Exchange Business Day of any Related Exchange in respect of a Underlying
Component, prior to its Scheduled Closing Time;

(vi)  any event (other than an early closure as described above) that disrupts or impairs (as determined
by the Calculation Agent) the ability of market participants in general to effect transactions in, or
obtain market values for any Underlying Component,

if in the determination of the Lead Manager or Calculation Agent, any such event is material.

4.2 Consequences of a Market Disruption Events

4.2.1 Consequences of a Market Disruption Event if Underlying of the Securities are
related to Shares, a Basket of Shares, an Index or a Basket of Indices, or to
Commodities (except Commodity Indices)

If the Lead Manager or Calculation Agent reasonably determines that a Market Disruption Event has
occurred and is continuing on any Valuation Date then the Valuation Date for the relevant Underlying or
Underlying component shall be postponed to the first following Exchange Business Day on which there is
no Market Disruption Event.

In the case of Securities relating to Securities with a Basket as Underlying, the Valuation Date for each
basket component which is not affected by the Market Disruption Event shall be the originally designated
Valuation Date.

If a Market Disruption Event continues for several Trading Days, then the Lead Manager or the Calculation
Agent shall determine that the relevant Valuation Date may not be further postponed and fix a Valuation
Date, as the case may be, nonetheless continuing Market Disruption Events. The value of affected
Underlying(s) shall then be determined by the Lead Manager or Calculation Agent in its sole and absolute
discretion but in accordance with established market practice.

In case where a Valuation Date is postponed as a consequence of a Market Disruption Event, the
Redemption Date, any coupon payment day or any other date, as applicable, will be postponed
accordingly.

Upon the occurrence of a Market Disruption Event, the Lead Manager shall give notice as soon as
practicable to the Investors in accordance with the section headed ‘Notices’ stating that a Market
Disruption Event has occurred and providing details thereof. Failure of the Calculation Agent to notify the
parties of the occurrence of a Market Disruption Event shall not affect the validity of the occurrence and
effect of such Market Disruption Event on the Securities.

All determinations made by the Lead Manager or the Calculation Agent pursuant to this section shall be
conclusive and binding on the Investor and the Issuer. The Investor will not be entitled to any
compensation from the Issuer for any loss suffered as a result of the occurrence of a Market Disruption
Event.
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4.2.2 Consequences of a Market Disruption Event if Underlying of the Securities is related to
Commodity Indices

If the Lead Manager or Calculation Agent reasonably determines that a Market Disruption Event has
occurred then the level of that Index shall not be determined by reference to the official Closing Level of
the Index, if any, announced or published by the Index Sponsor on that Valuation Date, but shall instead
be determined by the Calculation Agent as follows:

(i) with respect to each Underlying Component not affected by the occurrence of a Market
Disruption Event, the level of the Index will be based on the settlement price of such Underlying
Component on the relevant Valuation Date;

(i) with respect to each Underlying Component which is affected by the occurrence of a Market
Disruption Event, the level of the Index will be based on the settlement prices of each such
Underlying Component on the first Exchange Business Day following the applicable Valuation Date
where there is no such Market Disruption Event with respect to such Underlying Component,
provided that, if there is still a Market Disruption Event on the immediately following eight
Exchange Business Days then the price of such Underlying Component to be used in calculating the
level of the Index (which for the avoidance of doubt could be zero) shall be determined by the
Calculation Agent in it sole discretion and acting in good faith on the eighth Exchange Business
Day following the relevant Valuation Date

The Calculation Agent shall determine the level of the Index in respect of the applicable Valuation Date
using the settlement prices determined in sub-paragraphs (i) and (ii) above in accordance with the formula
for and method of calculating the level of the Index last in effect prior to the occurrence of the Market
Disruption Event.

In case where a Valuation Date is postponed as a consequence of a Market Disruption Event, the
Redemption Date, any coupon payment day or any other date, as applicable, will be postponed
accordingly.

Upon the occurrence of a Market Disruption Event, the Lead Manager shall give notice as soon as
practicable to the Investors in accordance with the section headed ‘Notices’ stating that a Market
Disruption Event has occurred and providing details thereof. Failure of the Calculation Agent to notify the
parties of the occurrence of a Market Disruption Event shall not affect the validity of the occurrence and
effect of such Market Disruption Event on the Securities.

All determinations made by the Lead Manager or the Calculation Agent pursuant to this section shall be
conclusive and binding on the Investor and the Issuer. The Investor will not be entitled to any
compensation from the Issuer for any loss suffered as a result of the occurrence of a Market Disruption
Event.

5. FXDisruption Event

5.1. Meaning of a FX Disruption Event

"FX Disruption Event" means the occurrence of any event on any day or any number of consecutive
days as determined by the Calculation Agent in its sole and reasonable discretion that affects the Issuer’s
currency hedging (if any) with respect to these Securities.

5.2 Consequences of an FX Disruption Event relating to these Securities

Notwithstanding any other provisions contained herein the Calculation Agent may in its sole and
reasonable discretion increase or decrease, as the case may be, the Redemption Amount to account for
any income, loss, costs (including hedging costs) and expenses that are in the Calculation Agent's sole and
reasonable discretion attributable to, or as a result of, the FX Disruption Event.

6. Settlement Disruption Event

6.1 Meaning of a Settlement Disruption Event

"Settlement Disruption Event" shall mean an event beyond the control of the Issuer as a result of
which the Issuer cannot make delivery of the relevant Underlying as specified in the relevant Final Terms
on the Redemption Date.
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6.2 Consequences of a Settlement Disruption Event

If the Lead Manager or the Calculation Agent reasonably determines that a Settlement Disruption Event
has occurred and is continuing on the Redemption Date, then such Redemption Date shall be postponed
to the first Business Day following the termination of the Settlement Disruption Event.

If a Settlement Disruption Event continues for several Business Days, then the Lead Manager or the
Calculation Agent shall determine that the Redemption Date may not be further postponed and fix a
Redemption Date, as the case may be, nonetheless continuing Settlement Disruption Events. In lieu of
physical settlement and notwithstanding any other provision hereof, the Issuer may elect in its sole and
absolute discretion but in accordance with established market practice to satisfy and discharge its
obligations in respect of the relevant Securities.

For the avoidance of doubt, where a Settlement Disruption Event affects some but not all of the relevant
assets comprising the redemption entitlement, the Redemption Date for the relevant Underlying not
affected by the Settlement Disruption Event will be the originally designated Redemption Date.

Upon the occurrence of a Settlement Disruption Event, the Lead Manager shall give notice as soon as
practicable to the Investors in accordance with the section headed ‘Notices’ stating that a Settlement
Disruption Event has occurred and providing details thereof. Failure of the Calculation Agent to notify the
parties of the occurrence of a Settlement Disruption Event shall not affect the validity of the occurrence
and effect of such Settlement Disruption Event on the Securities.

All determinations made by the Lead Manager or the Calculation Agent pursuant to this section shall be
conclusive and binding on the Investor and the Issuer. The Investor will not be entitled to any
compensation from the Issuer for any loss suffered as a result of the occurrence of a Settlement
Disruption Event.

7. Rights in connection with the Underlying

Until the Expiration Date all rights such as voting rights, dividends, subscription and preferential
subscription rights under or in connection with the Underlying belong to the holder of the Underlying.

If a delivery of the Underlying including any such rights is required, the Exercise Notice and the
aggregated Strike Price plus any stamp tax or other taxes, duties and commissions must have been
received prior to 12:00 noon (Zurich time) on the last Business Day prior to the date the Company has
appointed to be relevant with respect to the specific right.

The responsibility for any registration of the Underlying is borne by the Investor.

8. Trading of the Securities
The Securities can be traded until the Trading Expiration Time on the Last Trading Day at the latest.

9. Listing

The Listing, if any, of the Securities will be applied for on the relevant Exchange and will be maintained
on the relevant Exchange during the life of the Securities.

10. Taxation/Tax Call

Each Investor shall assume and be responsible for any and all taxes, duties, fees and charges imposed on
or levied against (or which could be imposed on or levied against) such Investor in any jurisdiction or by
any governmental or regulatory authority.

The Issuer and the Paying Agent shall have the right, but not the duty, to withhold or deduct from any
amounts otherwise payable to the Investor such amount as is necessary for the payment of any such
taxes, duties, fees and/or charges.

In any case where any governmental or regulatory authority imposes on the Issuer the obligation to pay
any such taxes, duties, fees and/or charges the Investor shall promptly reimburse the Issuer.
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Potential Investors should inform themselves with regard to any tax consequences particular to their
circumstances arising in the jurisdiction in which they are resident or domiciled for tax purposes in
connection with the acquisition, ownership, redemption or disposal by them of any Securities.

The Issuer may redeem all Securities in case any present or future taxes, duties or governmental charges
would be imposed by any jurisdiction in which the Issuer is or becomes subject to tax as a result of any
change in laws or regulations of the relevant jurisdiction. The Lead Manager shall as soon as practicable
notify the Investors of such redemption pursuant to the section headed ‘Notices’.

11. Further Issues

The Issuer reserves the right to issue at any time, without consent of the Investors, further Securities
ranking pari passu with previously issued Securities.

12. Purchases

The Issuer may, but is not obliged to; at any time purchase Securities at any price in the open market or by
tender or private treaty. Any Securities so purchased may be held or resold or surrendered for
cancellation.

13. Severability and Amendment of Terms and Conditions

In the event any term or condition is, or becomes invalid, the validity of the remaining terms and
conditions shall in no manner be affected thereby.

The Issuer shall be entitled to amend any term or condition for the purpose of clarifying any uncertainty,
or correcting or supplementing the provisions herein in such manner as the Issuer deems necessary or
desirable, provided that the Investor does not incur significant financial loss as a consequence thereof.

However, the Issuer shall at all times be entitled to amend any terms or conditions where, and to the
extent, the amendment is necessitated as a consequence of legislation, decisions by courts of law, or
decisions taken by governmental authorities.

14. Calculation

The Calculation Agent's calculations and determinations hereunder shall (save in the case of manifest
error) be final and binding on the Investors. The Calculation Agent will have no responsibility for good
faith errors or omissions in calculation of the value of the Underlying as provided herein.

The Investors shall not be entitled to make any claim against the Issuer in the case where the relevant
Exchange or any third party shall have made any misstatement as to the Underlying.

15. Substitution

The Issuer may at any time and from time to time, without the consent of the Investors, substitute for
itself as obligor under the Securities any affiliate, branch, subsidiary or holding company of UBS AG
(the "New Issuer") provided that (i) the New Issuer shall assume all obligations that the Issuer owes to the
Investors under or in relation to the Securities, and (i) such New Issuer shall at all times after such
substitution have either:

- a credit rating equivalent to or better than the Issuer, or
- its obligations to Investors under the Securities guaranteed by the Issuer.

If such substitution occurs, then any reference in the Prospectus to the Issuer shall be construed as a
reference to the New Issuer. Any substitution will be promptly notified to the Investor in accordance with
the section headed 'Notices'. In connection with any exercise by the Issuer of the right of substitution,
the Issuer shall not be obliged to carry any consequences suffered by individual Investors as a result of
the exercise of such right and, accordingly, no Investor shall be entitled to claim from the Issuer any
indemnification or repayment with respect of any consequence.
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16. lllegality

If the Issuer determines that the performance of its obligations under the Securities or that any
arrangements made to hedge the Issuer’s obligations have become illegal in whole or in part for any
reason, the Issuer may cancel the Securities by providing notice to Investors in accordance with the section
headed ‘Notices’.

If the Issuer cancels the Securities then the Issuer will, if and to the extent permitted by applicable law, pay
an amount to each Investor in respect of each Security held by an Investor. The amount shall be the fair
market value of a Security less the costs incurred by the Issuer when unwinding any underlying related
hedging arrangements, all as determined by the Lead Manager or Calculation Agent in its sole and
absolute discretion. Payments will be made in such manner as will be notified to the Investors in
accordance with the section headed ‘Notices’.

17. Notices

17.1 To the Issuer

Notice may be given to the Issuer by delivering such notice in writing to UBS at Bahnhofstrasse 45,
P.0.Box, CH-8098 Zurich or such other address as may be notified to the Investors in accordance with this
section.

17.2 To the Investors

All notices pertaining to listed Securities shall be validly given by publication on the webpage of the
relevant Exchange according to the listing rules of the relevant Exchange.

All notices pertaining to non-listed Securities shall be validly given by publication in the electronic media
such as Reuters and/or Investdata. In addition, any changes with regard to the terms of the Securities shall
be published on the internet at http://keyinvest.ibb.ubs.com.

18. Statutory Period of Limitation

In accordance with Swiss law, claims of any kind against the Issuer in connection with the Securities for,
inter alia, payment of any amount, or, if applicable, delivery of any Underlying will be prescribed 10 years
after the date on which the early or regular redemption of the Securities (whichever is applicable), has
become due.

19. Proceeds from the Sale of Securities

The net proceeds from the sale of the Securities will be used by the Issuer for general corporate purposes.
The Issuer has taken the necessary steps to secure its obligations. The Issuer has taken all necessary steps
to ensure the delivery of the Underlying, if applicable, during the whole life of the Securities.

20. Applicable Law and Jurisdiction

The form and contents of the Securities are subject to and governed by Swiss law. Exclusive place of
jurisdiction for all disputes affecting the Securities and the rights and obligations attached thereto shall be
Zurich, Switzerland.
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D. Selling Restrictions

Any Products purchased by any person for resale may not be offered in any jurisdiction in
circumstances which would result in the Issuer being obliged to register any further
documentation relating to this Product in such jurisdiction.

The restrictions listed below must not be taken as definitive guidance as to whether this
Product can be sold in a jurisdiction. Additional restrictions on offering, selling or holding of this
Product may apply in other jurisdictions. Investors in this Product should seek specific advice
before on-selling this Product.

Europe - For EEA jurisdictions (EU member states plus Norway, Iceland and Liechtenstein) that have
implemented the EU Prospectus Directive ("EU-PD"), the Product Documentation for this Product DOES
NOT QUALIFY as a prospectus published in accordance with the requirements of the EU-PD. Unless and
until a prospectus has been published in accordance with the requirements of the EU-PD, this Product
may not be offered or sold in EEA jurisdictions that have implemented the EU-PD other than 1) in
minimum denominations of, or total consideration per Investor of at least, EUR 50,000 (or equivalent in
other currencies) or 2) only to Qualified Investors; and/or (aggregated for all distributors) to less than 100
offerees that are not Qualified Investors per EEA jurisdiction. A "Qualified Investor" is a legal entity that (i)
is authorised or regulated to operate in the financial markets or has the sole purpose to invest in
securities; or (i) meets two of the following three criteria (as shown in its last annual or consolidated
accounts): (a) an average number of at least 250 employees during the last financial year; (b) a total
balance sheet of more than EUR 43,000,000; and (c) an annual net turnover of more than EUR
50,000,000.

For EEA jurisdictions that have not implemented the EU-PD, sales must be in compliance with the law of
that jurisdiction.

Hong Kong - This Product may not be offered or sold in Hong Kong.

Singapore - This document has not been registered as a prospectus with the Monetary Authority of
Singapore. Accordingly, this document and any other document or material in connection with the offer
or sale, or invitation for subscription or purchase, of this Product may not be circulated or distributed, nor
may this Product be offered or sold, or be made the subject of an invitation for subscription or purchase,
whether directly or indirectly, to persons in Singapore other than (i) to an institutional investor under
Section 274 of the Securities and Futures Act (Cap. 289) of Singapore ("SFA"), (ii) to a relevant person, or
any person pursuant to Section 275(1A) of the SFA, and in accordance with the conditions, specified in
Section 275 of the SFA or (iii) otherwise pursuant to, and in accordance with the conditions of, any other
applicable provision of the SFA.

Where this Product is subscribed or purchased under Section 275 of the SFA by a relevant person which

is:

(@)  a corporation (which is not an accredited investor) the sole business of which is to hold investments
and the entire share capital of which is owned by one or more individuals, each of whom is an
accredited investor; or

(b)  a trust (where the trustee is not an accredited investor) whose sole purpose is to hold investments
and each beneficiary is an accredited investor,

the shares, debentures and units of shares and debentures of that corporation or the beneficiaries' rights

and interest in that trust shall not be transferable for six months after that corporation or that trust has

acquired the securities under Section 275 of the SFA except:

(1) to an institutional investor (for corporations, under Section 274 of the SFA) or to a relevant person,
or to any person pursuant to an offer that is made on terms that such shares, debentures and units
of shares and debentures of that corporation or such rights and interest in that trust are acquired at
a consideration of not less than S$200,000 (or its equivalent in a foreign currency) for each
transaction, whether such amount is to be paid for in cash or by exchange of securities or other
assets, and further for corporations, in accordance with the conditions specified in Section 275 of
the SFA,

(2)  where no consideration is or will be given for the transfer; or

(3)  where the transfer is by operation of law.
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UK - For the purposes of non-discretionary accounts, this Product should not be sold with a consideration
of less than 50,000 EUR or equivalent.

USA - This Product may not be sold or offered within the United States or to U.S. persons, the foregoing
shall not, however, prohibit sales to U.S. offices of UBS AG.
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3 UBS

1.  Overview

UBS AG ("UBS AG” or “UBS" or the “Issuer” or the "Company") with its subsidiaries, is, according
to its own opinion, one of the world's leading financial firms, serving a discerning international
client base. UBS is, according to its own opinion, a leading global wealth manager, a leading
investment banking and securities firm with a strong institutional and corporate client franchise,
one of the largest global asset managers and the market leader in Swiss commercial and retail
banking. On 31 March 2009, UBS employed 76,206 people'. With headquarters in Zurich and
Basel, Switzerland, UBS operates in over 50 countries and from all major international centers.

UBS is, according to its own opinion, one of the best-capitalized financial institutions in the world.
On 31 March 2009 the BIS Tier12 ratio was 10.5%, invested assets stood at CHF 2,182 billion,
equity attributable to UBS shareholders was CHF 31,283 million and market capitalization was
CHF 31,379 million.

The rating agencies Standard & Poor’s Inc. ("Standard & Poor’s"), Fitch Ratings ("Fitch") and
Moody’s Investors Service Inc. ("Moody’s") have assessed the creditworthiness of UBS, i.e. the
ability of UBS to fulfill payment obligations, such as principal or interest payments on long-term
loans, also known as debt servicing, in a timely manner. The ratings from Fitch and Standard &
Poor's may be attributed a plus or minus sign, and those from Moody’s a number. These
supplementary attributes indicate the relative position within the respective rating class. Standard &
Poor’s currently rates UBS's creditworthiness with A+, Fitch with A+ and Moody’s with Aa2.

T Full-time equivalents.
2 Tier 1 capital comprises share capital, share premium, retained earnings including current year profit, foreign currency translation
and minority interests less accrued dividends, net long positions in own shares and goodwill.
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3 UBS

2. Corporate Information

The legal and commercial name of the Company is UBS AG. The Company was incorporated under
the name SBC AG on 28 February 1978 for an unlimited duration and entered in the Commercial
Register of Canton Basel-City on that day. On 8 December 1997, the Company changed its name
to UBS AG. The Company in its present form was created on 29 June 1998 by the merger of Union
Bank of Switzerland (founded 1862) and Swiss Bank Corporation (founded 1872). UBS AG is
entered in the Commercial Registers of Canton Zurich and Canton Basel-City. The registration
number is CH-270.3.004.646-4.

UBS AG is incorporated and domiciled in Switzerland and operates under Swiss Code of
Obligations and Swiss Federal Banking Law as an Aktiengesellschaft, a corporation that has issued
shares of common stock to investors.

The addresses and telephone numbers of UBS's two registered offices and principal places of
business are: Bahnhofstrasse 45, CH-8098 Zurich, Switzerland, telephone +41-44-234 11 11; and
Aeschenvorstadt 1, CH-4051 Basel, Switzerland, telephone +41-61-288 20 20.

UBS shares are listed on the SIX Swiss Exchange, the New York Stock Exchange and the Tokyo
Stock Exchange.

According to Article 2 of the Articles of Association of UBS AG ("Articles of Association”) the
purpose of UBS is the operation of a bank. Its scope of operations extends to all types of banking,
financial, advisory, service and trading activities in Switzerland and abroad.
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3 UBS

3.  Business Overview

3.1 Business divisions and Corporate Center

Organizationally, UBS has operated throughout 2008 as a Group with three business divisions
(Global Wealth Management & Business Banking, Global Asset Management and the Investment
Bank) and a Corporate Center. As announced on 10 February 2009, Global Wealth Management &
Business Banking has been divided into two business divisions: Wealth Management & Swiss Bank
and Wealth Management Americas. Each of the business divisions and the Corporate Center is
described below. A full description of their strategies, organization, products, services and markets
(under the 2008 structure) can be found in the restated Annual Report 2008 of UBS AG published
on 20 May 2009 (the "Annual Report 2008"), in the English version on pages 74-115 (inclusive).

3.1.1  Wealth Management & Swiss Bank

Wealth Management & Swiss Bank caters to high net worth and affluent individuals around the
world (except those served by Wealth Management Americas) whether they are investing
internationally or in their home country. UBS offers these clients a complete range of tailored
advice and investment services. Its Swiss Bank business provides a complete set of banking services
for Swiss individual and corporate clients.

3.1.2  Wealth Management Americas

Wealth Management Americas offers sophisticated products and services specifically designed to
address the needs of high net worth and affluent individuals. It includes the former Wealth
Management US business unit, as well as the domestic Canadian business and the international
business booked in the United States.

3.1.3 Global Asset Management

Global Asset Management is one of the world's leading asset managers, providing investment
solutions to private clients, financial intermediaries and institutional investors worldwide. The
business division offers diverse investment capabilities and investment styles across all major
traditional and alternative asset classes. Specialist equity, fixed income, currency, hedge fund, real
estate, infrastructure and private equity investment capabilities can also be combined in multi-asset
strategies.

3.1.4 Investment Bank

In the investment banking and securities businesses, UBS provides securities products and research
in equities, fixed income, rates, foreign exchange and metals. It also provides advisory services as
well as access to the world’s capital markets for corporate, institutional, intermediary and
alternative asset management clients.
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3 UBS

3.1.5 Corporate Center

The Corporate Center ensures that all business divisions operate as a coherent and effective whole
with a common set of values and principles in such areas as risk management and control, finance,
legal and compliance, marketing and communications, funding, capital and balance sheet
management, management of foreign currency earnings, information technology infrastructure
and service centers.

3.2 Organizational Structure of the Issuer

The objective of UBS’s group structure is to support the business activities of the Company within
an efficient legal, tax, regulatory and funding framework. None of the individual business divisions
of UBS or the Corporate Center are legally independent entities; instead, they primarily perform
their activities through the domestic and foreign offices of the parent bank, UBS AG.

Settlement of transactions through the parent bank allows UBS to fully exploit the advantages
generated for all business divisions through the use of a single legal entity. In cases where it is
impossible or inefficient to process transactions via the parent, due to local legal, tax or regulatory
provisions or newly acquired companies, these tasks are performed on location by legally
independent Group companies. UBS's significant subsidiaries are listed in the Annual Report 2008,
in English, on pages 347-350 (inclusive).

33 Competition

UBS faces stiff competition in all business areas. Both in Switzerland and abroad, the Bank
competes with asset management companies, commercial, investment and private banks,
brokerages and other financial services providers. Competitors include not only local banks, but
also global financial institutions, which are similar to UBS in terms of both size and services offered.

In addition, the consolidation trend in the global financial services sector is introducing new
competition, which may have a greater impact on prices, as a result of an expanded range of
products and services and increased access to capital and growing efficiency.

3.4 Recent Developments

On 5 May 2009 UBS reported a first quarter 2009 net loss attributable to UBS shareholders of CHF
1,975 million, driven primarily by losses on risk positions from businesses now exited or in the
process of being exited by the Investment Bank. Results include a CHF 0.6 billion goodwill
impairment charge related to the announced sale of UBS Pactual. Net new money outflows totaled
CHF 23.4 billion for Wealth Management & Swiss Bank and CHF 7.7 billion for Global Asset
Management. Wealth Management Americas reported net new money inflows of CHF 16.2 billion.
UBS further reduced risks and the size of its balance sheet during first quarter 2009. As of 31
March 2009 UBS had a BIS tier 1 ratio of 10.5% and BIS total ratio of 14.7%. Including the effect
of the announced sale of UBS Pactual, pro forma BIS tier 1 ratio was 11% as at 31 March 2009.

For a description of certain other recent developments through the date of publication of UBS's
first quarter 2009 report (5 May 2009), refer to the "Recent Developments" section of that report,
on pages 7-9 (inclusive).
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3 UBS

On 20 May 2009 UBS has restated its annual report for 2008 to correct identified accounting errors
related to the 2008 Group financial statements included in the annual report 2008 issued on 11
March 2009. These errors are not material to the annual or quarterly 2008 financial statements,
but related corrections would have been material to first quarter 2009 financial statements. For
full-year 2008, the total net impact of all restated items was a reduction of net profit and net profit
attributable to UBS shareholders of CHF 405 million, a reduction of equity and equity attributable
to UBS shareholders of CHF 269 million, and a reduction of basic and diluted earnings per share by
CHF 0.15 and CHF 0.14 respectively. UBS has re-filed its annual report 2008 on Form 20-F with the
US Securities and Exchange Commission on 21 May 2009.

3.5 Trend Information (Outlook)

There has been an improvement in market sentiment during the first quarter, with a strong
rebound in global stock market indices since early March, but the credit markets improved only
partly and trading in complex financial products remains illiquid. The markets continue to be
unsettled, and we remain cautious on the immediate outlook for UBS. The strong influence that
government policy has on the market environment was clearly demonstrated in the first quarter as
investors became less risk averse. However, the real economy has continued to deteriorate, and this
is expected to have negative implications for credit-related provisioning in coming quarters.
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4. Administrative, Management and Supervisory Bodies
of the Issuer

4.1 Details of the Executive and Supervisory Bodies of the Company

UBS operates under a strict dual board structure, as mandated by Swiss banking law. This structure
establishes checks and balances and creates an institutional independence of the Board of Directors
("BoD") from the day-to-day management of the firm, for which responsibility is delegated to the
Group Executive Board ("GEB"). No member of one Board may be a member of the other.

The supervision and control of the executive management remains with the BoD. The Articles of
Association and the Organization Regulations of UBS AG with their annexes govern all details as to
authorities and responsibilities of the two bodies. Please refer to www.ubs.com/corporate-
governance.

The BoD consists of at least six and a maximum of 12 members. The term of office for members of
the board is one year3.

4.1.1 Board of Directors

The BoD is the most senior body of UBS. All the members of the BoD are elected individually by the
annual general meeting for a term of office of one year4. The BoD itself then appoints its
Chairman, one or more vice chairmen, the deputy, the senior independent director and the
chairpeople and members of the various BoD committees (audit committee; corporate responsibility
committee; governance and nominating committee; human resources and compensation
committee; risk committee and strategy committee).

The BoD has ultimate responsibility for the success of UBS and delivering sustainable shareholder
value within a framework of prudent and effective controls which enables risk to be assessed and
managed. The BoD sets UBS's strategic aims, ensures that the necessary financial and human
resources are in place for UBS to meet its objectives and reviews management performance. The
BoD sets UBS's values and standards and ensures that its obligations to its shareholders and others
are met. The BoD's proposal for election of members of the BoD must be such that three quarters
of the members will, following election, be independent. While the Chairman does not need to be
independent, at least one of the vice-chairmen must be. The BoD meets as often as business
requires, and at least six times a year.

The business address of the members of the BoD is UBS AG, Bahnhofstrasse 45, CH-8098 Zurich,
Switzerland.

3 At the annual general meeting on 23 April 2008 the shareholders reduced the term of office for the members of the BoD from
three years to one year. As a result, the new members were elected for one year. For existing members the one-year term starts
from the point at which they are re-elected.

4 See footnote above.
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Board of Directors of UBS AG

The BoD consists of twelve members:

Title Term of office | Position outside UBS AG
Kaspar Villiger Chairman 2010 None
Sergio Marchionne Indepdendent 2010 CEO and member of the supervisory
vice board of Fiat S.p.A., Turin; CEO of Fiat
chairman / Group Automobiles; Chairman of
Senior SGS, Geneva; member of the BoD of
independent Philip Morris International Inc., New
director York; member of Acea (European
Automobile Manufacturers

Association); Chairman of CNH Case
New Holland Global N.V.,,
Amsterdam.

Sally Bott Member 2010 Group HR Director and member of
the Group Executive Committee of BP
Plc; member of the board of the Royal
College of Music in London; member
of the board of the Carter Burden
Center for the Aged in NYC.

Michel Demaré Member 2010 CFO and member of the Executive
Committee of ABB; president of Global
Markets at ABB; member of the
foundation board of IMD, Lausanne.
Rainer-Marc Frey Member 2010 Founder and Chairman of Horizon21;
member of the BoD of DKSH Group,
Zurich; member of the advisory board
of Invision Private Equity AG, Zug;
member of the BoD of the Frey
Charitable Foundation, Freienbach.
Bruno Gehrig Member 2010 Vice chairman of the BoD of Roche
Holding AG, Basel; Chairman of the
Swiss Air Transport Foundation, Zug.
Ann F. Godbehere Member 2010 Non executive director of Prudential
Plc.; member of the board of the
Lloyd’'s managing agency Atrium
Underwriters Group Ltd.; member of
the board of Ariel Holdings.

Axel P. Lehmann Member 2010 Group Chief Risk Officer and member
of the Group Executive Committee of
Zurich  Financial  Services  (Zurich);
responsible for Group IT at Zurich;
Chairman of the board of the Institute
of Insurance Economics at the
University of St. Gallen.

Helmut Panke Member 2010 Member of the BoD of Microsoft
Corporation, Redmond, WA (USA);
member of the supervisory board of
Bayer AG (Germany); member of the
BoD of the American Chamber of
Commerce in Germany, member of
the international advisory board for
Dubai International Capital’'s “Global
Strategic Equities Fund”.

William G. Parrett Member 2010 Independent director of Eastman
Kodak Co., Blackstone Group LP and
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Thermo Fisher Scientific Inc., USA;
Chairman of the BoD of the United
States Council for International
Business and of United Way of
America; member of the board of
trustees of Carnegie Hall; member of
the Executive Committee of the
International Chamber of Commerce.

David Sidwell Member 2010 Director of the Federal National
Mortgage Association Fannie Mae;
trustee of the International

Accounting  Standards Committee
Foundation, London; Chairman of the
BoD of Village Care of New York;
director of the National Council on
Aging.

Peter R. Voser Member 2010 CFO and executive BoD member of
Royal Dutch Shell plc, London;
member of the BoD of the Swiss
Federal Auditor Oversight Authority.

4.1.2  Group Executive Board

Under the leadership of the Group Chief Executive Officer (the "Group CEQ"), the GEB has
executive management responsibility for UBS Group and its business. It assumes overall
responsibility for the development and implementation of the strategies for the Group and the
business divisions. All GEB members (with the exception of the Group CEO) are proposed by the
Group CEO and the BoD approves the appointments of the Group CEO, the Group Chief Financial
Officer, the Group Chief Risk Officer and the Group General Counsel; the human resources and
compensation committee approves all other GEB members.

The business address of the members of the GEB is UBS AG, Bahnhofstrasse 45, CH-8098 Zurich,
Switzerland.

Group Executive Board of UBS AG

The GEB consists of thirteen members:

Oswald J. Gruebel Group Chief Executive Officer

John Cryan Group Chief Financial Officer

Markus U. Diethelm Group General Counsel

John A. Fraser Chairman and Chief Executive Officer Global Asset Management

Marten Hoekstra Chief Executive Officer Wealth Management Americas

Carsten Kengeter co-CEO Investment Bank

Ulrich Koerner Group Chief Operating Officer and Chief Executive Officer Corporate
Center

Philip J. Lofts Group Chief Risk Officer

Francesco Morra Chief Executive Officer Switzerland, Wealth Management & Swiss Bank

Rory Tapner Chairman and Chief Executive Officer Asia Pacific

Alexander Wilmot-Sitwell | co-CEO Investment Bank

UBS AG, Version 7/2009 Page 10 of 19



3 UBS

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, UBS Group Americas / President
Investment Bank

Chief  Executive Officer Wealth Management Global, Wealth
Management & Swiss Bank

Robert Wolf

Juerg Zeltner

No member of the GEB has any significant business interests outside the Bank.

4.1.3 Potential conflicts of interest

Members of the BoD and GEB may act as directors or executive officers of other companies (for
current positions outside UBS (if any), please see above under "Board of Directors of UBS AG") and may
have economic or other private interests that differ from those of UBS. Potential conflicts of interest
may arise from these positions or interests. UBS is confident that its internal corporate governance
practices and its compliance with relevant legal and regulatory provisions reasonably ensure that
any conflicts of interest of the type described above are appropriately managed, including
disclosure when appropriate.

4.2 Auditors

On 15 April 2009, the annual general meeting of UBS reelected Ernst & Young Ltd.,
Aeschengraben 9, 4002 Basel, Switzerland, as auditors for the financial statements of UBS and the
consolidated financial statements of the UBS Group for a further one-year term, in accordance with
Swiss company law and banking law provisions. Ernst & Young Ltd., Basel, is a member of the
Swiss Institute of Certified Accountants and Tax Consultants based in Zurich, Switzerland.

4.3 Major Shareholders of the Issuer

The ownership of UBS shares is broadly dispersed. As at 31 March 2009, Chase Nominees Ltd.,
London, was registered with a 8.13% holding (31 December 2008: 7.19%, 31 December 2007:
7.99%) of total share capital held in trust for other investors. As at 31 March 2009, the US
securities clearing organization DTC (Cede & Co.) New York, "The Depository Trust Company",
held 9.81% (31 December 2008: 9.89%, 31 December 2007: 14.15%) of total share capital in
trust for other beneficiaries. Pursuant to UBS’s provisions on registration of shares, the voting rights
of nominees are limited to 5%. This regulation does not apply to securities clearing and settlement
organizations. On 31 March 2009, no other shareholder had reported holding 3% or more of all
voting rights. Only shareholders registered in the share register as shareholders with voting rights
are entitled to exercise voting rights.

As of 17 April 2009, UBS held a stake of UBS registered shares, which corresponds to less than
3.00% of the total share capital of UBS AG.

At the same time UBS had disposal positions relating to 979,166,943 shares of UBS AG,
corresponding to 33.39% of the total share capital of UBS AG. These positions comprised 1,503,149
employee options relating to 2,175,809 shares (0.07%) and 2,111,668,019 acquisition and
conversion rights granted to third parties relating to 976,991,134 shares (33.32%), including the
number of shares of UBS AG to be issued upon the future conversion of (i) the Mandatory
Convertible Notes issued in March 2008 to the Government of Singapore Investment Corporation
Pte. Ltd, Singapore, and an investor from the Middle East, and (ii) the Mandatory Convertible Notes
issued in December 2008 to the Swiss Confederation. Correspondingly, as of 15 July 2008, the
Government of Singapore Investment Corporation Pte. Ltd reported in a filing with the US Securities
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and Exchange Commission that it held 240,223,963 UBS shares, including 228,832,951 shares to be
received upon conversion of the MCN, and as of 26 November 2008, the Swiss Confederation held
acquisition positions relating to 329,447,681 shares of UBS AG.

Further details on the distribution of UBS shares, the number of registered and non-registered
securities, voting rights as well as distribution by shareholder categories and geographical regions
can be found in the Annual Report 2008, in English, on pages 195-198 (inclusive) and on the
website of UBS AG (http://www.ubs.com/1/e/investors/shareholder_details/distribution.html).

UBS AG, Version 7/2009 Page 12 of 19


http://www.ubs.com/1/e/investors/shareholder_details/distribution.html

3 UBS

5.  Financial Information concerning the Issuer’s Assets
and Liabilities, Financial Position and Profits and Losses

A description of the Issuer’s assets and liabilities, financial position and profits and losses is
available, for financial year 2007, in the Annual Report 2007 of UBS AG, 4 Financial Statements, in
English, which were restated on 14 April 2008 (see (iv) below) and, for financial year 2008, in the
Annual Report 2008, as restated on 20 May 2009, Financial Information, in English. In this context,
the Issuer’s financial year equals the calendar year.

In the case of financial year 2007 reference is made to

(i) the Financial Statements of UBS AG (Group), in particular to the Income Statement of UBS
AG (Group) on page 18, the Balance Sheet of UBS AG (Group) on page 19, the Statement
of Cash Flows of the UBS AG (Group) on pages 23 - 24 (inclusive) and the Notes to the
Financial Statements on pages 25 - 120 (inclusive), and

(i) the Financial Statements of UBS AG (Parent Bank), in particular to the Income Statement of
UBS AG (Parent Bank) on page 125, the Balance Sheet of UBS AG (Parent Bank) on page
126, the Statement of Appropriation of Retained Earnings of UBS AG (Parent Bank) on
page 127, the Notes to the Financial Statements on page 128 and the Parent Bank Review
on page 124, and

(iii) the section entitled "Accounting Standards and Policies" on pages 3 - 8 (inclusive) in the
Annual Report 2007 of UBS AG, 4 Financial Statements.

(iv) In January 2008, the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) issued an
amendment to IFRS 2 Share-based Payment. The amended standard, entitled IFRS 2
Sharebased Payment: Vesting Conditions and Cancellations, is effective 1 January 2009
(early adoption permitted). The new standard clarifies the definition of vesting conditions
and the accounting treatment of cancellations. UBS has early adopted this amended
standard as of 1 January 2008. Under the amended standard, UBS is required to
distinguish between vesting conditions (such as service and performance conditions) and
non-vesting conditions. The amended standard no longer considers vesting conditions to
include certain non-compete provisions. The impact of this change is that UBS
compensation awards are expensed over the period that the employee is required to
provide active services in order to earn the award. Post-vesting sales and hedge restrictions
and non-vesting conditions are considered when determining grant date fair value.
Following adoption of this amendment, UBS has fully restated the two comparative prior
years (2006 and 2007). The effect of the restatement on the opening balance sheet at 1
January 2006 was as follows: reduction of retained earnings by approximately CHF 2.3
billion, increase of share premium by approximately CHF 2.3 billion, increase of liabilities
(including deferred tax liabilities) by approximately CHF 0.5 billion, and increase of deferred
tax assets by approximately CHF 0.5 billion. Net profits attributable to UBS shareholders
declined by CHF 863 million in 2007 and by CHF 730 million in 2006. Additional
compensation expense of CHF 797 million and CHF 516 million was recognized in 2007
and 2006, respectively. This additional compensation expense includes awards granted in
2008 for the performance year 2007. The impact of the restatement on total equity as of
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31 December 2007 was a decrease of CHF 366 million. Retained earnings at 31 December
2007 decreased by approximately CHF 3.9 billion, share premium increased by
approximately CHF 3.5 billion, liabilities (including deferred tax liabilities) increased by
approximately CHF 0.6 billion and deferred tax assets increased by approximately CHF 0.2
billion. The restatement decreased basic and diluted earnings per share for the year ended
31 December 2007 by CHF 0.40 each and for the year ended 31 December 2006 by
CHF 0.33 and CHF 0.31, respectively. In order to provide comparative information, these
amounts also reflect the retrospective adjustments to shares outstanding in 2007 due to
the capital increase and the share dividend paid in 2008. The additional compensation
expense is attributable to the acceleration of expense related to share-based awards as well
as for certain alternative investment vehicle awards and deferred cash compensation
awards which contain non-compete provisions and sale and hedge restrictions that no
longer qualify as vesting conditions under the amended standard.

Reference is also made to the Consolidated Financial Statements (restated) of UBS AG for
the financial year 2007, in particular the Income Statement of UBS AG (Group) on page
F-31, the Balance Sheet of UBS AG (Group) on page F-32, the Statement of Cash Flows of
UBS AG (Group) on pages F-37 - F-38 (inclusive) and the Notes to the Financial Statements
on pages F-39 - F-139 (inclusive). Moreover, reference is made to the Annual Report 2008
of UBS AG, Financial Information.

In the case of financial year 2008 reference is made to

(i) the Financial Statements of UBS AG (Group), in particular to the Income Statement of UBS
AG (Group) on page 256, the Balance Sheet of UBS AG (Group) on page 257, the
Statement of Cash Flows of the UBS AG (Group) on pages 261 - 262 (inclusive) and the
Notes to the Financial Statements on pages 263 - 370 (inclusive), and

(i) the Financial Statements of UBS AG (Parent Bank), in particular to the Income Statement of
UBS AG (Parent Bank) on page 372, the Balance Sheet of UBS AG (Parent Bank) on page
373, the Statement of Appropriation of Retained Earnings of UBS AG (Parent Bank) on
page 373, the Notes to the Financial Statements on pages 374 — 389 (inclusive) and to the
Parent Bank Review on page 371, and

(iii) the sections entitled "Accounting Principles" on page 245 and “Critical Accounting
Policies” on pages 246-250 (inclusive) in the Annual Report 2008 of UBS AG, as restated
on 20 May 2009, Financial Information, in English.

The annual financial reports form an essential part of UBS’s reporting. They include the audited
Consolidated Financial Statements of UBS Group, prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS") and the audited financial statements of UBS AG (Parent
Bank), prepared according to Swiss banking law provisions. The financial statements also include
certain additional disclosures required under Swiss and US regulations. The annual reports also
include discussions and analysis of the financial and business results of UBS, its business divisions
and the Corporate Center.

The financial statements for UBS AG (Group) and its subsidiaries as well as for UBS AG (Parent
Bank) were audited by Ernst & Young Ltd., Basel, for financial years 2007 and 2008. The report of
the auditors of UBS AG (Parent Bank) can be found on page 140 of the Annual Report 2007 of
UBS AG, 4 Financial Statements, in English and on pages 390-391 of the Annual Report 2008 of
UBS AG, Financial Information, in English. The report of the auditors of UBS AG (Group) can be
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found on pages 16-17 (inclusive) of the Annual Report 2007 of UBS AG, 4 Financial Statements, in
English, and on pages F-29 — F-30 (inclusive) of the Consolidated Financial Statements (restated) of
UBS AG for the financial year 2007, in English and on pages 254 — 255 (inclusive) of the Annual
Report 2008 of UBS AG, Financial Information, in English.

Reference is also made to UBS's first quarter 2009 report, which contains information on the
financial condition and the results of operation of UBS Group as of 31 March 2009. The interim
financial statements are not audited.

All relevant financial information contained in the 2007 and 2008 annual reports as well as in
UBS's first quarter 2009 report (including the relevant notes thereto), as well as the "Risk Factors"
section of the Annual Report 2008, as restated on 20 May 2009, in English, on pages 23-27, form
an integral component of this document, and are therefore fully incorporated in this document.

5.1 Legal and Arbitration Proceedings

UBS Group operates in a legal and regulatory environment that exposes it to potentially significant
litigation risks. As a result, UBS is involved in various disputes and legal proceedings, including
litigation, arbitration and regulatory and criminal investigations, including numerous disputes and
legal proceedings arising directly or indirectly out of the credit crisis. Such cases are subject to many
uncertainties, and their outcome is often difficult to predict, including the impact on operations or
on the financial statements, particularly in the earlier stages of a case. In certain circumstances, to
avoid the expense and distraction of legal proceedings, UBS may, based on a cost-benefit analysis,
enter into a settlement even though UBS denies any wrongdoing. The Group makes provisions for
cases brought against it only when, after seeking legal advice, in the opinion of management it is
probable that a liability exists and the amount can be reasonably estimated. No provision is made
for claims asserted against the Group that in the opinion of management are without merit and
where it is not likely that UBS will be found liable.

Certain potentially significant legal proceedings within the last 12 months until the date of this
document are described below:

a) Tax shelter investigation: In connection with a criminal investigation of tax shelters, the
United States Attorney’s Office for the Southern District of New York (US Attorney’s Office)
continues to examine certain tax-oriented transactions involving UBS and others between
1996 and 2000. UBS is continuing to cooperate in this investigation.

b) Municipal bonds: In November 2006, UBS and others received subpoenas from the US
Department of Justice, Antitrust Division, and the US Securities and Exchange Commission
(SEC), seeking information relating to the investment of proceeds of municipal bond
issuances and associated derivative transactions. Both investigations are ongoing, and UBS is
cooperating. In addition, various state Attorneys General have issued subpoenas seeking
similar information. In the SEC investigation, on 4 February 2008, UBS received a “Wells
notice” advising that the SEC staff is considering recommending that the SEC bring a civil
action against UBS AG in connection with the bidding of various financial instruments
associated with municipal securities.

Q) HealthSouth: UBS is defending itself in two putative securities class actions brought to the US
District Court for the Northern District of Alabama by holders of stocks and bonds in
HealthSouth Corp. A class has been certified in the stockholder action. In October 2008, UBS
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agreed to settle derivative litigation brought on behalf of HealthSouth in Alabama State
Court. Due to existing insurance coverage this settlement had no impact on UBS’s result in
2008.

d) Parmalat: UBS has been facing multiple proceedings arising out of the Parmalat insolvency. In
June 2008, UBS settled all civil claims brought by Parmalat in its capacity as Assumptor in
composition with creditors and Mr. Bondi (Extraordinary Commissioner of Parmalat S.p.A.
and other Parmalat companies under extraordinary administration) for EUR 185 million.
Other civil claims by third parties have automatically terminated as a result of termination of
criminal proceedings in Milan (with the exception of some costs issues which are the subject
of appeals to Court of Cassation) and will also do so in Parma when the time for filing an
appeal expires, unless an appeal has been lodged in the meantime.

e) Auction rate securities: UBS was sued by four state regulatory authorities and was the subject
of investigations by the SEC and other regulators, relating to the marketing and sale of
Auction Rate Securities (ARS) to clients and to UBS’s role and participation in ARS auctions
and underwriting of ARS. UBS was also named in several putative civil litigations and
individual civil suits and a large number of individual arbitrations. The regulatory actions and
investigations, and the class actions, followed the disruption in the markets for these
securities and related auction failures since mid-February 2008. Plaintiffs and the regulators
generally sought rescission, i.e., for UBS to purchase the ARS that UBS sold to them at par
value, as well as compensatory damages, disgorgement of profits and in some cases
penalties. On 8 August 2008, UBS entered into settlements, in principle with the SEC, the
New York Attorney General (NYAG) and other state agencies represented by the North
American Securities Administrators Association (NASAA), whereby UBS agreed to offer to
buy back ARS from eligible customers within certain time periods, the last of which begins on
30 June 2010, and to pay penalties of USD 150 million (USD 75 million to the NYAG, USD 75
million to the other states). UBS subsequently finalized its settlement with the State of
Massachusetts, the SEC and the NYAG, and is continuing to finalize agreements with the
other state regulators. UBS's settlement is largely in line with similar industry regulatory
settlements. The NYAG and SEC continue to investigate individuals affiliated with UBS who
traded in ARS or who had responsibility for disclosures.

f) US cross-border: UBS AG has been responding to a number of governmental inquiries and
investigations relating to its cross-border private banking services to US private clients during
the years 2000-2007. On 18 February 2009, UBS announced that it had entered into a
Deferred Prosecution Agreement (DPA) with the US Department of Justice (DOJ) and a
Consent Order with the SEC relating to these investigations. As part of these settlement
agreements, among other things: (i) UBS will pay a total of USD 780 million to the United
States, USD 380 million representing disgorgement of profits from maintaining the US cross-
border business and USD 400 million representing US federal backup withholding tax
required to be withheld by UBS, together with interest and penalties, and restitution for
unpaid taxes associated with certain account relationships involving fraudulent, sham and
nominee offshore structures and otherwise, as covered by the DPA, (i) UBS will complete the
exit of the US cross-border business out of non-SEC registered entities, as announced in July
2008, which these settlements permit UBS to do in a lawful, orderly and expeditious manner;
(iii) UBS will implement and maintain an enhanced program of internal controls with respect
to compliance with its obligations under its Qualified Intermediary (Ql) Agreement with the
Internal Revenue Service (IRS), as well as a revised legal and compliance governance structure
in order to strengthen independent legal and compliance controls; and (iv) pursuant to an
order issued by the Swiss Financial Market Supervisory Authority (FINMA), information was
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transferred to the DOJ regarding accounts of certain US clients as set forth in the DPA who,
based on evidence available to UBS, appear to have committed tax fraud or the like
according to the definition of the Swiss-US Double Taxation Treaty. Pursuant to the DPA, the
DOJ has agreed that any further prosecution of UBS will be deferred for a period of at least
18 months, subject to extension under certain circumstances, such as UBS needing more
time to complete the implementation of the exit of its US cross-border business. If UBS
satisfies all of its obligations under the DPA, the DOJ will refrain permanently from pursuing
charges against UBS relating to the investigation of its US cross-border business. As part of
the SEC resolution, the SEC filed a complaint against UBS in the Federal District Court in
Washington, D.C., charging UBS with acting as an unregistered broker-dealer and
investment advisor in connection with maintaining its US cross-border business. Pursuant to
the Consent Order, UBS did not admit or deny the allegations in the complaint, and
consented to the entry of a final judgment that provides, among other things, that: (i) UBS
will pay USD 200 million to the SEC, representing disgorgement of profits from the US cross-
border business (this amount is included in, and not in addition to, the USD 780 million UBS
is paying to the United States as described above); and (ii) UBS will complete its exit of the US
cross-border business and will be permanently enjoined from violating the SEC registration
requirements by providing broker-dealer or investment advisory services to US persons
through UBS entities not registered with the SEC. The District Court entered the final
judgment on 19 March 2009. The DOJ and SEC agreements do not resolve issues concerning
the pending “John Doe” summons which the IRS served to UBS in July 2008. In this regard,
on 19 February 2009, the Civil Tax Division of the DOJ filed a civil petition for enforcement of
this summons in US Federal District Court in Miami, through which it seeks an order directing
UBS to produce information located in Switzerland regarding US clients who have
maintained accounts with UBS in Switzerland without providing a Form W-9. On 24 February
2009, the District Court issued a scheduling order, pursuant to which a hearing will be held
on 13 July 2009. The DPA preserves UBS’s ability to fully defend its rights in connection with
the IRS’s enforcement effort. UBS believes that it has substantial defenses, including that
complying with the summons would constitute a violation of Swiss financial privacy laws, and
intends to vigorously contest the enforcement of the summons. The resolution of the
summons litigation could result in the imposition of substantial fines, penalties and / or other
remedies. In addition, pursuant to the DPA, should UBS fail to comply with a final US court
order directing it to comply with the summons after fully exhausting all rights to appeal, the
DOJ may, after certain conditions have been satisfied, choose to pursue various remedies
available for breach of the DPA. This may include charging UBS with conspiracy to commit
tax fraud. Also on 18 February 2009, FINMA published the results of the now concluded
investigation conducted by the Swiss Federal Banking Commission (SFBC). The SFBC
concluded, among other things, that UBS violated the requirements for proper business
conduct under Swiss banking law and issued an order barring UBS from providing services to
US resident private clients out of non-SEC registered entities. Further, the SFBC ordered UBS
to enhance its control framework around its cross-border businesses, and announced that
the effectiveness of such a framework will be audited. Following the disclosure of the US
cross-border matter, and the settlements with the DOJ and the SEC, tax and regulatory
authorities in a number of jurisdictions have expressed an interest in understanding the cross-
border wealth management services provided by UBS and other financial institutions. It is
premature to speculate on the scope or effect of any such inquiries.

9) Matters related to the credit crisis: UBS is responding to a number of governmental inquiries
and investigations, and is involved in a number of litigations, arbitration and disputes related
to the credit crisis, and in particular US mortgage-related securities and related structured
transactions and derivatives. These matters concern, among other things, UBS’s valuations,
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disclosures, write-downs, underwriting and contractual obligations. In particular, UBS has
been in regular communication with, and responding to inquiries by, FINMA, its home
country consolidated regulator, as well as the SEC and the United States Attorney’s Office for
the Eastern District of New York (USAO), regarding some of these issues and others,
including the role of internal control units, governance and processes around risk control and
valuation of mortgage- related instruments, compliance with public disclosure rules, and the
business rationales for the launching and reintegration of Dillon Read Capital Management
(DRCM). FINMA concluded its investigation in October 2008, but the investigation by the
SEC and the USAO are ongoing.

h) Claims related to UBS disclosure: A putative consolidated class action was filed against UBS
and a number of current and former directors and senior officers in the Southern District of
New York alleging securities fraud in connection with the firm’s disclosures relating to its
losses in the subprime mortgage markets, its losses and positions in auction rate securities,
and its US cross-border business. Defendants have moved to dismiss the complaint for lack of
jurisdiction and for failure to state a claim. In February and March 2009, two additional
securities fraud class actions were filed in the Southern District of New York against UBS and
various senior executives and directors alleging that defendants made materially misleading
disclosures concerning UBS’s US cross-border wealth management business. By an order
dated 7 April 2009, these two actions were consolidated with the pending shareholder class
action. UBS and a number of senior officers and directors have also been sued in a
consolidated class action brought on behalf of holders of UBS ERISA retirement plans in
which there were purchases of UBS stock. UBS has moved to dismiss the ERISA complaint for
failure to state a claim.

i) Madoff: In relation to the Madoff investment fraud, UBS, UBS (Luxembourg) SA and certain
other UBS subsidiaries are responding to inquiries by a number of regulators, including
FINMA and the Luxembourg Commission de Surveillance du Secteur Financier (CSSF). The
CSSF has made inquiries concerning two third-party funds established under Luxembourg
law, the assets of which were managed by Bernard L. Madoff Investment Securities LLC, and
which now face severe losses. The last reported net asset value of the two funds before
revelation of the Madoff scheme was approximately USD 1.7 billion in the aggregate. The
documentation establishing both funds identifies UBS entities in various roles including
custodian, administrator, manager, distributor and promoter, and that UBS employees serve
as board members. On 25 February 2009, the CSSF issued a communiqué with respect to the
larger of the two funds, stating that UBS (Luxembourg) SA had failed to comply with its due
diligence responsibilities as custodian bank. The CSSF ordered UBS (Luxembourg) SA to
review its infrastructure and procedures relating to its supervisory obligations as custodian
bank, but did not order it to compensate investors. Certain alleged beneficiaries have filed
claims against UBS entities for purported losses or the satisfaction of redemption requests
delivered to funds prior to the revelation of the Madoff scheme. Further, certain clients of
UBS Sauerborn (the KeyClient segment of UBS Deutschland AG) are exposed to Madoff-
managed positions through third party funds and funds administered by UBS Sauerborn.

Besides the proceedings specified above under (a) through (i) no governmental, legal or arbitration
proceedings, which may significantly affect the Issuer’s financial position, are or have been
pending, nor is the Issuer aware that any such governmental, legal or arbitration proceedings are
threatened.
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5.2 Material Contracts

No material agreements have been concluded outside of the normal course of business which
could lead to UBS being subjected to an obligation or obtaining a right, which would be of key
significance to the Issuer’s ability to meet its obligations to the investors in relation to the issued
securities.

5.3 Significant Changes in the Financial Situation of the Issuer

There has been no material change in the financial position of the Issuer since the publication of
UBS's first quarter report (not audited) for the period ending 31 March 2009.

5.4 Documents on Display

. The Annual Report of UBS AG as at 31 December 2007, comprising (i) the Review 2007,
(i) 1 Strategy, Performance and Responsibility, (i) 2 Risk, Treasury and Capital
Management, (iv) 3 Corporate Governance and Compensation Report, (v) 4 Financial
Statements (including the "Report of the Group Auditors — Independent Registered Public
Accounting Firm, Consolidated Financial Statements " and the "Report of the Statutory
Auditors");

. The Consolidated Financial Statements (restated) of UBS AG for the financial year 2007
(including the “Report of the Group Auditors”), published in the securities prospectus
dated 23 May 2008 for the Offering of 760,295,181 Registered Shares of UBS AG;

. The Annual Report of UBS AG as of 31 December 2008, as restated on 20 May 2009,
comprising (i) the Review 2008, (ii) Strategy, performance and responsibility, (i) UBS
business divisions and Corporate Center (iv) Risk and treasury management, (v) Corporate
governance and compensation, (vi) Financial information (including the "Report of the
Statutory Auditor and the Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm on the
Consolidated Financial Statements" and the “Report of the Statutory Auditor on the
Financial Statements”), (vii) Compensation Report;

. The quarterly report of UBS AG as at 31 March 2009; and

. The Articles of Association of UBS AG Zurich/Basel, as the Issuer,

shall be maintained in printed format, for free distribution, at the offices of the Issuer for a period
of twelve months after the publication of this document and shall be available on UBS's website at
www.ubs.com/annualreporting. In general, the annual and quarterly reports of UBS AG are
published on the UBS website, at www.ubs.com/investors or a successor address.

UBS AG, Version 7/2009 Page 19 of 19


http://www.ubs.com/annualreporting
http://www.ubs.com/investors

APPENDIX B



annual report

1| Strategy, performance and responsibility

2 | UBS business divisions and Corporate Center
3 | Risk and treasury management

4 | Corporate governance and compensation

5 | Financial information







N o u N

12
18
20
23
28
29
32
33
35
38
44
47
52
54
60

74
77
83
89
94
102
110

120
125
128
134
149
150
151
159
162
168
172
176

Contents

Letter to shareholders

UBS reporting at a glance
Other sources of information
Contacts

Strategy, performance
and responsibility

Strategy and structure

The making of UBS

Current market climate and industry drivers
Risk factors

Financial performance

Measurement and analysis of performance
UBS reporting structure

Accounting changes

Key performance indicators

UBS results

Balance sheet

Off-balance sheet

Cash flows

UBS employees

Corporate responsibility

UBS business divisions and
Corporate Center

Global Wealth Management & Business Banking
Wealth Management International & Switzerland
Wealth Management US

Business Banking Switzerland

Global Asset Management

Investment Bank

Corporate Center

Risk and treasury
management

Risk management and control

Risk concentrations

Market risk

Credit risk

Operational risk

Treasury management

Liquidity and funding management
Interest rate and currency management
Capital management

Shares and capital instruments

UBS shares in 2008

Basel Il Pillar 3

194
195
197
199
206
210
211
213
214
216
218
221

223
224
225

230

237

5.

244
245
246
251
263
371
371
372
374
393

393
394
398
399

Corporate governance
and compensation

Corporate governance

Group structure and shareholders

Capital structure

Board of Directors

Group Executive Board

Senior leadership

Shareholders’ participation rights

Change of control and defense measures
Auditors

Information policy

Regulation and supervision

Compliance with New York Stock Exchange
listing standards on corporate governance
Compensation, shareholdings and loans
Compensation governance

2008 compensation for the Board of Directors
and Group Executive Board

Shares, options and loans for the Board of Directors and
Group Executive Board (at end of 2008)
Compensation principles 2009 and beyond
for UBS senior executives

Financial
information

Introduction

Accounting principles

Critical accounting policies

Consolidated financial statements

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
UBS AG (Parent Bank)

Parent Bank review

Parent Bank financial statements

Notes to the Parent Bank financial statements
Additional disclosure required

under SEC regulations

A — Introduction

B — Selected financial data

C - Information on the company

D — Information required by industry guide 3



Annual Report 2008

Letter to shareholders

Dear Shareholders,

UBS recorded a net loss attributable to shareholders of CHF
21.3 billion in 2008. This extremely poor result stemmed pri-
marily from the results of the fixed income trading business
of the Investment Bank, mainly due to losses and writedowns
on exposures related to US real estate and other credit posi-
tions. The loss has affected all stakeholders in UBS: in 2008,
in US dollar terms, shareholders suffered a 58% fall in mar-
ket capitalization, compared with the average 47% decline
of the other members of the Dow Jones Banks Titans 30 In-
dex; the total number of employees was reduced by 7%;
and employee compensation was cut 36%. Clients have, un-
derstandably, expressed to us their disappointment about
our losses, while at the same time stressing their apprecia-
tion for the advice and service levels they receive from their
advisors.

For financial markets as a whole, 2008 was an extraordi-
nary year in economic and financial history: world stock
markets fell 42% (the MSCI world index), interest rates
reached the lowest levels ever in the US and the UK, and a
major investment bank failed. Responses to the crisis includ-
ed the injection of new capital into many of the world’s
major financial institutions by governments. With hindsight,
it is clear that UBS was not prepared for this. Our balance
sheet was too large and the systems of risk control and risk
management that should have limited our exposure failed.
We placed too much emphasis on growth and not enough
on controlling risks and costs, particularly in regards to our
compensation systems, performance targets and indicators
and executive governance structures. Imponderable levels
of cross-subsidy and confusion about accountability result-
ed from complex relationships between our business divi-
sions.

In 2008, we focused on addressing our structural and
strategic weaknesses and on establishing the long-
term financial stability of UBS. Activities centered on the
key areas we identified as requiring change: corporate gov-
ernance, risk management and control processes, the liquid-
ity and funding framework and management compensation.
As a result, 2008 saw the introduction of new organization
regulations to clarify the responsibilities of the Board of Di-
rectors (BoD) and the Group Executive Board (GEB), the es-
tablishment of an Executive Committee (EC) to allocate and
monitor the use of capital and risk in each of the business
divisions, and the formation of a dedicated BoD risk commit-
tee. We also merged the credit and market risk functions of
the Investment Bank into a single unit led by the newly es-

tablished Chief Risk Officer position and a new liquidity and
funding framework was introduced that requires each busi-
ness division to be charged market-based rates for funding
from other UBS divisions. We will continue to make changes
in 2009, including the implementation of a new compensa-
tion model for senior executives that aligns compensation
with the creation of sustainable results for shareholders. In
addition, management compensation within business divi-
sions will be based largely on divisional results and the re-
sponsible and independent management of each division’s
resources and balance sheet.

Changes in our business divisions will play a vital role
in the transformation of our firm. As announced on 10
February 2009, UBS now operates with four business divi-
sions and a Corporate Center. The former Global Wealth
Management & Business Banking division has been split into
two business divisions: Wealth Management & Swiss Bank
and Wealth Management Americas. We will continue to re-
position the Investment Bank as a client-orientated and fee-
and commission-earning business — in other words, the In-
vestment Bank is moving away from the proprietary trading
business that adversely affected our capital. A new unit has
been established within the Investment Bank to manage the
positions of those fixed income businesses we have decided
to exit.

We took active steps to increase the financial stability
of UBS in 2008. The issuance of two Mandatory Convertible
Notes (MCNs) and a rights issue raised CHF 34.6 billion of
new capital. During the year, our total balance sheet was
reduced 11% to CHF 2,015 billion, risk-weighted assets fell
19% to CHF 302.3 billion and our identified risk concentra-
tions fell sharply — with these reductions assisted by an
agreement made in 2008 to sell a large portfolio of illiquid
securities and other positions to a fund owned and con-
trolled by the Swiss National Bank. Operating expenses fell
19% and the year-end tier 1 ratio was 11.0%, compared
with 9.1% for year-end 2007 under the different standards
that were then applicable under Basel I.

As announced on 18 February 2009, UBS settled a US
cross-border case with the US Department of Justice
(DOJ) and the US Securities and Exchange Commission
(SEC) by entering into a Deferred Prosecution Agree-
ment (DPA) with the DOJ and a Consent Order with the
SEC. As part of these agreements, we will complete our pre-
viously announced exit of our US cross-border business and
implement an enhanced program of internal controls to
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ensure compliance with the Qualified Intermediary Agree-
ment with the Internal Revenue Service. In addition, pursu-
ant to an order issued by the Swiss Financial Market Supervi-
sory Authority, information was transferred to the DOJ
regarding accounts of certain US clients as set forth in the
DPA, who, based on evidence available to UBS, committed
tax fraud or the like within the meaning of the Swiss-US
Double Taxation Treaty. The total cost for the settlement of
USD 780 million has been fully charged to our 2008 results.
This episode makes it particularly clear that our control
framework must be extremely robust and that employee in-
centives must be aligned with risk management and control
and the creation of long-term value for shareholders.

Outlook — The recent worsening of financial conditions and
UBS-specific factors have adversely affected our results, par-
ticularly in the Investment Bank. Even after substantial risk
reduction, our balance sheet remains exposed to illiquid and

volatile markets and our earnings will therefore remain at
risk for some time to come. Net new money remains positive
for our Wealth Management Americas division, but this is
being partially offset by net outflows in Wealth Manage-
ment & Swiss Bank. Global Asset Management has also ex-
perienced further net outflows.

More generally, financial market conditions remain fragile
as company and household cash flows continue to deterio-
rate, notwithstanding the very substantial measures govern-
ments are taking to ease fiscal and monetary conditions. Our
near-term outlook remains extremely cautious.

For 2009, we will continue to implement our program to
strengthen our financial position by reducing our risk posi-
tions, our overall balance sheet size, and our operating
costs. Management will also focus on securing and building
the firm’s core client businesses and on returning the Group
as soon as possible to a sustainable level of overall profit-
ability.

UBS

11 March 2009

/ol %M

Peter Kurer Oswald J. Gruebel
Chairman Group Chief Executive Officer

On 26 February 2009, Oswald J. Gruebel joined UBS in the capacity of Group Chief Executive Officer, replacing Marcel
Rohner. Mr. Gruebel brings to UBS his deep understanding of banking and the markets and proven management skills.
He also brings a strong determination to restore the bank’s sustained profitability and regain client trust. As announced on
4 March 2009, Peter Kurer, Chairman of the UBS Board of Directors, has decided not to stand for re-election at the annual
general meeting on 15 April 2009. The UBS Board of Directors is nominating Kaspar Villiger for the role of Chairman.



UBS reporting at a glance

Annual publications

Annual report (SAP no. 80531)

Published in both German and English, this single volume

report provides a letter to shareholder and a description of:

— UBS’s strategy, performance and responsibility;

— the strategy and performance of the business divisions
and the Corporate Center;

— risk, treasury and capital management at UBS;

— corporate governance and executive compensation; and

— financial information, including the financial statements.

Review (SAP no. 80530)
The booklet contains key information on UBS's strategy and fi-
nancials. It is published in English, German, French and Italian.

Compensation report (SAP no. 82307)

Compensation of senior management and the Board of
Directors (executive and non-executive members) is dis-
cussed here. It is published in English and German.

Quarterly publications

Letter to shareholders

The letter provides a quarterly update from UBS’s executive
management on the firm’s strategy and performance. The
letter is published in English, German, French and Italian.

Financial report (SAP no. 80834)

This report provides a detailed description of UBS's strategy
and performance for the respective quarter. It is published in
English.

How to order reports

The annual and quarterly publications are available in PDF
format on the internet at www.ubs.com/investors/topics in
the reporting section. Printed copies can be ordered from the
services section of the website. Alternatively, they can be or-
dered by quoting the SAP number and the language prefer-
ence where applicable, from UBS AG, Information Center,
P.O. Box, CH-8098 Zurich, Switzerland.
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Other sources of information

Website

The “Analysts & Investors” website at www.ubs.com/inves-
tors provides the following information on UBS: financial in-
formation (including SEC documents); corporate informa-
tion; UBS share price charts and data; the UBS event calendar
and dividend information; and the latest presentations by
management for investors and financial analysts. Informa-
tion on the internet is available in English and German, with
some sections in French and ltalian.

Result presentations

UBS's quarterly results presentations are webcast live. A play-
back of the most recent presentation is downloadable at
www.ubs.com/presentations.

Messaging service/ UBS news alert

On the www.ubs.com/newsalert website, it is possible to
subscribe to receive news alerts about UBS via SMS or e-mail.
Messages are sent in English, German, French or Italian and
it is possible to state preferences for the theme of the alerts
received.

Form 20-F and other submissions to the US Securities
and Exchange Commission

UBS files periodic reports and submits other information about
UBS to the US Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC).
Principal among these filings is the annual report on Form 20-
F, filed pursuant to the US Securities Exchange Act of 1934.

UBS's Form 20-F filing is structured as a “wrap-around” doc-
ument. Most sections of the filing can be satisfied by referring
to parts of the annual report. However, there is a small amount
of additional information in Form 20-F which is not presented
elsewhere, and is particularly targeted at readers in the US.
Readers are encouraged to refer to this additional disclosure.

Any document that UBS files with the SEC is available to
read and copy on the SEC’s website, www.sec.gov, or at
the SEC’s public reference room at 100 F Street, N.E., Room
1580, Washington, DC, 20549. Please call the SEC by dial-
ing 1-800-SEC-0330 for further information on the opera-
tion of its public reference room. Much of this additional
information may also be found on the UBS website at
www.ubs.com/investors, and copies of documents filed
with the SEC may be obtained from UBS’s Investor Rela-
tions team, whose contact details are listed on the next
page of this report.

Corporate information

The legal and commercial name of
the company is UBS AG. The com-
pany was formed on 29 June 1998,
when Union Bank of Switzerland
(founded 1862) and Swiss Bank
Corporation (founded 1872) merged
to form UBS.

UBS AG is incorporated and domi-
ciled in Switzerland and operates

under Swiss Company Law and Swiss
Federal Banking Law as an Aktien-
gesellschaft, a corporation that has
issued shares of common stock to
investors.

The addresses and telephone numbers
of UBS’s two registered offices are:
Bahnhofstrasse 45, CH-8001 Zurich,
Switzerland, phone +41-44-2341111;

and Aeschenvorstadt 1,

CH-4051 Basel, Switzerland,

phone +41-61-2882020.

UBS AG shares are listed on the

SIX Swiss Exchange (traded through
its trading platform SWX Europe,
formerly virt-x), on the New York
Stock Exchange (NYSE) and on

the Tokyo Stock Exchange (TSE).




Contacts

Switchboards

For all general queries. Zurich +41-44-234 1111
tondon L #M207S680000
New York +1-212-821 3000
HongKong ........................ oo e

Investor Relations

UBS’s Investor Relations team supports Hotline UBS AG

!nstltutlonal, professpnal gnd rgtall New York Investor Relations

investors from our offices in Zurich < cee- e TSRO R
and New York. Fax(zurich) L rAAa23asars POBOX
www.ubs.com/investors CH-8098 Zurich, Switzerland

Media Relations

UBS's Media Relations team supports Zurich +41-44-234 8500 mediarelations@ubs.com

global media and journalists from London +44-20-7567 4714 ubs-media-relations@ubs.com

offices in Zurich, London, New York — oeere oo L L SRR
and Hong Kong. NewYork +1-212-8825857 ] mediarelations-ny@ubs.com
www.ubs.com/media Hong Kong +852-2971 8200 sh-mediarelations-ap@ubs.com

Shareholder Services

UBS Shareholder Services, a unit of the  Hotline +41-442356202 ] UBSAG
Company Secretary, s responsible for Fax +41-44-235 3154 Shareholder Services

the registration of the g|0ba| reg|5tered ........................................................................................................................
shares. F.0. Box

US Transfer Agent

For all global registered share-related Calls from the US +866-541 9689 BNY Mellon Shareowner Services
queriesinthe US. e S S TOYET DR SR SEDL TEIE TR

WWW.MelloninVestor.COm e ST T
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Strategy and performance

— UBS is a global firm providing financial services to private, corporate and

institutional clients

Ilts strategy is to concentrate on three global core businesses — wealth
management, asset management and investment banking — and retail
and corporate banking services in Switzerland

UBS's strateqic priorities
Client focus

UBS's purpose is to serve clients and give them confidence
in making financial decisions. Whether it serves individual,
corporate or institutional clients, UBS puts their success and
interests first and strives to truly understand their goals. As
client needs and the financial services industry constantly
evolve, UBS makes a systematic effort to capture client
feedback, identify potential for improvement and adapt its
offerings accordingly.

Profitable growth and earnings quality

UBS shareholders expect the firm to achieve profitable
growth. Fulfilling this expectation requires UBS to establish
sustainable earning streams based on client benefit.

It therefore strives to build a strong and growing client
base and to continuously develop its unique assets and
capabilities.

Risk and capital management

Taking, managing and controlling risk is a core element of
UBS's business activities. UBS's aim is not, therefore, to
eliminate all risks, but to achieve an appropriate balance
between risk and return. Risk reduction and capital measures
taken in 2008 aimed at maintaining UBS's capital strength

as a source of competitive advantage. Adapting risk expo-
sures to the current market environment and managing UBS's
balance sheet remain strategic priorities for the firm.

Measures taken in 2008

In August 2008, UBS launched a comprehensive program
to help the firm adjust to the new realities in the financial
industry. It aims to capitalize on the strengths inherent in
its leading client franchises across its business divisions, to
further grow these franchises, and to address certain
weaknesses in its business model that had become
apparent both before and as a result of the financial crisis.

A significant reduction in risk exposures has been
achieved during the year. UBS reduced its risk positions
very significantly during the year, including through a
transaction with the Swiss National Bank. UBS also took
several measures to strengthen its risk organization.

The Investment Bank is in the process of reposition-
ing itself toward client-driven growth, combined
with a further reduction of its balance sheet and risk
positions.

UBS has implemented new corporate governance
guidelines, actively reinforcing a clear separation of the
roles and responsibilities of the Board of Directors and its
committees, from those of the Group Executive Board.

Senior management compensation has been re-
viewed. In November 2008, UBS announced the new
compensation model that is directly aligned with sustain-
able value creation within each manager’s area of respon-
sibility, and incorporates a longer performance evaluation
horizon.



UBS financial highlights

For the year ended % change from
CHF million, except where indicated 31.12.08 31.12.07 31.12.06 31.12.07
Performance indicators from continuing operations
Diluted earnings per share (CHF)' (7.75) (2.61) 4.64 (197)
Return on equity attributable to UBS shareholders (%)2 7 (9.0 arn 39
i (%)3 .................................................................................... ey OTCUEE S
Net new money (CHF billiony* (22600 1406 1517
Group results
Operating income 796 31,721 47,484 (97)
Operating expenses 28555 35463 33365 (19)
Operating profit before tax (from continuing and discontinued operations) ~ (27,560) (3.597) 15007 (666)
Net profit attributable to UBS shareholders T g 009) (5247) 1507 (306)
Personnel (full-time equivalents)® 77,783 83,560 78,140 (7)
Invested assets (CHF billion) 2178 3189 2089 (32)
UBS balance sheet and capital management
Balance sheet key figures
Totalassets T 2,014,815 2274801 2348733 (1)
Equity attributable to UBS shareholders T 32531 36875 51,037 (12)
Market capitalization® 43,519 108,654 154,222 (60)

BIS capital ratios’

Risk-weighted assets 302,273 374,4218 344,015 (19)
Long-term ratings

FItCh LRI TUREEE PGS FUERRRE
- odys RS UERRUEE ORI T
o &Poors U R PR FV AR

1 Refer to “Note 8 Earnings per share (EPS) and shares outstanding” in the financial statements of this report. 2 Net profit attributable to UBS shareholders from continuing operations /average eg-
uity attributable to UBS shareholders. 3 Operating expenses/operating income before credit loss expense or recovery. 4 Excludes interest and dividend income. 5 Excludes personnel from private
equity (part of the Corporate Center). 6 Refer to the "UBS shares in 2008" section of this report for 2008 for further information. 7 Refer to the “Capital management” section of this report for
further information. 8 The calculation prior to 2008 is based on the Basel | approach.

The 2008 results and the balance sheet in this report differ from those presented in UBS's fourth quarter 2008 report is-
sued on 10 February 2009 due to: (1) the settlement agreements with the US Department of Justice and Securities and
Exchange Commission related to the US cross-border case, as described in the “Settlement regarding the US cross-border
case” sidebar in the “Wealth Management International & Switzerland” section of this report; (2) the determination by

the Swiss National Bank (SNB) of the 30 September 2008 valuation of approximately USD 7.8 billion of securities not yet
transferred by UBS to the SNB StabFund, as described in the “Transaction with the Swiss National Bank” sidebar in the
“Strategy and structure” section of this report; and (3) restatements to correct identified accounting errors related to the
2008 financial statements as described in the “Accounting changes” section of this report. The total impact of the above
items on net profit after tax was negative CHF 1,595 million.
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Strategy and structure

Strategy and structure

UBS is a global firm providing financial services to private, corporate and institutional clients. Its strategy is
to concentrate on three global core businesses — wealth management, asset management and investment
banking — and to provide retail and corporate banking services in Switzerland. By delivering valuable advice,
products and services to its clients, the firm aims to generate sustainable earnings and create value for its

shareholders.

UBS strategy and business model

UBS has crafted its business strategy to benefit from one
underlying global trend: the growth of wealth. Despite the
current financial crisis, the firm believes that over the long
term wealth creation will continue to be a prominent charac-
teristic of the world economy. UBS’s three core businesses of
wealth management, asset management and investment
banking are geared to take advantage of this trend.

Organizationally, UBS has operated throughout 2008 as a
Group with three business divisions: Global Wealth Manage-
ment & Business Banking, Global Asset Management and
the Investment Bank. As announced on 10 February 2009,
Global Wealth Management & Business Banking has been
divided into two business divisions: Wealth Management &
Swiss Bank and Wealth Management Americas. Each busi-
ness division is accountable for its own results, but co-oper-
ates to provide a broad palette of cross-business solutions
for clients. UBS considers the breadth and depth of its offer-
ing to be one of its main strengths, and a key to its ability to
create value for clients and shareholders.

Wealth Management & Swiss Bank

UBS’s wealth management business caters to high net worth
and affluent individuals around the world (except those
served by Wealth Management Americas) whether they are
investing internationally or in their home country. UBS offers
these clients a complete range of tailored advice and invest-
ment services. Its Swiss Bank business provides a complete
set of banking services for Swiss individual and corporate
clients.

Wealth Management Americas

Wealth Management Americas offers sophisticated products
and services specifically designed to address the needs of
high net worth and affluent individuals. It includes Wealth
Management US, domestic Canada, domestic Brazil and the
international business booked in the United States.

Global Asset Management

As a worldwide asset manager, UBS offers innovative invest-
ment management solutions in nearly every asset class to
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private, corporate and institutional clients, as well as through
financial intermediaries. Investment capabilities include tra-
ditional assets (for instance equities, fixed income and asset
allocation), alternative and quantitative investments (multi-
manager funds, funds of hedge funds and hedge funds) and
real estate.

Investment Bank
In the investment banking and securities businesses, UBS
provides securities products and research in equities, fixed
income, rates, foreign exchange and metals. It also provides
advisory services as well as access to the world’s capital mar-
kets for corporate, institutional, intermediary and alternative
asset management clients.
- Refer to the “Reporting structure” and “UBS business

divisions and Corporate Center” sections of this report

for more information on UBS’s business divisions and

the Corporate Center

UBS competitive profile

UBS’s current business mix is a result of many decades of
development, internal growth initiatives and acquisitions.
Since 1998, UBS has progressively divested non-core busi-
nesses and participations, and invested in growing its core
businesses and creating a balanced reach worldwide.

UBS is now a leading global wealth manager: it is a mar-
ket leader (by client assets) in both Europe and Asia Pacific,
in sixth position in the US and one of the only firms of glob-
al scale focusing on wealth management as a core business.
In 2008, UBS was among the top five firms globally in merg-
ers and acquisitions based on deal volume. The asset man-
agement business is one of the leading active asset manag-
ers globally and one of the largest mutual fund managers in
Europe based on assets under management.

In Switzerland, UBS is the leading firm for retail and com-
mercial banking. It serves around 2.5 million individual cli-
ents and 133,500 corporations, institutional investors, public
entities and foundations, collectively. The bank has chosen
to limit its retail and commercial banking business to the
Swiss market, concentrating on domestic opportunities and
growing selected market segments.



UBS corporate governance

As mandated by Swiss banking law, UBS operates under a
strict dual board structure comprising the Board of Directors
(BoD) and the Group Executive Board (GEB).

The BoD is UBS's most senior body and is ultimately
responsible for the firm’s strategy and the supervision of its
executive management. The BoD sets the mid- and long-
term strategic direction of the Group, is responsible for
appointments and dismissals at top management levels and
for defining the firm’s risk principles and risk capacity. A clear
majority of its members are non-executive and fully inde-
pendent.

The management of the business is delegated by the BoD
to the GEB. Under the auspices of the Group CEO, the GEB
has executive management responsibility for the Group and
its businesses. It assumes overall responsibility for the de-
velopment and the implementation of the Group’s and
the business divisions’ strategies and for the exploitation of
synergies across the firm.

The Executive Committee (EC) consists of the Group Chief
Executive Officer (CEQ), the Group Chief Financial Officer
(CFO), the Group Chief Risk Officer (CRO) and the Group
General Counsel, and is responsible for the allocation of the
Group’s financial resources to the business divisions. These
resources include capital, funding, and risk capacity and
parameters within the limits set by the BoD.

- Refer to the “Corporate governance” section of this

report for more information

UBS's strategic priorities

Client focus

UBS's purpose is to serve clients and give them confidence in
making financial decisions. Whether it serves individual, cor-
porate or institutional clients, UBS puts their success and in-
terests first and strives to truly understand their goals. As
client needs and the financial services industry constantly
evolve, UBS makes a systematic effort to capture client feed-
back, identify potential for improvement and adapt its offer-
ings accordingly.

Profitable growth and earnings quality

UBS shareholders expect the firm to achieve profitable growth.
Fulfilling this expectation requires UBS to establish sustainable
earning streams based on client benefit. It therefore strives to

build a strong and growing client base and to continuously
develop its unique assets and capabilities.

In order to fulfill these requirements, UBS needs to ensure
that it efficiently manages its financial resources. By making
continuous efficiency improvements — that is, by looking for
ways to achieve the same or a better result or service with
fewer resources — UBS strives both to manage costs in a dis-
ciplined manner and to optimize its spending across eco-
nomic and business cycles.

Risk and capital management
Taking, managing and controlling risk is a core element
of UBS’s business activities. UBS's aim is not, therefore, to
eliminate all risks, but to achieve an appropriate balance
between risk and return. Risk reduction and capital measures
taken in 2008 aimed at maintaining UBS’s capital strength as
a source of competitive advantage. Adapting risk exposures
to the current market environment and managing UBS's
balance sheet remain strategic priorities for the firm.
- Refer to the “Risk and treasury management” section
of this report for more information on risk and capital
management

Business divisions’ franchises

UBS continues to develop the platform and reach of the
business divisions known since 10 February 2009 as Wealth
Management & Swiss Bank and Wealth Management
Americas. This includes the expansion of its global presence
in international wealth management growth markets. UBS’s
leading position in Switzerland, both as a wealth manager
and as the largest retail bank, will remain a cornerstone of
UBS's strategy and a source of sustainable profit growth.

UBS also continues to develop the platform and reach of
its Global Asset Management business division. This includes
focusing on developing innovative products and managing
toward sustainable investment performance.

The Investment Bank is in the process of repositioning
itself toward client-driven growth, combined with a further
reduction of its balance sheet and risk positions. This will
allow the Investment Bank to build on its global coverage and
distribution capability and to ensure maximum accountability
for the creation of shareholder value. This repositioning in-
cludes the downsizing or exiting of certain businesses.

-> Refer to the “UBS business divisions and Corporate Center”

section of this report for more information on
UBS’s business divisions and the Corporate Center
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Strategy and structure

Measures taken

In August 2008, UBS launched a comprehensive program to
re-engineer its businesses and to adjust to the new realities
in the financial industry. It aims to capitalize on the strengths
inherent in its leading client franchises across its business
divisions, to further grow these franchises, and to address
certain weaknesses in its business model that had become
apparent both before and as a result of the financial crisis.

Executive governance

Controls have been improved and accountability and trans-
parency increased at the level of top management. One re-
sult has been the creation of an Executive Committee to al-
locate and continuously monitor the use of capital and risk
in each of the business divisions. Other wide-ranging chang-
es to the Group's governance have been proposed and im-
plemented. Refer to the “Corporate governance” section of
this report for more information on corporate governance.
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Liquidity and funding framework

The business divisions have been incentivized to manage
their balance sheets with greater autonomy and responsibil-
ity. A new liquidity and funding concept has been approved
and is being implemented. Refer to the “Liquidity and fund-
ing management” section of this report for more informa-
tion on liquidity and funding.

Senior management compensation

Senior management compensation is now aligned to sus-
tainable value creation within each manager’s area of re-
sponsibility and a longer performance evaluation horizon
has been introduced. UBS announced a new compensation
model for senior executives in November 2008 (effective
1 January 2009). Refer to the “Compensation, sharehold-
ings and loans” section of this report for more information
on senior management compensation.

Transformation of UBS's wealth management business

As announced on 10 February 2009, Global Wealth Manage-
ment & Business Banking has been divided into two new
business divisions: Wealth Management & Swiss Bank and
Wealth Management Americas.



Key performance indicators: 2009 and beyond

UBS uses key performance indicators
(KPIs) to monitor the firm’s perfor-
mance and the delivery of returns to
shareholders. Until the end of 2008,
UBS focused on four KPIs at the Group
level, as described in the discussion of
performance measures in the “Mea-
surement and analysis of perfor-
mance” section of this report. In
response to the changing market
environment, UBS conducted a
detailed review of its KPI framework in
2008. The objective of this review was
to adjust these indicators — which are
used by the firm to evaluate its
economic performance as a whole and
the contribution of individual employ-

Key performance indicators

ees to that performance — to more
closely reflect the firm’s strategic
priorities.

This review focused on the identifica-
tion of the key drivers of total
shareholder return (TSR) — defined as
the change in the share price and any
dividend yield — which represents the
ultimate measure of performance for
UBS shareholders. However, several
factors driving TSR cannot be directly
influenced by UBS management,
such as valuation multiples and
short-term market trends. Therefore,
on a day-to-day basis, UBS manage-
ment measures performance in the
form of profitability after the cost of
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equity or economic profit. Conse-
quently, the KPI framework has been
designed to explicitly incorporate the
drivers of economic profit at the
Group and business division level.
UBS manages its businesses based on
its KPI framework, which is used for
internal performance measurement
to ensure management accountability
and consistency. Both Group and
business division KPIs are used to
determine variable compensation of
executives and staff.

The Group and business division KPIs
shown in the table below will be
disclosed beginning in first quarter
2009 and going forward.

Wealth Management &

Swiss Bank

Wealth Management
Americas

Investment Bank

Global Asset Management

[a]
=
=}
<
o°

1 For International clients segment only. RolA: return on invested assets.

Swiss clients segment only. 4 Regulatory VaR.

2 FINMA: Swiss Financial Market Supervisory Authority.

3 Impaired lending portfolio as a % of total lending portfolio. For
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Risk management in 2008

UBS entered 2008 with significant legacy risk positions which
exceeded the firm’s risk bearing capacity. While UBS incurred
substantial writedowns on its risk positions, it pursued an
active risk reduction program through sales in 2008. Signifi-
cant transactions included the sale in May of US residential
mortgage-backed securities to a fund managed by Black-
Rock for proceeds of USD 15 billion and the agreement
reached in October with the Swiss National Bank (SNB) (see

UBS identified significant weaknesses in its risk manage-
ment and control organization. In order to address these
weaknesses, UBS launched an extensive remediation plan,
which included the overhaul of its risk governance, signifi-
cant changes to risk management and control personnel, as
well as improvements in risk capture, risk representation and
risk monitoring. Implementation of this plan is ongoing and
remains a high priority for UBS.

details below).

Transaction with the Swiss National Bank

As announced on 16 October 2008,
the Swiss National Bank (SNB) and
UBS reached an agreement to transfer
illiquid securities and other positions
from UBS's balance sheet to a fund
owned and controlled by the SNB.
From the originally agreed USD 60
billion, the transaction size has been
reduced to USD 38.6 billion (including
the effect of price adjustments so far
totaling USD 0.7 billion).

With this transaction, UBS caps future
potential losses from these assets,
reduces its risk-weighted assets,
materially de-risks its balance sheet
and is no longer exposed to the
funding risk of the assets to be
transferred.

Transaction structure

The SNB will finance the fund with a
loan in the amount of 90% of the
purchase price to be paid by the fund,
secured by the assets of the fund.
10% of the purchase price will be
financed through an equity contri-
bution by the SNB. The loan will be
non-recourse to UBS and will be priced
at LIBOR plus 250 basis points. The
fund and loan facility will terminate in
eight years, but the termination date
may be extended to 10 or 12 years.
The cash flow from the assets,
including interest, rental income,
principal repayments and proceeds
from asset sales (net of expenses

and working capital requirements),

will be applied to service the loan until
full repayment.

At the closing of each asset transfer,
UBS will purchase, for an amount
equal to the SNB’s equity contribution
on that date, an option to acquire the
fund’s equity once the loan has been
fully repaid. The option exercise price
will be USD 1 billion plus 50% of the
amount by which the equity value
exceeds USD 1 billion at the time of
exercise. This option will be carried on
UBS’s balance sheet at its fair value.

In the event of a change of control of
UBS, the SNB will have the right but
not the obligation to require UBS to
purchase the outstanding loans at par
plus accrued interest and to purchase
the fund equity at 50% of its value at
the time.

If, upon the fund’s termination, the
SNB incurs a loss on the loan it has
made to the fund, the SNB will be
entitled to receive 100 million UBS
ordinary shares against payment of the
par value of those shares (currently
CHF 0.10 per share).

Governance

In fourth quarter 2008, the fund was
established under the name SNB
StabFund as a Swiss limited partnership
for collective investments. Its objective
is to manage the acquired positions
based on fundamental value consider-
ations. The SNB StabFund is owned by
a general partner and a limited partner,

both of which are wholly owned by the
SNB. The general partner has a board
of directors with five members, of
which three are designated by the SNB
and two by UBS.

UBS acts as the investment manager
of the SNB StabFund, subject to the
oversight of the board of directors

of the general partner which must
approve certain types of decisions. The
board also retains the right to remove
UBS as the investment manager of the
SNB StabFund.

Portfolio composition and size

The overall portfolio valuation of
positions already transferred or still
expected to be transferred to the

SNB StabFund is USD 38.6 billion, as
shown in the table opposite, subject
to any further pricing adjustments.
The SNB StabFund acquired a first
tranche of 2,042 securities positions
from UBS on 16 December 2008 for
USD 16.4 billion. The remaining
positions identified for sale to the fund
are planned to be transferred in

March 2009 in one or more additional
transfers.

The purchase price for the securities
transferred to the fund on 16 December
2008 was the value of these securities
as of 30 September 2008 as determined
by the SNB based on a valuation
conducted by third-party valuation
experts. On the same basis, the SNB has
since determined the purchase price to
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be paid for a further USD 7.8 billion in
securities and other positions that have
not yet been transferred to the fund. So
far, the determined purchase prices for
securities and other positions transferred
to or to be transferred to the fund were,
in the aggregate, USD 0.7 billion lower
than the value UBS assigned to these
positions on 30 September 2008. All of
this difference is accounted for in UBS's
results for 2008. Purchase prices have
not yet been determined for the other
positions not yet transferred to the
fund, valued at USD 14.4 billion by UBS
on 30 September 2008. Any difference
between the purchase prices to be
determined by the SNB and the value
UBS assigned to these positions will
affect UBS's results in first quarter 2009.

Issuance of MCNs to the

Swiss Confederation

In connection with the transaction
with the SNB, UBS raised CHF 6 bil-
lion of new capital in the form of
mandatory convertible notes (MCNs)
convertible into UBS registered
shares. These were placed with the
Swiss Confederation and issued on
9 December 2008. Refer to the
“Capital management” section of
this report and “Note 26 Capital
increases and mandatory convertible
notes” in the financial statements
of this report for more information.

Implications for UBS's 2008

income statement

The overall impact on UBS’s 2008
income statement of the SNB
transaction and the placement of the
mandatory convertible notes (MCNs)
with the Swiss Confederation was

a net charge of CHF 4.5 billion.

This reflects a net loss arising from
the acquisition of the equity pur-
chase option, the loss referred to
above arising from valuation
differences determined to date on

securities sold or to be sold to the
SNB StabFund, losses on hedges that
were subject to trading restrictions
as a result of the SNB transaction,
and the impact of the contingent
issuance of UBS shares in connection
with the transaction. The fair
valuation impact of the issuance of
the MCNs, as described in “Note 26
Capital increases and mandatory
convertible notes” in the financial
statements of this report, is also
included in this total.

Positions affected by the transfer to the Swiss National Bank StabFund

Valuation as of 30 September 2008

USD billion Priced Not yet priced Total
US sub-prime 4.0 1.6 5.6
USAItA s 08 Y
USprime BT 07 19
US reference-linked note prbgram 58 0.0 58
Commercial real estate 34 s Y
Student loan-backed securities o5 0.0 05
Other positions - ey 9.0 175
Price difference ' o7 T ! 0.7
Total 24.2 14.4 38.6

1To be determined.
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The making of UBS

All the firms that have come to make up today’s UBS look
back on a long and diverse history. Both the two Swiss pre-
decessor banks and PaineWebber Group Inc. (PaineWebber)
came into being in the second half of the 19th century, while
S.G. Warburg’s roots go back to 1934. But it was in the
1990s when UBS’s current identity began to form.

In the early 1990s, the two Swiss banks that came to
form the current UBS, Swiss Bank Corporation (SBC) and
Union Bank of Switzerland, were commercial banks operat-
ing mainly out of Switzerland. The two banks shared a simi-
lar vision: to become a world leader in wealth management
and a global bulge-bracket investment bank with a strong
position in global asset management, while remaining an
important commercial and retail bank in Switzerland.

Union Bank of Switzerland, the largest and best-capital-
ized Swiss bank of its time, opted to pursue a strategy of
organic growth, or expansion by internal means. In contrast,
SBC, then the third-largest Swiss bank, decided to take an-
other route by starting a joint venture with O’Connor, a lead-
ing US derivatives firm that was fully acquired by SBC in
1992. O'Connor was noted for its young, dynamic and in-
novative culture, meritocracy and its team orientation. It
brought state-of-the-art risk management and derivatives
technology to SBC. In 1994, SBC acquired Brinson Partners,
one of the leading US-based institutional asset management
firms. Both the O’Connor and Brinson deals represented
fundamental steps in the development of the firm.

18

The next major move was in 1995, when SBC acquired
S.G. Warburg, the British merchant bank. The deal helped to
fill SBC's strategic gaps in corporate finance, brokerage and
research and, most importantly, brought with it an institu-
tional client franchise, which is still crucial to today’s equities
business.

The 1998 merger of Swiss Bank Corporation and Union
Bank of Switzerland brought together these two leading
Swiss financial institutions, creating a leading global wealth
manager and improving the new firm’s chances of becoming
a global bulge bracket investment bank and a leading global
institutional asset manager.

Still, in order to become a truly global player in invest-
ment banking and wealth management, UBS needed to es-
tablish a significant presence in the key US market. UBS ad-
vanced towards this objective when it acquired PaineWebber
in 2000.

Since the acquisition of PaineWebber, UBS’s main priority
has been to develop and grow organically. Smaller acquisi-
tions have helped to accelerate and complement the firm’s
growth. In 2006, for instance, UBS enhanced its presence
in Brazil and Latin America by acquiring Brazil’s largest inde-
pendent investment bank and asset manager, Banco Pac-
tual. Today, UBS has significant scale in its areas of focus,
with strong positions in large, mature markets as well as a
growing presence in emerging markets.

- Refer to www.ubs.com/history for more information
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Current market climate and industry drivers

The current crisis and its aftermath will have profound implications for the financial services industry and

the world economy.

Market crisis and economic downturn

2008 was one of the most difficult years ever for the finan-
cial services industry. As the crisis deepened over the course
of the year, the problems in the financial industry spread to
other parts of the world economy. A precipitous drop in pric-
es across most main asset classes, coupled with deleverag-
ing, resulted in poorly functioning lending markets and a
lack of inter-bank liquidity. Banks were forced to recapitalize,
sometimes with the help of governments. Hopes that the
crisis might be short-lived were dashed after the failure of
one of the major US investment banks in mid-September,
which resulted in very severe liquidity issues for many finan-
cial institutions. Banks experienced a scarcity of equity, credit
supply further contracted and numerous countries fell into
recession.

Recessions characterized by a simultaneous fall in prices
across asset classes, an increase in consumer savings rates
and contractions in lending caused by a shortage of bank
capital are very rare, and have always been severe. There
have in fact only been four recorded instances of such reces-
sions in the past century: the “bankers’ panic” in 1907, the
“great depression” in 1929-39, the Swedish economic crisis
in 1992, and most recently the “lost decade” in Japan from
1990-2000.

Changes in consumer demand drive capital expenditures
by companies and consequently affect capital goods indus-

tries, sometimes very rapidly. Even countries which have not
experienced high leverage growth and significant asset
price increases have been affected as investment spending
and exports dropped. In particular, countries which relied on
foreign capital inflows (either to the government or to the
private sector) are at risk of seeing foreign investment and
exports fall, which could in turn hurt the value of their
currency.

There were radical changes to monetary and fiscal policy
during 2008. Government borrowing and spending (through
“stimulus packages”, transfer payments, loans, guarantees
and purchases of bank capital) increased dramatically and
led to higher deficits. Central bank balance sheets expand-
ed, both as a result of traditional central bank activity and
through unconventional measures such as the purchase of
distressed assets from financial institutions (for example,
mortgage backed securities). Interest rates have fallen to his-
torically low levels in most countries as central banks attempt
to support private and corporate spending.

Macro economic perspectives

The macro economic outlook for 2009 is not positive. A
modest recovery can be expected only if the measures taken
by governments and central banks prove to be both effective
and efficient. Few observers expect the financial services in-
dustry to rebound quickly from this crisis.

Market capitalization of the components of the Dow Jones Banks Titans 30 Index, 2008 versus 2007"

USD billion

W 31.12.07

W 31.12.08

1 Source: Bloomberg. Components of the Dow Jones Banks Titans 30 Index as of 28 February 2009.
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Industry drivers

A number of drivers are expected to have a significant im-
pact on banks’ earnings and the structure of the financial
services industry in the short to medium term. The most rel-
evant factors are described below.

De-leveraging

The current downturn is different from previous ones not
only in terms of its severity and wide geographical reach, but
also in terms of the de-leveraging process that lies at its
heart. De-leveraging is the process through which house-
holds, companies and the banks that intermediate between
them simultaneously attempt to sell real and financial assets
to pay back their debts. This unleashes two strong deflation-
ary forces.

First, there is a reduction and restructuring of banks’ bal-
ance sheets, which may affect their capacity to lend money.
Such a restructuring is already well under way, having start-
ed in 2007 when banks began recording losses on their asset
portfolios, disposing of assets and raising capital. This trend
gathered pace in the course of 2008 and has continued in
the early part of 2009 as several banks disclosed more losses
and raised further capital.

Second, household and corporate balance sheets are also
in effect being restructured and reduced, depressing con-
sumer and capital spending and appetite for risk. This pro-
cess has just started and may last several years, as house-
holds address the need to permanently increase their savings.
It may be particularly long and painful in countries with his-
torically low savings rates, such as the US.

While debt levels are lower among non-financial corpora-
tions than in previous recessions, these companies will also
have to restructure their balance sheets as they face falling
demand for their products and services, and funding be-
comes increasingly scarce and more expensive.

The process of de-leveraging is expected to have, on bal-
ance, a negative impact on banks’ earnings. While increased

savings can provide opportunities for certain banks, risk
aversion and the downward pressure it exerts on asset prices
tend to reinforce each other.

Government intervention and re-regulation

The financial crisis has sparked heavy public intervention in
the global financial system. State intervention packages have
included a mix of capital injections by governments, public
guarantees for selected bank liabilities such as deposits and
commercial paper, and maximum loss guarantees for illiquid
assets held in banks’ balance sheets. Governments have in-
creasingly attached conditions to the measures they have
taken, providing them the opportunity to at least temporar-
ily influence the business activities of certain banks.

At the same time, the financial industry and its regulators
are analyzing the lessons learned and implementing mea-
sures to adjust their business practices and the regulatory
framework. This will fundamentally impact and likely trans-
form the industry. While many details of the regulatory re-
sponse to the financial crisis are still to be worked out, new
regulation will likely focus on ways of mitigating the nega-
tive effects of the business cycle through regulatory policy, as
well as on measures to increase the transparency of financial
markets and to strengthen their resilience. Regulators are
also likely to try to better identify and address systemic risks,
for example by adapting regulatory requirements to the size
and profile of certain financial institutions.

Specific measures are likely to include adjustments to the
following six broad areas of direct relevance to international
banks: higher capital requirements and the introduction of
leverage limitations; more robust liquidity buffers and risk
management; management and partial reintegration of
off-balance sheet exposure onto firms' balance sheets;
review of valuation and accounting practices; increased co-
operation between stronger and better-equipped super-
visors and central banks, especially from an international
perspective; and alignment of compensation programs and
pay levels with long-term, firm-wide profitability. Some
national regulators have moved quickly, including the
Swiss Financial Market Supervisory Authority (FINMA; until
31 December 2008 Swiss Federal Banking Commission),
which has already defined new transitional capital require-
ments for UBS and Credit Suisse.

Overall, the regulatory changes prompted by the current
market turmoil will have lasting effects on the industry in
terms of bank size, business portfolios, controls, capital
requirements, profitability and compensation. These will
result in significant changes to the competitive landscape.
At the product level, regulatory restrictions and greater
supervision in areas such as structured products, credit
default swaps, and securitization are likely to result in
lower margins for banks. Enhanced transparency require-
ments and disclosure standards for investment products are
also likely.
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Client behavior and demand

The relationship between financial firms and their clients has
seen accelerating change over the past couple of years, for
example with the rise of increasingly sophisticated clients
(such as leveraged finance investors and hedge funds). How-
ever, the corporate and institutional client segment as a
whole is expected to continue requiring innovative solutions
which cater to specific and unigue needs, and span product
groups and geographies.

2008 has marked a turning point with regard to the in-
vestment behavior of many private clients, and fundamental
changes in this behavior are expected in the future. Returns
have been negative in most asset classes and many investors
have grown suspicious of hedge funds and complex prod-
ucts in general, especially as these proved to be more cor-
related with equity and credit markets than originally
thought.

Internal UBS research shows that private clients’ risk ap-
petite is changing, moving towards more “traditional” asset
classes such as equities, bonds, cash or precious metals. This
trend is expected to have, on balance, a negative impact on
banks’ income as it results in lower gross margins.

Wealth preservation

The financial crisis has already resulted in a substantial de-
struction of wealth as the price of many real and financial
assets has fallen from the peaks of 2007. Many investors see
a risk of further wealth destruction in the current economic
climate. During this phase business opportunities for the
financial services industry will mostly be in the realm of value
preservation rather than return maximization.

Investors have reacted to the current crisis by selling
assets, paying back debt and accumulating cash or deemed
equivalent. History shows that investors generally need
several years to return to more risky asset allocations follow-
ing periods of financial distress. Therefore, capital preserva-
tion is likely to remain a priority for investors and most will
seek to do this by holding cash before considering a diversi-
fication across a wider range of asset classes and products.
On the other hand, an increase in savings by individuals, par-
ticularly in countries where household saving rates have
been historically low, such as the US, represents an oppor-
tunity for banks.

Retirement provisions

The economic crisis does not fundamentally alter the private
retirement industry’s growth drivers, namely the demo-
graphic shift related to falling birth rates and aging and
the falling coverage provided by public pension schemes.
Despite the drop in the value of their assets in 2008, private
fully funded schemes will continue providing individuals
with the best investment tools to accumulate wealth for
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retirement, and savings will continue to flow into them. The
ability of public pension schemes to fund themselves over
the long term may be limited as several countries are al-
ready heavily indebted and running large deficits, including
some driven by measures taken to help their economy in the
current downturn, while demographics indicate that the
ratio of workers to retirees will decrease in the foreseeable
future. In some countries, particularly those which have
experienced the largest destruction of accumulated wealth
due to the crisis (for example, the US and UK, where pen-
sion funds are comparatively more exposed to equity mar-
kets than in other countries), a pick-up in individual savings
rates would provide additional funds, which will partly be
invested in private retirement schemes. This, combined with
continued demand for specialist advice in wealth manage-
ment, continues to represent an opportunity for wealth and
asset managers.

Corporate restructuring

The corporate sector is generally better equipped to deal
with the negative impact of a slowing economy than in pre-
vious downturns, mostly due to a relatively lower level of
debt. However, a sharp reduction in demand for goods and
services across developed and emerging markets and a con-
tinued lack of liquidity in credit markets will inevitably impact
the corporate sector. Over the medium term, default rates
are expected to rise from the historically low levels prevailing
before the crisis, and further major bankruptcies are likely.
The internationalization of business — particularly expansion
in emerging markets — is likely to slow down as the attrac-
tiveness of new markets remains subdued and cash flows
previously available for expansion are used to restructure
balance sheets. In such a corporate environment, most of
the opportunities for the banking sector are likely to arise
from simple financing requirements, balance-sheet restruc-
turing and asset disposals.

Emerging markets

Strong growth in emerging markets has been a key feature
of the boom years in the global economy prior to the crisis,
and banks have benefited greatly from strong growth in
these markets. Growth in emerging markets is expected to
slow markedly in 2009, reflecting the increased interconnec-
tions between economies in the era of globalization. Export
surplus countries, including those relying on commodities
exports, are most vulnerable to a further deterioration in the
global economic environment, but also best placed to ben-
efit from a potential recovery. Over the long term, however,
banks which have built up a significant presence in emerging
markets and serve a wide range of institutional and private
clients are likely to continue benefiting from above-average
economic growth in these countries.
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Risk factors

Certain risks, including those described below, can impact
UBS's ability to carry out its business strategies and directly
affect its business activities, financial condition, results of
operations and prospects. Because the business of a broad-
based international financial services firm such as UBS is
inherently exposed to risks that only become apparent with
the benefit of hindsight, risks of which UBS is not presently
aware could also materially affect its business activities,
financial condition, results of operations and prospects. The
sequence in which the risk factors are presented below is not
indicative of their likelihood of occurrence or the potential
magnitude of their financial consequences.

Risks related to the current market crisis

UBS, like many other financial market participants, was
severely affected by the financial crisis that unfolded in 2007
and worsened in 2008. The deterioration of financial mar-
kets in 2008 was extremely severe by historical standards,
and UBS recorded substantial losses on legacy risk positions.
UBS has taken a series of measures to reduce its risk expo-
sures, including the sale of up to USD 38.6 billion of illiquid
and other positions to a fund owned and controlled by the
Swiss National Bank (SNB) as announced in the fourth quar-
ter. However, UBS continues to hold positions identified as
risk concentrations (refer to the “Risk concentrations” sec-
tion of this report for more information on these positions,
as well as positions in other asset classes that might be neg-
atively affected by the current market crisis). In addition, UBS
is exposed to the general systemic and counterparty risks
that are exacerbated by the ongoing market crisis and relat-
ed instability of financial institutions and of the financial sys-
tem as a whole.

UBS holds positions which may be adversely affected by the
ongoing financial crisis and economic climate

As discussed in the paragraphs below on general risk fac-
tors, the development of market conditions and the overall
economic environment, as well as factors affecting particu-
lar assets, may lead to reductions in the market or carrying
value of UBS’s assets. Although UBS’s exposure to the US
mortgage market (including residential sub-prime, Alt-A
and prime) was reduced dramatically in 2008, UBS remains
exposed to that market, albeit on a reduced scale. In addi-
tion, certain of its monoline-insured positions are exposed
to the US residential mortgage market as described below.
The markets for most US mortgage-related securities have
so far remained illiquid and it is impossible to determine

whether and how long current market conditions will per-
sist, or whether they will further deteriorate.

UBS relies on credit protection from third parties, including
monoline insurers, that may not be effective
UBS's business entails exposure to counterparty credit risk,
including to monoline insurers and other providers of credit
protection. UBS's credit exposure to the monoline sector
arises from over-the-counter (OTC) derivative contracts —
mainly credit default swaps (CDSs) which are carried at fair
value — in respect of mortgage related and “monoline-
wrapped” securities. The fair value of these CDSs — and thus
UBS’s exposure to the counterparties — depends on the valu-
ation and the perceived credit risk of the instrument against
which protection has been bought. Monoline insurers have
been very adversely affected by their exposure to US residen-
tial mortgage-linked products, resulting in credit rating
downgrades and the need to raise additional capital. UBS
has recorded large credit valuation adjustments on its claims
against monoline counterparties. If the financial condition of
these counterparties or their perceived creditworthiness de-
teriorates further, UBS could record further credit valuation
adjustments on the CDSs bought from monoline insurers.
UBS could also incur losses in connection with restructur-
ings of monoline insurers, including possible losses on third
party hedge protection which UBS may incur as a result of
changes in the corporate structure of the insurers. UBS also
trades securities issued by and derivatives related to mono-
line insurers, including CDSs, and the value of these securi-
ties and derivatives is subject to market volatility.

UBS holds positions in asset classes that have been or might
be negatively affected by the current market crisis

In 2007 and 2008, UBS incurred substantial losses (realized
and mark-to-market) on its holdings of securities related to the
US residential mortgage market. The market dislocation that
began in 2007 has been progressively felt in asset classes be-
yond US residential mortgages. In 2008, UBS recorded mark-
downs on other assets carried at fair value, including auction
rate securities (ARS), leveraged finance commitments, com-
mercial mortgages in the United States and non-US mortgage-
and asset-backed securities (ABSs). UBS has recorded and in
the future could record negative fair value adjustments on
these assets and on other asset classes which may be affected
by the crisis in the credit markets. Such securities may also be
wrapped by monoline insurers and therefore could give rise to
losses if the difficulties in the monoline sector persist or in-
crease (see the previous risk factor on monoline exposures).
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UBS's inventory of ARS is likely to increase in the future as
a result of its commitment to repurchase client-owned ARS, as
further described in the “Risk management” section of this
report. UBS is also exposed to the risk of losses and write-
downs on its leveraged finance commitments. UBS holds posi-
tions related to real estate markets in countries other than the
United States on which it could also suffer losses. These in-
clude exposures to non-US residential and commercial real es-
tate and mortgages and non-US ABS programs. For example,
as described in the " Credit risk” section of this report, UBS has
a very substantial Swiss mortgage portfolio which is booked in
Global Wealth Management & Business Banking. UBS is also
exposed to risk when it provides financing against the affect-
ed asset classes such as in its prime brokerage, reverse repo
and lombard lending activities.

Risk factors related to UBS's business activity

Performance in the financial services industry depends

on the economic climate — negative developments can

adversely affect UBS's business activities

The financial services industry prospers in conditions of economic

growth, stable geopolitical conditions, capital markets that are

transparent, liquid and buoyant and positive investor sentiment.

An economic downturn, inflation or a severe financial crisis (as

seen in 2008) can negatively affect UBS's revenues and it may

be unable to immediately adjust all of its costs to the resulting
deterioration in market or business conditions.

A market downturn can be precipitated by a number of
factors, including geopolitical events, changes in monetary or
fiscal policy, trade imbalances, natural disasters, pandemics,
civil unrest, war or terrorism. Because financial markets are
global and highly interconnected, even local and regional
events can have widespread impact well beyond the coun-
tries in which they occur. A crisis could develop, regionally or
globally, as a result of disruption in emerging markets, which
are particularly susceptible to macro-economic and geopoliti-
cal developments, or as a result of the failure of a major mar-
ket participant. As UBS's presence and business in emerging
markets increases, it becomes more exposed to these risks.

Adverse and extreme developments of this kind have
affected UBS's businesses in a number of ways, and may con-
tinue to have further adverse effect on the firm’s businesses:
— a general reduction in business activity and market

volumes affects fees, commissions and margins from

market-making and customer-driven transactions and
activities;

— a market downturn is likely to reduce the volume and
valuations of assets UBS manages on behalf of clients,
reducing its asset- and performance-based fees;

— reduced market liquidity limits trading and arbitrage
opportunities and impedes UBS’s ability to manage risks,
impacting both trading income and performance-based
fees;
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— assets UBS holds for its own account as investments or
trading positions could continue to fall in value;

— impairments and defaults on credit exposures and on
trading and investment positions could increase, and
losses may be exacerbated by falling collateral values;
and

— if individual countries impose restrictions on cross-border
payments or other exchange or capital controls, UBS
could suffer losses from enforced default by counter-
parties, be unable to access its own assets, or be impeded
in — or prevented from — managing its risks.

The developments mentioned above can affect the
performance of both the Group and its business units. As
such, there is a risk that the carrying value of goodwill of a
business unit might suffer impairments.

Due to its sizeable trading inventory, trading activities and
the counterparty credit risks in many of its businesses,

UBS is dependent upon its risk management and control
processes to avoid or limit potential losses

Controlled risk-taking is a major part of the business of a fi-
nancial services firm. Credit is an integral part of many of
UBS’s retail, wealth management and Investment Bank
activities. This includes lending, underwriting and derivatives
businesses and positions.

Changes in interest rates, equity prices, foreign exchange
levels and other market fluctuations can adversely affect
UBS’s earnings. Some losses from risk-taking activities are
inevitable but, to be successful over time, UBS must balance
the risks it takes with the returns it generates. It must there-
fore diligently identify, assess, manage and control its risks,
not only in normal market conditions but also as they might
develop under more extreme (“stressed”) conditions, when
concentrations of exposure can lead to severe losses.

As seen in 2008, UBS is not always able to prevent losses
arising from extreme or sudden market events that are not
anticipated by its risk measures and systems and affect size-
able inventory positions and therefore lead to serious losses.
Value at Risk (VaR), a statistical measure for market risk, is
derived from historical market data, and thus, by definition,
could not have predicted the losses seen in the stressed
conditions in 2008. Moreover, stress loss and concentration
controls, and the dimensions in which UBS aggregates risk
to identify potentially highly correlated exposures, proved to
be inadequate.

UBS’s tools and processes for market and credit risk con-
trol, including country risk, its approach to risk management
and control, and the steps UBS has taken to strengthen its
risk management and control framework are described in
the “Risk management” section of this report.

Notwithstanding such steps, UBS could suffer further
losses in the future if, for example:

— it does not fully identify the risks in its portfolio, in par-
ticular risk concentrations and correlated risks;



— its assessment of the risks identified, or its response to
negative trends, proves to be inadequate or incorrect;

— markets move in ways that are unexpected — in terms of
their speed, direction, severity or correlation — and UBS's
ability to manage risks in the resultant environment is
therefore restricted;

— third-parties to whom UBS has credit exposure or whose
securities it holds for its own account are severely affect-
ed by events not anticipated by UBS's models and the
bank accordingly suffers defaults and impairments be-
yond the level implied by its risk assessment; or

— collateral or other security provided by its counterparties
proves inadequate to cover their obligations at the time
of their default.

UBS also manages risk on behalf of its clients in its asset
and wealth management businesses. Its performance in
these activities could be harmed by the same factors. If
clients suffer losses or the performance of their assets held
with UBS is not in line with relevant benchmarks against
which clients assess investment performance, UBS may suffer
reduced fee income and a decline in assets under manage-
ment or withdrawal of mandates.

If UBS decided to support a fund or another investment
sponsored by UBS in its asset or wealth management busi-
ness it might, depending on the facts and circumstances,
incur charges that could increase to material levels. UBS does
not currently foresee the likelihood of material losses as a
result, but the possibility cannot be definitively ruled out.

Investment positions — such as equity holdings made as a
part of strategic initiatives and seed investments made at the
inception of funds managed by UBS — may also be affected
by market risk factors. These investments are often not liquid
and are generally intended or required to be held beyond a
normal trading horizon. They are subject to a distinct control
framework (described in the “Risk and treasury manage-
ment” section of this report). Deteriorations in the fair value
of these positions would have a negative impact on UBS’s
earnings.

The valuation of certain assets relies on models.

For some or all of the inputs to these models there

is no observable source

Where possible, UBS marks its trading book assets at their
quoted market price in an active market. In the current envi-
ronment, such price information is not available for certain
instruments and UBS applies valuation techniques to measure
such instruments. Valuation techniques use “market observ-
able inputs” where available, derived from similar assets in
similar and active markets, from recent transaction prices for
comparable items or from other observable market data. For
positions for which some or all of the reference data is not
observable or has limited observability, UBS uses valuation
models with non-market observable inputs. “Note 27 Fair val-
ue of financial instruments” in the financial statements of this

report provides detailed information on the determination of
fair value from valuation techniques. There is no single market
standard for valuation models in this area. Such models have
inherent limitations; different assumptions and inputs would
generate different results, and these differences could have a
significant impact on UBS’s financial results. UBS regularly re-
views and updates its valuation models to incorporate all fac-
tors that market participants would consider in setting a price,
including factoring in current market conditions. Judgment is
an important component of this process. Changes in model
inputs or in the models themselves could have a material im-
pact on UBS’s financial results.

Credit ratings and liquidity and funding management are
critical to UBS's ongoing performance

Moody's Investors Service, Fitch Ratings and Standard &
Poor’s all lowered their long-term credit rating of UBS, on
one or more times in 2008 and 2009. A further reduction in
UBS’s credit rating could increase its funding costs, in par-
ticular with regard to funding from wholesale unsecured
sources, and reduce access to capital markets. Some of these
ratings downgrades have resulted, and additional reductions
in the credit ratings would result, in UBS having to make ad-
ditional cash payments or post additional collateral. These
events may increase UBS's need for funding to ensure that it
will always have sufficient liquidity to meet liabilities when
due, while reducing its ability to obtain such funding. UBS's
credit ratings also have an impact on the performance of
UBS's businesses. Along with UBS’s capital strength and rep-
utation, both of which are described in greater detail in the
risk factors below, UBS's credit ratings contribute to main-
taining client and counterparty confidence in UBS.

Liquidity is essential to UBS's businesses. A substantial
part of UBS’s liquidity and funding requirements are met us-
ing short-term unsecured funding sources, including whole-
sale and retail deposits and the regular issuance of money
market securities. The volume of these funding sources has
generally been stable, but may change in the future due,
among other things, to general market disruptions. Any
such change could occur quickly and without notice. If such
a change were to occur, UBS could be forced to liquidate as-
sets, in particular from its trading portfolio, to meet matur-
ing liabilities or deposit withdrawals. Given the depressed
prices of many asset classes in current market conditions,
UBS might be forced to sell assets at discounts that could
adversely affect its profitability and its business franchises.

In 2008, UBS’s credit spreads increased substantially, in line
with the general trend for the financial services industry. If these
trends continue, or if UBS maintains substantially elevated lev-
els of liquidity for an extended period of time, the combination
of an increase in UBS's borrowing costs and lower margins
could have an adverse impact on the firm’s profitability.

-> Refer to the “Risk and treasury management” section of

this report for more information on UBS’s approach to
liquidity and funding management
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Strategy, performance and responsibility
Risk factors

UBS's capital strength is important to support its client
franchise

UBS's capital position measured by the BIS capital ratios is
and has traditionally been strong, both in absolute terms
and relative to its competitors. Capital ratios are determined
by (1) risk-weighted assets (RWAs) (balance sheet, off-bal-
ance sheet and other market and operational risk positions,
measured and risk-weighted according to regulatory criteria)
and (2) eligible capital.

Both RWAs and eligible capital are subject to change. Eli-
gible capital, for example, could experience a reduction in
case of financial losses, acquired goodwill or as a result of
foreign exchange movements. RWAs, on the other hand,
will be driven by UBS’s business activities and by changes in
the risk profile of these assets. They could furthermore be
subject to a change in regulatory requirements or the inter-
pretation thereof. For instance, substantial market volatility,
a widening of credit spreads (the major driver of UBS's VaR),
a change in regulatory treatment of certain positions (includ-
ing, but not limited to, the definitions of assets allocated to
the trading or the banking books), stronger foreign curren-
cies, increased counter-party risk or a further deterioration in
the economic environment could result in a rise in RWAs or
a change in capital requirements and thereby potentially
reduce UBS’s capital ratios.

Operational risks may affect UBS’s business

All UBS's businesses are dependent on the bank’s ability to
process a large number of complex transactions across mul-
tiple and diverse markets in different currencies, in addition
to being subject to the many different legal and regulatory
regimes of these countries. UBS's operational risk manage-
ment and control systems and processes, which are de-
scribed in the “Operational risk” section of this report, are
designed to ensure that the risks associated with the bank’s
activities, including those arising from process error, failed
execution, unauthorized trading, fraud, systems failure and
failure of security and physical protection, are appropriately
controlled. If these internal controls fail or prove ineffective
in identifying and remedying such risks, UBS could suffer
operational failures that might result in losses.

Legal claims and regulatory risks and restrictions arise in

the conduct of UBS’s business

In the ordinary course of its business, UBS is subject to regu-
latory oversight and liability risk. It is involved in a variety of
other claims, disputes and legal proceedings and govern-
ment investigations in jurisdictions where UBS is active,
including the United States and Switzerland. These types of
proceedings expose UBS to substantial monetary damages
and legal defense costs, injunctive relief, criminal and civil
penalties and the potential for regulatory restrictions on
UBS's businesses. The outcome of these matters cannot be
predicted and they could adversely affect UBS's future busi-
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ness. Currently, UBS is responding to a number of govern-
ment inquiries and investigations, and is involved in a num-
ber of litigations and disputes, related to the sub-prime crisis,
sub-prime securities, and structured transactions involving
sub-prime securities. These matters concern, among other
things, UBS’s valuations, disclosures, writedowns, underwrit-
ing and contractual obligations.

UBS has been in active dialogue with its regulators con-
cerning remedial actions that it is taking to address deficien-
cies in its risk management and control, funding and certain
other processes and systems. UBS will for some period be
subject to increased scrutiny by the Swiss Financial Market
Supervisory Authority and its other major regulators, and ac-
cordingly will be subject to regulatory measures that might
affect the implementation of its strategic plans.

UBS recently announced that it had entered into a De-
ferred Prosecution Agreement with the US Department of
Justice and a Consent Order with the US Securities and
Exchange Commission in connection with its cross-border
private banking services provided to US private clients. The
US Internal Revenue Service has issued a civil summons seek-
ing information concerning UBS’s cross-border business, in-
cluding records located in Switzerland, and recently filed a
petition for enforcement of this summons. It is possible that
this and other governmental actions will lead to changes
which could affect cross-border financial services and the
application of Swiss financial privacy law, and this could ad-
versely affect the future profitability of UBS's cross-border
banking businesses. Following disclosure of the US cross-
border matter, moreover, it is possible that tax or regulatory
authorities in various jurisdictions will focus on the cross-bor-
der wealth management services provided by UBS and other
financial institutions. It is premature to speculate as to the
scope or effect of any such reviews.

- Refer to “Note 21 provisions and litigation” in the financial

statements of this report for more information on legal
proceedings in which UBS is involved

UBS might be unable to identify or capture revenue or
competitive opportunities, or retain and attract qualified
employees

The financial services industry is characterized by intense
competition, continuous innovation, detailed (and some-
times fragmented) regulation and ongoing consolidation.
UBS faces competition at the level of local markets and indi-
vidual business lines, and from global financial institutions
comparable to UBS in their size and breadth. Barriers to entry
in individual markets are being eroded by new technology.
UBS expects these trends to continue and competition to
increase in the future.

The competitive strength and market position of UBS
could be eroded if the firm is unable to identify market
trends and developments, does not respond to them by
devising and implementing adequate business strategies or



is unable to attract or retain the qualified people needed to
carry them out.

In particular, the efforts required to address the current
market crisis and related challenges might diminish the
attention UBS devotes to managing other risks including
those arising from its competitive environment. The changes
recently introduced with regard to UBS's balance sheet
management, funding framework and risk management
and control, as well as the repositioning of the fixed income,
currencies and commodities business, are likely to reduce the
revenue contribution of certain activities that require sub-
stantial funding or focus on proprietary trading.

Following the losses incurred in 2008, UBS very signifi-
cantly reduced the variable compensation granted to its
employees for that year. It is possible that, as a result of this
reduction or other factors, key employees will be attracted
by competitors and decide to leave UBS, or that UBS may be
less successful in attracting qualified employees.

UBS’s reputation is key to its business

UBS’s reputation is critical in maintaining its relationships
with clients, investors, regulators and the general public. The
reputation of UBS can be damaged, for instance, by miscon-
duct by its employees, by activities of business partners over
which UBS has limited or no control, by severe or prolonged
financial losses or by uncertainty about its financial sound-
ness and its reliability. This could result in client attrition in
different parts of UBS's business and could negatively impact
its financial performance. Maintaining the firm’'s reputation
and addressing adverse reputational developments are there-
fore key factors in UBS’s risk management efforts.

UBS’s global presence exposes the bank to other risks,
including currency fluctuation
UBS operates in more than 50 countries, earns income and
holds assets and liabilities in many different currencies and is
subject to many different legal, tax and regulatory regimes.
UBS’s ability to execute its global strategy depends on
obtaining and maintaining local regulatory approvals. This
includes the approval of acquisitions or other transactions
and the ability to obtain and maintain the necessary licenses
to operate in a local market. Changes in local tax laws or
regulations and their enforcement may affect the ability or
the willingness of UBS’s clients to do business with the bank,
or the viability of the bank’s strategies and business model.
In its financial accounts, UBS accrues taxes but the final
effect of taxes on earnings is only determined after comple-
tion of tax audits (which generally takes a number of years)
or the expiration of statutes of limitations. In addition,
changes in tax laws, judicial interpretation of tax laws or pol-
icies and practices of tax authorities could have a material
impact on taxes paid by UBS and cause the amount of taxes
ultimately paid by UBS to differ from the amount accrued.
Because UBS prepares its accounts in Swiss francs, while a
substantial part of its assets, liabilities, assets under manage-
ment, revenues and expenses are denominated in other cur-
rencies, changes in foreign exchange rates, particularly be-
tween the Swiss franc and the US dollar (US dollar income
represents the major part of UBS's non-Swiss franc income)
have an effect on its reported income and shareholders’
equity. UBS's approach to management of this currency risk is
explained in the “Treasury management” section of this
report.
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Strategy, performance and responsibility
Financial performance

Financial performance

UBS’s performance is reported in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as issued
by the International Accounting Standards Board. This section provides a discussion and analysis of UBS’s
results for 2008, commenting on the underlying operational performance of the business, with a focus on

continuing operations.

UBS financial highlights

As of or for the year ended

% change from

CHF million, except where indicated 31.12.08 31.12.07 31.12.06 31.12.07
Performance indicators from continuing operations

Diluted earnings per share (CHF)' (7.75) (2.61) 4.64 (197)
Return on equity attributable to UBS shareholders (%62~~~ 59.1) an PEX
Costlncomerato (B Jezg e o
Netnewmoney(CHFbllllon)“ (2260) ........... e g
Group results

Operating income 796 31,721 47,484 (97)
Operatlng expenses ........................................................... sesss 3sdes a0 iidy
Operating profit before tax (from continuing and discontinued operations) (27560) (359 15007 (666)
Net profit attributable to UBS shareholders (21292 (5247) 157 (306)
Personnel (full-time equivalents)® 77,783 83,560 78,140 (7)
Invested assets (CHF billion) 2174 3189 2989 (32)
UBS balance sheet and capital management

Balance sheet key figures

i 201asls TP R E T i
Equity attributable to UBS shareholders 32531 36875 51037 (12)
Market capitalization® 43,519 108,654 154,222 (60)
BIS capital ratios’

Tar Ty T o e g
Totl B (i T 50 g o
Rlskwelghted R 302273 yiamn saos fiéy
Long-term ratings

b london RIS YRR [P VRERRIEE
Moodys Mo o ey
Gandord 8 Poors Newvork JURRHERE R PSR

1 Refer to "Note 8 Earnings per share (EPS) and shares outstanding” in the financial statements of this report.
uity attributable to UBS shareholders. 3 Operating expenses/operating income before credit loss expense or recovery.
equity (part of the Corporate Center). 6 Refer to the “UBS registered shares” section of this report for further information.

formation. 8 The calculation prior to 2008 is based on the Basel | approach.
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2 Net profit attributable to UBS shareholders from continuing operations/average eq-
5 Excludes personnel from private

4 Excludes interest and dividend income.

7 Refer to the "Capital management” section of this report for further in-
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Key factors affecting UBS'’s financial position and
results of operations in 2008

rate fund entity controlled and owned by the SNB. The
size of the transaction has since been reduced to USD

In 2008, UBS continued to be severely affected by nega-
tive revenues in the Investment Bank due to trading losses
on risk positions. Refer to the “Risk concentrations” sec-
tion and “Note 3 Net interest and trading income” in the
financial statements of this report for more information
on risk positions and associated losses.

UBS recorded a significant increase in credit losses from
CHF 238 million in the prior year to CHF 2,996 million.
This reflects the deteriorating economic environment and
impairment charges taken on reclassified financial assets
in fourth quarter 2008. Refer to the “Credit risk” section
of this report for more information.

On 5 March 2008, UBS issued mandatory convertible
notes (MCNs) with a face value of CHF 13 billion to two
investors. This transaction resulted in an accounting gain
of CHF 3,860 million in first quarter 2008 and in an
increase in share premium of CHF 7.0 billion. Refer to
“Note 26 Capital increases and mandatory convertible
notes” in the financial statements of this report for more
information.

On 23 April 2008, the annual general meeting of share-
holders approved a proposal that UBS strengthen its
shareholders’ equity by way of an ordinary capital in-
crease. The capital increase was completed in June 2008
by means of a rights offering and resulted in the issue of
760,295,181 new fully paid registered shares with a par
value of CHF 0.10 each. Net proceeds from the capital
increase were approximately CHF 15.6 billion. Refer to
“Note 26 Capital increases and mandatory convertible
notes” in the financial statements of this report for more
information.

On 20 May 2008, UBS completed the sale of a portfolio
of US residential mortgage-backed securities (RMBSs) for
proceeds of USD 15 billion to the RMBS Opportunities
Master Fund, LP, a third-party entity managed by Black-
Rock, Inc. The portfolio had a notional value of approxi-
mately USD 22 billion and comprised primarily Alt-A and
sub-prime related assets. The fund was capitalized with
approximately USD 3.75 billion in equity raised by Black-
Rock from third-party investors and an eight-year amor-
tizing USD 11.25 billion senior secured loan provided by
UBS (balance at year-end 2008 was USD 9.2 billion).

As announced on 16 October 2008, the Swiss National
Bank (SNB) and UBS have reached an agreement to trans-
fer, in one or more sales, up to USD 60 billion of illiquid
and other positions from UBS's balance sheet to a sepa-

38.6 billion. This transaction allowed UBS to reduce its
exposure to certain asset classes and potential associated
losses. In parallel, UBS placed CHF 6 billion of MCNs with
the Swiss Confederation on 9 December 2008. The over-
all impact on UBS’s income statement of the SNB trans-
action and the placement of the MCNs with the Swiss
Confederation was a net charge of CHF 4.5 billion. This
reflects a net loss arising from the acquisition of the equity
purchase option, a loss arising from valuation differences
determined to date on securities sold or to be sold to the
SNB StabFund, losses on hedges that were subject to
trading restrictions as a result of the SNB transaction, and
the impact of the contingent issuance of UBS shares in
connection with the transaction. The fair valuation im-
pact of the issuance of the MCNs, as described in “Note
26 Capital increases and mandatory convertible notes” in
the financial statements of this report, is also included in
this total.

In 2008, the Investment Bank recorded a gain on own
credit from financial liabilities designated at fair value of
CHF 2,032 million, resulting from the widening of UBS's
credit spread, which was partly offset by the effects of
redemptions and repurchases of such liabilities. The
cumulative own credit balance for such debt held at
31 December 2008 amounts to CHF 2,953 million. Refer
to “Note 27 Fair value of financial instruments” in the fi-
nancial statements of this report for more information.
Financial liabilities designated at fair value are liabilities
for which UBS applied the option granted by IFRS to fair
value them through profit or loss, predominately issued
structured products. The gain reflects an increase in the
difference between the market value of UBS's debt ac-
counted for under the fair value option (which is presented
on the balance sheet line “Financial liabilities designated
at fair value”) and the amount it would cost UBS to issue
this debt at current market terms. As a general rule, the
market value of UBS's outstanding debt decreases if UBS's
own credit spread widens and increases if UBS's credit
spread tightens. Therefore, if UBS's credit spread were to
tighten again in the future, the market value of UBS’s out-
standing fair valued debt would increase accordingly, re-
sulting in the reversal of some or all of the gains on own
credit recorded so far, unless UBS redeems own debt be-
fore maturity.

Following the auction rate securities (ARS) settlement in
August 2008, Wealth Management US recorded losses of
CHF 1,636 million, of which CHF 1,464 million were in-
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cluded in general and administrative expenses, and CHF
172 million were recognized as trading losses. Under the
ARS settlement, Wealth Management US agreed to pur-
chase ARS from clients at their par value. Up to fourth
quarter 2008, the ARS settlement liability represented a
provision. The liability was reclassified from provisions to
negative replacement values in fourth quarter 2008,
when ARS settlement rights, which are treated as deriva-
tive instruments, were issued to and accepted by clients.
Losses incurred post-reclassification represented trading
losses.

— As announced on 18 February 2009, UBS settled the US
cross-border case with the US Department of Justice (DOJ)
and the US Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC), by
entering into a deferred prosecution agreement with the
DOJ and a consent order with the SEC. As part of these
settlement agreements, UBS agreed to pay an amount of
CHF 917 million (USD 780 million) to the United States.
Refer to the “Settlement regarding the US cross-border
case” sidebar in the “Wealth Management International &
Switzerland” section of this report for more information.

— UBS recognized an income tax benefit of CHF 6,837 mil-
lion in 2008, which mainly reflects the CHF 6,126 million
impact from the recognition of incremental deferred tax
assets on available tax losses. The incremental deferred
tax assets relate mainly to Swiss tax losses incurred during
2008 (primarily due to the writedown of investments in
US subsidiaries) but was reduced by a decrease in the
deferred tax assets recognized for US tax losses. Refer to
“Note 22 Income taxes” in the financial statements of
this report for more information.

Discontinued operations

As discontinued activities are no longer relevant to the man-
agement of the company, UBS does not consider them to be
indicative of its future potential performance and they are
therefore not included in its business planning decisions.
This assists in comparing UBS's performance against that of
its peers, and in the estimation of future results. In the last
three years, one such item had a significant impact on UBS's
consolidated financial statements: On 23 March 2006, UBS
sold its 55.6% stake in Motor-Columbus to a consortium
representing Atel's Swiss minority shareholders, EOS Hold-
ing, Atel and French utility Electricité de France (EDF) for a
sale price of approximately CHF 1,295 million, leading to an
after-tax gain on sale of CHF 387 million.

Seasonal characteristics
The main businesses of UBS do not generally show signifi-
cant seasonal patterns, although the Investment Bank's rev-

enues have been affected in some years by the seasonal
characteristics of general financial market activity and deal

30

flows in investment banking. Other business divisions are
only slightly impacted by seasonal components, such as as-
set withdrawals that tend to occur in fourth quarter and
lower client activity levels related to the end-of-year holiday
season.

Performance measures

Key performance indicators (2008)

Until the end of 2008, UBS consistently assessed its per-
formance against indicators designed to measure the deliv-
ery (on average and through periods of varying market con-
ditions) of returns to its shareholders. At the Group level,
these indicators were: after-tax return on equity; net new
money; diluted earnings per share (EPS); and cost/income
ratio. Business division key performance indicators (KPIs)
were also used for internal performance measurement and
planning as well as external reporting.

- A new key performance indicator framework was intro-
duced in first quarter 2009 and will be used to measure
performance in 2009 and forward. Refer to the “Key
performance indicators: 2009 and beyond” sidebar in the
“Strategy and structure” section of this report for more
information

Client/invested assets reporting

UBS reports two distinct metrics for client funds:

— Client assets are all client assets managed by or deposited
with UBS, including custody-only assets and assets held
for purely transactional purposes.

— Invested assets is a more restrictive term and includes all
client assets managed by or deposited with UBS for in-
vestment purposes.

Of the two, invested assets is the central measure for UBS
and includes, for example, discretionary and advisory wealth
management portfolios, managed institutional assets, man-
aged fund assets and wealth management securities or bro-
kerage accounts. It excludes all assets held for purely trans-
actional and custody-only purposes as UBS only administers
the assets and does not offer advice on how these assets
should be invested. Non-bankable assets (for example, art
collections) and deposits from third-party banks for funding
or trading purposes are excluded from both measures.

Net new money in a reported period is the net amount
of invested assets that are entrusted to UBS by new and
existing clients less those withdrawn by existing clients and
clients who terminate their relationship with UBS. Negative
net new money means that there are more outflows than
inflows. Interest and dividend income from invested assets
is not counted as net new money inflow. Market and cur-
rency movements as well as fees, commissions and interest
on loans charged are excluded from net new money, as are
the effects resulting from any acquisition or divestment of a
UBS subsidiary or business. Reclassifications between invest-



Business division/business unit key performance indicators (2008)

Business

Key performance indicators

Definition

Business divisions and business units
(excluding Corporate Center)

Cost/income ratio (%)

Total operating expenses/total operating income
before credit loss (expense)/recovery
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Wealth and asset management businesses and
Business Banking Switzerland

Client assets managed by or deposited with UBS for
investment purposes only (for further details please
see "Client/invested assets reporting”)

+ inflows from existing clients
— outflows from existing clients
— outflows due to client defection

Wealth and asset management businesses

Total operating income before credit loss
(expense)/recovery/average invested assets

Wealth Management International & Switzerland

Invested assets per advisor (CHF thousand)

Total operating income before credit loss
(expense)/recovery/average number of client
advisors

Average invested assets/average number of
client advisors

Wealth Management US

Recurring income (CHF million)

Interest, asset-based revenues for portfolio
management and account-based, distribution and

Total operating income before credit loss
(expense)/recovery/average number of financial
advisors

advisors

Average invested assets/average number of
financial advisors

Business Banking Switzerland

Impaired lending portfolio as a % of total
lending portfolio, gross

Impaired lending portfolio, gross/total lending
portfolio, gross

Investment Bank

Compensation ratio (%)

Personnel expenses/total operating income before

Average regulatory VaR (10-day, 99% confidence,
based on 5 years of historical data)

Value at Risk (VaR) expresses maximum potential
loss measured to a 99% confidence level, over

a 10-day time horizon and based on 5 years of
historical data

ed assets and client assets as a result of a change in the
service level delivered are treated as net new money inflow
or outflow.

When products are managed in one business division and
sold in another, they are counted in both the investment man-
agement unit and the distribution unit. This results in double
counting within UBS’s total invested assets as both units pro-
vide an independent service to their respective client, add val-
ue and generate revenues. Most double counting arises where

mutual funds are managed by the Global Asset Management
business division and sold by Global Wealth Management &
Business Banking. Both businesses involved count these funds
as invested assets. This approach is in line with both finance
industry practices and UBS's open architecture strategy and
allows the firm to accurately reflect the performance of each
individual business. Overall, CHF 273 billion of invested assets
were double counted in 2008 (CHF 392 billion in 2007).
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UBS reporting structure

Changes to reporting structure and
presentation in 2008

Industrial Holdings reported in the Corporate Center

As UBS has continuously reduced its private equity business
in Industrial Holdings over the last three years to a very low
level, it was decided to report these activities under the Cor-
porate Center from 2008 onwards.

Exiting of the municipal securities business by the
Investment Bank

In June 2008, UBS announced the closure of its Investment
Bank’s institutional municipal securities business. This hap-

UBS reporting structure in 2008

pened with immediate effect and the retail operations of the
municipal securities business, including secondary market
activities, were transferred to Wealth Management US. A
goodwill impairment charge of CHF 341 million was record-
ed in second quarter 2008 in relation to the exiting of this
business and was attributed to the Investment Bank.

Exiting of certain commaodities businesses by the

Investment Bank

In October 2008, UBS announced that the Investment Bank
would exit the commodities business, with the exception of
precious metals. This resulted in an expense of CHF 133 mil-
lion in fourth quarter 2008.

Global Wealth Management &
Business Banking

Global Asset Management

Investment Bank Corporate Center

Wealth Management
International & Switzerland

Wealth Management US

Business Banking Switzerland

Changes to the reporting structure in 2009

Wealth Management & Swiss Bank
and Wealth Management Americas
On 10 February 2009, UBS announced
with immediate effect the split of
Global Wealth Management &
Business Banking into two divisions:
Wealth Management & Swiss Bank
and Wealth Management Americas.
UBS will start reporting results based
on this new structure with the first
quarter 2009 results.

Investment Bank

As announced on 3 October 2008 and
reiterated on 10 February 2009, the
Investment Bank is being repositioned
to focus on its core franchises. The
fixed income, currencies and com-
modities (FICC) business unit of the
Investment Bank has exited several
businesses including institutional
municipal securities, proprietary
trading, commodities (excluding

precious metals, exchange-traded
derivatives and indices) and real estate
and securitization activities, as well

as exotic structured products. The
internal organization of the FICC
business unit has changed to reflect
this repositioning, but these changes
are not expected to have an immedi-
ate impact on the Investment Bank’s
or UBS’s reporting structure.
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Accounting changes

Restatements made to the financial statements 2008

This Annual Report 2008, including UBS's Group financial
statements and other information, replaces the Annual Re-
port 2008 issued and filed with the US SEC on Form 20-F on
11 March 2009.

UBS has restated its 2008 Group financial statements to
correct identified accounting errors related to the 2008
Group financial statements included in the Annual Report
2008 issued on 11 March 2009. These errors are not mate-
rial to the annual or quarterly 2008 financial statements, but
related corrections would have been material to first quarter
2009 financial statements. The restatement comprises three
items in excess of CHF 100 million as follows: increase in fair
value of auction rate securities purchase commitments at
31 December 2008 (charge to net trading income of Wealth
Management US of CHF 112 million), calculation of interest
income based on the effective interest rate method for as-
sets reclassified from "held-for-trading” to “loans and re-
ceivables” in fourth quarter 2008 (reduction of the interest
income of the Investment Bank by CHF 180 million), realiza-
tion of a foreign currency translation loss deferred in share-
holders' equity due to the partial disposals of an investment
in a consolidated investment fund (reduction of other in-
come of Corporate Center by CHF 192 million). In addition,
a number of misstatements, individually below CHF 65 mil-
lion, were adjusted resulting in an increase of net profit at-
tributable to UBS shareholders by CHF 79 million.

The total net impact of all restated items on the 2008
results was a reduction of net profit and net profit attribut-
able to UBS shareholders of CHF 405 million, and a reduc-
tion of equity and equity attributable to UBS shareholders
of CHF 269 million. The BIS tier 1 capital decreased by CHF
217 million, the BIS total ratio decreased by 0.1% and
the BIS tier 1 ratio was not affected by the restatement.
2008 quarterly net profits attributable to UBS shareholders
were reduced by the following amounts: CHF 82 million in
the first quarter, CHF 37 million in the second quarter, CHF
13 million in the third quarter and CHF 273 million in the
fourth quarter.

Share-based payments: revisions to International
Financial Reporting Standard 2

UBS adopted amended IFRS 2 on 1 January 2008. As a result,
from 1 January 2008, UBS's share-based awards that are not
generally forfeited upon the employee leaving UBS are ex-
pensed in the performance year. In contrast, share-based
awards featuring stringent forfeiture rules are amortized

over the shorter of the legal vesting period and the period
from grant through to the retirement eligibility date of the
employee.

UBS has fully restated the two prior years (2006 and
2007), with net profit attributable to UBS shareholders
declining by CHF 863 million in 2007 and declining by CHF
730 million in 2006. The net increase in compensation ex-
pense was CHF 797 million for 2007 and CHF 516 million for
2006, mainly affecting the Investment Bank. Refer to “Note
1 Summary of significant accounting policies” in the finan-
cial statements of this report for more information.

Recognition of a defined benefit asset for the
Swiss pension plan

In third quarter 2008, UBS concluded that it meets the
requirements of IAS 19 Employee Benefits for recognizing a
defined benefit asset associated with its Swiss pension plan.
Prior to this, it had been UBS policy to disclose only this
amount in “Note 30 Pension and other post-employment
benefit plans” in the financial statements of UBS’s annual
reports. UBS concluded that recognition of an asset should
also consider unrecognized net actuarial losses and past
service cost as permitted by IAS 19 as this results in a better
reflection of the corridor approach. At the end of third
quarter 2008, the measurement of the defined benefit
asset represented the total cumulative unrecognized net
actuarial losses plus unrecognized past service cost plus the
present value of economic benefits available in the form of
refunds of the plan or reductions in future contributions to
the plan.

The change in accounting policy resulted in the following
effects on the balance sheet for 30 September 2008, the
date on which the change in policy occurred, 31 December
2007 and 31 December 2006: an increase of approximately
CHF 2.1 billion in other assets, an increase of approximately
CHF 0.5 billion in deferred tax liabilities and an increase of
approximately CHF 1.6 billion in retained earnings. Refer to
“Note 1 Summary of significant accounting policies” in the
financial statements and the “Capital management” sec-
tion of this report for more information.

IAS 39 Reclassification of financial instruments

The markets for many financial instruments began to dry up
in 2007 and many instruments that previously traded in ac-
tive and liquid markets ceased to trade actively by mid-2008.
In an effort to address accounting concerns arising from the
global credit crisis, the International Accounting Standards
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Board published an amendment to International Accounting
Standard 39 (IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement) on 13 October 2008.

Although the amendment could have been applied retro-
spectively from 1 July 2008, UBS decided at the end of Octo-
ber 2008 to apply the amendment prospectively with effect
from 1 October 2008 following an assessment of the impli-
cations on its financial statements.

Subject to certain conditions being met, the amend-
ments to IAS 39 permit financial assets to be reclassified out
of the “held for trading” category if the firm has the intent
and ability to hold them for the foreseeable future or until
maturity. Eligible assets may be reclassified to the “loans
and receivables” category, carried at amortized cost less
impairment, or the “available-for-sale” category, carried at
fair value through equity, with impairment recognized in
profit or loss. Assets designated at fair value through profit
or loss (“fair value option”) and derivatives may not be
reclassified.

Effective 1 October 2008, UBS reclassified eligible assets
which it intends to hold for the foreseeable future with a
fair value of CHF 17.6 billion on that date from “held for
trading” to the “loans and receivables” category. In addi-

tion, student loan auction rate securities (ARS) with a fair
value of CHF 8.4 billion have been reclassified as of 31 De-
cember 2008. In fourth quarter 2008, an impairment charge
of CHF 1.3 billion was recognized as credit loss expense on
reclassified financial instruments. If reclassification had not
occurred, the impairment charge would not have been rec-
ognized but a trading loss of CHF 4.8 billion would have
been recorded in UBS's fourth quarter income statement. In
the fourth quarter, the operating profit before taxes would
have been CHF 3.6 billion lower if the reclassification had
not occurred. Refer to “Note 29 Measurement categories of
financial assets and liabilities” in the financial statements of
this report for more information on the reclassification of
financial assets in 2008.

Discontinuation of the adjusted expected
credit loss concept

In first quarter 2008, UBS ceased using the adjusted expected
credit loss concept in its internal management reporting and
began tobook, inline with IFRS, actual credit losses (recoveries)
instead. Prior year results have been restated. This change
had no impact on the Group’s overall net profit.

Accounting changes in 2009

IFRS 8 Operating Segments

The new standard on segment
reporting, IFRS 8 Operating Segments,
came into force on 1 January 2009
and replaced IAS 14 Segment
Reporting. The external segmental
reporting is based on internal report-
ing within UBS to the Group Executive
Board (or, the “chief operating de-
cision maker”) which makes decisions
on the allocation of resources and
assesses the performance of the
reportable segments. Based on the
new UBS structure which was
announced on 10 February 2009 and
following IFRS 8 guidance, UBS will
show in 2009 four reportable seg-
ments. The business divisions Wealth
Management & Swiss Bank, Wealth

Management Americas, Global Asset
Management and the Investment
Bank represent one reportable
segment each. The Corporate Center,
which does not meet the requirements
of an operating segment, will also

be shown separately. In addition, the
new standard requires UBS to provide
descriptive information about the
types of products and services from
which each reportable segment
derives its revenue. As UBS's report-
able segment operations are mainly
financial, the total interest income and
expense for all reportable segments
will be presented on a net basis.
Based on the present arrangement

of revenue-sharing agreements, the
inter-segment revenue for UBS is

unlikely to be material. Going forward,
the segment assets and segment
liabilities will be disclosed without the
intercompany balances and this basis
is in line with the internal reporting.
An explanation of the basis on which
the segment information is prepared,
and reconciliations to the amounts
presented in the statement of com-
prehensive income and the statement
of financial position are also required
by the new standard. UBS will be
providing geographical information
about total operating income and total
non-current assets based on the
following new geographical break-
down: Switzerland, UK, Rest of
Europe, USA, Asia Pacific and Rest of
the World.
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Key performance indicators

Until the end of 2008, UBS focused on four key perfor-
mance indicators: return on equity, diluted earnings per
share, cost/income ratio and net new money. These indica-

Return on equity

tors are designed to monitor the returns UBS delivers to
shareholders and are calculated using results from continu-
ing operations.

Cost/income ratio

In % In %
2006 2007 2006 2007
40 800
20 | R 600
| 239 .
0 400
(11.7)
-20 : 200
—40 0
-60 N

M RoE from continuing operations Return on equity (RoE)

Diluted earnings per share

Net new money

CHF CHF billion
2006 2007 2006 2007
6.00 - 160 - [EREREE
151.7
N ) .
3.00 - k 80 -
0.00 0
3000 e (243) N - X -80
@15}
—6.00 - -160 -
[
-9.00 -240
M Diluted EPS from continuing operations Diluted earnings per share (EPS)
Key performance indicators
For the year ended

31.12.08 31.12.07 31.12.06
Retumonequity (RoE) (%)' (58.7) - (109) BT
RoE from continuing operations (%)’ (59.1) (11.7) 23.9
Diluted earnings per share (EPS) (CHF) (7.69) . 243) A9
Diluted EPS from continuing operations (CHF)? (7.75) (2.61) 4.64
Cost/income ratio (%)* 753.0 111.0 70.5
Net new money (CHF billion)* (226.0) 140.6 151.7

1 Net profit attributable to UBS shareholders/average equity attributable to UBS shareholders less distributions (where applicable).

the financial statements of this report for more information on EPS calculation.

3 Operating expenses/operating income before credit loss expense or recovery.

2 Refer to “Note 8 Earnings per share (EPS) and shares outstanding” in
4 Excludes interest and dividend income.
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2008

The key performance indicators show:

return on equity from continuing operations for full-year
2008 at negative 59.1%, down from negative 11.7% in
2007. The profits recorded by UBS's wealth and asset
management businesses were more than offset by sub-
stantial losses in the Investment Bank.

negative diluted earnings per share from continuing op-
erations of CHF 7.75, compared with negative CHF 2.61
in 2007.

a cost/income ratio of 753.0%, compared with 111.0%
a year ago.

net new money at negative CHF 226.0 billion, down from
positive CHF 140.6 billion in 2007. Net new money out-
flows were most pronounced in the Global Wealth Man-
agement & Business Banking division, which recorded to-
tal net new money outflows of CHF 123.0 billion. Wealth

Net new money'

Management International & Switzerland contributed to
the majority of this total with net outflows of CHF 101.0
billion, the most significant outflows occurring in the Lat-
in America, Mediterranean, Middle East & Africa regions.
Wealth Management US reported net new money out-
flows of CHF 10.6 billion, mainly due to net outflows in
the second and third quarters. The Swiss retail business
recorded net new money outflows of CHF 11.4 billion.
Global Asset Management saw total net outflows of CHF
103.0 billion. Of this, outflows in institutional were CHF
55.6 billion and occurred primarily via third-party distribu-
tion channels. Institutional net outflows were observed in
all categories except money market funds, infrastructure
and real estate. Wholesale intermediary had total net out-
flows of CHF 47.4 billion, reflecting higher outflows
mainly in multi-asset, equities and fixed income. Approxi-
mately three-fourths of the wholesale intermediary out-
flows were through UBS distribution channels.

For the year ended

CHF billion 31.12.08 31.12.07 31.12.06
Wealth Management International & Switzerland (101.0) 125.1 97.6
WealthManagement Us (106) ........... e s
Bioness Banklng G (114) ............ PR O
Global Wealth Management & Business Banking (123.0) 156.3 114.5
Institutional (55.6) (16.3) 29.8
'\/'\/'h'dlesé‘lé'i'n'té'rr'ﬁédiar‘y ....................................................................... (474) ............ e B
Global Asset Management (103.0) (15.7) 37.2
UBS (226.0) 140.6 151.7
1 Excludes interest and dividend income.
Invested assets

As of % change from
CHF billion 31.12.08 31.12.07 31.12.06 31.12.07
Wealth Management International & Switzerland 870 1,294 1,138 (33)
WealthManagementUS T g e (29)
BusmessBanklngvaltzerIand e PR e (21)
Global Wealth Management & Business Banking 1,599 2,298 2,123 (30)
Institutional 335 522 519 (36)
Wholesalelntermedlary AR T W (35)
Global Asset Management 575 891 866 (35)
UBS 2,174 3,189 2,989 (32)
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2007

Key performance indicators show:

— return on equity from continuing operations for full-year
2007 at negative 11.7%, down from positive 23.9% in
2006. The strong results posted by UBS's wealth and asset
management businesses were more than offset by sub-
stantial losses in the Investment Bank;

— negative diluted earnings per share from continuing
operations of CHF 2.61, compared with positive CHF 4.64
in 2006;

— acost/income ratio of 111.0%, compared with 70.5% in
the prior year;

— net new money at CHF 140.6 billion, down from a record
in 2006 of CHF 151.7 billion. The decrease was mostly
driven by full-year outflows in Global Asset Manage-
ment, mainly in institutional which had net new money
outflows of CHF 16.3 billion. The net new money out-
flows in core/value equity mandates and, to a lesser
extent, in fixed income mandates were only partly offset
by net new money inflows into all other asset classes,
particularly alternative and quantitative investments and
money market funds. Record net new money inflows
were seen in Wealth Management International & Swit-
zerland, particularly in Europe and Asia Pacific. Net new
money inflows of CHF 26.6 billion in Wealth Mana-
gement US reflected the recruitment of experienced
advisors and reduced outflows from existing clients. The
Swiss retail business recorded net new money inflows of
CHF 4.6 billion.
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New key performance indicator framework

A new key performance indicator (KPl)  measure performance in 2009 and sidebar in the “Strategy and structure”
framework was introduced in first forward. Refer to the “Key perfor- section of this report for more
quarter 2009 and will be used to mance indicators: 2009 and beyond” information on UBS's new KPIs.
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UBS results

Income statement

As of or for the year ended % change from
CHF million, except where indicated 31.12.08 31.12.07 31.12.06 31.12.07
Continuing operations
Interest income 65,679 109,112 87,401 (40)
et éi(pé e (59687) .......... (103775) ........... (80880) e ( 4.2.).
Net interest income 5,992 5,337 6,521 12
Crodit os s(expense)/ recovery ................................................................. ( 2996) .............. (238) ............... e
Net interest income after credit loss expense 2,996 5,099 6,677 (41)

Other income 692 4,341 1,608 (84)
Total operating income 796 31,721 47,484 (97)
Cash components 16,356 22,342 21,346 (27)
e bcad component R (94) ............. 3173 .............. 2685 .....................
Total personnel expenses 16,262 25,515 24,031 (36)
General and administrative expenses 10498 8429 792 25
Depreqatlonofpropertyandequlpment1241 .............. 1243 .............. 1244 .................. .
ImpalrmentofgoodWlII341 .................. R G
Amomzatlonoflntanglbleassets213 ................ e 148(23)
Total operating expenses 28,555 35,463 33,365 (19)
Operating profit from continuing operations before tax (27,758) (3,742) 14,119 (642)
o expe e R ( 6837) ............. 1369 .............. 2998 .....................
Net profit from continuing operations (20,922) (5,111) 11,121 (309)
Discontinued operations

Profit from discontinued operations before tax 198 145 888 37
o expense .................................................................................... Lo (258) ............... (1 1 ) ....................
Net profit from discontinued operations 198 403 899 (51)
Net profit (20,724) (4,708) 12,020 (340)
Net profit attributable to minority interests 568 539 493 5
fromcontlnumgoperatlons520 ................ o oy (.4.).
Comd |scont|nuedoperatlons ................................................................. W G g
Net profit attributable to UBS shareholders (21,292) (5,247) 11,527 (306)
~ from continuing operations 1442 (5650 0731 (280)
o d|scont|nuedoperat|ons ................................................................ o o e (63)
Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share (CHF) (7.69) (2.42) 5.19 (218)
e contlnumgoperatlons ................................................................. (774) R, (261) .............. e (197)
. dlscontlnuedoperatlons ............................................................... oos TR s (74)
D|Iutedearn|ngs pershare(CHF) ............................................................... (769) R, (243) .............. ee (216)
eom contlnumgoperatlons ................................................................. (775) R, (261) .............. A VRRREEE (197)
o dlscontlnuedoperatlons ............................................................... oos o s (74)

Additional information
Personnel (full-time equivalents)’ 77,783 83,560 78,140 (7)

1 Excludes personnel from private equity (part of the Corporate Center).
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2008

Results

2008 saw the unfolding of a global financial crisis that af-
fected UBS deeply. While UBS’s wealth and asset manage-
ment businesses contributed positively to UBS results despite
extremely difficult conditions, losses on the Investment
Bank’s risk positions were very significant and led to an over-
all negative result.

In 2008, UBS reported a Group net loss attributable to
UBS shareholders (“attributable loss”) of CHF 21,292 million
— a loss of CHF 21,442 million from continuing operations
and a profit of CHF 150 million from discontinued opera-
tions. In 2007, UBS recorded an attributable loss of CHF
5,247 million.

Operating income

Total operating income was CHF 796 million in 2008, down
from CHF 31,721 million in 2007. Net interest income at CHF
5,992 million was up 12% compared with CHF 5,337 million a
year earlier. Net trading income was negative CHF 25,820 mil-
lion, sharply down from negative CHF 8,353 million in 2007.

As well as income from interest margin-based activities
(loans and deposits), net interest income includes income
earned as a result of trading activities (for example, coupon
and dividend income). The dividend income component of
interest income is volatile from period to period, depending
on the composition of the trading portfolio. In order to pro-
vide a better explanation of the movements in net interest
income and net trading income, their total is analyzed below
under the relevant business activities.

Net income from trading businesses

Net income from trading businesses dropped to negative
CHF 27,203 million for full-year 2008. This compares with
income of negative CHF 10,658 million in the prior year,
with the decline mainly due to losses on disclosed risk con-

Net interest and trading income

Trading versus non-trading income
CHF million

2006 2007

45,000 - -

30,000 --

15,000 -

-15,000 - -

T @r203)

-30,000
W Net income from interest margin, treasury businesses,
fees and commissions and other income
M Net income from trading businesses

centrations in the fixed income, currencies and commodities
(FICC) area of the Investment Bank in 2008.

Within FICC, trading losses were experienced in difficult
markets marked by a significant increase in volatility and an
extreme scarcity of liquidity which negatively affected many
trades and positions. Real estate and securitization, and credit
and proprietary strategies all had a significant negative impact
on FICC trading revenues. These losses obscured good results
in select areas, notably foreign exchange and money markets,
which had a strong year with revenues up from 2007. Rates
had positive revenues but were down from the prior year.

Trading revenues from the equities business were down
from the previous year, mainly as a result of lower revenues in
derivatives, especially in Europe and Asia. Equity-linked saw
negative revenues in difficult equity and credit markets. The
exchange-traded derivatives business was up as it benefited
from significant volatility in the market. Prime brokerage ser-
vices had a solid performance but revenues were down over-
all from 2007 as clients deleveraged their positions. Proprie-
tary trading contributed a limited loss for the year.

In 2008, the Investment Bank recorded a gain on own
credit from financial liabilities designated at fair value of CHF

For the year ended % change from

CHF million 31.12.08 31.12.07 31.12.06 31.12.07
Net interest income 5,992 5,337 6,521 12
Net trading income (25,820 (8353) 343 (209)
Total net interest and trading income (19,828) (3,016) 20,264 (557)
Breakdown by businesses

Net income from trading businesses’ (27,203) (10,658) 13,730 (155)
Net income from interest margin businesses 6,160 6,230 5,718 (1)
Net income from treasury activities and other 1,214 1,412 816 (14)
Total net interest and trading income (19,828) (3,016) 20,264 (557)

1 Includes lending activities of the Investment Bank.
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2,032 million, resulting from the widening of UBS’s credit
spread, which was partly offset by the effects of redemptions
and repurchases of such liabilities. Refer to “Note 27 Fair val-
ue of financial instruments” in the financial statements of
this report for more information. In 2007, the Investment
Bank recorded a gain of CHF 659 million on own credit.

Net income from interest margin businesses

Net income from interest margin businesses decreased 1%
to CHF 6,160 million from CHF 6,230 million. This slight de-
crease was primarily due to lower income from mortgages.

Net income from treasury activities and other

Net income from treasury activities and other was CHF 1,214
million compared with CHF 1,412 million. Gains from the
accounting treatment of the MCNs issued on 5 March 2008
and 9 December 2008 were offset by negative income from
the transaction with the SNB.

Credit loss expense

A credit loss expense of CHF 2,996 million was recorded in
full-year 2008, compared with a credit loss expense of CHF
238 million in full-year 2007. The difference mainly reflects
impairment charges taken on reclassified financial assets in
fourth quarter 2008 and a further deterioration of the credit
environment.

Net credit loss expense at Global Wealth Management &
Business Banking amounted to CHF 421 million in 2008
compared with a net credit loss recovery of CHF 28 million in
2007. This result was mainly due to provisions made for lom-
bard loans in 2008, particularly in the fourth quarter. The
Investment Bank recorded a net credit loss expense of CHF
2,575 million in 2008, compared with a net credit loss ex-
pense of CHF 266 million in 2007. This increase mainly re-
flects impairment charges taken on reclassified instruments
in fourth quarter 2008, of which the majority was related to
leveraged finance commitments.

- Refer to the “Risk management and control” section of

this report for more information on UBS’s risk management
approach, method of credit risk measurement and the
development of credit risk exposures

Credit loss (expense)/recovery

Net fee and commission income

Net fee and commission income was CHF 22,929 million,

down 25% from CHF 30,634 million. Income declined in all

major fee categories, as outlined below:

— Underwriting fees fell 48% to CHF 1,957 million, driven
by a 56% decline in equity underwriting fees and a 31%
decline in debt underwriting fees.

— Mergers and acquisitions and corporate finance fees fell
40% to CHF 1,662 million, in an environment of reduced
market activity and lower mandated deal volumes.

— Net brokerage fees fell 16% to CHF 6,445 million, mainly
due to lower client transaction volumes in the wealth
management businesses and the Investment Bank’s cash
equities and Asian equity derivatives business.

— Investment fund fees fell 25% to CHF 5,583 million due
to lower asset-based fees from the asset management
and wealth management businesses.

— Fiduciary fees increased 1% to CHF 301 million, reflecting
an increase in business volume.

— Custodian fees fell 12% to CHF 1,198 million, mainly due
to the lower asset base.

— Portfolio and other management and advisory fees fell
21% to CHF 6,169 million mainly due to the lower asset
base in the wealth management businesses and reduced
performance fees in the asset management business.

— Insurance-related and other fees, at CHF 317 million in
2008, decreased by 25% from a year earlier mainly due
to lower commission income from life insurance products
at Wealth Management US.

Other income

Other income decreased to CHF 692 million from CHF 4,341
million. The main driver for this change was UBS’s sale of its
20.7% stake in Julius Baer during second quarter 2007,
which gave rise to the recognition in second quarter 2007 of
a CHF 1,950 million pre-tax gain, attributed to the Corpo-
rate Center. 2008 included a gain of CHF 168 million from
the sale of a stake in Adams Street Partners in the third quar-
ter and a gain of CHF 360 million on the sale of UBS’s stake
in Bank of China in the fourth quarter, partly offset by losses
of CHF 192 million due to currency translation differences on
partial disposals of an investment in a consolidated invest-
ment fund.

For the year ended % change from

CHF million 31.12.08 31.12.07 31.12.06 31.12.07
Global Wealth Management & Business Banking (421) 28 109

oo o ( '1','2'46) - . "'('2'66) ...... R .
Investment Bank — credit losses from reclassified financial instruments | ( .1.,'3'29) ...............
UBS (2,996) (238) 156
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Net fee and commission income

For the year ended % change from

CHF million 31.12.08 31.12.07 31.12.06 31.12.07

Equity underwriting fees 1,138 2,564 1,834 (56)
Debt underwriting fees o818 s 129 (31)
Total underwriting fees 1,957 3,742 3,113 (48)
Mergers and acquisitions and corporate finance fees 1,662 2,768 1,852 (40)
Brokerage fees 835 10281 803 (19)
Investment fund fees 5583 742 5858 )
'F'iduciary‘fé'e'sm e sy by :

Cubtodian fone : ','1'98 ,,,,, 1','3'67 ,,,,, s L ,(12)
Portfolio and other management and advisory fees - o 6169 77% 6622 )
Insurance-related and other fees R 17 2 ;3 a9 L)
Total securities trading and investment activity fees 25,540 34,090 27,465 (25)
Credit-related fees and commissions 273 279 269 (2)
'C'ommissi‘o‘ri .ih'cbme frorh‘bfﬁéf éerviceé ........................ 1 .,'0'10 .... 101 7 1 '(564 ...... (1)
Total fee and commission income 26,823 35,386 28,798 (24)
Brokerage fees paid 1,909 2,610 1,904 (27)
Other : ','9'84 ,,,,, 2.’,1,42 ,,,,, 1','438 ,,,,,,,, &
Total fee and commission expense 3,894 4,752 3,342 (18)
Net fee and commission income 22,929 30,634 25,456 (25)

Operating expenses

Total operating expenses were down 19% to CHF 28,555 mil-
lion from CHF 35,463 million. The decline was mainly due to
significantly lower performance-related compensation, partly
offset by provisions for auction rate securities and the provi-
sion made in connection with the US cross-border case.

Personnel expenses

Personnel expenses decreased 36% to CHF 16,262 million from
CHF 25,515 million. This was primarily due to lower accruals on
performance-related compensation, mainly in the Investment
Bank, as well as lower salary costs due to reduced staff levels.
Full-year results for 2007 included accruals for share-based
compensation for performance during the year. These are not
reflected in full-year 2008 as, starting in 2009, they will be am-
ortized over the vesting period of these awards.

Contractors’ expenses, at CHF 423 million, were down
33% from 2007. This was due to a lower number of contrac-
tors employed, mainly at the Investment Bank. Insurance and
social security contributions declined 45% to CHF 706 million
in 2008, driven by lower performance-related compensation.
Contributions to retirement benefit plans increased CHF 4 mil-
lion to CHF 926 million as changes in contributions to various
plans largely offset each other. At CHF 2,000 million in 2008,
other personnel expenses increased 2%, mainly due to sever-
ance payments relating to the reduction in staff levels.

General and administrative expenses

At CHF 10,498 million, general and administrative expenses
increased CHF 2,069 million from CHF 8,429 million. This in-
crease was mainly due to provisions related to auction rate se-

curities of CHF 1,464 million, the provision of CHF 917 million
made in connection with the US cross-border case and restruc-
turing charges. These offset cost reductions in all other catego-
ries during 2008. In absolute terms, the largest reductions came
from lower travel and entertainment expenses, reduced costs
from outsourcing of IT and other services and lower marketing
and public relations expenses.

Depreciation, amortization and impairment of goodwill
Depreciation of property and equipment declined CHF 2 mil-
lion to CHF 1,241 million. Amortization of intangible assets
declined to CHF 213 million from CHF 276 million.

A goodwill impairment charge of CHF 341 million was
recorded in second quarter 2008, relating to the Investment
Bank’s exit from the municipal securities business. There was
no goodwill impairment charge for full-year 2007.

Income tax

UBS recognized an income tax benefit in the income state-
ment of CHF 6,837 million for 2008, which mainly reflects
the CHF 6,126 million impact from the recognition of incre-
mental deferred tax assets on available tax losses.

The incremental deferred tax assets mainly relate to Swiss
tax losses incurred during 2008 (primarily due to the writedown
of investments in US subsidiaries) but was reduced by a de-
crease in the deferred tax assets recognized for US tax losses.

The Swiss tax losses can be utilized to offset taxable
income in Switzerland arising in the seven years following
the year in which the losses are incurred.

UBS recognized a net income tax expense of CHF 1,369
million for full year 2007.
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2007

Results

In 2007, UBS reported a Group net loss attributable to UBS
shareholders (”attributable loss”) of CHF 5,247 million — a
loss of CHF 5,650 million from continuing operations and a
profit of CHF 403 million from discontinued operations. In
2006, UBS recorded a Group net profit attributable to UBS
shareholders (”attributable profit”) of CHF 11,527 million.

Operating income

Total operating income was CHF 31,721 million in 2007,
down 33% from CHF 47,484 million in 2006. Net interest
income at CHF 5,337 million was down 18% compared with
CHF 6,521 million a year earlier. Net trading income was
negative CHF 8,353 million, sharply down from positive CHF
13,743 million in 2006.

Net income from trading businesses

Net income from trading businesses was down significantly
from a positive CHF 13,730 million in 2006 to a negative
CHF 10,658 million in 2007. FICC results were very weak.
The credit business in FICC delivered negative revenues,
especially in proprietary strategies. Structured products
results were down, especially in Europe and the US, reflect-
ing the decrease in customer demand for complex deriva-
tives transactions. Markdowns on leveraged finance com-
mitments also had a negative impact. The result for
emerging markets was helped by gains from the sale of
UBS’s stake in Brazil Mercantile & Futures Exchange after
demutualization.

Revenues from the equities business were up, mainly as a
result of very strong gains in the derivatives business in
China. Equity capital markets and equity prime brokerage
revenues were up in Latin America following the acquisition
of Banco Pactual at the end of 2006. Exchange-traded de-
rivatives profited from the acquisition of ABN AMRO's global
futures and options business towards the end of 2006.
Mark-to-market gains on UBS’s stake in Bovespa, the Brazil-
ian stock exchange, helped the equities result. These positive
performances were partially offset by losses recorded in pro-
prietary trading as all regions were impacted by the market
dislocation.

As a result of the widening of UBS’s credit spread in 2007,
the Investment Bank recorded a gain on own credit of CHF
659 million on financial liabilities designated at fair value in
net trading income. Refer to “Note 27 Fair value of financial
instruments” in the financial statements of this report for
more information. No gain or loss was recorded on own
credit on financial liabilities designated at fair value in net
trading income in 2006.
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Net income from interest margin businesses

Net income from interest margin businesses was CHF 6,230
million, up 9% from CHF 5,718 million in 2006, reflecting an
increase in spreads for Swiss franc, euro and US dollar de-
posits and growth in wealth management’s collateralized
lending business. Wealth Management US also benefited
from increased levels of deposits.

Net income from treasury activities and other

At CHF 1,412 million, net income from treasury activities
and other in 2007 was up CHF 596 million, or 73% higher
than the CHF 816 million of 2006. The accounting treatment
of interest rate swaps, which hedge the economic interest
rate risk of accrual-accounted balance sheet items (for ex-
ample, loans or money market and retail banking products),
positively affected income. They are carried on the balance
sheet at fair value and, if they qualify for cash flow hedge
accounting under IAS 39, changes in fair value are recorded
in equity, thereby avoiding volatility in the Group income
statement. In 2007, these hedges were not fully effective,
leading to a gain that was booked to UBS's income state-
ment. Higher interest income was also recorded as a result of
increased yield on a slightly higher average capital base.

In 2007, UBS experienced a net credit loss expense of
CHF 238 million, compared to a net credit loss recovery of
CHF 156 million in 2006. The market dislocations stemming
from the US sub-prime mortgage market during the second
half of 2007 were the main reasons for the significant in-
crease, mainly in the Investment Bank.

Net credit loss recovery at Global Wealth Management &
Business Banking amounted to CHF 28 million in 2007 com-
pared with a net credit loss recovery of CHF 109 million in
2006. The reduced level of credit loss recovery was a conse-
guence of the continued reduction in the impaired lending
portfolio and related allowances to a level such that recover-
ies realized from work-outs continue to trend lower and no
longer compensate for the ongoing need to establish new
allowances. The US mortgage market dislocation had no
impact on these figures.

The Investment Bank realized a net credit loss expense of
CHF 266 million in 2007, compared with a net credit loss
recovery of CHF 47 million in 2006. This mainly relates to
valuation adjustments taken in connection with the securiti-
zation of certain US commercial real estate assets.

Net fee and commission income

In 2007, net fee and commission income was CHF 30,634

million, up 20% or CHF 5,178 million from CHF 25,456 mil-

lionin 2006. Income increased in nearly all major categories,

as outlined below:

— Underwriting fees, at their highest level ever, were CHF
3,742 million, up 20% from 2006. Equity underwriting
fees were up significantly and offset a decrease in fixed
income underwriting fees.



— At CHF 2,768 million, mergers and acquisitions and cor-
porate finance fees in 2007 were up significantly by 49%
compared with 2006, in a brisk merger and acquisition
environment.

— Net brokerage fees were CHF 7,671 million in 2007, up
25% from 2006, mainly driven by higher revenues in
Europe, the US and Asia, due to additional services from
a new equities trading platform, and a considerable in-
crease in client activity in all client segments. Addition-
ally, the equity derivatives business also posted higher
revenues due to increased business volume.

— Investment fund fees, at their highest level ever, were
CHF 7,422 million in 2007, up 27% from 2006, mainly
reflecting higher asset-based fees for the wealth manage-
ment businesses and higher management and perfor-
mance fees at Global Asset Management.

— Fiduciary fees increased 18% to CHF 297 million due to
an increase in business volume.

— At CHF 1,367 million, custodian fees in 2007 were up 8%
compared with 2006. This increase was due to an en-
larged asset base.

— Portfolio and other management and advisory fees in-
creased by 18% to CHF 7,790 million in 2007. The in-
crease was again the result of rising invested asset levels
and to a lesser extent higher management fees.

— Insurance-related and other fees, at CHF 423 million in
2007, decreased by 6% from a year earlier.

Other income

Other income was up significantly in 2007 by CHF 2,733
million, or 170%, to CHF 4,341 million from CHF 1,608
million in 2006. This mainly related to the sale of a 20.7%
stake in Julius Baer in second quarter 2007. The demutual-
ization of UBS's stake in Bovespa, the Brazilian stock ex-
change, and in the Brazil Mercantile & Futures Exchange
positively affected the other income line as well. In 2006
UBS recorded gains on its New York Stock Exchange mem-
bership seats, which were exchanged into shares when it
went public in March 2006. In the same year UBS sold its
stakes in the London Stock Exchange, Babcock & Brown
and EBS group.

Operating expenses

Total operating expenses increased 6% to CHF 35,463 mil-
lion in 2007 from CHF 33,365 million in 2006.

Personnel expenses

Personnel expenses increased CHF 1,484 million, or 6%, to
CHF 25,515 million in 2007 from CHF 24,031 million in
2006. The rise was driven by higher salaries due to the 7%
increase in personnel over the year, mainly in the wealth
management businesses which added client and financial

advisors. Performance-related compensation decreased, re-
flecting the losses incurred in the Investment Bank. Share-
based components were up 18%, or CHF 488 million, to
CHF 3,173 million from CHF 2,685 million, mainly reflect-
ing accelerated amortization of deferred compensation
awarded for senior managers who have left UBS. Contrac-
tors’ expenses, at CHF 630 million, were CHF 192 million
below 2006 levels, mainly due to the transfer of contractors
into permanent staff. Insurance and social security contri-
butions declined by 8% to CHF 1,290 million in 2007 com-
pared with CHF 1,398 million in 2006, reflecting lower bo-
nus payments. Contributions to retirement benefit plans
rose 15% or CHF 120 million to CHF 922 million in 2007 as
a result of both higher salaries paid and the increased staff
levels. At CHF 1,958 million in 2007, other personnel ex-
penses increased by CHF 390 million from 2006, mainly
driven by severance payments relating to the reduction in
staff levels.

General and administrative expenses

At CHF 8,429 million in 2007, general and administrative
expenses increased 6% from CHF 7,942 million a year ago.
Administration costs increased due to elevated business
volumes in Latin America related to the acquisition of
Banco Pactual in 2006 and higher levels of UBS staff. The
increased number of employees pushed occupancy costs,
as well as travel and entertainment expenditures, higher.
Professional fees were up on higher legal fees and IT and
other outsourcing expenses were higher in all UBS busi-
nesses. This increase was only partially offset by lower pro-
visions.

Depreciation, amortization and impairment of goodwill
Depreciation was CHF 1,243 million in 2007, almost un-
changed from CHF 1,244 million in 2006. Lower deprecia-
tion on IT and communication equipment was offset by
higher real estate charges. At CHF 276 million, amortization
of intangible assets was up 86% from CHF 148 million a
year earlier, related to acquisitions made at the end of 2006,
mainly Banco Pactual. There was no goodwill impairment
charge in 2007 or 2006.

Income tax

UBS recognized a tax expense in the income statement of
CHF 1,369 million for 2007, compared with a tax expense
for 2006 of CHF 2,998 million.

The tax charge for 2007 reflects tax expenses on profits
earned outside the US during the year, partially offset by US
and Swiss tax benefits on the writedowns related to the US
sub-prime crisis. The US tax benefits recognized arose main-
ly as a result of the ability to carry back losses against US
profits earned in the two prior years.
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Balance sheet

% change from

CHF million 31.12.08 31.12.07 31.12.07
Assets
Cash and balances with central banks 32,744 18,793 74

Goodwill and infangible assets 12935 w58 (D)
Other assets 18,811 (7)
Total assets 2,014,815 2,274,891 (11)
Liabilities

Due to banks 125,628 145,762 (14)

Cash collateral on securities lent

Other liabilities 33,965

Total liabilities 1,974,282

Equity

Share capital 293 207 42
e p NI 25250 ............. 12433 ................ 05
Netincome recognized directly in equity, net of tax @335) (e @73)
Fevaluation resone from ¢ tepacqwsmns ot w e .
et earmngs ........................................................................................... 14487 ............. 35795 R (60)
Equity classified as obligation to purchase own shares @) 7 38
Treasuryshares .............................................................................................. (3156) ........... (10363) ................ o
Equity attributable to UBS shareholders 32,531 36,875 (12)
Eqmtyattnbutabletomlnontymterests8002 .............. 6951 ................. o
Total equity 40,533 43,826 (8)
Total liabilities and equity 2,014,815 2,274,891 (11)
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2008 asset development
CHF billion

2,400 -

2,275

2,050 - - 2,015. .

1,700 -
426. - .

1,350 -

1,000
31.12.2007 Trading  Collateral ~ Other lending  Positive  31.12.2008
portfolio  trading assets replacement
values

31.12.08 vs 31.12.07:

UBS's total assets stood at CHF 2,015 billion on 31 Decem-
ber 2008, down from CHF 2,275 billion on 31 December
2007. These shifts were driven by deliberate reductions of
CHF 462 billion in the trading portfolio and of CHF 236 bil-
lion in collateral trading, led by the Investment Bank. These
substantial reductions were, however, partly offset by a sig-
nificant rise in replacement values (increasing to a similar ex-
tent on both sides of the balance sheet as discussed under
“Replacement values” below) during 2008, as market move-
ments drove up positive replacement values by 99%, or CHF
426 billion, to reach CHF 854 billion at year-end. Excluding
positive replacement values, UBS’s total assets dropped CHF
686 billion in 2008.

Currency effects for 2008 included a strengthening of the
Swiss franc against the British pound, US dollar and euro.
These effects deflated the balance sheet, excluding positive
replacement values, by CHF 74 billion, implying an under-
lying reduction of effectively CHF 612 billion.

Excluding positive replacement values, the Investment
Bank significantly reduced its balance sheet assets by CHF
664 billion during 2008, and the positions of Global Wealth
Management & Business Banking and Global Asset Manage-
ment remained relatively stable at CHF 291 billion and CHF
25 billion, respectively.

Lending and borrowing

Lending

Cash and balances with central banks was CHF 33 billion on
31 December 2008, an increase of CHF 14 billion from the
prior year-end. Due from banks and loans to customers
both increased CHF 4 billion, rising to CHF 64 billion and
CHF 340 billion, respectively. The customer loan increase
stemmed mainly from the BlackRock collateralized funding
transaction (a USD 11.25 billion eight-year amortizing loan;
balance on 31 December 2008 USD 9.2 billion) in second
quarter 2008 and the reclassification of illiquid trading as-
sets from the trading portfolio in fourth quarter 2008, par-

tially offset by lower volumes from the Investment Bank
prime brokerage business and from lombard lending in
Global Wealth Management & Business Banking. The Swiss
loan portfolio remained stable during 2008 at around CHF
163 billion.

Borrowing

The reduction of the Investment Bank’s assets led to lower
unsecured borrowing needs during a continued difficult
market environment for term debt issuance and decreasing
client deposits. Money market paper issuance was CHF
112 billion in 2008, a considerable reduction of CHF 41 bil-
lion from the prior year, as UBS decreased its reliance on
these funding sources (in line with the firm’s lower overall
funding needs) amid a reduced access to these markets for
issuers in general. Financial liabilities designated at fair value
stood at CHF 102 billion on 31 December 2008, a drop of
CHF 90 billion from 31 December 2007, as a lower demand
for structured debt was accompanied by declining market
values, in particular of equity-linked notes as major stock
indices fell. Long-term debt grew CHF 16 billion to CHF
86 billion as new issues of senior straight bonds, the CHF
6 billion MCN issuance to the Swiss Confederation and
around CHF 2 billion of mortgage bonds issued via the Swiss
Mortgage Bond Bank combined to outweigh maturing
senior straight bonds. Interbank borrowing (due to banks)
was CHF 126 billion on 31 December 2008, down CHF
20 billion from 31 December 2007. Customer deposits (due
to customers) amounted to CHF 475 billion on 31 Decem-
ber 2008, a decrease of CHF 167 billion for the year, or CHF
134 billion, on a currency-adjusted basis. Global Wealth
Management & Business Banking client deposits declined
CHF 109 billion with reductions in fixed deposits, fiduciary
investments and current accounts. Savings and personal
accounts dropped CHF 10 billion over the course of 2008,
though the last quarter recorded net inflows of CHF 3 bil-
lion. Investment Bank deposits declined CHF 58 billion,
mainly driven by lower business funding needs and a de-
cline in the prime brokerage business.

Repurchase/reverse repurchase agreements and
securities borrowing/lending

Secured lending on the asset side of the balance sheet, the
sums of cash collateral on securities borrowed and reverse
repurchase agreements declined during 2008 to CHF 348 bil-
lion on 31 December 2008. The CHF 236 billion decline oc-
curred almost entirely in the Investment Bank, where the
matched book was reduced as part of its overall balance
sheet reduction (the matched book is a repurchase agree-
ment portfolio comprised of assets and liabilities with equal
maturities and equal value so that the market risks substan-
tially cancel each other out). Furthermore, as part of the In-
vestment Bank’s balance sheet reduction measures, its trad-
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ing short positions were reduced CHF 102 billion, which
resulted in lower short-coverings via reverse repurchase
agreements and securities borrowing transactions.

A significant amount of trading assets are funded via re-
purchase agreements, so, in addition to the matched book
reduction, the yearly decrease in trading assets also contrib-
uted to the drop in repurchase agreements. These reduc-
tions are reflected on the liability side of the balance sheet,
where repurchase agreements and securities lent against
cash collateral declined CHF 221 billion, standing at CHF 117
billion on 31 December 2008.

Trading portfolio

Significant reductions were achieved in the trading portfolio,
which declined CHF 462 billion during 2008, or CHF 445 bil-
lion on a currency-adjusted basis. At the end of 2008, the
trading portfolio stood at CHF 312 billion. The majority of the
decrease related to the Investment Bank’s overall balance
sheet reductions and occurred within the fixed income, cur-
rencies and commaodities (FICC) business area and the equities
business area. In FICC, trading inventories in a number of ar-
eas, including real estate, securitization and commodities,
were substantially reduced, including USD 16.4 billion of illig-
uid assets transferred to the Swiss National Bank StabFund
and approximately CHF 26 billion (represents fair values at the
reclassification dates) of trading assets reclassified in fourth
quarter 2008 to banking book as “Loans and receivables”.
The reduction in equities inventories was mainly a result of
stock market declines. Reductions occurred across all trading
products, with debt instruments declining CHF 278 billion, eg-
uity instruments falling CHF 130 billion, traded loans falling
CHF 35 billion and precious metals falling CHF 19 billion.

Equity attributable to UBS shareholders development

Replacement values

The positive and the negative replacement values (RVs) of
derivative instruments developed in parallel, showing con-
tinued strong rises during 2008, driven by increased market
valuations, while notional values declined 2% year-on-year.
Positive RVs grew CHF 426 billion to CHF 854 billion in
2008, while the negative RVs of derivative instruments in-
creased CHF 408 billion to CHF 852 billion. In both cases,
the increases were largely driven by movements in curren-
cies (for example, the weakening of the US dollar), lower
interest rates and widening credit spreads. Increases oc-
curred across almost all derivative products, with interest
rate contracts growing by CHF 211 billion, foreign exchange
contracts by CHF 123 billion and credit derivative contracts
by CHF 92 billion.

Shareholders’ equity

On 31 December 2008, equity attributable to UBS share-
holders was CHF 32.5 billion, representing a decrease of CHF
4.3 billion compared with 31 December 2007.

The decline in 2008 reflects mainly the net loss attribut-
able to shareholders of CHF 21.3 billion combined with oth-
er losses recognized directly in equity (including foreign cur-
rency translation) of CHF 3.2 billion. Refer to the “Statement
of recognized income and expense” in the financial state-
ments of this report for more information about the losses
recognized directly in equity.

These equity reductions were largely offset by UBS's capi-
tal strengthening measures taken in 2008 (see the table be-
low showing the impact by equity attributable to UBS share-
holders accounts).

Net income Equity

recognized attributable

Share directly Retained Treasury to UBS

CHF billion Share capital premium in equity earnings shares  shareholders

Starting balance 0.2 124 (1.2) 35.8 (10.4) 36.9
Net loss attributable to UBS shareholders (21.3) (21.3)
 of which: amount relates to MCNs issued in March 2008' 37
of which: amount relates to MCN issued in December 20087 - - - 07
'R'ightsiss‘u‘e ................................... i s e
MIONS oo T g T B e
MCNs issued in December 20082 Ge) (3.6)
Share-based .c.o'nﬁpensati‘o‘n. b]éﬁs/sale oftreasury shares (6 6) """"""""""""""" 72 0.6
s e (32) ,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, (27)

Ending balance 0.3 25.2 (4.3) 14.5 (3.2) 32.5

1 Of the CHF 13 billion MCN1, CHF 2.3 billion, being the outstanding coupon liability recorded in “Debt issued”.

liabilities on balance sheet.
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Off-balance sheet

Contractual obligations

The table below includes contractual obligations as of 31 De-
cember 2008.

All contracts included in the table below, with the excep-
tion of purchase obligations (those where UBS is committed to
purchasing determined volumes of goods and services), are
either recognized as liabilities on UBS’s balance sheet or, in the
case of operating leases, disclosed in “Note 25 Operating lease
commitments” in the financial statements of this report.

The following liabilities are recognized on the balance
sheet and excluded from the table: provisions (as disclosed in
“Note 21 Provisions and litigation” in the financial state-
ments of this report), current and deferred tax liabilities (re-
fer to “Note 22 Income taxes” in the financial statements of
this report for more information), liabilities to employees for
equity participation plans, settlement and clearing accounts
and amounts due to banks and customers.

Within purchase obligations, the obligation to employees
under the mandatory notice period is excluded (this is the
period in which UBS must pay employees leaving the firm
contractually-agreed salaries).

Off-balance sheet arrangements

In the normal course of business, UBS enters into arrange-
ments that, under International Financial Reporting Stan-
dards, lead to either de-recognition of financial assets and
liabilities for which UBS has transferred substantially all risks
and rewards, or the non-recognition of financial assets (and
liabilities) received for which UBS has not assumed the re-
lated risks and rewards. UBS recognizes these types of ar-
rangements on the balance sheet to the extent of its involve-
ment, which, for example, may be in the form of derivatives,
guarantees, financing commitments or servicing rights.
When UBS, through these arrangements, incurs an obli-
gation or becomes entitled to an asset, it recognizes them

Contractual obligations

on the balance sheet, with the resulting loss or gain re-
corded in the income statement. It should be noted that in
many instances the amount recognized on the balance
sheet does not represent the full gain or loss potential in-
herent in such arrangements. Generally, these arrange-
ments either meet the financial needs of customers or offer
investment opportunities through entities that are not con-
trolled by UBS.

Off-balance sheet arrangements include purchased and
retained interests, derivatives and other involvements in non-
consolidated entities and structures. UBS has originated such
structures and has acquired interests in structures set up by
third parties.

The following paragraphs discuss several distinct areas of
off-balance sheet arrangements.

Risk positions

UBS’s main concentrations of risk and other relevant risk po-
sitions are disclosed in detail in the audited parts of the “Risk
management and control” section of this report. These posi-
tions include monoline insurers, auction rate securities and
leveraged finance deals. The quantitative summary about
each of these risk positions includes exposures of on- and
off-balance sheet arrangements.

The importance and the potential impact of such posi-
tions to UBS (with respect to liquidity, capital resources or
market and credit risk support), including off-balance sheet
structures, are also described in the “Risk and treasury man-
agement” section of this report.

Liquidity facilities and similar obligations

On 31 December 2008 and 31 December 2007, UBS had
no significant exposure through liquidity facilities and guar-
antees to structured investment vehicles, conduits and oth-
er types of special purpose entities (SPEs). Losses resulting
from such obligations were not significant in 2008 and
2007.

Payment due by period

CHF million <1 year 1-3 years 3-5 years >5 years
Long-term debt 36,024 42,188 31,869 77,100
'Capita\leas.e.bbligaﬂons 63 04 a0 0
Operating leases 1,034 1,799 1,405 2,573
Purchase obligétions 02 166 s )
Other liabilities ”3','718 ' BV ”1','406 ' o
Total 41,041 44,378 34,805 79,673
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Strategy, performance and responsibility
Financial performance

Off-balance sheet arrangements, risks,

consolidation and fair value measurements

Contractual obligations

Credit guarantees, performance guarantees, undrawn irrevocable
credit facilities, and similar instruments

Private equity funding commitments and equity underwriting commitments
Derivative financial instruments

Credit derivatives

Leases

Non-consolidated securitization vehicles and collateralized debt obligations —
non-agency transactions

Support to non-consolidated investment funds
Securitizations (banking book only)

Risk concentrations

Credit risk information

Market risk information

Liquidity risk information

Consolidation

Fair value measurements, including sensitivity and
level 3 impact on the income statement consolidation

Non-consolidated securitization vehicles and collateralized
debt obligations

UBS sponsored the creation of SPEs that facilitate the securiti-
zation of acquired residential and commercial mortgage loans,
other financial assets and related securities. UBS also securi-
tized customers’ debt obligations in transactions involving SPEs
which issued collateralized debt obligations. A typical securiti-
zation transaction of this kind involved the transfer of assets
into a trust or corporation in return for beneficial interests in
the form of securities. Financial assets held by such trusts and
corporations are no longer reported in the consolidated finan-
cial statements of UBS once their risks and rewards are trans-
ferred to a third-party, e.g. in a sales transaction. Refer to
“Note 1 Summary of significant accounting policies” in the
financial statements of this report for more information about
UBS's accounting policies regarding securitization activities.

Generally, UBS intended to sell the beneficial interests to
third parties shortly after securitization but beginning in the
second half of 2007 and continuing in 2008, certain re-
tained interests could not be sold due to illiquid markets for
certain instruments, mainly those linked to the US mort-
gage market.

The volume and size of interests held in securitization
structures originated by UBS and asset-backed securities
purchased from third parties declined significantly in 2008,
mainly due to the following factors:
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Disclosure in the annual report

Strategy, performance and responsibility, “ Off-balance sheet” section

Strategy, performance and responsibility, “ Off-balance sheet” section

Strategy, performance and responsibility, “ Off-balance sheet” section
Financial statements, “Note 23 Derivative instruments and hedge accounting”
Financial statements, “Note 23 Derivative instruments and hedge accounting”
Financial statements, “Note 25 Operating lease commitments”

Strategy, performance and responsibility, “ Off-balance sheet” section

Strategy, performance and responsibility, “ Off-balance sheet” section

Risk and treasury management, “Basel Il Pillar 3 disclosures” section

Risk and treasury management, “Risk concentrations” section

Risk and treasury management, “Credit risk” section

Risk and treasury management, “Market risk” section

Risk and treasury management, “Liquidity and funding management” section
Financial statements, " Critical accounting policies” section

Financial statements, “Note 27 Fair value of financial instruments”

— Sale and expected sale of positions to a fund owned and
controlled by the Swiss National Bank (for a total volume
of USD 38.6 billion).

— Sale of a portfolio of US residential mortgage-backed se-
curities for proceeds of USD 15 billion to the RMBS Op-
portunities Master Fund, LP, a third-party entity managed
by BlackRock, Inc.

— Several other true sales of asset-backed securities portfo-
lios to third parties without recourse.

— In addition, UBS announced the repositioning of its fixed
income, currencies and commodities (FICC) business
around client servicing and facilitation. The repositioning
includes a substantial downsizing or exiting of real estate,
securitization, and proprietary trading activities.

UBS's involvements in non-consolidated securitization ve-
hicles and CDOs disclosed here are typically managed on a
portfolio basis alongside hedges and other offsetting finan-
cial instruments. The table on the next page does not include
these offsetting factors and does not represent a measure of
risk. Refer to the “Risk management and control” section of
this report for information on UBS's risk positions and risks.

UBS’s involvement in vehicles whose residential and com-
mercial mortgage securities are backed by an agency of the
US government — the Government National Mortgage As-
sociation (GNMA), the Federal National Mortgage Associa-
tion (FNMA), or the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corpora-



tion (FHLMC) —is not included in the table below, due to the
comprehensive involvement of the US government in these
organizations and the significantly lower risk profile.

The numbers in the table are different to the numbers
disclosed on securitizations in the “Basel Il Pillar 3" section,
predominately due to different scopes (for example Pillar 3
disclosures are on banking book positions only, and the con-
solidation status is different for several vehicles), and to some
extent due to a different measurement basis.

Consolidation of securitization vehicles and CDOs

UBS continually evaluates whether triggering events require
the reconsideration of the consolidation conclusions made at
the inception of its involvement with securitization vehicles
and CDOs. Triggering events generally include items such as
major restructurings, the vesting of potential rights and the
acquisition, disposition or expiration of interests. In these in-
stances, SPEs may be consolidated or de-consolidated in light
of the changed conditions. Starting in December 2007 and
during 2008, due to adverse market conditions, various non-
consolidated vehicles in which UBS held a majority stake in
super senior securities were declared to have breached default

provisions pursuant to the entities’ governing documents. In
these instances, various contingent decision-making rights be-
came immediately vested in the super-senior class holders. As
a consequence, UBS determined that, in certain instances, the
rights arising from such events caused it to be in control of
these entities and therefore UBS had to consolidate the af-
fected entities. The consolidation had no material incremental
impact on UBS's income statement and balance sheet.

Risks resulting from non-consolidated securitization

vehicles and CDOs

The “Risk management and control” section of this report
provides detailed disclosure of UBS's main risk concentra-
tions, as well as risks associated with UBS’s involvement in
consolidated and non-consolidated US mortgage securitiza-
tion vehicles and CDOs. If future consolidation of additional
securitization vehicles is required by accounting standards,
UBS does not expect this would have a significant impact on
its risk exposure, capital, financial position or results of op-
erations. Positions with significant impact on the income
statement are disclosed in “Note 3 Net interest and trading
income” in the financial statements of this report.

Non-consolidated securitization vehicles and collateralized debt obligations — non-agency transactions'

CHF billion Total SPE assets Involvements in non-consolidated SPEs held by UBS
Purchased and

Ofgiel et Toomsheliby UBS  Deraties hetd by UBs
As of 31 December 2008 outstanding outstanding amounts Fair value Fair value Nominal value
Originated by UBS?
CDOs and CLOs
Residential mortgage 31 838 o5 Mmoo 6 40
Commercial mortgage 00 0.0 o0 o1 05 07
oberss s 05 e o o R
Securitizations
Residential mortgage 573 43.1 3 00 03 127
Commercial mortgage a2 173 4 02 00 0.0
oo iy i gy o o o
Total 105.9 70.8 4.3 1.4 (0.1) 22.6
Not originated by UBS
CDOs and CLOs
Residential mortgage 3308 169.5 T AT 34 19 87
'(fdmmerc‘iél'fﬁbft'gage S O R SRR e PR 05
heags G el Wy s ey S,
Securitizations
Residential mortgage 12597 616.5 86 35 4 29.1
Commercial mortgage 5550 476.1 o3 42 00 0.0
s oy g el S 0 R
Total 2,507.0 1,424.8 108.6 19.9 0.8 443

1 Includes all purchased and retained interests and derivatives held by UBS which are considered involvements in non-consolidated securitization vehicles and CDOs (under IFRS). This implies for example
that UBS would include an insignificant involvement in such a vehicle into the table (under “Involvements in non-consolidated SPEs held by UBS"), whereas the pool assets held by such vehicle would
be included under “Total SPE assets"”. The size of the pool assets of such vehicle can be very high, but relates to third parties, if UBS's involvement is insignificant. The “Total SPE assets” include informa-
tion which UBS could gather after making exhaustive efforts but excludes data which UBS was unable to receive (in sufficient quality), especially for structures originated by third parties. 2 Loans and
receivables have been included in this column with a carrying value of CHF 1.0 billion for structures originated by UBS and CHF 9.9 billion for structures not originated by UBS. 3 Structures originated
by UBS include transactions within the scope of US GAAP, Financial Accounting Standard 140, paragraph 17.
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Strategy, performance and responsibility
Financial performance

Support to non-consolidated investment funds

In the ordinary course of business, UBS issues investment cer-
tificates to third parties that are linked to the performance of
non-consolidated investment funds. Such investment funds are
originated either by UBS or by third parties. For hedging pur-
poses, UBS generally invests in the funds to which its obliga-
tions from the certificates are linked. Risks resulting from these
contracts are considered minimal, as the full performance of
the funds is passed on to third parties. The Investment Bank is
involved in similar structures, such as those due to the issuance
of notes, index certificates and related hedging activities.

In 2008, as a result of the financial markets crisis which
caused declining asset values, market illiquidity and de-le-
veraging by investors, UBS supported several non-consoli-
dated investment funds that it manages in its wealth and
asset management businesses. UBS provided this support
primarily to facilitate redemption requests of fund invest-
ments by clients. Material support was provided in the form
of collateralized financing, direct acquisition of fund units
and purchases of assets from the funds. The support pro-
vided by UBS to these investment funds was made where
there are regulatory or other legal requirements or other
exceptional considerations. During 2008, material support
has been provided as follows: fund units were acquired in
the amount of CHF 0.8 billion; assets purchased from such
funds amounted to CHF 0.7 billion; and fully collateralized
financing provided to the funds was CHF 2.4 billion at 31
December 2008 and decreased significantly in early 2009.
Guarantees granted to third-parties in the context of these
non-consolidated funds were immaterial at 31 December
2008. Losses incurred in 2008 as a result of such fund sup-
port were immaterial.

Acquired fund units and fund assets are generally ac-
counted for as financial investments available-for-sale, and
are included into the respective risk disclosures in the “Risk
management and control” section of this report. Financing
provided by UBS at 31 December 2008 was included in the
credit risk disclosures.

In 2007, UBS Global Asset Management purchased finan-
cial assets, predominately US RMBS, from investment funds
managed by UBS. The total loss resulting from the purchas-
es, writedowns and sales amounted to approximately USD
0.1 billion in 2007, of which the majority related to transac-
tions with a fund consolidated at 31 December 2007 and
2008 in UBS’s financial statements.

In addition, in the ordinary course of business, UBS's
wealth and asset management businesses provide short-
term funding facilities to UBS-managed investment funds.
This bridges time lags in fund unit redemptions and subscrip-
tions. These bridge financings did not incur losses and are
expected to be paid without significant losses.

Should UBS be required to consolidate previously uncon-
solidated investment funds in the future, it expects no sig-
nificant impact on debt covenants, capital ratios, credit rat-
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ings and dividends. However, future fund support itself,
depending on its size, could impact these measures.

Depending on market developments in 2009 and be-
yond, it is possible that UBS may decide to provide financial
support to one or more of its investment funds. Such deci-
sions will be taken on a case-by-case basis depending upon
market and other circumstances pertaining at the time. The
risks incurred by providing such support will depend on the
type of support provided and the riskiness of the assets
held by the fund(s) in question. If UBS were to provide ex-
tensive financial support to some of its investment funds,
losses incurred as a result of such support could become
material.

Guarantees and similar obligations

UBS issues the following in the normal course of business:
various forms of guarantees; commitments to extend credit;
standby and other letters of credit to support its customers;
commitments to enter into repurchase agreements; note is-
suance facilities; and revolving underwriting facilities. With
the exception of related premiums, these guarantees and
similar obligations are kept off-balance sheet unless a provi-
sion to cover probable losses is required.

On 31 December 2008, the net exposure to credit risk
for credit guarantees and similar instruments, based on
IFRS numbers, was CHF 18.5 billion compared with CHF
19.3 billion one year earlier. Fee income from issuing guar-
antees is not material to total revenues.

Guarantees represent irrevocable assurances, subject to
the satisfaction of certain conditions, that the Group will
make payment in the event that customers fail to fulfill their
obligations to third parties. The Group also enters into com-
mitments to extend credit in the form of credit lines that are
available to secure the liquidity needs of customers but have
not yet been drawn on by them, the majority of which range
in maturity from one month to five years. If customers fail to
meet their obligations, the maximum amount at risk for the
Group is the contractual amount of these instruments. The
risk is similar to the risk involved in extending loan facilities
and is subject to the same risk management and control
framework. For the year ended 31 December 2008, the
Group recognized net credit loss recoveries of CHF 18 mil-
lion; and for the years ended 31 December 2007 and 2006,
the Group recognized net credit loss recoveries of CHF 3 mil-
lion and CHF 10 million respectively, related to obligations
incurred for contingencies and commitments. Provisions rec-
ognized for guarantees, documentary credits and similar in-
struments were CHF 31 million at 31 December 2008 and
CHF 63 million at 31 December 2007.

The Group partially enters into sub-participations to miti-
gate the risks from commitments and contingencies. A sub-
participation is an agreement by another party to take a
share of the loss in the event that the obligation is not ful-
filled by the obligor and, where applicable, to fund a part of



the credit facility. The Group retains the contractual relation-
ship with the obligor, and the sub-participant has only an
indirect relationship. The Group will only enter into sub-par-
ticipation agreements with banks to which UBS ascribes a
credit rating equal to or better than that of the obligor.

Furthermore, UBS provides representations, warranties
and indemnifications to third parties in connection with nu-
merous transactions, such as asset securitizations.

Clearinghouse and future exchange memberships

UBS is @ member of numerous securities and futures ex-
changes and clearinghouses. In connection with some of
those memberships, UBS may be required to pay a share of
the financial obligations of another member who defaults,
or otherwise be exposed to additional financial obligations
as a result. While the membership rules vary, obligations
generally would arise only if the exchange or clearinghouse
had exhausted its resources. UBS considers the probability of
a material loss due to such obligations to be remote.

Swiss deposit insurance

Swiss banking law and the deposit insurance system require
Swiss banks and securities dealers to jointly guarantee an

Commitments’

amount of up to CHF 6 billion for privileged client deposits in
the event that a Swiss bank or securities dealer becomes in-
solvent. For the period from 20 December 2008 to 30 June
2009, FINMA estimates UBS's share in the deposit insurance
system to be CHF 1.2 billion. The deposit insurance is a guar-
antee and exposes UBS to additional risk which is not reflect-
ed in the "Exposure to credit risk — UBS Group” table in the
“Credit risk” section of this report. At 31 December 2008,
UBS considers the probability of a material loss from its obli-
gation to be remote.

Private equity funding commitments and equity
underwriting commitments

The Group enters into commitments to fund external private
equity funds and investments, which typically expire within
five to ten years. The commitments generally require the
Group to fund external private equity funds and investments
at market value at the time the commitments are drawn. The
amount committed to fund these investments at 31 Decem-
ber 2008 and 31 December 2007 was CHF 0.5 billion and
CHF 0.4 billion respectively. Equity underwriting commit-
ments in the Investment Bank amounted to CHF 0.4 billion
at 31 December 2008.

The table below shows the maximum committed amount of commitments.

31.12.08 31.12.07

Sub- Sub-
CHF million Gross participations Net Gross  participations Net
Credit guarantees and similar instruments 13,124 (344) 12,780 13,381 (593) 12,788
'Performancé'gdarantees ahd'sfmilar instrdrﬁénts ' 3596 (446) 3150 ' 3969 ' (464) 3505
Documentary credits . 2,979 (a15) 2,564 3474 (517) 2,957
Total commitments 19,699 (1,205) 18,494 20,824 (1,574) 19,250
Undrawn irrevocable credit facilities 60,316 (1) 60,315 83,980 (2) 83,978

1 Includes only credit and performance guarantees and similar instruments, documentary credits, and undrawn irrevocable credit facilities. On 31 December 2008, the commitment to repurchase auction
rate securities was recognized on UBS's balance sheet as a negative replacement value for CHF 1,140 million (USD 1,069 million). It is not included into this table. Refer to the "Exposure to auction rate

securities” sidebar in the “Risk concentrations” section of this report for more information.
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Strategy, performance and responsibility
Financial performance

Cash flows

2008

At 31 December 2008, the level of cash and cash equivalents
rose to CHF 179.7 billion, up CHF 30.6 billion from CHF
149.1 billion at the end of 2007.

Operating activities

Operating activities generated a cash inflow of CHF 77.0 bil-
lion in 2008 compared with a cash outflow of CHF 52.1 bil-
lion in 2007. Operating cash outflows (before changes in
operating assets and liabilities and income taxes paid) to-
taled CHF 71.6 billion in 2008, an increase of CHF 67.9 bil-
lion from 2007. Net profit decreased CHF 16.0 billion com-
pared with 2007.

Cash inflow of CHF 403.1 billion was generated by the
net decrease in operating assets, while a cash outflow of
CHF 253.6 billion was reflected in the operating liabilities.
The increase in cash was used to fund the operating liabili-
ties. Payments to tax authorities were CHF 0.9 billion in
2008, down CHF 2.8 billion from a year earlier.

Investing activities

Net cash flow used in investing activities was CHF 1.7 billion
compared with an overall cash inflow of CHF 2.8 billion in
2007. The net cash outflow for investments in subsidiaries
and associates was CHF 1.5 billion, compared with CHF 2.3
billion in 2007, due to the acquisitions of Caisse Centrale de
Réescompte Group (CCR) and VermogensGroep and a net
increase in the purchase of property and equipment of CHF
1.1 billion. The net investment of financial investments avail-
able for sale was CHF 0.7 billion, whereas in 2007 the divest-
ments generated cash inflows of CHF 6 billion. Disposals of
subsidiaries and associates in 2008 generated a cash inflow
of CHF 1.7 billion. Refer to “Note 36 Business combinations”
and “Note 38 Reorganizations and disposals” in the finan-
cial statements of this report for more information about
UBS’s investing activities in 2008 and 2007.

Financing activities

In 2008, financing activities generated cash outflows of
CHF 5.6 billion. This reflected the net repayment of money
market paper of CHF 40.6 billion and the issuance of CHF
103.1 billion in long-term debt — the latter significantly out-
pacing long-term debt repayments, which totaled CHF 92.9
billion. That outflow was partly offset by inflows attribut-
able to capital issuances of CHF 23.1 billion, including CHF
15.6 billion from rights issues and CHF 7.6 billion from
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mandatory convertible notes. In 2007, UBS had a net cash
inflow of CHF 74.6 billion from financing activities. The dif-
ference between the two years was mainly due to the fact
that net long-term debt repayments and money market pa-
per repaid, amounting to CHF 111.6 billion in 2008, were
only partially compensated by the cash increase due to the
capital issuances.

2007

At 31 December 2007, the level of cash and cash equivalents
rose to CHF 149.1 billion, up CHF 13.0 billion from CHF
136.1 billion at the end of 2006.

Operating activities
Net cash flow used in operating activities was CHF 52.1 bil-
lion in 2007 compared with a cash outflow of CHF 5.4 billion
in 2006. Operating cash outflows (before changes in operat-
ing assets and liabilities and income taxes paid) totaled CHF
3.7 billion in 2007, a decrease of CHF 18.2 billion from 2006.
Net profit decreased CHF 16.7 billion compared with 2006.
Cash inflow of CHF 218.9 billion was generated by the
net decrease in operating assets, while a cash outflow of
CHF 263.6 billion was reflected in the operating liabilities.
The increase in cash was used to fund the operating liabili-
ties. Payments to tax authorities were CHF 3.7 billion in
2007, up CHF 1.1 billion from a year earlier.

Investing activities

Investing activities generated a cash inflow of CHF 2.8 bil-
lion. The net cash outflow for investments in subsidiaries and
associates was CHF 2.3 billion due to the acquisitions of the
branch network of McDonalds Investments and 51% of
Daehan Investment Trust Management Company Ltd. and a
net increase in the purchase of property and equipment of
CHF 1.8 billion. The net divestment of financial investments
available for sale was CHF 6.0 billion, mainly due to UBS's
sale of its 20.7% stake in Julius Baer for CHF 3.9 billion. Dis-
posals of subsidiaries and associates in 2007 generated a
cash inflow of CHF 0.9 billion. In 2006, the net cash inflow
from investing activities was CHF 4.4 billion. Cash inflows of
CHF 6.4 billion were offset by acquired new businesses
worth CHF 3.5 billion. Purchases of property and equipment
totaled CHF 1.8 billion and the net divestment of financial
investments available for sale was CHF 1.7 billion. Disposals
of subsidiaries and associates in 2006 generated a cash in-
flow of CHF 1.2 billion.



Financing activities

In 2007, financing activities generated cash flows of CHF 74.6
billion, which was used to finance the expansion of business
activities. This reflected the net issuance of money market pa-
per of CHF 32.7 billion and the issuance of CHF 110.9 billion
in long-term debt — the latter significantly outpacing long-
term debt repayments, which totaled CHF 62.4 billion. That

inflow was partly offset by outflows attributable to net move-
ments in treasury shares and own equity derivative activity
(CHF 2.8 hillion), and dividend payments (CHF 4.3 billion). In
2006, UBS had a net cash inflow of CHF 48.1 billion from fi-
nancing activities. The difference between the two years was
mainly due to the fact that net long-term debt issuance and
money market paper increased CHF 26.3 billion in 2007.
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Strategy, performance and responsibility
UBS employees

UBS employees

UBS relies on the expertise and commitment of its employees to meet clients’ needs. For employees,
UBS’s wide range of businesses, global career opportunities and an open and collaborative culture offer a

platform for individual success.

Investing in UBS employees

UBS relies on the expertise, talent and commitment of its
employees to meet clients’ needs and deliver results for the
firm. Engaging, developing and retaining a high-value work-
force is therefore a priority, and in 2008 UBS continued to
judiciously invest in its personnel. This investment will help
ensure that the firm has the range of skills and experience
necessary to meet client needs now and to grow the firm
when market conditions improve. UBS invests in its employ-
ees whether they are new hires, seasoned staff, key talent or
senior managers. The graph below highlights the most im-
portant factors driving the value created by UBS personnel.

UBS workforce

Staff levels decreased in most UBS businesses over the course
of the year, with the number of people employed on 31 De-
cember 2008 at 77,783, down 5,777 or 7% from year-end
2007. In 2008, UBS personnel worked in 60 countries, with
about 38% of staff employed in the Americas, 34% in Swit-
zerland, 15% in Europe, the Middle East & Africa and 13%
in Asia Pacific.

Internal job mobility encourages business innovation and
individual career development. Mobility across regions in-
creased slightly in 2008, with 1,285 employees moving to
roles in a different region, versus 1,062 in 2007. The highest

Investing in employees

Gender distribution by geographical region'

On31.12.08
Total: 30,068 10,428 5,046 26,144 7,480
B0,000 - oo
30,000 - g
,,,,,,,,
20,000 - 9:385
10,000 - - 18,362 R 2441 IRRRRRRREERERERRRRS 16,750 HREEE R
................................... 2'421
5,987
0
Americas Asia Pacific ~ Continental ~ Switzerland United
Europe/ Kingdom
Middle East/Africa
W Male M Female

1 Calculated on the basis that a person (working full-time or part-time) is considered one
headcount in this graph only. This accounts for the total UBS end-2008 employee number
of 79,166 in this graph, which excludes staff from UBS card center, Hotel Seepark Thun,
Wolfsberg and Widder Hotel.

number of employees transferred from Switzerland, with
143 going to Asia Pacific, 92 going to the Americas, 63 to
the UK and 57 to locations in Europe, the Middle East & Af-
rica. Cross-division mobility was lower in 2008 than in 2007,
with 784 employees changing divisions during the course of
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Value added
by increasing
workforce quality



Personnel

In %, except where indicated

On 31.12.06 31.12.07
Total": 78,140 83,560
100 --oeeeneee 98 U Tme T 129
| s
75
394 383 37.7
50
5 346 [N 334
0

M Switzerland M Americas M Rest of Europe / Middle East/Africa Asia Pacific

In %, except where indicated

On 31.12.06 31.12.07

Total': 78,140 83,560

49
75 L 243 ...
50 oo R
25 206
17.4

0

M Wealth Management International & Switzerland B Business Banking Switzerland
M Investment Bank M Wealth Management US M Global Asset Management

Corporate Center

1 Total full-time equivalents.

the year, versus 903 in 2007. At 238 employees, transfers
from the Investment Bank to Global Wealth Management &
Business Banking were most common.

Recruiting staff

In 2008, UBS continued to recruit staff in the key markets in
which it operates, although the firm sought throughout the

Gender distribution by employee category’

year to reduce personnel costs, increase personnel efficiency
and improve the ratio of front-office to back-office staff. As
UBS believes the long-term trends for wealth and asset man-
agement remain positive, particular emphasis was placed on
hiring client advisors in 2008. Among other things, a new
“Fast Forward" initiative was introduced to improve the hir-
ing, retention and productivity of client advisors and front-
office managers. More effective recruitment, integration,
and skill and competency development processes are sup-
ported by line manager coaching.

To further improve the quality of all candidates, better
match open jobs with the right candidate and more success-
fully integrate new hires, UBS standardized its approach to
sourcing, selecting and “on-boarding” new hires globally in
2008. Additionally, Global Wealth Management & Business
Banking launched an internal marketplace aimed at filling
vacancies with internal candidates.

In regard to graduate recruitment, UBS developed a
firm-wide campus recruiting strategy in 2008, creating a
cross-division governance body and aligning marketing
with the needs of “Generation Y” (20- to 30-year-olds) to
enhance the UBS brand within this recruitment segment. A
more interactive website and focused print materials sup-
port a globally consistent candidate experience. UBS also
focused on enhancing relationships with target schools in
2008 through a new university relations strategy, while
global sourcing efforts targeted bilingual graduates over-
seas for UBS's businesses in the Asia Pacific region. For the
fourth straight year, global consultant Universum ranked
UBS the number one employer for business students in
Switzerland.

In 2008, UBS hired more than 1,100 university gradu-
ates for its undergraduate and MBA training programs. The
UBS apprenticeship program in Switzerland hired 304 ap-
prentices in 2008, up 9% from 2007. In Global Wealth
Management & Business Banking interns and graduate
trainees represent approximately 1% of the workforce. In
response to external market conditions, the Investment
Bank instituted a graduate deferral program for 2008, in
which 43 graduates postponed their start dates at UBS for
up to one year to engage in community service or pursue
educational opportunities.

0On 31.12.08 Officers Non-officers Total

Number % Number %
Male 30,788 75.0 18,337 48.1 49,125 62.1
Female 10,283 250 19,758 5.9 30,041 37.9
Total 41,071 100.0 38,095 100.0 79,166 100.0

1 Calculated on the basis that a person (working full-time or part-time) is considered one headcount in this table only. This accounts for the total UBS year-end 2008 employee number of 79,166 in this
table. Normally, UBS expresses employee numbers in terms of full-time equivalents (FTEs), which is measured as a percentage of the standard hours normally worked by permanent full-time staff. When

calculated according to FTEs, the year-end 2008 total is 77,783.
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Strategy, performance and responsibility
UBS employees

Developing and sustaining a diverse workforce

A workforce of people from different backgrounds, cul-
tures and experiences is indispensable in today's global
business environment, in part because it can help enhance
understanding of regional markets and sensitivity to cul-
tural norms and labor market issues. In 2008, the UBS
workforce included citizens of 153 countries. The scope of
UBS’s diversity initiatives is global, with 10 regional diversity
boards translating this global commitment into regional ac-
tion, working with local business and HR leaders. In addi-
tion, more than 20 employee networks globally help to
build cross-business relationships and strengthen UBS's in-
clusive culture.

Over the past six years, UBS has promoted diversity in
three stages: raising basic awareness; integrating diversity
into management processes such as recruiting and perfor-
mance management; and ensuring that diversity ultimately
becomes a self-sustaining part of the workplace culture. In
2008, efforts continued to focus on making diversity self-
sustaining by linking diversity to revenue generation. Among
other initiatives, UBS invited women clients and prospects in
China, Italy, Switzerland, the UK and the US to targeted
events designed to help UBS build market share among this
important client segment.

UBS also continued its program to help professionals re-
turn to work after a career break. In 2008, four such pro-
grams were held in London, Philadelphia/New York, Singa-
pore and Sydney. These programs have helped more than
300 professionals, primarily women, prepare to return to
work over the past two years. In addition, UBS was recog-
nized by Working Mother magazine as being among the
100 best companies for working mothers in the US for the
sixth consecutive year.

Performance management

UBS believes that the foundation of good performance
management is an ongoing employee-manager dialogue,
with demonstrable performance as the basis for meritoc-
racy. All employees therefore participate in a year-round
performance management process that assesses individual
achievements against specific objectives. This process sup-
ports staff development, links behavior to corporate values
and helps ensure that employees have the skills required to
meet their clients’ needs and implement their division’s
strategic goals. The performance management process the
senior executives is broadly the same as for other employ-
ees. Achieving specific financial targets plays a significant
role, with business leadership, client leadership, people
leadership and personal leadership also explicitly reviewed.
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Compensation and incentives
On 12 August 2008, UBS announced the separation of its
business groups into business divisions, with incentives for
management and staff in each business division aligned di-
rectly with its financial results. This is being achieved through
a centrally managed change program that includes the de-
velopment of revised incentive systems to reward divisional
management and staff for shareholder value creation in their
own division. As part of this, beginning in 2009, UBS will
adopt a new compensation model for the BoD and the GEB
that has a long-term focus and is more closely aligned with
the creation of value for the firm. (Refer to the “Compensa-
tion principles 2009 and beyond for UBS senior executives”
section of this report for more information.)

UBS’s compensation programs are results-oriented and
market-focused. Total compensation is linked to UBS's busi-
ness objectives, and pay and incentive programs are de-
signed to pay for performance. UBS’s total compensation
and benefits philosophy has five guiding principles which re-
quire UBS to:

— use carefully selected performance measures, rigorous
performance management and a strict pay-for-perfor-
mance relationship to support UBS’s business strategy;

— support reward opportunities by consistently communi-
cating UBS’s business strategy and promoting a merito-
cratic culture;

— provide competitive total compensation opportunities to
enable UBS to attract and retain talent;

— balance compensation components to meet short-term
needs while focusing on mid- to long-term objectives; and

— encourage employee share ownership to strengthen the
alignment between employee and shareholder interests.

Employee share ownership

UBS is committed to the principle of employee share owner-
ship, believing accountability for decisions and actions is en-
couraged through equity-based awards that vest and/or be-
come unrestricted over time. Positions with a large scope of
responsibility and a significant potential impact on the firm
have higher equity exposure. UBS also has stringent share
ownership requirements for senior executives.

A voluntary equity-based program enables employees to
purchase UBS shares at fair market value and generally re-
ceive two free UBS options for each share purchased. Staff
with annual incentive awards above a certain threshold are
awarded a component in UBS shares or notional shares in-
stead of cash. Select high-performing employees are granted
stock options with a strike price not less than the fair market
value of the shares on the date the option is granted.



On 31 December 2008, current UBS employees held an
estimated 6% of UBS shares outstanding (including approxi-
mately 3% in unvested/blocked shares), based on all known
share holdings from employee participation plans, personal
holdings and individual retirement plans. At the end of 2008,
an estimated 56% of all employees held UBS shares while
51% of all employees held UBS stock options.

Leadership development

UBS takes a structured approach to both talent manage-
ment and leadership development, understanding that both
capabilities are important factors in ensuring high-quality cli-
ent service and long-term business success.

In 2008, a Group-wide talent management architecture
was established to align the firm’s identification and selec-
tion processes for “key talent”. All levels of employees with
the potential to take on substantially more senior roles in the
organization than they currently have may be considered key
talent. In 2008, about 4% of employees were placed in a key
talent pool where they can benefit from focused investment
in their career and professional development.

UBS'’s leadership development activities are separated into
Group-wide and divisional initiatives. A new framework cre-
ated in 2008 centralizes development initiatives for manag-
ing directors and above within a Group-level learning organi-
zation. An organizational development and culture change
initiative for the GEB, GMB and managing director popula-
tions, called “Leading our Future”, is being developed to en-
gage and align the firm’s leadership with its vision, core val-
ues, strategy and leadership principles. A new leadership and
management development core curriculum will be designed
to strengthen the capabilities of senior leaders in their current

roles, while a key talent core curriculum will build leadership
capabilities among potential future senior leaders. Initiatives
for all other employees are managed within the divisions but
coordinated with the Group-wide initiatives to ensure consis-
tency and promote the sharing of best practices.

Commitment

While meeting the needs of clients is UBS’s ultimate purpose,
it is the firm’s corporate values that lay the foundation for its
long-term sustainable growth. These values are integrated
into decision making processes, management techniques
and the ways in which employees interact with each other in
the daily course of business. UBS's values are clustered into
four categories:

— Focus on the client: The ultimate purpose of all UBS ac-
tivities is to increase client satisfaction;

— Lead yourself: Each individual takes responsibility for his
or her own motivation, development and success;

— Lead others: Everyone can lead others by being a role
model, appreciating others’ successes and supporting
one another’s endeavors. Leading others is about creating
a collaborative environment and developing people on
the basis of meritocracy and diversity;

— Act with integrity: UBS upholds the law, respects regula-
tions and behaves in a principled way. UBS is self-aware
and has the courage to face the truth. UBS maintains the
highest ethical standards.

Measuring employee perceptions

Employee engagement supports workforce retention and
performance. An annual employee survey assesses UBS's
corporate culture and levels of employee engagement. A

The client leadership experience

Launched in February 2008, this
Group-wide initiative brings together
senior client-facing employees from
different divisions for a one-and-a-
half-day workshop designed to
improve UBS’s ability to meet the
diverse needs of its clients and to
increase UBS's share of business

with them. Participants learn about
relevant products and services in the
other divisions, build cross-division
partnerships and learn how to work
more effectively across boundaries.
Seventeen regional workshops, each
focusing on a specific client segment
such as family offices, hedge funds

and financial institutions, or on a
specific region such as Western
Europe, brought nearly 500 senior
client-facing participants together.
Almost 400 cross-divisional client
service opportunities were shared,
ultimately bringing in more than USD
300 million in net new money to UBS.
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core set of questions across all divisions provides a compre-
hensive view of employee opinions.

48,205 employees, or 60% of UBS's employee popula-
tion, participated in the survey conducted in June/July 2008.
Most measures declined compared with earlier years. For ex-
ample, 67% of respondents were very satisfied with UBS as
a place to work (compared with 80% in 2007) and 77%
reported high motivation to contribute beyond what is ex-
pected of them (versus 83% in 2007). These overall satisfac-
tion ratings covering the period between June 2007 and
June 2008 show the continued dedication of UBS employees
despite the challenges. However, the survey results also
clearly revealed a perceived lack of communication from se-
nior management.

UBS and its business divisions take these results seriously.
The GEB committed to increasing employee communication
through employee events, intranet and e-mail. Additionally,
dialogue with managing directors across UBS increased to
ensure they had accurate, updated information about UBS
to share with their teams.

Employee assistance
UBS is committed to being a conscientious employer. Exam-
ples of this commitment can be found in the firm’s Employee
Assistance Programs (EAPs) and the COACH and SOVIA pro-
grams in Switzerland.

EAPs are available in a number of locations globally. In the
US, the program provides information, referrals and ongoing
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support for child care, academic services and issues sur-
rounding elder care, work performance and personal con-
flicts. In the UK, the program is part of a health and wellbe-
ing program including onsite medical specialists, emergency
childcare, counseling and referral services. In Switzerland,
UBS offers professional assistance for current and retired
employees, as well as family members, through its HR Social
Counseling and HR Retiree Service.

The COACH transfer and severance process was launched
in Switzerland in 2003 to help employees displaced by a re-
structuring. COACH advisors provide support and assistance
in finding new jobs, working closely with UBS’s internal re-
cruitment center and outside employment services. During
the COACH process employees retain full salary and bene-
fits, and financial assistance is available for job-related train-
ing, if needed.

Staff below the level of director are eligible for the new
Social Partnership Agreement for employees in Switzerland
(SOVIA) that became effective on 1 August 2008. SOVIA lays
out the terms and conditions for implementing redundan-
cies among employees whose jobs are subject to the Agree-
ment on Conditions of Employment for Bank Staff. SOVIA
now governs the requirements and procedures for internal
hiring, job transfers, and, when needed, severance. The aim
is to implement necessary job cuts and operational changes
in a responsible manner, making full use of the UBS internal
labor market, and to offer targeted, relevant support and
career advice to these employees.



Employee representation
The UBS Employee Forum facilitates the exchange of informa-
tion between employees and management on pan-European
issues that have the potential to impact the performance and
prospects of UBS and, in particular, its operations in Europe.
This forum fulfills EU Directive 94/45 on the establishment of
a European Works Council. Local forums also exist in a number
of locations across Europe to address local issues such as health
and safety, changes to workplace conditions, pension arrange-
ments and collective redundancies. The UK Employee Forum,
for example, is made up of internal elected representatives for
each business area and division that has employees in the UK.
In Switzerland, Employee Representation Committee (ERC)
representatives partner with UBS management in the annual
salary negotiations and are involved in employee matters, in-
cluding health and safety issues, social security and pension
issues. ERC employee representatives are elected to represent
the interests of employees whose work contracts are gov-
erned by Swiss law and the Agreement on Conditions of Em-
ployment for Bank Staff. The ERC also fosters an open dia-
logue between management and employees. During late
2008 and early 2009, for example, the ERC and management
jointly hosted a program called “Trust is Key”. In total, around
1,100 employees gathered in seven UBS locations across Swit-
zerland for open forum events in which employees developed
and proposed measures to rebuild trust and confidence in
UBS. These measures can be implemented in employees’
working environments or by management.

Select 2008 awards

“100 Best Companies for Working Mothers in the US"
(Working Mother magazine 2003-2008)
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“No. 1 employer of choice for business graduates in Switzerland”
(Universum Switzerland 2008)

“Top 100 Employers for Lesbian, Gay and Bisexual People in Britain"
(Stonewall Workplace Equality Index 2008)

4

“Best Graduate Recruitment and Development Program’
(UBS EXPLORE Graduate Program)
(Graduate Solutions 2008)

"“UBS’s learning programs: awards in three categories”
(Corporate University Xchange 2008)
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Corporate responsibility

Corporate responsibility contributes to UBS’s goal of sustainable value creation.

As a leading global financial services firm, UBS is confronted
with the concerns and expectations of a wide and diverse
range of stakeholders. Along with clients, investors and em-
ployees, for example, various government regulators and
suppliers can also be said to have a stake in the company to
varying degrees. In a broader sense, the communities in
which UBS has a presence are stakeholders too.

UBS takes the term “corporate responsibility” to mean
the process of understanding, assessing, weighing and ad-
dressing the concerns and expectations of these groups. This
process supports UBS in its efforts to safeguard and advance
the firm’s reputation for responsible corporate conduct. In
very direct ways, responsible corporate conduct helps create
sustainable value for the company.

The crisis faced by the financial services industry made it
difficult for the firm to do as much as it would have liked to
fulfill its stakeholder expectations. Still, as can be seen from
the examples given below — from anti-money laundering to
community development and human rights to protecting the
environment — UBS continued with a wide range of important
and effective corporate responsibility-related activities during
2008. Even in difficult times, UBS remains convinced that cor-
porate responsibility makes good business sense.

Adherence to the United Nations Global Compact
initiative

In 2000, UBS became one of the first companies to sign the
United Nations (UN) Global Compact. This global corporate
responsibility initiative unites governments, business, labor

Operational corporate responsibility at UBS

organizations and civil society, fostering adherence to 10
principles covering the areas of human rights, labor stan-
dards, the environment and anti-corruption. UBS considers
the initiative, which had over 5,200 corporate participants at
the end of 2008, to be an important yardstick providing
guidance for its key corporate responsibility initiatives and
activities. In addition, by participating in the Swiss UN Global
Compact network, UBS contributes actively to important
corporate responsibility discussions across industrial sectors
among Swiss-based companies.

Labor standards and human rights

UBS has well established human resources policies and prac-
tices that address issues such as employment, diversity, equal
opportunity and discrimination. Such policies also tackle hu-
man rights issues, as do policies relating to health and safety
practices. UBS's human resources policies and practices are
regularly reviewed to ensure that labor standards are re-
spected.

In line with the firm's endorsement of the UN Global
Compact and its underlying principles, UBS adopted a state-
ment supporting basic human rights in 2006. The “UBS
Statement on Human Rights” outlines important human
rights issues and sets out the firm’s position on the topic. In
2008, UBS reaffirmed its commitment to human rights by
supporting the UN Global Compact’s Chief Executive Officer
statement, which marked the 60th anniversary of the UN’s
Universal Declaration of Human Rights. In 2008, UBS contin-
ued with the implementation of its human rights statement
with the introduction of a responsible supply chain guide-

Corporate responsibility

Workplace Ethical business conduct

> UBS code

> Financial crime prevention
> Human rights

> Supply chain

> Diversity
> Non-discrimination
> Health and safety

Environment Community affairs

> Charitable donations
> Employee volunteering

> In-house ecology
> Banking activities
> 1S0 14001

> Climate change

Communications, training and awareness-raising
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line. It also continued the development of industry sector
guidelines to support the consistent identification and as-
sessment of environmental and social risks in the firm's bank-
ing activities.

- Refer to the “UBS employees” section of this report for
more information on labor standards and diversity
programs

- Refer to the discussion on supply chain management and
environmental risk management below for more informa-
tion on the responsible supply chain guidelines and on
industry sector guidelines

Environment
In 1992, UBS was one of the first signatories of the UN Envi-
ronment Program’s Bank Declaration (UNEP). This act com-
mitted the firm to integrating appropriate environmental
measures within its activities. It has resulted in a well devel-
oped global environmental management system, certified to
the ISO 14001 standard, which covers both banking activi-
ties and in-house operations. UBS acknowledges that cli-
mate change represents one of the most significant environ-
mental challenges of current times. By offering relevant
products and services across businesses, UBS seeks to help
clients address risks and take advantage of opportunities
presented by climate change and the expected transition to
a lower carbon economy. With this in mind, UBS continued
in 2008 to expand its offering of climate change-related
products and services and to publish dedicated research re-
ports. In addition, UBS seeks to lead by example by acting to
reduce its own environmental impact. To this end, in 2006
the Group Executive Board (GEB) set a target to reduce the
firm’s carbon emissions through 2012 by 40% from 2004
levels. UBS continued in 2008 to make good progress to-
wards achieving this target.

-> Refer to www.ubs.com/environment for more information

on UBS’s environmental policies

Fighting corruption
UBS has long been committed to assisting the fight against
money laundering, corruption and terrorist financing.

The firm employs a vigorous risk-based approach to its
internal anti-money laundering (AML) process. (A “risk-
based approach” means that the processes are continually
tested to prove their effectiveness against the risks they are
intended to address.) In early 2008 it also issued a revised
Group Policy Against Corruption, setting out its zero-toler-
ance stance towards corruption and strictly prohibiting all
forms of bribery by UBS and its employees, including so-
called facilitation payments. At the same time, it issued more
detailed guidance papers to address the following topics:
guidance for employees who have connections to public of-
ficials; the hiring of political advisers; guidance on engaging
intermediaries; and anti-corruption guidance in connection
with corrupt activity by clients. Implementation of the policy

against corruption by the business divisions is well under
way, and training materials developed by the Group Money
Laundering Prevention Unit (GMLPU) have formed the basis
for business division training modules that raise awareness
of new and revised topics. In some instances web-based
training programs have also been developed.

Although internal policies are an important support for
UBS’s high ethical standards, in practice the major risk for
the firm in relation to bribery is not so much employee be-
havior as the potential misuse of UBS systems by clients to
perpetrate bribery. Many firms, including UBS, continue to
face the legal, regulatory and reputational risk of being used
to collect, store or transfer corrupt funds. UBS’s efforts to
reduce the risk of misuse of its systems to perpetrate bribery
will continue in 2009 and beyond.

- Refer to the discussion on preventing money laundering

below for more information on UBS’s AML activities

External recognition

The firm’s corporate responsibility work has been widely rec-
ognized, and UBS has been included in many indexes that
track such efforts. It has, for example, been a component of
the Dow Jones Sustainability Indexes since their inception in
1999. These indexes track the financial performance of the
leading sustainability-driven companies worldwide. UBS is
also included in the FTSE4AGood Index, which measures the
performance of global companies in the areas of environ-
mental sustainability, stakeholder relations and support for
human rights.

Corporate responsibility governance

The corporate responsibility committee was established in
2001 and, as a Board of Directors (BoD) committee, it sup-
ports the BoD's efforts to safeguard and advance UBS's repu-
tation for responsible conduct. As part of the governance
changes introduced by UBS in 2008, the committee’s charter
was revised and updated. Under the revised charter, the
committee is mandated to review and assess how UBS
should meet the evolving corporate responsibility expecta-
tions of its stakeholders. It also has responsibility for moni-
toring the firm’s corporate responsibility policies and regu-
lations, as well as the implementation of its corporate
responsibility activities and commitments. Headed by the
Chairman of the BoD, the committee includes three other
BoD members. A new advisory panel to the committee has
also been established consisting of members of the GEB and
other senior managers. The panel participates in committee
meetings and implements its recommendations. Meetings
are held at least twice a year, with the agenda and documen-
tation prepared by the committee chair and the corporate
responsibility management function of UBS’s chief commu-
nication officer area.
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The GEB is responsible for UBS's environmental policy and
nominates a Group environmental representative, a function
currently held by the firm’s Chief Risk Officer. A committee,
comprising both Group and divisional environmental repre-
sentatives, is tasked with overseeing the implementation of
UBS's environmental policy and providing guidance to the
different business divisions in their implementation of the
“UBS Statement on Human Rights”.

The GMLPU leads the Group’s overall efforts in all aspects
of money laundering prevention, including terrorism financ-
ing, sanctions and anti-bribery. It supports the Group Gen-
eral Counsel and the head of compliance in their functional
responsibilities by providing, in conjunction with the compli-
ance functions in the business divisions, reasonable assur-
ance that UBS meets relevant regulatory and professional
standards in its business conduct. It also defines, where ap-
propriate, uniformly applicable minimum standards for AML
as a whole. The GMLPU coordinates its work via various
committees and specialist networks with the core committee
being the global AML committee.

Regional diversity boards consider and decide on key re-
gional issues, such as the regional diversity strategy and di-
versity goals and measures. The boards are chaired by senior
managers and are also responsible for assessing the progress
made on relevant issues. UBS's global community affairs ac-
tivities are governed in a decentralized fashion. Every region
has a dedicated community affairs function that coordinates
charitable commitments by UBS, its senior management and
employees within their region.

Corporate responsibility: training and
raising awareness

UBS strives to increase employee awareness of its corporate

responsibility processes, activities and commitments. Gener-
al information is published on the firm’s intranet and in em-

UBS’s corporate responsibility governance process

ployee magazines. In 2008, 2,800 employees participated in
training and awareness-raising activities dealing with corpo-
rate responsibility. Specific training is also given to staff
working in the areas of AML and environmental manage-
ment. It is mandatory for AML and compliance staff to com-
plete a training program every two years, and new joiners in
all UBS business divisions receive training in the issue of anti-
corruption as part of their induction process. Furthermore, in
2008, 5,232 employees participated in training on environ-
mental issues, with 3,905 receiving general education on
UBS’s environmental policy and programs, mostly in induc-
tion training, and 1,327 employees receiving specialist train-
ing targeted at their area of expertise and impact.

Preventing money laundering, corruption and
terrorist financing

UBS takes its responsibility to preserve the integrity of the
financial system, and its own operations, very seriously. The
firm has developed extensive policies intended to prevent,
detect and report money laundering, corruption and terror-
ist financing. These policies seek to protect the firm, and its
reputation, from those who may intend to legitimize their
ill-gotten gains through UBS.

The GMLPU leads UBS's efforts to fight money launder-
ing, corruption and the financing of terrorism. It does so by
continuously assessing the threats and risks that UBS faces
with respect to AML in all its businesses. It takes a risk-based
approach, ensuring the firm’s policies and procedures are
commensurate with those risks, and that relationships that
are classified as higher risk are dealt with appropriately. The
firm constantly engages with its business divisions to ensure
that these policies and procedures are adapted to their busi-
nesses and specific AML exposures, while also seeking to
streamline and increase consistency between business divi-
sions by using consistent methodologies and tools (for ex-

Corporate responsibility committee

Agenda
Documentation
Proposal for action

Corporate responsibility management

Advice Mandate

for action

Corporate responsibility committee advisory panel

Investment Global Wealth Management & Global Asset Corporate
Bank Business Banking Management Center
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ample, the creation of a uniform country risk framework).
UBS also seeks to ensure its employees adhere to the firm’s
strict know-your-customer regulations, while at the same
time not treating clients a priori as criminals or undermining
their right to privacy. Employees regularly undergo training
in AML-related issues and new trends, be it through online
training, awareness campaigns or seminars. UBS also utilizes
advanced technology to assist in the identification of trans-
action patterns or unusual dealings.

Over the last few years, and as a core part of its risk-based
approach, UBS has been particularly vigilant about enhanc-
ing controls with regard to regimes and countries with
heightened risks. The need for increased vigilance has been
underscored by the acknowledgement by the Financial Ac-
tion Task Force (FATF) of the importance of country risk con-
siderations in the risk-based approach, increasing interna-
tional focus on corruption, and the need for the firm to
manage its global security risk activity. As a result of these
considerations, UBS has implemented a global sanctions pol-
icy, ceasing all business activities with a limited number of
countries.

In 2008, UBS continued its engagement with the public
sector and its peers to promote the development and imple-
mentation of AML standards for the financial industry as a
whole, thereby contributing to wider efforts against money
laundering. A notable achievement in this regard was made
by the Wolfsberg Group, where UBS actively contributed to
the FATF's development of its Guidance Paper on Weapons
of Mass Destruction Proliferation Finance, as well as com-
pleting and on 14 January 2009 publishing its own trade fi-
nance principles paper. Wolfsberg Group’s work is ongoing
in the area of credit cards and stored value cards, the imple-
mentation of a new SWIFT message format to protect against
the abuse of cover payments and a review of the Group’s
2003 paper on monitoring, screening and searching.

Supply chain management

In 2008, UBS spent over CHF 6.9 billion purchasing a wide
range of products and services from suppliers and contrac-
tors around the world. UBS has established processes to
manage environmental and human rights issues in relevant
areas of its supply chain such as client gifts, IT equipment
and energy sourcing. In order to further incorporate these
issues into procurement processes, UBS has developed a
supply chain guideline, which provides Group-wide guid-
ance on identifying, assessing and monitoring supplier prac-
tices in the areas of human and labor rights, the environ-
ment and corruption. Examples of human rights issues that
have been included are avoidance of child and forced labor,
non-discrimination, remuneration, hours of work, freedom
of association, humane treatment, and health and safety. In
2008, the guideline was gradually applied to new contracts
and contract renewals with suppliers. By the end of the year

around 100 suppliers had been screened according to the
guideline’s social and environmental criteria, and responsible
supply chain requirements were included in the contractual
arrangement with those suppliers who were awarded con-
tracts. Also, some 170 procurement and sourcing officers
were trained on the relevance and application of the new
guidelines.

Community investment

UBS, together with its employees, seeks to have a positive
influence on the social and environmental well-being of the
local communities in which it operates. The firm does this
through its community affairs program.

This program encompasses activities such as direct cash
donations to selected organizations, employee volunteer-
ing, matched-giving schemes, in-kind donations, disaster
relief efforts and/or partnerships with community groups,
educational institutions and cultural organizations. UBS has
dedicated teams around the world which work closely with
staff at all levels to build partnerships with organizations in
the communities, focusing on the key themes of “empow-
erment through education” and “building a stronger com-
munity”.

Overall, in 2008, UBS and its affiliated foundations do-
nated nearly CHF 46 million to support charitable causes.
UBS employees, through their donations and volunteer ef-
forts, also made significant contributions to the communities
they live in. Last year, almost 9,300 employees spent 84,700
hours volunteering. UBS supports their commitment by
matching their donations and offering up to two working
days a year for volunteering efforts.

UBS has also established a number of foundations and
associations that donate money to worthy causes in Switzer-
land. The association A Helping Hand from UBS Employees
helps disabled and disadvantaged people lead active, inde-
pendent lives. UBS encouraged this employee involvement
by matching the funds raised in 2008. The UBS Cultural
Foundation fosters creativity, appreciation of different forms
of art, and contact between artists and society. The founda-
tion provides financial support for fine arts, film, literature,
music, preservation of historic buildings, archaeological proj-
ects and research in history and philosophy in Switzerland. In
similar fashion, the purpose of the UBS Foundation for Social
Issues and Education is to support deprived communities in
Switzerland in various forms. Non-profit, charitable organi-
zations, projects and initiatives aiming at improving social
welfare receive monetary assistance from these funds.

Client foundation

Besides the engagement of the firm and its employees, UBS
also provides its clients with the opportunity to contribute to
charitable causes. The UBS Optimus Foundation invests do-
nations from UBS clients into a number of programs and
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Examples of UBS’s global community affairs in 2008

Americas: In partnership with
Northwestern University, UBS
launched a program to identify and
develop future leaders in the non-
profit sector. According to the Donors
Forum of Chicago, the non-profit
sector will see a large turnover in its
local and national executive leader-
ship in the next five years, with nearly
60% of executive directors set to
retire. This program produced its first
graduates in 2008 and four UBS
fellows took classes at Northwestern
and were mentored by a UBS senior
executive.

Asia Pacific: UBS launched the first
Community Leadership Experience
program at the India Service Centre in
Hyderabad. This initiative aims to build
the capacity of leaders from the
non-profit sector using the expertise
and human resources of UBS and to

dialogue, discussion, sharing and
learning. Modeled on UBS leadership
programs, it gave 20 promising young
leaders from the non-profit sector a
chance to learn from UBS and external
speakers about topics related to
leadership, governance, strategic
planning, communication and
mentorship.

Switzerland: Twenty employees
volunteered for Procap Sport, an
organization that promotes enthusi-
asm for sport among people with
physical or mental disabilities.
Volunteers supported participants in a
broad range of sports activities. In
another volunteering project, 200 UBS
employees successfully participated at
the eighth Finance Forum charity run
to aid Kispex — a service providing
home care for very sick, disabled and
terminally ill children. UBS employees
came in first in terms of numbers of

participants and donations collected.
UK: UBS continues to support an
independent secondary school in
Hackney, newly established in 2007,
through the UK government’s
Academies program. A local school for
students of all abilities, The Bridge
Academy opened in September 2007
by welcoming 187 students, and by
2013 will cater to 1,150 students
including 250 sixth formers. The
school’s ambition is to create an
outstanding learning environment for
students, staff and the local commu-
nity. The Bridge Academy exemplifies
UBS's commitment to improving the
provision of education and to
supporting regeneration efforts in the
London Borough of Hackney.

- Refer to www.ubs.com/
corporateresponsibility for more
information on UBS’s community
affairs program

provide them with a platform for

organizations, focusing on the key themes of children and of
medical and biological research. The projects involve close
collaboration with respected partner organizations and are
selected by a team of specialists within the foundation, who
also closely monitor their implementation. The costs of man-
aging and administering the UBS Optimus Foundation are
borne by UBS, so that the full contribution of each client
reaches the projects. In 2008, the UBS Optimus Foundation
spent over CHF 17 million supporting 71 projects in Africa,
Asia Pacific, Europe and North and South America.

UBS and the environment

Through its commitment to the environment, embodied in
its environmental policy, UBS aims to create long-term value
for the firm and its clients and the communities they live in.

The policy is based on five principles, under which the firm is

continuously:

— seeking to consider environmental risks in all UBS busi-
nesses, especially in lending, investment banking, advi-
sory and research, and UBS's own investments;

— seeking to pursue opportunities in the financial markets
for environmentally friendly products and services, such
as socially responsible investments;
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— seeking ways to reduce UBS's direct environmental im-
pact on air, soil and water from in-house operations, with
a primary focus on reducing greenhouse gas emissions.
UBS also assesses the environmental impact of its suppli-
ers’ products and services,

— ensuring efficient implementation of UBS’s policy through
a global environmental management system certified ac-
cording to ISO 14001 — the international environmental
management standard;

— integrating environmental considerations into internal
communications and training.

Environmental management system

UBS’s environmental management system covers both its
banking activities and in-house operations and has been
certified under the ISO 14001 standard since 1999. ISO
14001 requires that the system be audited annually and re-
certified every three years. UBS successfully passed the ex-
tensive ISO 14001 recertification audit in 2008. Conducted
by Société Générale de Surveillance (SGS), 24 days of audits
involving 163 employees were undertaken. SGS confirmed
that a well-performing environmental management sys-
tem, integrated in the organization and suitable for manag-



The five principles of UBS’s environmental policy

Environmental
market opportunities

Environmental In-house ecology

risk management

Certified environmental management system

Training and communication

ing environmental risks and improving environmental per-
formance on a continual basis, is in place.

Environmental products and services

During the last ten years UBS has developed a range of
products and services that meet or anticipate clients’ needs
in environmental and socially responsible investments (SRI).
This offering currently stretches across UBS's businesses in
wealth management, investment banking, asset manage-
ment, and retail and commercial banking. It includes SRI
funds, research and advisory services provided to private
and institutional clients, access to the world’s capital mar-
kets for renewable energy firms and, in Switzerland,
“green” mortgages.

Investment products and advisory

In 2008, UBS continued to expand its SRI offering in response
to growing demand from a number of markets, including

Socially responsible investments invested assets’

the launch of two new SRI products, the UBS (Lux) Equity
Sicav — Emerging Markets Innovators and the UBS Strategy
Certificate Energy Efficiency. UBS’s SRI offering is diverse and
includes products managed according to “best-in-class”
practices and theme-based approaches. “Best-in-class” is an
active equity management approach that is based on stock
selection of companies that generate above-average envi-
ronmental, social and economic performance. The “best-in-
class” offering includes a global fund and a European fund.
The theme-based approach focuses investment on segment-
ed climate change, water and demographics strategies.

Additionally, UBS offers customized client portfolios in
the form of segregated mandates/institutional accounts
based on “negative” screening, which excludes certain con-
troversial stocks or sectors from the portfolio based on their
negative social or environmental impact as perceived by the
client. UBS's global platform and investment research enable
the firm to offer such tailor-made solutions. In the UK, the
asset management business seeks to influence the corporate
responsibility and corporate governance practices of the
companies it invests in. In addition to fund management ser-
vices, UBS provides stock-broking and account management
services to alternative energy and SRI fund managers.

Finally, UBS also offers SRI portfolio management solu-
tions to selected private client segments. This offering pools
internal and external SRI expertise and includes SRI-focused
portfolios in Switzerland and SRI-managed accounts in the
US. UBS's open architecture approach also allows clients to
invest in SRI bond, equity and microfinance products from
third-party providers.

In the past years UBS experienced increased client de-
mand for SRI and expanded its SRI product offering, result-
ing in a significant increase in UBS SRI invested assets. In
2008 these SRI invested assets decreased significantly year
on year, primarily due to severe corrections in the global eg-
uity markets (equities is the preferred asset class of UBS’s SRI
products), but also due to asset outflows.

Positive criteria: apply to the active selection of

% change companies, focusing on how a company’s strategies,
For the year ended from processes and products impact its financial success, the
CHF billion, except where indicated GRI” 31.12.08 31.12.07 31.12.06 31.12.07 environment and society. This includes best-in-class or

UBS 2,174 3,189 2,989 (32)

thematic investments.

Exclusion criteria: companies or sectors are excluded
based on environmental, social or ethical criteria, for

~ positive criteria 212 520 1.84 (59 example, companies involved in weapons, tobacco,
exclusion criteria FS11 14.05 33.33 16.17 (58) gambling, or companies with high negative environmental

Third-party 1 185 108 /A 7 impacts. Thls also includes falth-baged investing consistent

iy ST T T with principles and values of a particular religion.

Total SRI invested assets FS11 18.03 39.61 18.01 (54) . - . )

T T T T T T T Third-party: UBS's open product platform gives clients

Proportion of total invested assets (%)* 0.83% 1.24% 0.60% access to socially responsible investment products from

1 All figures are based on the level of knowledge as of January 2009. 2 Global reporting initiative (GRI) (see also third-party providers. This includes both positive and

www.globalreporting.org). FS stands for the performance indicators defined in the GRI Financial Services Sector Supplement. exclusion criteria, and microfinance investments.

3 Socially responsible investments (SRI). 4 Total SRI/UBS's invested assets.
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Strategy, performance and responsibility
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Research

UBS’s SRI research teams analyze emerging socio-economic
and environmental trends and assess their potential impact
on investment markets and companies’ share prices. Identi-
fying material SRI issues is challenging. Essentially, three
things help determine which environmental and social issues
are critical: society’s perception of what is important; the na-
ture of the competitive pressures facing firms in an industry;
and how costs and benefits are (or will be) distributed be-
tween stakeholders.

The UBS SRl research teams were established in each of the
firm’s divisions to serve their respective clients. In the Invest-
ment Bank, the equity research team writes recommendations
and reports for institutional investment clients on renewable
energy, the carbon markets and the impact of climate change
on companies in a wide range of sectors. SRI and sustainabil-
ity research is provided by a dedicated team. In the asset man-
agement business, an internal SRI research team manages
portfolios around themes such as climate change/energy ef-
ficiency, water and demographics. The SRI research team in
UBS's wealth management business conducts SRl research and
provides advice to private clients on SRI investment solutions.

Client interest in some aspects of SRI — for instance cli-
mate change, demographics and water — has grown, and so
has research coverage. The SRI teams regularly collaborate
with analysts in other teams to write about emerging SRI
themes, and relevant research content is regularly published
by a growing number of specialists within the mainstream
research effort. In 2008, for example, UBS published the re-
port “Mind over Matter”, which broadly examines the issue
of resources efficiency, and makes the case that higher prices
for basic necessities, urbanization, and more stringent cli-
mate change policies will eventually yield benefits to those
who invest in efficiency upgrades.

Financing and advisory services

UBS’s renewable energy investment banking business ar-
ranges financing and provides strategic and financial advi-
sory services for companies in the solar, wind, wave and oth-
er renewable energy sectors. Since 2006, UBS has led over
30 financing transactions in these sectors, raising over USD
7 billion for renewable energy companies worldwide. In
2008, to name just one example of such a transaction, UBS
acted as the joint global coordinator and joint bookrunner
for the EUR 1.8 billion initial public rights offering of the
wind generation company EDP Renovaveis, one of the larg-
est wind generation companies in the world and a subsidiary
company of Portuguese utility Energias de Portugal (EDP).

Carbon trading

In cap and trade emissions markets, such as the EU Emissions
Trading Scheme (EU ETS), companies have annual caps on
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the amount of emissions their facilities are allowed to pro-
duce. Companies who are able to reduce their emissions be-
low their cap have the ability to sell their unused quota to
other companies, thereby creating an emissions market.
Through the use of financial instruments, UBS is able to help
clients manage their exposure to the emissions markets. UBS
ETD (Exchange Traded Derivatives) is an active member of
and offers execution and full service clearing on the major
emission exchanges in Europe and North America for con-
tracts on EU ETS allowances (EUA), UN Certified Emissions
Reductions (CER), Regional Greenhouse Gas Initiative allow-
ances, CCX Carbon Financial Instruments (CFI) and Nitrogen
Oxide and Sulfur Dioxide.

Environmental risk management

UBS seeks to identify, manage and control environmental
risks in its business transactions. Examples of environmental
risk include the impairment of a client’s cash flow or assets
by environmental factors (such as inefficient processes or
property that is polluted or contaminated) or through liabil-
ity risk, such as when a bank takes environmentally unsound
collateral onto its own books. As environmental risks can
manifest themselves across the wide variety of risks inherent
in UBS's business activities, including credit risks, liability risks
and reputational risks, UBS has designed environmental pro-
cedures and tools for their identification, management and
control. These environmental procedures and tools are inte-
grated into existing processes, such as due diligence on
transactions or investments and ongoing risk management.

UBS continues to develop and test internal industry sector
guidelines to support the consistent identification and as-
sessment of environmental and social risks in all its banking
activities. The sector guidelines cover industry sectors that
have a high potential for environmental and social risk and
summarize industry standards for dealing with potential is-
sues in the various life cycles of the sector.

Not all products and services provided by UBS have the
same risk potential: UBS therefore takes a risk-based ap-
proach to environmental risk management and regularly an-
alyzes its portfolio of products and services to assess their
respective potential environmental risk potential. With its
current business profile and operating environment, UBS's
potential for material risk is greater within the context of its
lending and capital markets businesses, as well as its direct
real estate and infrastructure investments. As a result, Global
Wealth Management & Business Banking has introduced a
standardized environmental risk check to identify material
environmental risk in its lending to all relevant clients, includ-
ing its roughly 140,000 corporate clients in Switzerland. In
the Investment Bank, the environmental risk framework cov-
ers all banking activities including debt and equity under-



writing, financial advisory services and lending. For its part,
Global Asset Management has put environmental due dili-
gence processes in place for its real estate and infrastructure
funds. If significant potential environmental risks are identi-
fied in a transaction, the risks are assessed. Wherever possi-
ble, UBS seeks to engage with the client to discuss possible
mitigating measures. Where this is not possible or success-
ful, the firm may decline the transaction altogether.

Global Wealth Management & Business Banking

The business division assesses its environmental risks in a
three-stage process. Client advisors complete the first
screenings, looking at financial risks linked to environmen-
tal aspects such as compliance with environmental legis-
lation, workplace safety, contaminated sites and natural
hazards. In 2008, close to 100,000 lending transactions in
Switzerland were subject to such a screening. If the risks
cannot be fully ruled out during the first screening, a credit
officer initiates a second screening and decides whether
the risks identified are transparent enough for the credit
decision to be taken. Transactions entailing significant envi-
ronmental risk undergo a detailed environmental assess-
ment as a third step, a service provided by the business divi-
sion’s environmental risk competence center. In 2008, 32
such detailed assessments took place and 134 client advi-
sors and credit officers were trained.

Investment Bank

The Global Environmental Risk Guidelines apply to all trans-
actions, services and activities within the Investment Bank.
The guidelines are supported by an environmental risk frame-
work that is integrated into the business division’s due dili-
gence and approval processes. Investment Bank staff identify
potential environmental risks in the initial due diligence
phase and alert the Investment Bank’s environmental advi-
sory group (EAG) in case of significant potential risks. Assess-
ments by lawyers and/or external consultants are routinely
sought for certain sectors and products. The EAG works with
the relevant business and control functions (80 transactions
in 2008) to assess the risks, determine any mitigating mea-
sures and direct further due diligence, as required. In this
way the relevant senior business committee may fully con-
sider the potential environmental risk in the course of its re-
view of the transaction and/or client. The implementation of
the environmental risk framework is supported by training
and awareness-raising activities. In 2008, sector-specific
training was provided to 443 bankers and support functions
and high-level training to a further 107 employees.

Global Asset Management
The business division introduced a formal environmental risk
matrix in 2004 in order to assess the reputational and envi-

ronmental risks that investments made by UBS on behalf of
its clients might imply. The matrix is reviewed annually for
applicability and comprehensiveness and forms part of the
environmental management system employed within the
business division. In 2008, all properties acquired or devel-
oped by Global Real Estate for its direct investment vehicles
were subject to a thorough environmental due diligence pro-
cess, in accordance with local regulations and internal best
practice guidance. Similar processes are in operation in Infra-
structure Asset Management.

Environmental and CO, footprints

UBS directly impacts the environment in a number of ways:
its businesses consume electricity; employees travel for busi-
ness purposes and use paper and generate waste in the
course of their work; and offices require heating and cooling
systems. Improving the use of these resources can reduce
costs and enhance environmental performance, and UBS
therefore has a series of measures to efficiently manage its
environmental impact.

CO; strategy and emission reduction

The GEB decided in February 2006 to set a Group-wide CO,

emission reduction target of 40% below 2004 levels by

2012. UBS seeks to achieve this target by:
— adopting in-house energy efficiency measures that reduce
energy consumption in buildings it operates;

— increasing the proportion of renewable energy used to
avoid emissions at source;

— offsetting and neutralizing emissions that cannot be re-
duced by other means.

UBS’s CO, footprint
In tons CO, Share of renewable energy (in %)
2004 2005 2006 2007

Total: 360,502 372,184 293,169 281,705
400,000 - e e 100
300,000 - L ... e B &
200,000 - 50
100,000 - 25

0

M Direct CO, emissions (oil, gas, fuels) M Indirect CO, emissions (electricity)
Other indirect CO, emissions (travel incl. offsetting, paper, waste)

Share of renewable energy (in %)
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These measures allowed UBS to further increase the share
of renewable energy it purchases, and to reduce its 2008
CO; emissions by 27% compared with 2004, another step
toward achieving the 40% reduction target by 2012.

Energy consumption and energy efficiency

Energy consumption represents an important environmental
impact area for UBS and is the biggest contributor to its
overall greenhouse gas emissions. UBS has a long track re-
cord of managing its energy consumption, with the firm es-
tablishing its first energy management function in the 1970s.
Today, energy efficiency measures are an important compo-
nent of UBS's program for achievement of the Group-wide
CO, emission reduction target. Measures include invest-
ments in energy-efficient technology and encouraging good
housekeeping measures. For example, a major IT server con-
solidation project has been under way since 2007 which has
reduced the total number of distributed servers at UBS by
2,200. The project focused on consolidating applications sit-
ting on multiple old servers to fewer, newer machines and
the decommissioning of old applications. The resulting en-
ergy savings of 17 GWh contributed significantly to the total
of 25 GWh of savings from IT activities since 2007 (repre-
senting around 3% of UBS’s global power consumption).

Renewable energy

In addition to its energy efficiency programs, UBS seeks to
improve the energy mix it purchases by including a higher
proportion of renewable energy. The percentage of renew-
able energy and district heating purchases rose from 24% in
2004 to 48% in 2008.

Since 2007, roughly 210 GWh or 90% of the electricity
supply for UBS’s buildings in Switzerland has come from re-
newable sources, such as water and solar power stations.
Similarly, in the UK, UBS purchases electricity backed by
100% renewable sources for all its major buildings, repre-
senting 85% of the total volume. In addition, UBS purchases
renewable energy credits (RECs) in the US electricity mar-
kets, which accounted for 16% of its electricity consumption
in the US in 2008.

Environmental indicators per full-time employee

Business travel and offsetting

Business travel is a significant contributor to UBS's green-
house gas emissions. While the firm encourages its employ-
ees to use environmentally friendly alternatives to air and
road travel, for example video conferences, travel is essential
for a global financial services firm that strongly believes in
personalized client relationships. Therefore, since 2006, UBS
has offset emissions from business-related air travel, repre-
senting roughly 100,000 tons of CO, per year, or about a
quarter of its total annual CO, emissions. Offsetting emis-
sions means that UBS indirectly neutralizes its business air
travel emissions by investing in third-party projects that re-
duce an equivalent amount of greenhouse gas emissions.
UBS selected offsetting projects in Brazil, Russia, India, Chi-
na, Turkey and Germany, on the basis of their adherence to
international quality standards such as the Voluntary Carbon
Standard and the Gold Standard, and of their additional en-
vironmental and social benefits.

Paper and waste

UBS continues to work towards achieving its firm-wide tar-
gets for paper use and waste reduction. This includes the
goal of reducing paper consumption per employee by 5%
for 2009 when compared with 2006 levels. UBS also aims
to have 20% of the paper it uses come from recycled sourc-
es. UBS has made steady progress towards achieving these
paper targets, for example by switching across Europe to a
100% recycled paper for all internal printing, and through
continuing improvements in electronic distribution of client
statements. At the same time, the firm seeks to improve its
environmental footprint by reducing waste per employee
(for example, plastic bottles or packaging) by 10% and by
sending 70% of waste to recycling sites. These latter tar-
gets are proving to be challenging in certain regions as they
heavily rely on behavioral changes rather than technical
measures or processes. UBS will continue to educate its em-
ployees on environmental matters, helping them make the
right choices and promoting sustainable behavior both at
work and at home.

- Refer to www.ubs.com/environment for more information
on UBS’s environmental management system

Unit 2008 Trend 2007 2006
Total direct and intermediate energy kWh/FTE 11,792 - 11,942 12,736
Total business travel Pkm/FTE 10281 v 12,685 12,544
Tbtal pape‘r.c.o.r']s'umption .................. kg/FTE Hm‘l'67 ..... v I 1'90 ..... 188
oo kg/FTE e S e 03
Total water consumption R m?/FTE 7 . 267 260
co,footprint HFTE 307 v 343 393

Legend: FTE =full-time employee; kWh = kilo watt hour; Pkm = person kilometer; kg = kilogram; m*= cubic meter; t=ton
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Environmental indicators’

20082 20072 20062

Absolute Data Absolute Absolute

GRE  normalized* quality® Trend® normalized* normalized*

Total direct and intermediate energy consumption’ 1,016 GWh b - 981 GWh 951 GWh

~ Total direct energy consumption® EN3 127 GWh * - 130 GWh 154 GWh
. gas ........................................... e R TRTR ST B
he‘a‘t‘lhg'bil ............................................ o STIARTRITRITRITR TR D
s (petrol dIeS‘e‘|‘g;':l.S R, s STIARTRITRITRTR S pen
renewable energy (solar power,etc) 0.03% e ~ 003%

Total intermediate energy purchased® EN4 890 GWh *kx - 851 GWh

clectricity from gas-fired power statons 1n% oL 123%
clectricity from oil-fired power stations 37% e L 4%

electricity from coal-fired power stations 18.4%
clectricity from nuclear power stations MI% o~ 136%
clectricity from hydroelectric power stations 258% v - 255%
clectricity from other renewable resources 2% o 20%
deria h'e'a't'ing ........................................... P
Share of renewable energy and district heating 48%
Total business travel EN29 886 m Pkm
ra|I lio R s
road SR e
B S s60%
Number of flights (segments) 398,369
Total paper consumption EN1 14,403 t
postconsumerrecyded N 16.2%
e o Eeen 6en
e o B AT PPTAREE
new fibers chlorine bleached 0.4%
Total waste EN22 25,644 t
valuable materials separated and recycled 54.6%
dineed T s
Cadiilag %
Total water consumption EN8 2.42 mm?
Total CO, footprint' 264,197 t
total direct CO, emissions (GHG scope 1) | NG 26,490t
total indirect CO, emissions (GHG scope 27 | ENI6 204,344t
total other indirect CO, emissions (GHG scope 3)® | N7 129364t
total COe offsets (business air travel)* 9,000t 113,000 t 101,000 t

Legend: GWh=giga watt hour; Pkm = person kilometer; t=ton; m®=cubic meter; m=million

1 All figures are based on the level of knowledge as of January 2009. 2 Reporting period: 2008 (1 July 2007-30 June 2008), 2007 (1 July 2006—30 June 2007), 2006 (1 July 2005-30 June 2006).
3 Global reporting initiative (see also www.globalreporting.org). “EN" stands for the environmental performance indicators as defined in the GRI. 4 Non-significant discrepancies from 100% are pos-
sible due to roundings. 5 Specifies the estimated reliability of the aggregated data and corresponds approximately to the following uncertainty (confidence level 95%): up to 5%—***, up to 15%—**,
up to 30%—*. “Uncertainty" is the likely difference between a reported value and a real value. 6 Trend: ata ***/**/* data quality, the respective trend is stable (=) if the variance equals 5/10/15%,
low decreasing/increasing (%, ) if it equals 10/20/30% and decreasing/increasing if the variance is bigger than 10/20/30% (¥,1). 7 Refers to energy consumed within the operational boundaries
of UBS. 8 Refers to primary energy purchased which is consumed within the operational boundaries of UBS (oil, gas, fuels). 9 Refers to energy purchased that is produced by converting primary en-
ergy and consumed within the operational boundaries of UBS (electricity and district heating). 10 Rail and road travel: Switzerland only. 11 Paper produced from new fibers. “FSC" stands for Forest
Stewardship Council, “ECF" for elementary chlorine free and "TCF" for totally chlorine free. 12 CO, footprint equals total CO, emissions (GHG scope 1, 2 and 3) minus CO,e offsets.
13 Refers to IS0 14064 and the “GHG (greenhouse gas) protocol initiative” (www.ghgprotocol.org), the international standards for CO, reporting: Scope 1 accounts for direct CO, emissions by UBS;
Scope 2 accounts for indirect CO, emissions associated with the generation of imported/purchased electricity, heat or steam; Scope 3 accounts for indirect CO, emissions associated with business
travel, paper consumption and waste disposal. 14 Offsets from third-party GHG reduction projects measured in CO, equivalents (CO,e). These offsets neutralize CO, emissions from business air travel.
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ASSURANCE STATEMENT

SGS STATEMENT ON ASSURANCE OF UBS GRI Sustainability Disclosure 2008

SCOPE

SGS was commissioned by UBS to conduct an independent assurance of the GRI based Sustainability Disclosure for
2008. The scope of our engagement was limited to the GRI disclosure requirements and indicators as contained in the GRI
index published at www.ubs.com/gri. The scope of the assurance, based on the SGS Sustainability Report Assurance
methodology, included all text and 2008 data in accompanying tables, contained in the printed Annual Report 2008 and
referenced information on the webpage of UBS as quoted in the GRI index. Earlier data were not included in this
assurance process.

CONTENT

The information in the report and on the webpage and its presentation are the responsibility of the directors or governing
body and the management of the organization. SGS has not been involved in the preparation of any of the material
included in the GRI index and acted as an independent assuror of the data and text using the Global Reporting Initiative
Sustainability Reporting Guidelines 2006 as a standard. The content of this Assuror’s Statement and the opinion(s) it gives
is the sole responsibility of SGS.

ASSUROR INDEPENDENCE AND COMPETENCIES

The SGS Group of companies is the world leader in inspection, testing and verification, operating in more than 140
countries and providing services including management systems and service certification; quality, environmental, social
and ethical auditing and training; environmental, social and sustainability report assurance. SGS affirm our independence
from UBS, being free from bias and conflicts of interest with the organization, its subsidiaries and stakeholders. The
assurance team was assembled based on their knowledge, experience and qualifications for this assignment.

METHODOLOGY

The SGS Group has developed a set of protocols for the Assurance of Sustainability Reports based on current best
practice guidance provided in the Global Reporting Initiative Sustainability Reporting Guidelines (2006) and the AA1000
Assurance Standard (2008). In a separate engagement, SGS has certified the environmental management system in
accordance with ISO 14001:2004 and verified the COZ2 emissions in accordance with ISO 14064. The assurance
comprised a combination of pre-assurance research, interviews with relevant employees; documentation and record
review and validation with external bodies and/or stakeholders where relevant. Financial data drawn directly from
independently audited financial accounts has not been checked back to its source as part of this assurance process.

OPINION

On the basis of the methodology described, we are satisfied that nothing has come to our attention that causes us not to
believe that the information and data contained within the Disclosure referenced in the GRI index 2008 is accurate, reliable
and provides a fair and balanced representation of UBS’s sustainability activities in 2008. We are satisfied that the
Sustainability Disclosure as referenced in the GRI index meets the requirements of level A+ of the GRI (2006), as
declared. At the same time it fulfills the requirements for Communication on Progress (COP) under the UN Global
Compact. Recommendations regarding the further development of the sustainability disclosure and management system
at UBS were communicated to the firm in an internal report.

SIGNED FOR AND ON BEHALF OF SGS

&)~ N o

Dr. Christine Jasch Elvira Bieri
Lead auditor, SGS Lead auditor, SGS

Zirich, 26.2.2009 WWW.SGS.COM
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UBS business divisions and Corporate Center

— As announced on 10 February 2009, Global Wealth Management & Business
Banking has been divided into two business divisions: Wealth Management &
Swiss Bank and Wealth Management Americas.

The Investment Bank underwent a detailed strategic review in 2008.
The result was a repositioning of the business division, personnel and cost
reductions and a refocusing of the business division’s activities and businesses.

Global Wealth Management & Business Banking

Wealth Management International & Switzerland
recorded a pre-tax profit of CHF 3,601 million in 2008, a
decrease from the record profit of CHF 6,310 million in
2007. This is partially due to a provision of CHF 917 million
in connection with the US cross-border case. During this
period:

Net new money outflows were CHF 101.0 billion compared
with inflows of CHF 125.1 billion. Invested assets declined
to CHF 870 billion from CHF 1,294 billion. The gross
margin on invested assets fell six basis points to 97 basis
points. The cost/income ratio increased to 63.1% from
51.1%.

Wealth Management US recorded a pre-tax loss of

CHF 810 million in 2008, compared with a pre-tax profit of
CHF 674 million in 2007. 2008 included auction rate
securities-related charges of CHF 1,636 million. During this
period:

UBS reporting structure in 2008

Net new money outflows were CHF 10.6 billion compared
with inflows of CHF 26.6 billion. /nvested assets declined to
CHF 600 billion from CHF 840 billion. The gross margin on
invested assets increased five basis points to 82 basis
points. The cost/income ratio increased to 113.4% from
89.9%. Recurring income declined 8% to CHF 3,835 million.
Revenues per advisor decreased to CHF 721,000 from

CHF 828,000.

Business Banking Switzerland recorded a pre-tax profit
of CHF 2,449 million, up CHF 182 million from 2007.
During this period:

Net new money outflows were CHF 11.4 billion compared
with inflows of CHF 4.6 billion. Invested assets declined

to CHF 129 billion compared with CHF 164 billion. The
cost/income ratio decreased to 51.2% from 57.7%. The
loan portfolio declined 2% to CHF 143 billion. The ratio of
the impaired gross lending portfolio to the total gross
lending portfolio improved to 1.0% from 1.2%.

Global Wealth Management
& Business Banking

Global Asset Management

Investment Bank Corporate Center

Wealth Management
International & Switzerland

Wealth Management US

Business Banking Switzerland




Performance from continuing operations before tax

For the year ended % change from

CHF million 31.12.07 31.12.06 31.12.07

Wealth Management International & Switzerland 6,310 5,197 (43)
Wealthl\/lanagementUS ................................................................................................ R ORI
G Bankmg e 2267 ............. 2281 ................. 5
Global Wealth Management & Business Banking 9,251 8,020 (43)
Global Asset Management 1,454 1,320 8)
Investment Bank (16,669) 5,568 (106)
Corporate Center 2,222 (789) (101)

Global Asset Management

Pre-tax profit decreased 8% to CHF 1,333 million in 2008
from CHF 1,454 million in 2007. During this period:

Net new money outflows were CHF 103.0 billion compared
with CHF 15.7 billion. Institutional invested assets declined
to CHF 335 billion compared with CHF 522 billion.
Wholesale intermediary invested assets fell to CHF 240
billion compared with CHF 369 billion. The gross margin on
institutional invested assets declined six basis points to 38
basis points. The gross margin on wholesale intermediary
invested assets fell six basis points to 41 basis points. The
cost/income ratio was 54.1% compared with 64.5%.

Investment Bank

Pre-tax loss of CHF 34,300 million in 2008, compared with
a pre-tax loss of CHF 16,669 million in 2007. During this
period:

The cost/income ratio and compensation ratio remained
not meaningful due to negative overall results in both
years. Average regulatory Value at Risk (VaR) (10-day, 99%
confidence, five years of historical data) was CHF 374
million compared with CHF 514 million. The ratio of the
impaired gross lending portfolio to the total gross lending
portfolio was 3.6%, up from 0.4%.

Corporate Center

The Corporate Center produced a slightly negative result
of CHF 31 million in 2008 from continuing operations,
compared with a gain of CHF 2,222 million in 2007.
During this period, total operating income decreased to
CHF 998 million from CHF 3,562 million and total
operating expenses declined to CHF 1,029 million from
CHF 1,340 million.



UBS business divisions and Corporate Center
Global Wealth Management & Business Banking

Global Wealth Management & Business Banking

Global Wealth Management & Business Banking is a leading global provider of financial services for wealthy
clients and the leading bank for individual and corporate clients in Switzerland.

Business division reporting

As of or for the year ended % change from
CHF million, except where indicated 31.12.08 31.12.07 31.12.06 31.12.07
Income 21,690 24,841 21,775 (13)
CredltIoss(expense)/recovery ................................................................ (421) ................ B g
Total operating income 21,269 24,869 21,884 (14)
Cash components 9,191 10,564 9,074 (13)
Sharebasedcomponents*187 ................ s s ( 58)
Total personnel expenses 9,378 11,008 9,451 (15)
General and administrative expenses 537 3178 30758 69
Services (to)/from other business units 96 1,106 1000 (16)
Deprematlonofpropertyandeqmpment261 ................ g by .
Aot oflntanglbleassets ................................................................. o go G o
Total operating expenses 16,030 15,618 13,864 3
Business division performance before tax 5,240 9,251 8,020 (43)
Key performance indicators
Cost/income ratio (%)? 73.9 62.9 63.7
Attributed equity and risk-weighted assets
Average attributed equity (CHF billion)? 17.3
et eqwty ( Ran) (%)4 ......................................................... o
as r|skwe|ghted N s(CHFb|II|on ')‘5 ........................................................... g0, ey ey
et o BISnskvvelghted assets(%)6 .......................................................... R
Coudul andlntanglbleassets(CHF I‘oil‘li'o'n')} ...................................................... R co
Additional information
Invested assets (CHF billion) 1,599 2,298 2,123 (30)
et new money(CHF b||||on)8 ................................................................ ( 1230) ............. ey s
Cllentassets(CHFthon)2393 .............. 3554 .............. 3337 ................. ( 33)
Personnel (full-time equivalents) 49541 51243 4820 (3)

1 Includes social security contributions and expenses related to alternative investment awards. 2 Operating expenses/income. 3 Refer to the “Capital management” section of this report for more
information about the equity attribution framework, which was implemented in 2008. 4 Business division performance before tax/average attributed equity. 5 BIS risk-weighted assets (RWA) are
according to Basel Il for 2008, and according to the Basel | framework for 2007 and 2006. 6 Business division performance before tax/average BIS RWA. 7 2007 and 2006 represent goodwill and
intangible assets in excess of 4% of BIS tier 1 capital. 8 Excludes interest and dividend income.
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Global Wealth Management & Business Banking business portfolio

Incremental profitability

Established Corporate & [ Wealth
international ff retail banking | Management

markets in Switzerland j§ Switzerland
top-line growth

Continue earnings growth to achieve
top peer profitability

Continued investments to drive

International growth markets

Optimize break-even targets

o
E Wealth Management Americas
5
o
Achieve break-even and subsequently
match peer profitability
European domestic markets
Business

A global branch network delivers comprehensive financial
services to wealthy private individuals around the world and
to private and corporate clients in Switzerland. All clients are
provided with the advice, financial products and tools that fit
their individual needs.

Strategy

The cornerstones of this business division’s strategy are:

— tostrengthen its global leadership in wealth management
by actively investing in fast-growing markets and devel-
oping a strong focus on high and ultra-high net worth
clients;

— to position UBS as the universal bank of choice in Switzer-
land by strengthening its position across all client seg-
ments, as well as developing clients across segments and
therefore each client relationship to its full potential; and

— to maximize risk-adjusted profits by a balanced focus on
top-line growth, risk and efficiency.

UBS places great emphasis on differentiating strategies
for individual markets according to their profitability and
growth potential. In the international markets where UBS is
well established with a high market share and in Switzer-
land, the focus is on maximizing productivity and profitabil-
ity as the growth prospects are less high. For domestic busi-
nesses within the five biggest European economies, UBS
aims to increase profitability. For the key domestic US pres-
ence, UBS concentrates on continuing earnings growth and
achieving profitability comparable with the best of its peer
group. In those international markets which have been
expanding strongly (for example, Asia, Eastern Europe, Latin

Other domestic markets, including start-ups

America and the Middle East), UBS will continue to invest
actively in order to tap their long-term growth potential. In
addition, within the next seven to 10 years UBS plans to
establish a significant domestic presence in select markets
where its business is not yet mature.

Organizational structure

Formed on 1 July 2005, this business division encompassed
UBS’s global wealth management businesses and the Swiss
corporate and retail banking unit. Throughout 2008, until
the recent reorganization, it comprised the following busi-
ness units: Wealth Management International & Switzerland,
serving wealthy and affluent clients around the world, except
domestic clients in the US; Wealth Management US, serving
wealthy and affluent domestic US clients; and Business Bank-
ing Switzerland, serving retail and corporate clients in Swit-
zerland. Each of these business units is provided with infra-
structure, products and services by the business division’s
support functions, which also provide services to other UBS
business divisions under a transfer pricing mechanism.

On 10 February 2009, UBS announced a reorganization of
its global wealth management and Swiss business banking
businesses. Global Wealth Management & Business Banking
has been divided into two new business divisions: Wealth
Management & Swiss Bank, which comprises all wealth man-
agement business booked outside the Americas plus the
Swiss private and corporate client business; and Wealth Man-
agement Americas, including Wealth Management US, the
domestic Canadian and Brazilian businesses, as well as the
international business booked in the United States.

This new management structure will be the basis for the
business division’s segment reporting starting with UBS’s
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UBS business divisions and Corporate Center
Global Wealth Management & Business Banking

Current reporting structure (on 31 December 2008)

Global Wealth Management & Business Banking

Business Banking Switzerland Wealth Management Wealth Management
International & Switzerland
W International clients

v

New reporting structure (from first quarter 2009 onwards)

Wealth Management Americas

Wealth Management & Swiss Bank

International clients?
M Full profit and loss disclosure

I Supplementary disclosure of revenue lines and selected key performance indicators

1 Includes “Swiss Bank" and “Corporate and Institutional Banking”. 2 Includes “Wealth Management International” and “Wealth Management Global".

financial report for first quarter 2009. UBS will provide sepa- > Prior to publication of first quarter 2009 results, UBS
rate segment reporting for Wealth Management & Swiss will publish restated business division results on

Bank and Wealth Management Americas. UBS has chosen to www.ubs.com/investors showing quarterly and annual
subdivide Wealth Management & Swiss Bank into Swiss and results for 2007 and 2008 under the new organizational
international business areas for reporting purposes (income structure announced on 10 February 2009.

data and key performance indicators):

— "Swiss clients” will cover services provided to Swiss retail,
wealth management and small businesses, as well as
corporate and institutional clients.

“International clients” will encompass the international
wealth management business conducted out of Switzer-
land and all wealth management businesses of UBS's
other booking centers in Asia and Europe.



Wealth Management International & Switzerland

Business description

Business

Wealth management solutions are delivered via this business
unit’s global branch network and through financial interme-
diaries. In addition to the specific wealth management prod-
ucts and services outlined below, clients benefit from UBS’s
entire range of resources, from asset management to estate
planning and corporate finance advice. An open product
platform gives clients access to a wide array of pre-screened,
top-quality products from third-party providers that comple-
ment UBS's own product lines. On 31 December 2008, in-
vested assets were CHF 870 billion.

Organizational structure

Throughout 2008, until the recent reorganization, this busi-
ness unit comprised the following areas: Asia Pacific; Latin
America, the Mediterranean, the Middle East and Africa;
North, East and Central Europe; and Switzerland. The exten-
sive wealth management branch network consisted of 5,755
client advisors, around 110 offices in Switzerland and more
than 100 offices worldwide.

Competitors

Major competitors of this business unit include globally
active wealth managers, such as the wealth management
operations of Credit Suisse, HSBC and Citigroup. The busi-
ness unit also competes with private banks that operate
mainly within their respective domestic markets, such as

Invested assets by asset class

In %, except where indicated

Coutts in the UK, Deutsche Bank AG and Sal. Oppenheim in
Germany, Unicredit in Italy, and Swiss banks focused on in-
ternational clients (such as Julius Baer and Pictet).

Clients and markets

The following client segments are offered sophisticated
products and services specifically designed to address their
needs: international core affluent clients with investable as-
sets of CHF 250,000 to CHF 2 million; high net worth clients
with investable assets of up to CHF 5 million; private wealth
management clients with investable assets of CHF 5 million
to CHF 50 million; and ultra-high net worth clients with in-
vestable assets of more than CHF 50 million. The business
unit also provides financial intermediaries, both inside and
outside Switzerland, with UBS’s wealth management solu-
tions, products and services.

Products and services

The business unit offers expert financial advice to support
clients throughout the different stages of their lives. Wealth
planning advice is also given on topics such as the funding of
education, gift giving, inheritance and succession. Corporate
finance advice is offered to support clients in the process of
disposing of corporate assets. Clients can also trade a full
range of financial instruments, from single securities, such as
equities and bonds, to structured products and alternative
investments. The business unit also fulfills the basic banking
needs of private clients with a wide variety of products, rang-

Invested assets by currency

In %, except where indicated

On 31.12.06 31.12.07 31.12.08
Total: CHF 1,138 billion CHF 1,294 billion CHF 870 billion
T00 - coer e 5 IR 71 DR 6
.................. . R ” RECKREEEE . [RRRRERRRRRRRLE
VAUEEEEERERINENNRINNNE IO R DI
...................................... 15
5O e . - R 14 |-
25 e AN -

B Accounts, money markets, fiduciary investments B Bonds M UBS mutual funds M Equities

Other (including structured products and alternative investments) External mutual funds

On 31.12.06 31.12.07 31.12.08
Total: CHF 1,138 billion CHF 1,294 billion CHF 870 billion
100 <o e SRR ] -
.................. I I
75 ceeeeee. . R BENSEN. %
5O e 33 DA 33 R
25 o R B
36
0

B USD M EUR W CHF GBP Others
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UBS business divisions and Corporate Center
Global Wealth Management & Business Banking

Loan penetration
CHF billion, except where indicated

Invested assets by client domicile

In %, except where indicated

On 31.12.06 31.12.07 31.12.08
100 9.0%
75

50 4.5%
25

0 0.0%

M loans  — Loan penetration

ing from cash accounts and savings accounts to credit cards,
mortgages and securities-backed lending.

By aggregating private investment flows into institution-
al-size flows, the business unit is in a position to offer its
private clients access to investments that would otherwise
only be available to institutional clients. Expertise is sourced
either from within UBS or from the external market.

Both discretionary and non-discretionary mandates are
offered. Clients who opt for a discretionary mandate dele-
gate the management of their assets, including investment
decisions, to a team of professional portfolio managers who
work according to an agreed investment strategy. Clients
who prefer to be actively involved in the management of
their assets can choose a non-discretionary mandate, where
investment professionals provide analysis and monitoring of
portfolios, together with tailor-made proposals to support
investment decisions.
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On 31.12.08

Total: CHF 682 billion

Invested assets by client wealth
In %, except where indicated

On 31.12.08

Total: CHF 870 billion

W < CHF 1 million




Settlement regarding the US cross-border case

As announced on 18 February 2009,

UBS settled the US cross-border

case with the US Department of

Justice (DOJ) and the US Securities and

Exchange Commission (SEC) by enter-

ing into a Deferred Prosecution

Agreement (DPA) with the DOJ and a

Consent Order with the SEC. As part

of these settlement agreements:

— UBS will pay a total of USD 780 mil-
lion (CHF 917 million) to the United
States, USD 380 million represent-
ing disgorgement of profits from
maintaining the US cross-border
business and USD 400 million
representing US federal backup
withholding tax required to be
withheld by UBS, together with
interest and penalties, and restitu-
tion for unpaid taxes associated
with certain account relationships
involving fraudulent sham and
nominee offshore structures and
otherwise as covered by the DPA.

— UBS will complete the exit of the
US cross-border business out of
non-SEC registered entities, as
announced in July 2008, which
these settlements now allow UBS to
do in a lawful, orderly and expedi-
tious manner.

— UBS will implement and maintain
an effective program of internal
controls with respect to compliance
with its obligations under its
Qualified Intermediary Agreement
(QIA) with the Internal Revenue
Service (IRS) as well as a revised

legal and compliance governance
structure in order to strengthen
independent legal and compliance
controls.

— Pursuant to an order issued by the
Swiss Financial Market Supervisory
Authority (FINMA), information has
been transferred to the DOJ
regarding accounts of certain US
clients as set forth in the DPA, who,
based on evidence available to UBS,
appear to have committed tax
fraud or the like within the
meaning of the Swiss-US Double
Taxation Treaty.

Under the DPA, the DOJ has agreed

that any prosecution of UBS be

deferred for a period of at least 18

months, which is subject to extension

under certain circumstances, such as

UBS needing more time to complete

the implementation of the exit of its

US cross-border business. If UBS

satisfies all of its obligations under the

DPA, the DOJ will refrain from

pursuing charges against UBS relating

to the investigation of its US cross-
border business.

Additionally, as published by FINMA

on 18 February 2009, FINMA has

concluded that UBS violated the
requirements for proper business
conduct, and it barred UBS from
providing services to US resident
private clients out of non-SEC
registered entities. Further, FINMA
ordered UBS to enhance its control
framework around its cross-border

businesses and announced that the
effectiveness of such a framework will
be audited. The order by FINMA in
support of the resolution achieved
with the DOJ was instrumental in
averting the imminent risk of further
negative implications and uncertainties
for the bank.

The cost for the settlement has been
fully charged to the year 2008, as
reflected in this report.

The settlement agreements do not
resolve issues concerning the pending
“John Doe” summons which the IRS
served on UBS in July 2008. The
summons seeks information regarding
a substantial number of undisclosed
accounts maintained by US persons at
UBS in Switzerland, whose informa-
tion is protected from disclosure by
Swiss financial privacy laws. As
announced on 19 February 2009, the
IRS has commenced a civil action,
seeking enforcement of the summons,
which UBS intends to challenge.

UBS believes it has substantial
defenses to the enforcement of the
summons and intends to vigorously
contest its enforcement in the civil
proceeding, as is permitted under the
terms of the DPA. Objections to the
enforcement of the summons are
based upon US law, the terms of UBS's
QIA with the IRS, Swiss financial
privacy and other laws, and the
principles of international comity that
require US courts to take into account
foreign laws.
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UBS business divisions and Corporate Center
Global Wealth Management & Business Banking

Business performance

Business unit reporting

As of or for the year ended % change from
CHF million, except where indicated 31.12.08 31.12.07 31.12.06 31.12.07
Income 10,819 12,893 10,827 (16)
Credltloss(expense)/recovery ................................................................... (390) .................. ( 1) e
Total operating income 10,429 12,892 10,828 (19)
Cash components 3,037 3,704 2,999 (18)
Sharebasedcomponents* ........................................................................ e T e (56)
Total personnel expenses 3,112 3,873 3,173 (20)
Generalandadmlnlstratlveexpenses2001 ............... 1064 ................. e e
R mpact S e by i gy e T
SerV|ces(to)/fromotherbusmessunlts1581 ........................................................... S
Depreaatlonof p ropertyandeqmpment ............................................................ gy e S
Aotation oflntanglble e g oo
Total operating expenses 6,828 4
Business unit performance before tax 3,601 (43)
R mpact o US e oo e (917) .............................................................
* business unit performance before tax excluding US cross-border case 4518 6310 5197 (28
Key performance indicators
Invested assets (CHF billion) 870 1,294 1,138 (33)

Client advisors (full-time equivalents) 5,755 5,774 4,742 0
Client advisor productivity

RevenuesperadV|sor(CHFthousand)51824 ............... 2424 ............... 2441(25)
Net new money per advisor (CHF thousand)® (17.029) 3516 208
Invested assets per advisor (CHF thousand)?” 187,159 234504 236879  (0)

International clients

Income 8,185 9,739 7,907 (16)

Gross margin on invested assets (bps)? 94 101 101 (7)

Swiss clients

Income

Gross margin on invested assets (bps)?

1 Includes social security contributions and expenses related to alternative investment awards. 2 Excludes interest and dividend income. 3 Income/average invested assets. 4 Operating expenses/income.
5 Income/average number of client advisors. 6 Net new money/average number of client advisors. 7 Average invested assets/average number of client advisors.
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Business unit reporting (continued)

As of or for the year ended % change from

CHF million, except where indicated 31.12.08 31.12.07 31.12.06 31.12.07
Attributed equity and risk-weighted assets

Average attributed equity (CHF billion)' 6.1

et equlty( Ran) (%)2 ............................................. cop
o r'isk‘—\‘/v‘e'ig.ﬁté et ‘s‘(‘C'I;IF.Bi'II'ibn)é .............................................. Jey Gy G
et o |Sr|skwe|ghted et (%)5 ............................................. s s e
Goodwill and intangible assets (CHF billion)s 19 8 o
Additional information

Recurring income® 8,194 9,617 8,143 (15)
Cent és‘s‘e't's'('C'I'-I'F'biIIib‘r{) ...................................................... : 048 ,,,,,,,,,,, 1651 ,,,,,,,,,,, 1436 ............. (37)
Personnel (ful-time equivalents) 15271 15811 13564 ()

1 Refer to the "“Capital management” section of this report for more information on the equity attribution framework, which was implemented in 2008. 2 Business unit performance before tax/average at-
tributed equity. 3 BIS risk-weighted assets (RWA) are according to Basel Il for 2008, and according to the Basel | framework for 2007 and 2006. 4 Business unit performance before tax/average BIS

RWA. 52007 and 2006 represent goodwill and intangible assets in excess of 4% of BIS tier 1 capital.

sory fees.

2008

Key performance indicators

In 2008, net new money outflows amounted to CHF 101.0
billion, compared with inflows of CHF 125.1 billion in 2007.
This occurred in the context of continuing credit market tur-
bulence and its impact on the firm’s operating performance
and reputation. Outflows of net new money were most pro-
nounced in September and the first half of October.

Invested assets, at CHF 870 billion on 31 December 2008,
were down 33% from CHF 1,294 billion a year earlier, main-
ly reflecting sharply lower equity markets and the strong
decline of major currencies against the Swiss franc, as well as
net new money outflows.

The gross margin on invested assets was 97 basis points in
2008, down six basis points from a year earlier, as clients
increased their allocation of lower-margin cash products. A
further contributing factor was substantially lower levels of cli-
ent transaction activity. Overall, recurring income made up 74
basis points of the margin in 2008, down from 77 basis points
in 2007. Non-recurring income comprised 23 basis points of
the margin in 2008, down 3 basis points from 2007.

The cost/income ratio increased to 63.1% in 2008 from
51.1% a year earlier. This increase is primarily due to general
and administrative expenses from the recognition of a provi-
sion of CHF 917 million (USD 780 million) in connection with
the US cross-border case (refer to the “Settlement regarding
the US cross-border case” sidebar in this section for more in-
formation). Excluding the impact of these costs, the cost/in-
come ratio would have increased to 54.6% in 2008 from the
previous year.

6 Interest, asset-based revenues for portfolio management and account-based, distribution and advi-

Results

In 2008, pre-tax profit fell 43% to CHF 3,601 million, com-
pared with the record CHF 6,310 million in 2007. This is par-
tially due to a provision of CHF 917 million in connection with
the US cross-border case. Excluding the impact of these costs,
the pre-tax result would have fallen 28%, mainly reflecting
the lower asset base and client transaction activity.

Operating income

Total operating income in 2008 was CHF 10,429 million,
down 19% from CHF 12,892 million a year earlier. Recurring
income decreased 15% on lower asset-based fees. Non-
recurring income fell by 20% due to lower brokerage fees,
reflecting decreased client transaction activity levels.

Operating expenses

At CHF 6,828 million, operating expenses in 2008 were up
4% from CHF 6,582 million a year earlier. This is primarily due
to a provision of CHF 917 million in connection with the US
cross-border case. Excluding the impact of these costs, the op-
erating expenses would have decreased 10%, mainly due to
lower performance-related compensation. This resulted in
lower personnel expenses, which fell 20% to CHF 3,112 mil-
lion in 2008 compared with CHF 3,873 million a year earlier.
General and administrative expenses, at CHF 2,001 million,
were up by 88% from CHF 1,064 million a year earlier due to
the abovementioned provisions related to the US cross-border
case. Expenses for services from other business units, at CHF
1,581 million in 2008, were up 3% from CHF 1,531 million
the previous year, mainly reflecting increased consumption of
services. Depreciation was CHF 97 million in 2008, almost
unchanged from CHF 95 million a year earlier. Amortization of
intangible assets was CHF 38 million, up CHF 19 million from
2007 mainly reflecting an impairment charge.
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UBS business divisions and Corporate Center
Global Wealth Management & Business Banking

2007

Key performance indicators

In 2007, net new money was a record CHF 125.1 billion,
compared with CHF 97.6 billion in 2006, representing an
annual growth rate of 11% of the underlying invested asset
base at year-end 2006. This outstanding result reflected
increases in all geographical regions throughout the year,
particularly in Asia Pacific and Americas, both a result of the
growth strategy.

Invested assets, at CHF 1,294 billion on 31 December
2007, were up 14% from CHF 1,138 billion a year earlier,
mainly reflecting the strong inflow of net new money and
rising financial markets. This increase was partially offset by
negative currency effects. The 7% fall of the US dollar
against the Swiss franc contributed to this decrease —
approximately 36% of invested assets were denominated in
US dollars at the end of 2007.

The gross margin on invested assets was 103 basis points
in 2007, unchanged from a year earlier, as the increase in
non-recurring margin following a sustained level of client ac-
tivity was offset by a lower recurring margin. Overall, recur-
ring income made up 77 basis points of the margin in 2007,
down from 78 basis points in 2006. Non-recurring income
comprised 26 basis points of the margin in 2007, up one
basis point from 2006.

The cost/income ratio improved to 51.1% in 2007 from
52.0% a year earlier. The cost/income ratio improved for the
fifth consecutive year despite the rise in costs in pursuit of
the global expansion strategy. This improvement reflected
the strong rise in income due to a higher asset base and
higher volumes in lombard lending, which more than offset
the increase in personnel expenses (mainly headcount
increase and performance-related compensation) and gen-
eral and administrative expenses.

82

Results

In 2007, pre-tax profit, at a record CHF 6,310 million, rose
21% compared with 2006. Total operating income was up
19% in 2007, reflecting a higher asset base and increased
collateralized lending volumes and more client activity. Oper-
ating expenses, up 17% in 2007 from 2006, also rose as the
business expanded.

Operating income

Total operating income in 2007 was CHF 12,892 million, up
19% from CHF 10,828 million a year earlier. This was the
highest level ever, reflecting a rise in recurring as well as non-
recurring revenues. Recurring income increased 18% on ris-
ing asset-based fees, benefiting from strong net new money
inflows. This was accentuated by higher interest income due
to the expansion of lombard lending activities. Non-recur-
ring income rose 22 % due to higher brokerage fees, reflect-
ing high client activity levels.

Operating expenses

At CHF 6,582 million, operating expenses in 2007 were up
17% from CHF 5,631 million a year earlier, reflecting high-
er personnel expenses and general and administrative
expenses as a result of ongoing business growth. Personnel
expenses rose 22 % to CHF 3,873 million in 2007 compared
with CHF 3,173 million a year earlier, reflecting the increase
in salaries due to business expansion and higher perfor-
mance-related compensation. General and administrative
expenses, at CHF 1,064 million, were up 20% in 2007 from
CHF 885 million a year earlier due to increased expenses for
travel and entertainment, premises and professional fees —
all a consequence of continuous business expansion.
Expenses for services from other business units, at
CHF 1,531 million in 2007, were up 4% from CHF 1,479
million the previous year, mainly reflecting increased con-
sumption. Depreciation was CHF 95 million in 2007, up
13% from CHF 84 million a year earlier because of contin-
ued business growth. Amortization of intangible assets was
CHF 19 million, up CHF 9 million from 2006.



Wealth Management US
Business description

Business

Wealth Management US provides wealth management ser-
vices to US private clients. On 31 December 2008, the busi-
ness unit had CHF 600 billion in invested assets.

Organizational structure

Wealth Management US is headquartered in Weehawken,
New Jersey, where most corporate and operational func-
tions are located. The client-facing organization consists of
the branch network in the US and Puerto Rico, with more
than 8,100 financial advisors. The branch network is staffed
by regional managers, market area managers, branch office
managers, financial advisors and administrative support
staff.

Established as part of Global Wealth Management & Busi-
ness Banking in 2005, the business unit continues to evolve
to meet the specific needs of its client base. Key acquisitions
and transactions over the last three years included:

Geographical presence in key markets

— August 2006 acquisition of the private client services
branch network of Piper Jaffray.

— February 2007 acquisition of the McDonald Investments’
private client branch network.

— October 2008 saw the Investment Bank’s municipal secu-
rities operations serving private clients transfer to Wealth
Management US (following UBS's decision in June 2008
that its Investment Bank would exit the institutional mu-
nicipal securities business).

Legal structure

In the US, the business unit operates through direct and
indirect subsidiaries of UBS. Securities and operations activi-
ties are conducted primarily through three registered broker-
dealers: UBS Financial Services Inc., UBS Financial Services
Inc. of Puerto Rico and UBS Services USA LLC. Wealth Man-
agement US’s banking services include Federal Deposit Insur-
ance Corporation (FDIC)-insured deposit accounts and
enhanced collateralized lending services, which are conduct-
ed through UBS Bank USA, a federally regulated Utah bank.

ALASKA

WASHINGTON MONTANA
---------- OREGON IDAHO
WYOMING
NEVADS UTAH COLORADO
CALIFORNIA
ARIZONA NEW MEXICO

HAWAII

Wealth Management US offices:
<5 5-15 >15
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MISSOURI VLI \ MARYLAND
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UBS business divisions and Corporate Center
Global Wealth Management & Business Banking

Competitors

Wealth Management US competes with national full-service
brokerage firms, domestic and global private banks, regional
broker-dealers, independent broker-dealers, registered in-
vestment advisors, commercial banks, trust companies and
other financial services firms offering wealth management
services to US private clients. In 2008, the financial crisis trig-
gered consolidation within the industry that directly impact-
ed the business unit’s major competitors: Citi Global Wealth
Management, Merrill Lynch Global Wealth Management,
Morgan Stanley Global Wealth Management Group and
Wachovia Securities. Specifically, Merrill Lynch was acquired
by Bank of America, effective 1 January 2009 and Wachovia
Corporation was acquired by Wells Fargo, effective
31 December 2008. In January 2009, Morgan Stanley and Citi
announced an agreement to combine Morgan Stanley’s Glob-
al Wealth Management Group and Citi's Smith Barney unit
into a joint venture called Morgan Stanley Smith Barney.

Clients and strategy

Wealth Management US is focused on the delivery of ser-
vices tailored to meet the needs of four distinct client seg-
ments: ultra-high net worth (more than USD 10 million in
investable assets), high net worth (USD 1 million to USD 10

Invested assets by asset class

In %, except where indicated

million in investable assets), core affluent (USD 250,000 to
USD 1 million in investable assets) and the emerging affluent
(up to USD 250,000 in investable assets).

The business unit is committed to a number of strategic
priorities, including gaining market share, achieving im-
proved profitability, enhancing the client experience and at-
tracting and retaining key talent.

One long-term strategy is to ensure the delivery of a high-
quality and consistent client experience as defined by the
four steps of the “"UBS Client Experience”: understanding
client needs, proposing appropriate solutions, agreeing on
and implementing them, and reviewing progress toward
client goals. To do so, the organization is focused on imple-
menting a number of organic growth initiatives, infrastruc-
ture enhancements and staff development programs, all
aimed at fundamentally improving the way financial advisors
serve clients. In 2008, Wealth Management US expanded its
services and capabilities by increasing its range of client-seg-
ment specific offerings. Two additional private wealth man-
agement offices were opened to service ultra-high net worth
clients in Houston, Texas, and Boston, Massachusetts. With
these openings, UBS has nine dedicated private wealth man-
agement offices across the US, with additional offices to be
opened in select markets through 2010. In June 2008, the
first group of UBS wealth advisors received accreditation
from a new and comprehensive development program

Invested assets by client wealth

In %, except where indicated

On 31.12.06 31.12.07 31.12.08 On 31.12.08 Total: CHF 600 billion
Total: CHF 824 billion CHF 840 billion CHF 600 billion
100 .................... s ............. 7 .............. 8 ..................
75 ................. Bl - 35 - .
19
50 ................. 16 (KRR 17 SRR I
................. s PN s 12
25 ................. 20 [HEREEEEE 2c  EEEEEEER R
0 L < 6|
M Accounts/money markets M Bonds W UBS mutual funds
External mutual funds Equities Other'

1 Includes structured products and alternative investments.
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designed by UBS for advisors focused on the high net worth
segment. In the first and third quarters of 2008, investment
centers in New Jersey and North Carolina were opened to
serve emerging affluent clients.

Products and services

Wealth Management US offers clients a full array of wealth
management services that focus on the individual invest-
ment needs of each client. Comprehensive planning sup-
ports clients through the various stages of their lives, includ-
ing education funding, charitable giving, tax management
strategies, estate strategies, insurance, retirement, and trusts
and foundations. Advisors work closely with consultants
who are subject-matter experts in areas such as wealth plan-
ning, asset allocation, retirement and annuities, alternative
investments, structured products, and banking and lending.
They also have access to Wealth Management Research con-
tent to support investment decisions.

Products and services are designed to meet a wide vari-
ety of investment objectives including capital appreciation,
income generation, diversifying portfolio concentration
and tax optimization. To address the full range of clients’
investment needs, Wealth Management US offers compet-
itive lending and cash management services, including the
Resource Management Account (RMA) product, credit

cards, FDIC-insured deposits, securities-backed lending and
mortgages. Additionally, through Corporate Employee
Financial Services, it provides stock option and other related
services to many of the largest US corporations and their
executives.

The business unit’s clients have the option of transaction-
based or asset-based pricing for their relationships. Clients
who choose asset-based pricing have access to both discre-
tionary and non-discretionary investment advisory programs.
While non-discretionary advisory programs enable the client
to maintain control over all transactions in the account, cli-
ents with discretionary advisory programs direct investment
professionals to manage a portfolio on their behalf. Depend-
ing on the type of discretionary program, the client can give
investment discretion to a qualified financial advisor, a team
of UBS investment professionals or a third-party investment
manager. Separately, mutual fund advisory programs are
also offered, where a financial advisor works with the client
to create a diversified portfolio of mutual funds guided by a
research-driven asset allocation framework.

Transaction-based pricing offers access to a broad range
of transaction products, including individual securities such
as equities and fixed income instruments. To complement
portfolio strategies, qualified clients may take advantage of
the offerings in structured products and alternative invest-
ments.
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UBS business divisions and Corporate Center
Global Wealth Management & Business Banking

Business performance

Business unit reporting

As of or for the year ended % change from
CHF million, except where indicated 31.12.08 31.12.07 31.12.06 31.12.07
Income 5,847 6,662 5,863 (12)
I /mpact ............................................................. ( 172) ...........................................................
Croditos s(expense)/ recovery .................................................................. (25) ................. ( 2) ................. ( : ) ....................
Total operating income 5,821 6,660 5,862 (13)
Cash components 3,806 4,352 3,686 (13)
e b componentsW ........................................................................ g e ey (57)
Total personnel expenses 3,891 4,551 3,839 (15)
Generalandadmlmstratlveexpenses2348 ................ o 1073 ................ o
RS oo /mpact ............................................................. : der
Serwces(to)/fromotherbusmessunlts238 ................ s 281(24)
Depreaatlonof p ropertyandeqU|pment ............................................................. o gt Sy o
Aotation ofmtanglble e o o G (.9.).
Total operating expenses 6,631 5,986 5,320 1
Business unit performance before tax (810) 674 542
ofWh/chARSsett/emem/mpact(1636) ...........................................................
* business unit performance before tax excluding ARS settlement impact 826 674 52 23
Key performance indicators
Invested assets (CHF billion) 600 840
o ewmoney(CHF b||||on)z ..................................................................... (1 o 6) ............... R
Net new money including interest and dividend income (CHF billon)* nr 515 379 (1)
o argln VI (bps )4 ............................................................... gy ST
Cost/lncomeratlo(%)51134 .............. Gog T ey
Recurring income® 3,835 4,173
Financial advisor productivity
RevenuesperadV|sor(CHFthousand)7721 ................ o
et new moneyper i or(CHF v d)g ..................................................... ( ; 307) ............. 3305 .........................................
Invested assets per advisor (CHF thousand)® 87,876 107,719 101,92 (18)

Attributed equity and risk-weighted assets
Average attributed equity (CHF billion)"®

BIS risk-weighted assets (CHF billion)' 18.7

o ISrlskwe|ghted e (%)B .............................................................................. e

Condull o |ntang|ble assets(CHF b||||on)“’ .......................................................................... Loy
Additional information

Client assets (CHF billion) 636 917

personrel (fullt o equwalents) .............................................................. 18929 ............. 19347 .....................

ool advisors (fulltlmeequwalents ) ........................................................ 81 o 8248 .........................................

1 Includes social security contributions and expenses related to alternative investment awards. 2 Excludes interest and dividend income. 3 For purposes of comparison with US peers.
4 Income/average invested assets. 5 Operating expenses/income. 6 Interest, asset-based revenues for portfolio management and account-based, distribution and advisory fees. 7 Income/average
number of financial advisors. 8 Net new money/average number of financial advisors. 9 Average invested assets/average number of financial advisors. 10 Refer to the "Capital management”
section of this report for more information on the equity attribution framework, which was implemented in 2008. 11 Business unit performance before tax/average attributed equity. 12 BIS risk-
weighted assets (RWA) are according to Basel Il for 2008, and according to the Basel | framework for 2007 and 2006. 13 Business unit performance before tax/average BIS RWA. 14 2007 and 2006
represent goodwill and intangible assets in excess of 4% of BIS tier 1 capital.
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2008

Key performance indicators

In 2008, net new money outflows amounted to CHF 10.6
billion compared with inflows of CHF 26.6 billion in 2007,
with net new money outflows concentrated in the second
and third quarters. This reflects the credit market turbulence
and its impact on the firm’s operating performance and repu-
tation, which led to an increase in financial advisor attrition
and clients diversifying assets away from the firm. Net new
money improved to positive levels in the fourth quarter, with
its strongest inflows occurring in December after financial ad-
visor recruiting and retention. Including interest and divi-
dends, net new money in 2008 was CHF 11.7 billion, down
from CHF 51.5 billion in 2007.

Wealth Management US had CHF 600 billion in invested
assets on 31 December 2008, down 29% from CHF 840 bil-
lion on 31 December 2007. This was a result of declining
markets over the year, net new money outflows and the neg-
ative impact of currency translation. In US dollar terms,
invested assets decreased 24% compared with a year earlier.

The gross margin on invested assets was 82 basis points
in 2008, up from 77 basis points in 2007. The increase is
mainly a result of a six basis point increase in the recurring
income margin to 54 basis points, while the non-recurring
margin decreased one basis point to 28 basis points.

The cost/income ratio increased to 113.4% in 2008 from
89.9% in 2007. Following the auction rate securities (ARS) set-
tlement in August 2008, Wealth Management US recorded
losses of CHF 1,636 million, of which CHF 1,464 million were
included in general and administrative expenses, and CHF 172
million were recognized as trading losses. Under the ARS settle-
ment, Wealth Management US agreed to purchase ARS from
clients at their par value. Up to fourth quarter 2008, the ARS
settlement liability represented a provision. The liability was re-
classified from provisions to negative replacement values in
fourth quarter 2008, when ARS settlement rights, which are
treated as derivative instruments, were issued and accepted by
clients. Losses incurred post-reclassification represented trading
losses. Excluding ARS-related charges, the cost/income ratio
improved to 85.8% due to lower expenses, including reduced
performance-based compensation accruals. Refer to the "Ex-
posure to auction rate securities” sidebar in the “Risk concen-
tration” section of this report for more information.

In 2008, recurring income was CHF 3,835 million, down
8% from CHF 4,173 million a year earlier. Excluding the
impact of currency fluctuations, recurring income increased
6% in 2008, driven by growth in net interest income from
increased deposit balances, while recurring fee income

declined slightly due to lower asset levels. Recurring income
represented 66% of total operating income in 2008, com-
pared with 63% in 2007.

Revenues per advisor decreased in 2008 to CHF 721,000
from CHF 828,000 in 2007. In US dollar terms, revenues per
advisor were on par as higher recurring income was offset
by lower transactional revenue. The number of financial
advisors at 31 December 2008 was 8,182, down 66 or 1%
from a year earlier. Turnover among financial advisors was
concentrated among lower producing advisors, including
trainees.

Results

For full-year 2008, Wealth Management US recorded a pre-
tax loss of CHF 810 million compared with a pre-tax profit of
CHF 674 million in 2007. Driving the decline were total ARS-
related charges of CHF 1,636 million taken during 2008.
Excluding these charges, the pre-tax result would have
increased 23%. In US dollar terms and excluding ARS-related
charges, the pre-tax performance would have increased 41%
driven by resilient operating income growth during a chal-
lenging environment, coupled with a decline in expenses,
including lower performance-based compensation accruals.

Operating income

In 2008, total operating income was CHF 5,821 million,
down 13% from CHF 6,660 million in 2007. Excluding cur-
rency effects and ARS related trading losses, operating
income increased 4% from 2007. The increase in operating
income reflects stronger net interest income related to an
increase in deposit balances, and a positive impact of the
new equity attribution framework introduced in first quarter
2008, partly offset by lower transactional revenue and an
increase in credit losses.

Operating expenses

Total operating expenses rose 11% to CHF 6,631 million in
2008 from CHF 5,986 million in 2007. Excluding ARS-related
expenses, operating expenses declined 14%. In US dollar
terms and excluding ARS-related expenses, operating
expenses declined 1%. On this basis, personnel expenses
decreased 2% driven by lower performance-based compen-
sation accruals, partly offset by higher severance costs relat-
ed to staff reductions. Excluding ARS-related expenses, non-
personnel costs (including general and administrative
expenses, depreciation and amortization expenses, and
services provided to and received from other business units),
rose 2% in US dollar terms due to an increase in depreciation
costs, while total general and administrative expenses were
essentially flat from the prior year.
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UBS business divisions and Corporate Center
Global Wealth Management & Business Banking

2007

Key performance indicators

The inflow of net new money in 2007 was CHF 26.6 billion,
up from CHF 15.7 billion a year earlier, reflecting reduced
outflows from existing clients and the recruitment of experi-
enced advisors. Including interest and dividends, net new
money in 2007 was CHF 51.5 billion, up from CHF 37.9 bil-
lion in 2006.

Wealth Management US had CHF 840 billion in invested
assets on 31 December 2007, up 2% from CHF 824 billion
on 31 December 2006. This was a result of rising markets
over the year, net new money inflows and the first-time
inclusion of former McDonald Investments’ assets. These
increases were partly offset by the negative impact of cur-
rency translation. In US dollar terms, invested assets in-
creased 10% compared with a year earlier.

The gross margin on invested assets was 77 basis points
in 2007, up from 76 basis points in 2006. The increase is
mainly a result of a higher recurring income margin, while
the non-recurring margin decreased.

The cost/income ratio was 89.9% for 2007, compared
with 90.7% in 2006. The improvement in the cost/income
ratio reflects higher operating income due to strong growth
in recurring income, partially offset by a rise in expenses
mainly reflecting higher personnel expenses in support of
growth initiatives and the integration of the McDonald
Investments’ private client branch network.

In 2007, recurring income was a record CHF 4,173 million,
up 20% from CHF 3,488 million a year earlier. Excluding the
impact of currency fluctuations, recurring income was up
23% in 2007 from 2006. This increase mainly reflects higher
levels of managed account fees on a year-end record level of
invested assets, higher investment advisory fees and higher
net interest income. Recurring income represented 63% of
operating income in 2007, compared with 60% in 2006.

Revenues per advisor increased in 2007 to CHF 828,000
from CHF 776,000 in 2006 as a higher average number of
financial advisors was able to produce significantly higher
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recurring income than a year earlier. The number of financial
advisors rose 5% compared with 2006, increasing by 368
advisors to 8,248 at the end of 2007, while recurring income
increased 20%.

Results

In 2007, Wealth Management US reported a pre-tax profit of
CHF 674 million, compared with CHF 542 million in 2006. In
US dollar terms, performance in 2007 was up 27% from
2006. Performance in 2007 benefited from record levels of
recurring income and lower general and administrative
expenses. This was partly offset by higher personnel expenses.

Operating income

In 2007, total operating income was CHF 6,660 million, up
14% from CHF 5,862 million in 2006. Excluding currency
effects, operating income increased 16% from 2006. The
increase in operating income reflected the record recurring
income (driven by increased asset levels in managed account
products) and increased transactional revenue.

Operating expenses

Total operating expenses rose 13% to CHF 5,986 million in
2007 from CHF 5,320 million in 2006. Excluding currency
effects, operating expenses were 15% higher.

Personnel expenses increased CHF 712 million or 19%,
with higher salaries as well as share-based compensation.
This reflects rising headcount due to organic growth and the
McDonald Investments’ private client branch network inclu-
sion. General and administrative expenses decreased 9% to
CHF 976 million in 2007 from CHF 1,073 million in 2006. In
US dollar terms, they fell 7%, primarily reflecting lower provi-
sions compared with 2006. Services from other business units
increased 12% from CHF 281 million in 2006 to CHF 314
million in 2007. Depreciation was higher due to leasehold
improvements. The amortization of intangibles was CHF 66
million in 2007, up 25% from CHF 53 million, mainly due to
the acquisition of the McDonald Investments’ private client
branch network and the full-year impact of the acquisition of
the Piper Jaffray’s private client services branch network.



Business Banking Switzerland
Business description

Business

Business Banking Switzerland is UBS’s retail and commercial
banking unit and the leading bank in Switzerland. At the
end of 2008, business banking Switzerland had CHF 129
billion in invested assets. UBS also leads the Swiss lending
and retail mortgage markets, with a total loan book of
CHF 143 billion on 31 December 2008.

Organizational structure

Business Banking Switzerland is home to the firm’s Swiss
branch network for corporate and individual clients. It is
organized in eight geographical regions. The customer ser-
vices network includes e-banking services, customer service
centers, 1,260 automated teller machines (ATMs) and 303
branches across Switzerland.

To meet the needs of private clients, which are changing
in line with technological advances, Business Banking Swit-
zerland pursues an integrated, multi-channel strategy. It
uses technology to complement, rather than replace, the
traditional physical branch network. Standard transactions
can be executed using one of the electronic channels,
enabling client advisors to focus on providing advice and
developing financial solutions. For basic products and
services, technology is used to ensure around-the-clock
availability. Customer service centers exist in five locations
and provide basic information and support 24 hours a day
via telephone. Additionally, in 65 of the UBS branches in
Switzerland, a two-zone concept has been implemented:

standard transactions are executed via ATMs, while client
advisors, sitting in an open plan desk area next to the ATMs,
focus on giving clients value-added advice. Clients make
extensive use of e-banking channels. On 31 December
2008, more than 600,000 clients had active e-banking con-
tracts and more than 80% of all payment orders were made
in 2008 through electronic channels.

Competitors

UBS's major competitors are the banks that are active in the
retail and corporate banking market in Switzerland. This
group includes Credit Suisse, the country’s cantonal banks,
Raiffeisen Bank, other regional or local Swiss banks and for-
eign bank branches in Switzerland.

Clients and products

The business unit serves both retail and commercial clients,
including financial institutions.

Approximately 2.5 million individual Switzerland-based
clients are served through over 3 million accounts, mortgag-
es and other financial relationships. Through the client ser-
vice networks described above, individual clients can access
services such as a comprehensive selection of cash accounts,
savings products, advisory services, residential mortgages,
pensions and life insurance.

Of the approximately 135,000 corporate clients, about
200 are major companies with operations spanning a broad
range of markets and geographical regions and therefore

Invested assets by asset class

In %, except where indicated

On 31.12.06 31.12.07 31.12.08
Total: CHF 161 billion CHF 164 billion CHF 129 billion
100 v g T REREREEE g
.................. 2 2 0
10 10 £
75 e R B
37 37 38
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UBS business divisions and Corporate Center
Global Wealth Management & Business Banking

require advanced financing and risk management skills as
well as comprehensive access to the capital markets for
funding needs; about 8,200 are large companies requiring
expertise in handling complex financial transactions, includ-
ing the selection and design of investment products, assis-
tance in complex mergers and acquisitions or provision of
structured financing; and some 126,000 are small- and
medium-sized enterprises requiring local market expertise
and access to a full range of products and services. In addi-
tion, substantial business process support is available (rang-
ing from transactional payments and securities services to
the facilitation of cross-border transactions with trade finance
products).

Global custody services offer institutional investors the
opportunity to consolidate multiple-agent bank relationships
into a single, cost-efficient global custodial relationship. This
simplifies their processing and administration arrangements
and allows them to take advantage of other services, such as
flexible consolidated performance reporting and powerful
portfolio management tools.

Payments, securities and custodial services are offered to
more than 3,000 financial institutions worldwide. Other
banks which lack UBS’s scale can also outsource their pay-
ment, security or custodial services in order to benefit from
UBS’s scale efficiencies.

Total lending portfolio by category, gross

Total lending portfolio, gross

On 31 December 2008, the total lending portfolio was CHF
143 billion, gross. Of this amount, mortgages comprised
CHF 116 billion, with 84% being residential mortgages.
Continued discipline in implementing risk-adjusted pricing
has resulted in a strengthened focus of origination efforts on
higher-quality exposures with an attractive risk/return rela-
tionship. The introduction of this model has resulted in a
clear improvement in the risk profile of the business unit's
lending portfolio.
-> Refer to the “Credit risk” section of this report for more
information on UBS’s credit portfolio.

Recovery portfolio

A dedicated team of recovery specialists assists clients that
are unable to meet their financial obligations. Economic re-
covery can be achieved through restructuring or through lig-
uidation of available collateral in order to limit the financial
loss on the loan. The recovery portfolio amounted to CHF
2.3 billion on 31 December 2008. Since the end of 1998,
successful recovery efforts have reduced the portfolio by
more than 91% and non-performing loans have decreased
from CHF 14.0 billion to CHF 1.5 billion, resulting in a ratio
of non-performing loans to total lending portfolio of 0.9%.

Development of UBS’s recovery portfolio, 2000-2008

In %, except where indicated CHF billion
On 31.12.06 31.12.07 31.12.08 On
Total: CHF 143 billion CHF 145 billion CHF 143 billion

M Commercial credits

B Mortgages Recovery portfolio
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New recovery loans added

W Settlement of recovery loans outstanding



Business performance

Business unit reporting

As of or for the year ended % change from
CHF million, except where indicated 31.12.08 31.12.07 31.12.06 31.12.07
Interest income 3,234 3,470 3,339 (7)
Nomitorostineame : 790 ............... 1816 ............... 1746 ................... (.1.). .
Income 5,024 5,286 5,085 (5) o
Crodit o s(expense)/recovery ...................................................................... (5) ................. g g T _E
Total operating income 5,019 5,317 5,194 6) :§ 5
Cash components 2,348 2,508 2,389 ©) Tt
Sharebasedcomponents‘ ......................................................................... Sy e o (64) § z
Total persormel expenses 2376 2584 2439 ® )
General and administrative expenses 1018 18 1120 am 33
Services (to)/from other business units (893) (739) (720) (21) =N
Depreuatlonof p ropertyandeqmpment ........................................................... o G g .
R, oflntanglble R R R R
Total operating expenses 2,570 3,050 2,913 (16)
Business unit performance before tax 2,449 2,267 2,281 8
Key performance indicators
Invested assets (CHF billion) 129 164 161 (21)
et newmoney(CHFbllllon)z ................................................................... (1 14) ................ e R
ot (%)3 ............................................................................ Gy sy R
Impalre § Iendlngportfollo e Iend|ng portf . |o gross .................................... S e e
Attributed equity and risk-weighted assets
Average attributed equity (CHF billion)* 3.8
et eqmty ( Ran) (%)5 .......................................................... ao
o nskwelghted o s(CHFb|II|on .).6 ........................................................... wo Grg oy
e BISnskwelghted assets(%)7 ........................................................... R
Condul ard |ntang|b|e s (CHF blIIlon)B ...................................................... oo R oo
Additional information
Client assets (CHF billion) 709 986 992 (28)
personrel (fuIIt s equwalents) .............................................................. 15341 .............. 16085 .............. 16079 ................... (.5 .).

1 Includes social security contributions and expenses related to alternative investment awards. 2 Excludes interest and dividend income. 3 Operating expenses/income. 4 Refer to the “Capital
management” section of this report for more information about the equity attribution framework, which was implemented in 2008. 5 Business unit performance before tax/average attributed equi-
ty. 6 BIS risk-weighted assets (RWA) are according to Basel Il for 2008, and according to the Basel | framework for 2007 and 2006. 7 Business unit performance before tax/average BISRWA. 82007
and 2006 represent goodwill and intangible assets in excess of 4% of BIS tier 1 capital.
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2008

Key performance indicators

Net new money outflows totaled CHF 11.4 billion in 2008,
compared with an inflow of CHF 4.6 billion in 2007. This
was mainly due to clients’ diversification of assets and re-
evaluation of banking relationships in the context of con-
tinuing global market turmoil.

Invested assets fell to CHF 129 billion in 2008 from CHF
164 billion a year earlier, driven by negative market develop-
ments and net new money outflows.

In 2008 the cost/income ratio stood at 51.2%, strongly
improved from 57.7% a year earlier due to a 16% decrease
in operating expenses reflecting cost-cutting measures.

Business Banking Switzerland's /oan portfolio was CHF
143.0 billion on 31 December 2008, down 2% from the
previous year.

The key credit quality ratio of the impaired lending portfolio,
gross, to the total lending portfolio, gross, improved to 1.0%
compared with 1.2% in 2007.

Results
Pre-tax profit in 2008 was a record CHF 2,449 million, CHF

182 million, or 8% above the result achieved in 2007 due to
a strong decrease in operating expenses reflecting stringent
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cost-cutting measures as well as higher charges paid to this
business unit for services provided to other businesses.

Operating income

Total operating income in 2008 was CHF 5,019 million,
down from 2007's level of CHF 5,317 million. Interest
income decreased 7% to CHF 3,234 million in 2008 from
CHF 3,470 million in 2007. This decrease reflects lower de-
posit and loan volumes as well as lower margins on mort-
gages. Non-interest income decreased CHF 26 million to
CHF 1,790 million in 2008 from CHF 1,816 million in 2007,
reflecting the lower asset base. Credit loss, at CHF 5 million
in 2008, deteriorated from credit loss recoveries of CHF 31
million in 2007.

Operating expenses

Operating expenses in 2008 were CHF 2,570 million, down
16% from CHF 3,050 million in 2007. Personnel expenses,
at CHF 2,376 million, were down 8% from CHF 2,584 mil-
lion in 2007, reflecting lower performance-related compen-
sation accruals. General and administrative expenses, at
CHF 1,018 million in 2008, were 11% lower than the CHF
1,138 million recorded in 2007. Net charges to other busi-
ness units continued to rise for the fourth consecutive year
to CHF 893 million in 2008 from CHF 739 million in 2007
because of higher consumption of services in other business-
es. Depreciation in 2008 slightly increased to CHF 70 million
from CHF 67 million in 2007.



2007

Key performance indicators

Net new money was CHF 4.6 billion in 2007, CHF 3.4 billion
higher than the inflow of CHF 1.2 billion in 2006. This was
due to an increase in inflows from existing clients.

Invested assets rose to CHF 164 billion in 2007 from CHF
161 billion a year earlier, driven by positive market develop-
ments and net new money inflows. This was slightly offset by
the transfer of assets to Wealth Management International &
Switzerland, which occurred over the course of 2007, when
UBS transferred CHF 9.2 billion in client assets from the Busi-
ness Banking Switzerland business unit to the Wealth Man-
agement International & Switzerland business unit, reflecting
the development of client relationships. In 2006, UBS trans-
ferred CHF 8.2 billion in client assets for the same reason.

In 2007 the cost/income ratio was 57.7%, compared
with 57.3% a year earlier.

Business Banking Switzerland's gross lending portfolio
was CHF 145.5 billion on 31 December 2007, up 1% from
the previous year. This positive development was also reflect-
ed in the key credit quality ratio of the impaired lending
portfolio, gross, to the total lending portfolio, gross, which
was 1.2% compared with 1.7% in 2006.

Results

Pre-tax profit in 2007 was CHF 2,267 million, CHF 14 million
or 1% below the result achieved in 2006, as the increase in

operating expenses outpaced income growth. In 2007,
interest income rose on higher volumes and margin on liabil-
ities, while non-interest income rose due to higher asset-
based and brokerage fees.

Operating income

Total operating income in 2007 was CHF 5,317 million, up
from the 2006 level of CHF 5,194 million. Interest income
increased 4% to CHF 3,470 million in 2007 from CHF 3,339
million in 2006. The slight increase reflects the expansion of
the business unit’s loan portfolio and the higher margin on
liabilities. Non-interest income increased by CHF 70 million
to CHF 1,816 million in 2007 from CHF 1,746 million in
2006, reflecting a higher asset base as well as higher trading
income. Credit loss recoveries were CHF 31 million in 2007,
a decrease from recoveries of CHF 109 million in 2006.

Operating expenses

Operating expenses in 2007 were CHF 3,050 million, up 5%
from CHF 2,913 million in 2006. Personnel expenses, at CHF
2,584 million, were up 6% from CHF 2,439 million in 2006
due to higher salary costs for the employee pension plan in
Switzerland, related to its change from a defined benefit to
a defined contribution plan. General and administrative ex-
penses, at CHF 1,138 million in 2007, rose and were 2%
higher than the CHF 1,120 million recorded in 2006. Net
charges to other business units continued to rise to CHF 739
million in 2007 from CHF 720 million in 2006 because of
higher consumption of services in other business units. De-
preciation in 2007 decreased to CHF 67 million from CHF 74
million in 2006.
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UBS business divisions and Corporate Center
Global Asset Management

Global Asset Management

Business description

One of the world’s leading asset managers, Global Asset Management provides investment capabilities and
services to private clients, financial intermediaries and institutional investors.

Business

This business division offers a wide range of investment
capabilities and services across all major asset classes includ-
ing equities, fixed income, asset allocation, currency, risk
management, hedge funds, real estate, infrastructure, pri-
vate equity and fund administration. Invested assets totaled
CHF 575 billion on 31 December 2008, making Global Asset
Management one of the largest institutional asset managers
and hedge fund of funds managers in the world. This busi-
ness division is also one of the largest mutual fund managers
in Europe and the largest in Switzerland.

Revenues and key performance indicators are reported
according to two principal asset management client seg-
ments: institutional (for example, corporate and public pen-
sion plans, governments and their central banks) and whole-
sale intermediary (for example, financial intermediaries,
including Wealth Management, and selected third parties).

Strategy
The financial crisis of 2008 is likely to have a major adverse

impact on the immediate growth prospects of the asset
management industry. A key change that could depress

Key focus areas

future growth in certain areas but provide opportunities in
others is increased aversion to risk among investors. Inves-
tors are considering risk not only in terms of volatility and the
possibility of underperformance in asset classes but also in
terms of the liquidity constraints related to the ability to
redeem investments as well as counterparty risks.

In the longer term, however the industry outlook remains
strong as fundamental drivers over the past two decades
have not changed and, indeed, have now been reinforced.
Strong growth has been driven by the recognition, both
within government and outside, of the need for increased
retirement savings as median populations age and pressures
on public finances correspondingly increase. This has created
a growing industry in both established markets and, more
recently, the new markets of the Middle East, South America
and Asia Pacific.

Global Asset Management's diversified business model
will allow it to continue to service growth segments by offer-
ing a wide range of products from boutique-like capabilities
to various markets and distribution channels. Global Asset
Management's wide spectrum of investment capabilities
puts it in a strong position to further develop a holistic range
of investment solutions including liability-driven investment
and retirement products. This business division is well posi-

Investment capabilities are globally co-ordinated
but with boutique-like discretion wherever possible...

Alternative and
quantitative
investments

_ -

Global real estate Global investment Infrastructure and Fund services
solutions private equity

...distribution is regionally organized...

R

...and supported by global functions

Information Operations Human resources Legal, compliance Financial control Strategic planning
technology and risk control
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tioned to capture opportunities with the move towards more
tangible asset classes such as infrastructure, real estate and
private equity. It will also continue to drive its third-party
wholesale initiative forward, particularly in Europe and the
Americas.

Organizational structure

This business division is headquartered in London, with other
main offices in Chicago, Frankfurt, Hartford, Hong Kong,
New York, Paris, Rio de Janeiro, Sydney, Tokyo, Toronto and
Zurich, and employs around 3,800 persons in 25 countries.

Significant recent acquisitions and business transfers

— In December 2006, UBS completed its acquisition of Ban-
co Pactual and renamed the asset management business
UBS Pactual Asset Management. It is currently the sev-
enth largest asset manager in Brazil with invested assets
of approximately CHF 19 billion on 31 December 2008.

— In May 2007, UBS announced the closure of Dillon Read
Capital Management (DRCM). The business was formed
in June 2005 and officially launched in June 2006. The
business had two arms — one managing existing proprie-
tary assets transferred from UBS Investment Bank, the
other established to manage outside investor assets. As
the development of the business did not meet original
expectations, it was closed in May 2007.

— In July 2007, UBS purchased a 51% stake in Daehan In-
vestment Trust Management Company Ltd. (DIMCO)
from Hana Daetoo Securities (formerly Daehan Invest-
ment & Securities Company Ltd.), a wholly owned subsid-
iary of Hana Financial Group. DIMCO was renamed UBS
Hana Asset Management Company Ltd. internationally

Invested assets by client type

In %, except where indicated

and Hana UBS Asset Management in Korea and is one of
the market leaders in the Korean asset management
industry, with invested assets of CHF 13 billion on 31
December 2008.

— In February 2008, UBS acquired 100% of the Caisse Cen-
trale de Réescompte (CCR) Group in France from Com-
merzbank. The businesses of the CCR Group are being
combined into the asset management and wealth man-
agement businesses of UBS in France. CCR Group had
invested assets of CHF 4 billion on 31 December 2008.

— In August 2008, UBS sold its 24.9% stake in Adams Street
Partners to its remaining shareholders. The transaction
closed on 6 August 2008.

Competitors

Global Asset Management's competitors range from global
competitors in active investments (such as Fidelity Invest-
ments, AllianceBernstein Investments, BlackRock, JP Mor-
gan Asset Management, Deutsche Asset Management and
Goldman Sachs Asset Management) to those managed on
a regional or local basis or specializing in particular asset
classes. In the real estate, hedge fund, infrastructure and
regional private equity investment areas, competitors tend
to be specialist niche players who focus mainly on one asset
class.

It is likely that the current market turmoil will alter the
composition of the asset management industry and its par-
ticipants. Successful competitors are expected to be well-
diversified, large asset managers — structured as either multi-
boutiques or with a more traditional structure that can
benefit from economies of scale — with access to a wide
range of asset classes and a broad global distribution.

Institutional / wholesale intermediary revenues

In %, except where indicated

On 31.12.06 31.12.07 31.12.08
Total: CHF 866 billion CHF 891 billion CHF 575 billion
JOO  + oo e e
40
TS e B a2
LUNEEECEERURTRRRRRRITS  DUDDIDUPERE I
60
VLUREEEEEEEREETERRRRTY  DUDDIDURERE - DI
0

M Institutional B Wholesale intermediary

On 31.12.06 31.12.07 31.12.08
Total: CHF 3,220 million CHF 4,094 million CHF 2,904 million
QOO < v v et e
75 ceveeeeneeeeeo... Rall ... BRCER ... a3
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UBS business divisions and Corporate Center
Global Asset Management

Products and services

Investment management products and services are offered

in the form of segregated, pooled and advisory mandates

along with a range of more than 500 registered investment
funds, exchange-traded funds and other investment vehicles
across all major asset classes.

— Equities offers a full spectrum of investment styles with
varying risk and return objectives. It has three investment
pillars with distinct strategies — core/value (portfolios
managed according to a price to intrinsic value philoso-
phy), growth investors (a quality global growth manager)
and structured equities (strategies that employ proprie-
tary analytics and quantitative methods).

— Fixed income offers a diverse range of global, regional
and local market-based investment strategies that cover a
wide range of benchmarks. Its capabilities include “core”
government and corporate bond strategies, complement-
ed by extended strategies such as high-yield and emerg-
ing market debt.

— Alternative and quantitative investments has two primary
business lines — multi-manager (or fund of funds) and sin-
gle manager. The former constructs portfolios of hedge
funds and other alternative investments operated by
third-party managers, allowing clients diversified expo-
sure to a range of hedge funds, private equity and infra-
structure strategies. O'Connor is a key provider of single
manager global hedge funds.

— Global real estate actively manages real estate invest-
ments in Asia, Europe and the US across all major sectors.
Its capabilities include core, value-added and opportunis-
tic strategies on a global, regional and country basis, and
are offered through open and closed-end private funds,

Invested assets by region®

In %, except where indicated

funds of funds, individually managed accounts and pub-
licly traded real estate securities globally.

— Global investment solutions offers asset allocation, cur-
rency, risk management and advisory services. It manages
a wide array of domestic, regional and global balanced
portfolios, currency mandates, structured portfolios and
absolute return strategies which invest in internal and ex-
ternal portfolios.

— Infrastructure and private equity is involved in the origina-
tion and management of specialist funds that invest in
infrastructure and other private assets globally.

— Fund services, the global fund administration business, pro-
vides professional services, including legal set up, reporting
and accounting for retail and institutional investment funds,
for hedge funds and for other alternative funds.

Investment performance full-year 2008

The decline in almost all financial markets that began in the
latter half of 2007 continued in 2008 and accelerated
towards the end of the year. Investors became increasingly
risk averse and sensitive to news flow thus creating very vol-
atile market conditions, even in perceived lower risk sectors
such as money markets. Across the asset management indus-
try, this difficult environment led to a wide dispersion of in-
vestment performance.

Among equity strategies, a higher proportion equaled or
exceeded their benchmark for 2008 than for 2007, with
most strategies also improving their relative standings com-
pared with peers. This notable improvement in relative per-
formance followed the leadership and broader personnel
changes initiated during 2007. In core/value equities, the
strongest performance for the year was seen in European

Institutional invested assets by asset class

In %, except where indicated

On 31.12.06 31.12.07 31.12.08 On 31.12.06 31.12.07 31.12.08
Total: CHF 866 billion CHF 891 billion CHF 575 billion Total: CHF 519 billion CHF 522 billion CHF 335 billion
100 100
L2023
5 54 52 7l » 2
50 50
' ' i
M Americas Asia Pacific Europe, Middle East & Africa M Money market M Fixedincome M Equity

1 Assets represented are totals for the Global Asset Management business division worldwide.
The regional split is based on the client servicing location.
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Investment capabilities and services

Alternative and

quantitative Global Global investment Infrastructure and
Equities Fixed income investments real estate solutions private equity Fund services
Core/value Global Single manager Global Global Direct infrastructure Alternative funds
hedge funds Country and regional Country and regional investment Investment funds

Multi-manager
hedge funds

Infrastructure
fund of funds

Private equity
fund of funds

Portfolio construction
solutions
(including passive)

Listed infrastructure
securities

Return and risk targeted  Direct private equity
investment

Risk management and
advisory services

and in Canadian and Australian equities. European equities
performance was particularly strong in the second half of the
year and, overall, sector positioning contributed positively,
especially overweights to telecoms and pharmaceuticals and
an underweight to materials. Global equity strategies showed
distinct performance improvement during the year, despite
some setbacks in the fourth quarter where a range of positive
contributors were insufficient to fully offset the drag on per-
formance of only modest overweights to banks and diversi-
fied financials. US equity strategies had a very difficult first
half, followed by a strong third quarter and a weaker fourth
quarter. Contributors to performance varied quarter by quar-
ter but, over the year as a whole, underweights to energy

Wholesale intermediary invested assets by asset class

In %, except where indicated

On 31.12.06 31.12.07 31.12.08
Total: CHF 347 billion CHF 369 billion CHF 240 billion
100 ..................... 3 .............. 4 ................ Gt
30 31 %
75 .........................................................
5O ccreeeeeiinneieens 27 SRR 27 DR
25 23 19 N
................... 17 EERRREREEEE |, TEETERRERS
0
M Money market M Fixed income M Equity Multi-asset Alternatives

and materials were the largest detractors. Overweights to
utilities and telecoms were positives, although the latter was
offset by weak stock selection in the sector.

Growth equities strategies posted mixed performance
results with the US large cap growth and US mid cap growth
strategies marginally outperforming their benchmarks while
other strategies underperformed for the year. The first and
second halves of the year delivered markedly different results.
At the end of the second quarter, all major strategies were
outperforming their respective benchmarks for the year to
date. The accelerated deleveraging of the second half of the
year saw an indiscriminate and broad-based sell-off in the
global equity markets that put significant pressure on growth
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UBS business divisions and Corporate Center
Global Asset Management

stocks and more than erased the outperformance of the first
half of the year. Longer-term returns from growth strategies
generally remain strong.

2008 was another dramatic year for global bond mar-
kets. Some easing of financial market stress was evident to-
wards the end of the first quarter but this was soon reversed
as the economic outlook deteriorated. Levels of stress in
money markets, government and corporate bond markets
increased dramatically during the third quarter, culminating
with the Lehman bankruptcy in September. Despite historic
levels of government and central bank intervention globally,
the third quarter saw a substantial flight to quality in fixed
income markets. Corporate bond yield spreads (the differ-
ence in yield versus government bonds) increased substan-
tially. In the fourth quarter, central banks cut rates aggres-
sively and combined with falling inflation expectations, this
led to substantial falls in yield in developed government
bond markets. Despite the announced bank bail-out plans,
yield spreads on financial sector bonds widened to record
levels. A combination of these factors and our portfolio
positioning led to significant underperformance of US, UK,
global aggregate and absolute return strategies. The struc-
tured credit exposure in some of these strategies was a fac-
tor, although less so as the year progressed as a result of
exposures being reduced. In contrast, European aggregate,
Australian, US municipal and high yield strategies outper-
formed. Money market funds continued to achieve their
capital preservation objectives and Global Asset Manage-
ment did not need to support its large funds, including its
US 2a7, Swiss or Luxembourg money market funds. Refer to
the disscusion on other types of support in the “Off-balance
sheet” section of this report for more information on UBS’s
support to non-consolidated funds in its wealth and asset
management businesses.

Multi-asset strategies, including the global securities com-
posite, underperformed their benchmarks in 2008, largely as
a result of asset allocation and bond selection in some of the
underlying portfolios. Equity selection was mixed and cur-
rency management was strongly positive. At the beginning
of 2008, the asset allocation position in equities was neutral.
As equity valuations became more favorable and there were
clear signals that the authorities were seeking to support the
financial system, exposure to equities was gradually in-
creased at the expense of government bonds. This market
positioning detracted from performance for the year but is
expected to contribute positively in the long term. Dynamic
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alpha strategies posted significantly negative returns in 2008
due to the overall long exposure in equities built up over the
course of the year. Positive contributions came from the po-
sitioning within equity markets. Currency strategy performed
very strongly across all strategies for the year. Currency strat-
egy had been quite aggressively positioned against the large
exchange rate misevaluations that had resulted from the
popularity of carry trades (borrowing in a lower yielding cur-
rency to invest in a high yielding currency). The unwinding of
carry trades in more risk-averse markets meant that this
strategy paid off.

In alternative and quantitative investments, hedge fund
performance in 2008 reflected the unprecedented market
dislocations and asset price destruction that occurred glob-
ally. In the multi-manager business, the vast majority of funds
of funds posted losses in absolute terms as most hedge fund
strategies were affected by the extreme market conditions.
Among the O’Connor single manager hedge funds, perfor-
mance was mixed: multi-strategy alpha was negative (but
out performed many peers), while fundamental long/short
neutral and currency and rates strategies were notably posi-
tive for the year.

Overall, invested assets in the global real estate business
declined moderately against a background of falling prop-
erty values and investor risk aversion. Investment perfor-
mance for some of our direct real estate funds subsequently
came under pressure, notably in the UK and US. In contrast,
funds in certain markets, notably Germany and Switzerland,
achieved positive absolute returns. Global real estate securi-
ties strategies suffered in absolute terms over the year but
their long-term relative performance against benchmark be-
gan to see some recovery.

2008 was a significant year for the infrastructure and pri-
vate equity business. The core global direct investment infra-
structure fund (the UBS International Infrastructure Fund)
reached its final close in October, raising USD 1.52 billion.
The underlying investments are performing well, benefiting
from their defensive attributes and strong underlying cash
flows from operating companies. The fund itself is delivering
positive absolute returns. In contrast, global infrastructure
securities strategies suffered negative performance for the
year, in line with the wider equities markets. The launches of
complementary, regionally-focused infrastructure and pri-
vate equity fund initiatives were announced during 2008
with joint venture partners Abu Dhabi Investment Company
and MerchantBridge respectively.



Business performance

Business division reporting

As of or for the year ended % change from
CHF million, except where indicated 31.12.08 31.12.07 31.12.06 31.12.07
Institutional fees 1,659’ 2,370 1,803 (30)
Wholesalemtermedlaryfees1246 ............... 1724 ............... 1417(28) .
Total operating income 2,904 4,094 3,220 (29) :
Cash components 922 1,632 1,305 (44) _E
Sharebasedcomponentsz .......................................................................... R e o (98) :§ .
Total personnel expenses 926 1,856 1,575 (50) E E
Generalandadmlmstratlveexpenses434 ................. e 399(22) gz
seves(ofonaterbonesons o m
Depreciation of property and equipment ... 2 B o) 85
Amortization of intangible assets 33 19 4 74 =1
Total operating expenses 1,572 2,640 1,900 (40)
Business division performance before tax 1,333 1,454 1,320 (8)
Key performance indicators
Cost/income ratio (%)? 54.1 64.5 59.0
Institutional
Invested assets (CHF billion) 335 522 519 (36)
R oney et L s R e
ot newmoney(CHFbllllon)" ................................................................... (55 6) e (16 3) ............... g
ofWh/chmoneymarketfunds ................................................................. So s
o margln o e assets (bps)5 ............................................................. W R W (74)
Wholesale intermediary
Invested assets (CHF billion) 240 369 347 (35)
R oney e ethe T T R "
Netnewmoney(CHFbllllon)“ ................................................................... (474)0674 ......................
R oney e eth e, PP ) . 5) .....................
o margln o e (bps)5 ............................................................. PRI P AR (13)
Attributed equity and risk-weighted assets
Average attributed equity (CHF billion)® 3.0
Rt o bt equny ( Ran) (%)7 .......................................................... aaa
BISr|skwe|ghted é's's'elté'('C'I;IF'bi'II'ibln')'B ............................................................ g gy
Rt on BISnskwe|ght st (%)g .......................................................... e s s
Cooduill and |ntang|bleassets(CHFb||||on)“’ ...................................................... RN RS
Additional information
Invested assets (CHF billion) 575 891 866 (35)
Nt newmoney(CHFbllllon)“ .................................................................. (1030) e (15 7) ............... Ly
Personnel(fulltlmeequwalents)3786 ............... 3625 ............... 3436 ................... N

1 Includes a gain of CHF 168 million on the sale of a minority stake in Adams Street Partners. 2 Includes social security contributions and expenses related to alternative investment awards. 3 Operating ex-
penses/income. 4 Excludes interest and dividend income. 5 Operating income/average invested assets. 6 Refer to the " Capital management” section of this report for more information on the equity attribu-
tion framework, which was implemented in 2008. 7 Business division performance before tax/average attributed equity. 8 BIS risk-weighted assets (RWA) are according to Basel Il for 2008, and according to
the Basel | framework for 2007 and 2006. 9 Business division performance before tax/average BIS RWA. 10 2007 and 2006 represent goodwill and intangible assets in excess of 4% of BIS tier 1 capital.
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UBS business divisions and Corporate Center
Global Asset Management

2008

Key performance indicators

Net new money

Net new money outflows were CHF 103.0 billion for full-
year 2008, compared with outflows of CHF 15.7 billion for
full-year 2007. Flows through UBS channels — namely the as-
set management flows relating to Global Wealth Manage-
ment & Business Banking clients — accounted for more than
a third of these full year 2008 outflows and UBS reputation-
al issues also impacted third-party flows.

Outflows of institutional net new money were CHF 55.6
billion, up from CHF 16.3 billion. Excluding money market
flows, outflows increased to CHF 61.6 billion from CHF 23.0
billion. Net outflows were reported in multi-asset, fixed in-
come, equities and alternatives mandates.

Outflows of wholesale intermediary net new money were
CHF 47 .4 billion, compared with an inflow of CHF 0.6 billion in
2007. Excluding money market flows, outflows of net new
money increased to CHF 62.6 billion from CHF 4.2 billion. Out-
flows were mainly reported in multi-asset, equities and fixed
income funds.

Invested assets
Institutional invested assets were CHF 335 billion on 31 De-
cember 2008, down from CHF 522 billion on 31 December
2007. This decrease reflects the negative impact of financial
market developments, net new money outflows and curren-
¢y fluctuations.

Wholesale intermediary invested assets were CHF 240 bil-
lion on 31 December 2008, down from CHF 369 billion on
31 December 2007, reflecting the negative impact of finan-
cial market developments and net new money outflows and,
to a lesser extent, currency fluctuations.

Gross margin

The gross margin on institutional invested assets was 38 ba-
sis points compared with 44 basis points in 2007. The de-
cline in gross margin was mainly due to lower performance
fees from alternative and quantitative investments and the
Brazilian asset management business and to a negative as-
set-mix effect from a higher proportion of money market
funds to total invested assets.

The gross margin on wholesale intermediary invested assets
was down 6 basis points to 41 basis points, mainly due to
lower performance fees from the Brazilian asset management
business and a change in asset-mix to lower margin products.

Cost/income ratio

The cost/income ratio was 54.1% compared with 64.5% in
2007. This improvement was primarily due to the closure of
Dillon Read Capital Management (DRCM) in 2007, the sale of
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a minority stake in Adams Street Partners in 2008 and lower
incentive compensation provisions combined with changes to
the forfeiture provisions of future share-based awards.

Results

Pre-tax profit for full year 2008 was CHF 1,333 million, an 8%
decrease from CHF 1,454 million in 2007. Excluding costs re-
lated to the closure of DRCM in 2007 and the gain from the
sale of the minority stake in Adams Street Partners in 2008,
full-year pre-tax profit would have decreased CHF 501 million.

Operating income

Total operating income declined 29% to CHF 2,904 million
from CHF 4,094 million, driven largely by a significant decline
in equity market valuations and relative strengthening of the
Swiss franc against the major currencies, especially the US dol-
lar. Institutional revenues declined to CHF 1,659 million from
CHF 2,370 million. Excluding the gain from the sale of the mi-
nority stake in Adams Street Partners, institutional revenues
would have declined CHF 879 million due to lower perfor-
mance fees (from alternative and quantitative investments and
the Brazilian asset management business) and lower manage-
ment fees (from the lower average invested assets base).
Wholesale intermediary revenues declined to CHF 1,246 million
from CHF 1,724 million due to lower management fees (from
the lower average invested assets base) and lower performance
fees (from the Brazilian asset management business).

Operating expenses
Total operating expenses were CHF 1,572 in 2008, a 40% de-
cline from CHF 2,640 million in 2007. Excluding CHF 212 mil-
lion in DRCM restructuring costs in 2007, total operating ex-
penses would have declined 35% or CHF 856 million. This
decline mainly reflects reduced incentive based compensation
accruals resulting from the lower revenues, the changes to the
forfeiture provisions of future share-based awards, and the re-
sults of the ongoing expenditure review, partly offset by the
first time inclusion of the acquisition in France of the CCR
Group and the full-year impact of the acquisition in Korea of
51% of Daehan Investment Trust Management Company Ltd.
General and administrative expenses were CHF 434 million,
down from CHF 559 million. The 22% decrease was due to
lower provisions and lower travel and entertainment expenses,
partly offset by higher IT costs, the inclusion of the acquisition
in France and the full-year impact of the acquisition in Korea.
Net charges from other business divisions were down
slightly, decreasing by CHF 3 million to CHF 150 million.
Depreciation of property and equipment at CHF 29 mil-
lion was down by CHF 24 million. Excluding the impact of
the DRCM restructuring costs in 2007, depreciation of prop-
erty and equipment increased slightly. This was mainly due
to the inclusion of the acquisition in France and the full-year
impact of the acquisition in Korea.



2007

Key performance indicators

Net new money

Institutional net new money outflows were CHF 16.3 billion,
compared with net inflows of CHF 29.8 billion in 2006. Out-
flows in core/value equity mandates, and to a lesser extent
in fixed income mandates, were partly offset by inflows into
all other asset classes, particularly alternative and quantita-
tive investments and money markets.

Wholesale intermediary net new money inflows were
CHF 0.6 billion, compared with inflows of CHF 7.4 billion for
2006. Inflows, mainly into multi-asset and money market
funds, were partly offset by outflows from fixed income
funds.

Invested assets
Institutional invested assets were CHF 522 billion at year
end, up CHF 3 billion from 2006. The net increase was driv-
en by the positive impact of financial market valuations and
the inclusion of assets related to the acquisition in Korea in
third quarter 2007, which were only partly offset by net new
money outflows and negative currency translation impacts.
Wholesale intermediary invested assets were CHF 369
billion on 31 December 2007, up CHF 22 billion from 31
December 2006. This increase was primarily due to positive
financial markets valuation impacts and the inclusion of as-
sets related to the acquisition of UBS Hana Asset Manage-
ment in third quarter 2007, partly offset by negative cur-
rency translation impacts.

Gross margin
The gross margin on institutional invested assets was 44
basis points, up six basis points from 2006. The increase was
due to higher performance fees, mainly in alternative and
quantitative investments, as well as inflows into higher mar-
gin products.

The gross margin on wholesale intermediary invested
assets was 47 basis points, up four basis points from 2006,
largely driven by higher performance fees (mainly in the Bra-
zilian asset management business) as well as inflows into
higher margin products.

Cost/income ratio

The cost/income ratio was 64.5%, an increase of 5.5 per-
centage points from 2006, primarily due to the CHF 212
million charge related to the closure of DRCM in second
quarter 2007.

Results

Pre-tax profit increased to CHF 1,454 million from CHF 1,320
million in 2006, despite the CHF 212 million of DRCM-relat-
ed closure costs in second quarter 2007. This charge partly
offset the positive impacts of increased performance and
management fees in all business areas and the inclusion of
acquisitions in Brazil and Korea.

Operating income

Operating income was CHF 4,094 million, up 27% from
CHF 3,220 million in 2006. Institutional revenues increased
31% to CHF 2,370 million from CHF 1,803 million in 2006.
This was mainly due to higher management fees in all invest-
ment areas, as well as the full-year impact of the Brazilian
asset management business and the post-July impact of the
Korean asset management business. These were partly off-
set by higher provisions. Wholesale intermediary revenues
rose 22% to CHF 1,724 million from CHF 1,417 million in
2006, reflecting higher management fees across all busi-
nesses and higher performance fees, mainly from the Brazil-
ian asset management business.

Operating expenses

A 39% increase, to CHF 2,640 million from CHF 1,900 mil-
lion in 2006, primarily reflected DRCM-related closure ex-
penses and increased staff levels. Personnel expenses were
CHF 1,856 million, 18% above 2006, reflecting the closure
of DRCM, higher staff levels as well as the inclusion of the
Brazilian and Korean asset management business. General
and administrative expenses increased 40% to CHF 559 mil-
lion in 2007 from CHF 399 million in 2006. In addition to the
DRCM closure expenses, general and administrative expens-
es increased due to higher technology-related expenditure
and the full-year impact of the inclusion of the Brazilian asset
management business. Net charge-ins from other business
units were CHF 153 million, primarily due to DRCM, com-
pared with the net charge-outs to other business units of
CHF 105 million a year earlier. Over the same period, depre-
ciation increased by 96% to CHF 53 million, as a result of the
DRCM closure.
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UBS business divisions and Corporate Center
Investment Bank

Investment Bank
Business description

UBS is a leading investment banking and securities firm, delivering comprehensive advice and execution to

clients across the world’s capital markets.

Business

The Investment Bank provides a broad range of products
and services to corporate and institutional clients, govern-
ments, financial intermediaries and alternative asset man-
agers. The needs of private investors are met indirectly
through working with UBS's wealth management business-
es and other private banks.

Strategy

The current crisis in the financial markets and the resulting
dramatic changes in industry dynamics, and the losses in-
curred in 2007 and 2008, require the Investment Bank to
recalibrate its business in order to generate profitable and
sustainable growth. A number of senior leadership changes
took place within the Investment Bank in 2008: Jerker
Johansson joined UBS as Chairman and Chief Executive of
the Investment Bank in March 2008, Carsten Kengeter and
Jeffrey Mayer were appointed co-heads of the fixed in-
come, currencies and commodities (FICC) business area
and Tom Daula was appointed Chief Risk Officer to oversee
credit risk and market risk on a combined basis as well as
operational risk.

The Chairman and CEO of the Investment Bank, mem-
bers of the Group Executive Board and the UBS Board of
Directors have concluded a detailed strategic review. Based
on this, the Investment Bank is implementing a comprehen-
sive repositioning plan focused on client-driven growth, a
simplified organizational structure and a de-levered and de-
risked balance sheet. The FICC business area has signifi-
cantly restructured to concentrate on client service, simplify
its operating model, strengthen risk management and fo-
cus on competitive strengths, including foreign exchange
and flow businesses in credit and rates. The municipal secu-
rities business and fixed income proprietary trading busi-
nesses have been closed and certain commodities business-
es have been sold. Real estate and securitization businesses
and complex structured products have been substantially or
downsized or exited.

Equities will continue to leverage its global distribution
platform and product expertise, while seeking further effi-
ciency gains. The investment banking department will con-
tinue to provide corporate and institutional clients with advi-
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sory services while leveraging its capital markets knowledge
to both deepen long-term client relationships and gain mar-
ket share.

These steps will require more efficient utilization of re-
sources and a continued emphasis on cost containment and
workforce productivity, and will bring costs down to a more
sustainable level. They are occurring in conjunction with an
aggressive effort to reduce the size of the balance sheet. In
addition, a new market-based funding model and robust risk
framework have been implemented. However, implementa-
tion of this strategy is inextricably linked to the talent and
expertise within the firm. The Investment Bank will therefore
continue to attract, develop and retain the best people and
foster a collaborative and meritocratic culture. Announced
headcount reductions have and will come predominantly
from the businesses being exited or downsized.

Organizational structure

The Investment Bank is headquartered in London and employs
approximately 17,000 people across 38 countries. It has three
distinct business areas which are run functionally on a global
basis: equities, FICC and the investment banking department.

The investment banking department is an industry leader and

provides advice on cross-border mergers and acquisitions in ad-

dition to raising capital for companies and governments. Tradi-
tionally one of the leaders in European corporate finance, the

Investment Bank has built strong franchises in the US and Asia

Pacific in recent years. An important partner for institutional

clients, the Investment Bank’s market-leading equities business

is complemented by its top-tier foreign exchange business and
broad product capabilities across fixed income markets.
Although the Investment Bank pursues a strategy of organ-
ic development, its presence has been enhanced through ac-
quisitions. Key acquisitions over the past three years include:

— the September 2006 acquisition of the global futures and
options business of ABN AMRO, which positioned UBS as
a market leader in futures and options as well as a global
provider of execution and clearing services.

— the December 2006 acquisition of the Brazilian financial
services firm Banco Pactual, which placed the Investment
Bank as a leader in its field in the Brazilian market.

— the April 2007 acquisition of a 20% stake in UBS Securi-
ties, China.



Legal structure

The Investment Bank operates through branches and subsid-
iaries of UBS AG. Securities activities in the US are conducted
through UBS Securities LLC, a registered broker-dealer.

Competitors

The competitive landscape changed significantly in 2008. Mar-
ket dislocation led UBS and its competitors to take significant
steps to strengthen their balance sheets, reduce costs and
maintain client confidence. Some governments and investors
also took significant stakes in select financial institutions in
2008. The Investment Bank competes against other major in-
ternational players such as Bank of America/Merrill Lynch, Cit-
igroup, Credit Suisse, Deutsche Bank, Goldman Sachs, JP Mor-
gan Chase and Morgan Stanley.

Products and services

Equities

A leading participant in the global primary and secondary

markets for equity, equity-linked and equity derivative prod-

ucts, the equities business area distributes, trades, finances
and clears cash equity and equity-linked products. It also
structures, originates and distributes new equity and equity-
linked issues and provides research on companies, industry

sectors, geographical markets and macroeconomic trends. A

focus on technology has led to significant improvements in

business processes and client services. Investments have
been made in direct market access, prime brokerage and cli-

ent relationship platforms, earning UBS recognition as a

market leader in the provision of a number of electronic ser-

vices to clients. The business area also has a global footprint
with a strong presence in many local markets.

Business lines of the equities business and their functions
are listed below:

— Cash equities provides clients with expert advisory and
execution offerings with top-tier research, corporate ac-
cess and tailored investment ideas. With market-leading
trading execution for single stock and portfolio trading,
UBS provides capital commitment, full service and block
trading, advanced electronic trading strategies and tools,
state-of-the-art analytics and value-enhancing commis-
sion management services.

— Derivatives provides standardized products and custom-
ized investment solutions to clients. In addition to prod-
ucts with returns linked to equities or equity indices, it
also offers derivative products linked to hedge funds, mu-
tual funds, real estate and commodity indices in a variety
of formats such as over-the-counter, securitized, fund-
wrapped and exchange-traded.

— Prime services provides integrated global services, including
securities borrowing and lending, equity swaps execu-

Selected deals

Mergers and acquisitions (M&A)

Joint financial advisor, bookrunner and sponsor to Lloyds TSB Group Plc
on its GBP 14.7 billion acquisition of HBOS Plc and GBP 5.5 billion
capital raising

Lead financial advisor, joint lead arranger and joint bookrunner to
Gas Natural SDG, S.A. on its EUR 16.8 billion cash offer for Union Fenosa S.A.

Lead financial advisor to Eli Lilly and Company on its USD 6.5 billion
acquisition of Imclone Systems Inc.

Sole financial advisor to St. George Bank Limited on its AUD 18.6 billion
merger with Westpac Banking Corporation

Equity capital markets

Advisor and joint bookrunner on the USD 19.7 billion initial public offering
(IPO) of Visa Inc. This was a landmark transaction representing the largest
IPO in US history, and the second largest IPO worldwide after the USD 21.9
billion IPO for Industrial & Commercial Bank of China in 2006

Joint bookrunner on the GBP 2.2 billion rights issue for Centrica Plc, the
second-largest UK equity issue in 2008 outside the financial sector

Joint lead manager and joint underwriter for the fully underwritten AUD
2.6 billion entitlement offer for Wesfarmers Limited

Debt capital markets

Joint bookrunner on a USD 2.5 billion issue for Wells Fargo & Co, its first
institutional fixed income hybrid offering since November 2006

Joint bookrunner for China Merchants Bank Co Ltd. on its USD 4.4 billion
domestic lower tier 2 bond, the largest bank capital deal in Asia Pacific since
2005 and voted the Best Local Currency Bond by FinanceAsia in 2008

Joint bookrunner on a EUR 5 billion benchmark issue for KFWW, the
promotional bank of the Federal Republic of Germany, its first euro
benchmark transaction in 2008

Joint lead arranger and joint bookrunner to Verizon Wireless on a USD
17.0 billion bridge facility to finance the acquisition of Alltel Corp.

Selected awards

Investment Bank

No. 1 M&A Financial Advisor (ECM roles) — Thomson Reuters 2008

Corporate Broker of the Year — Acquisitions Monthly 2009

Equities

Asia Pacific Equity House of the Year — International Financial Review
2003, 2005-2008

No. 1 European Equity Research Firm — Institutional Investor 2002—-2009

Fixed income currencies and commodities

Financial Bond House of the Year — International Financial Review 2008

No. 2 Foreign Exchange House — Euromoney 2008
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UBS business divisions and Corporate Center
Investment Bank

tion, multi-asset-class prime brokerage and multi-asset-
class exchange-traded derivatives execution and clearing.
These services are provided to an expanding list of hedge
funds, banks, asset management and commodity trading
clients.

— Equity research provides independent assessments of the
prospects for over 3,400 companies across most industry
sectors and geographical regions (corresponding to 82%
of world market capitalization), as well as economic, stra-
tegic and quantitative research.

Fixed income, currencies and commodities

The FICC business area delivers products and solutions to cor-

porate, institutional and public sector clients in all major mar-

kets. In response to changes in global markets and client de-
mand, FICC significantly restructured at the start of 2009 to
improve client service, simplify its operating model, strength-
en risk management and focus on competitive strengths. The
real estate and securitization business will be exited (with the
exception of pass-through trading, which is now part of mac-
ro, described below); certain commodities businesses (ex-
cluding precious metals) have been sold, and the structured
products business significantly downsized. In December

2008, a significant proportion of FICC risk positions were

transferred to a fund owned and controlled by the Swiss Na-

tional Bank (SNB), and further positions are planned to be
transfered in March 2009. Refer to the “Transaction with the

Swiss National Bank” sidebar in the “Strategy and structure”

section of this report for more information on this transac-

tion. In first quarter 2009 additional risk positions will be iso-
lated in a specialist group whose mandate is to maximize
value while conducting an orderly exit of positions.

The business lines of the FICC business and their func-
tions are listed below:

— Macro consists of foreign exchange, money market and
interest rate risk management activities. It provides a
range of foreign exchange, treasury and liquidity man-
agement solutions to institutional and private clients. In-
terest rate activities include standardized rate-driven
products and services such as interest rate derivatives
trading, underwriting and trading of government and
agency securities.

— Creditis active in the origination, underwriting, and distri-
bution of primary cash and synthetic credit transactions.
It is also active in secondary trading and market-making
in high yield and investment grade bonds and loans in
both cash and derivative products.

— Emerging markets has local market presence in Latin
America through UBS Pactual, as well as in Asia and Cen-
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tral and Eastern Europe, enabling it to offer local investors
access to international markets and international inves-
tors an opportunity for local exposure.

— Client services is the global sales effort, unifying product
specialist sales groups, including foreign exchange, mon-
ey market, rates and emerging markets products.

— Quantitative analysis provides tailored solutions for clients
as well as more broadly scalable solutions for the FICC
flow platforms.

— Research provides investors with analysis across a selected
range of issuers, products, markets and industries.

Investment banking
The investment banking department provides advice and a
range of execution services to corporate clients, financial in-
stitutions, financial sponsors, sovereign wealth funds and
hedge funds. Its advisory group assists on complex transac-
tions and advises on strategic reviews and corporate restruc-
turing solutions, while UBS's capital markets and leveraged
finance teams arrange the execution of primary and second-
ary equity, as well as investment grade and non-investment
grade debt issues worldwide. With a presence in all major
financial markets, coverage is based on a comprehensive ma-
trix of country, sector and product banking professionals.
With the goal of creating a fully integrated primary busi-
ness to drive revenue growth and realize productivity gains,
the global groups for equity capital markets and debt capital
markets have been combined. The initial focus is on product
knowledge sharing, to enable teams to provide holistic advice
and innovative solutions across the entire capital structure.



Business performance

Business division reporting

As of or for the year ended % change from
CHF million, except where indicated 31.12.08 31.12.07 31.12.06 31.12.07
Investment banking 2,880 6,636 4,999 (57)
Adwsory .................................................................................... : 609 .............. 2697 .............. 1821 R (40)
Capltalmarketrevenues ....................................................................... : 844 .............. 4261 .............. 3631 R (57)
equme5977 .............. 2783 .............. 2095(65)
*fixed income, currencies and commodities 86 1478 5% (1)
Oier fom incoma and st management ......................................................... (573) .............. (322) .............. (453) e (78)
cales and tr adlng ........................................................................ (2671 2) ............ (7833) ............ 16727 ............... (241)
Equme55184 .............. 9004 .............. 8387(42)
Fixed income, currencies and commodities (31,895) (16837) 8340  (89)
Total Investment Bank income (23,832) (1,197) 21,726
Crodit o s(expense)/recovery* .............................................................. (2575) .............. (266) ................ R (868)
Total Investment Bank operating income excluding own credit (26,407) (1,463) 21,773
Own credit? 2,032 659 0 208
Total Investment Bank operating income as reported (24,375) (804) 21,773
Cash components 5,173 8,902 9,788 (42)
e b component ST (292) ............. 2384 .............. 1898 .....................
Total personnel expenses 4,882 11,286 11,686 (57)

Amortization of intangible assets 172 72 (52)
Total operating expenses 9,925 15,865 16,205 (37)
Business division performance before tax (34,300) (16,669) 5,568 (106)

Key perfomance indicators

Compensation ratio (%)* N/AS N/A> 53.8

o (%)G ............................................................................. N s e
Impa|re § Iendmgportfo ENSSIR Iendmg por‘[f . |o gross ..................................... g RS Qe
AverageVaR(10day99%conf|denceSyearsofhlstoncaldata)7374 ............... Gy 410(27)

Attributed equity and risk-weighted assets

Average attributed equity (CHF billion)® 26.8

Goodwill and intangible assets (CHF billion)'? . . 5.5

Additional information
Personnel (full-time equivalents) 17,171 21,779 21,733 (21)

12008 includes CHF 1,329 million in credit losses from impairment charges on reclassified financial instruments. 2 Represents own credit changes of financial liabilities designated at fair value through
profit or loss. The cumulative own credit gain for such debt held at 31 December 2008 amounts to CHF 2,953 million. This gain has reduced the fair value of financial liabilities designated at fair value
through profit or loss recognized on UBS's balance sheet. Refer to “Note 27 Fair value of financial instruments” in the financial statements of this report for more information. 3 Includes social secu-
rity contributions and expenses related to alternative investment awards. 4 Personnel expenses/income. 5 Neither the cost/income nor the compensation ratio are meaningful due to negative rev-
enues recorded in the Investment Bank. 6 Operating expenses/income. 7 Regulatory Value at Risk. In third quarter 2008, UBS changed from internal management VaR to regulatory VaR as the basis
for external disclosure. Refer to the “Value at Risk developments — treatment of CVA” sidebar in the “Market risk” section of this report for more information about this change. 8 Refer to the “Capital
management” section of this report for more information on the equity attribution framework, which was implemented in 2008. 9 Business division performance before tax/average attributed equi-
ty. 10 BIS risk-weighted assets (RWA) are according to Basel Il for 2008, and according to the Basel | framework for 2007 and 2006. 11 Business division performance before tax/average BIS
RWA. 12 2007 and 2006 represent goodwill and intangible assets in excess of 4% of BIS tier 1 capital.
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UBS business divisions and Corporate Center
Investment Bank

2008

Key performance indicators

As in 2007, neither the cost/income ratio nor the compen-
sation ratio were meaningful in 2008 due to negative total
operating income.

Average requlatory Value at Risk (VaR) (10-day, 99% con-
fidence, five years of historical data) decreased to CHF 374
million, down from CHF 514 million in 2007. Year-end regu-
latory VaR was also lower at CHF 485 million, compared with
CHF 552 million the previous year. Refer to the “Market risk”
section of this report for more information on the Invest-
ment Bank’s VaR.

The Investment Bank's gross lending portfolio was CHF 169
billion, up from CHF 148 billion on 31 December 2007. The
ratio of the impaired gross lending portfolio to the total gross
lending portfolio was 3.6% at the end of 2008, up from 0.4%
at the end of 2007. Following the reclassification of certain as-
sets in fourth quarter 2008, impairment charges related to
these assets have been reflected in credit loss as opposed to
trading, contributing to this increase. Refer to the “Credit risk”
section of this report for more information on the Investment
Bank’s lending portfolio and “Note 29 Measurement catego-
ries of financial assets and financial liabilities” in the financial
statements of this report for more information on the reclas-
sification of certain assets in fourth quarter 2008.

Results

In 2008, the Investment Bank recorded a pre-tax loss of CHF
34,300 million compared with a pre-tax loss of CHF 16,669
million in 2007, primarily due to the losses on risk positions
within the fixed income, currencies and commaodities (FICC)
area. For full-year 2008, equities and investment banking
revenues were down from a record year in 2007. A credit
loss expense of CHF 2,575 million was recorded in 2008,
mainly due to impairment charges taken on reclassified
financial assets, as mentioned above, compared with CHF
266 million in 2007. In 2008, the Investment Bank recorded
a gain on own credit from financial liabilities designated at
fair value of CHF 2,032 million, resulting from the widening
of UBS’s credit spread, which was partly offset by the effects
of redemptions and repurchases of such liabilities. Refer to
“Note 27 Fair value of financial instruments” in the financial
statements of this report for more information. Operating
expenses for the Investment Bank in 2008 decreased sig-
nificantly from 2007, mainly reflecting lower performance-
related compensation.

Operating income

Total operating income in 2008 was negative CHF 24,375
million, down from negative CHF 804 million a year earlier.
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Equities

Revenues, at CHF 5,184 million in 2008, were down 42%
from CHF 9,004 million in 2007. 2008 was a demanding
year for equities with continued difficult market conditions
impacting overall business performance. Cash equity reve-
nues were marginally lower as declines in revenues across
Asia Pacific and Europe were only partially offset by growth
in the US. Derivatives revenues were down as market vola-
tility, depressed client volumes, lack of liquidity and highly
correlated markets impacted performance across all re-
gions, particularly in the fourth quarter. Equity linked reve-
nues were down, with most regions impacted by declines in
valuations, falling equity markets and reduced liquidity.
Prime brokerage services had a solid performance, but rev-
enues were down overall as a strong first half performance
was offset by deterioration in the second half. Exchange-
traded derivatives revenues increased, as it benefited from
strong first and fourth quarters driven by significant volatil-
ity in the market. Proprietary trading revenues were nega-
tive for the year, reflecting the significant change in market
conditions.

Fixed income, currencies and commodities
Revenues were negative CHF 31,895 million, down from
negative CHF 16,837 million a year earlier. Consequences of
the global market crisis, including forced liquidations, gov-
ernment bail-outs and consolidation in the banking sector,
negatively affected the majority of the FICC businesses in
2008. Credit recorded losses in both client and proprietary
trading as a result of the significant turbulence in the mar-
kets and subsequent severe lack of liquidity. The negative
emerging markets result was driven by losses in Asia Pacific.
These negative effects were only partially offset by positive
results in certain areas. Rates experienced a solid year, driven
by derivatives and government bonds in Europe and rates de-
rivatives in both Asia Pacific and the US. Foreign exchange and
money markets produced a strong year as it capitalized on
volatile markets and strong client flows. The short-term inter-
est rate business benefited from market movements to gener-
ate an exceptional result in 2008. The foreign exchange distri-
bution business posted very good results across all regions,
benefiting from strong client flows seeking to access liquidity
in the market. Structured products posted positive revenues
due to strong client interest in structured funding solutions.

Investment banking
Revenues of the investment banking department, at CHF
2,880 million in 2008, decreased 57% from CHF 6,636 mil-
lion the previous year. Market activity slowed significantly
during the year, resulting in reduced advisory revenues across
all regions. Market volatility in both equity and debt markets
led to lower capital markets revenues.

According to data from Dealogic, UBS ended 2008 with a
5.6% market share of the global fee pool compared to 5.8%



in 2007. However, UBS improved its rank from sixth in 2007
to fifth in 2008.

Operating expenses

Operating expenses declined by CHF 5,940 million to CHF
9,925 million in 2008, a 37% decrease from CHF 15,865
million the previous year.

Personnel expenses, at CHF 4,882 million in 2008, de-
creased 57% from a year earlier, driven by significantly lower
performance-related compensation and lower salary costs,
only partly offset by restructuring charges. Share-based com-
pensation was down significantly from 2007, mainly due to
lower performance-related compensation. Full-year results
for 2007 included accruals for share-based compensation
during the year. These are not reflected in full-year 2008 as,
starting in 2009, they will be amortized over the vesting pe-
riod of these awards.

General and administrative expenses increased slightly to
CHF 3,399 million in 2008 from CHF 3,386 million in 2007.
Reductions in travel and entertainment and IT and other out-
sourcing costs were more than offset by increases in occupan-

¢y costs due to real estate restructuring, and by legal provi-
sions.

Charges from other business units increased to CHF 990
million in 2008 from CHF 811 million in 2007. The increase
reflects the cessation of a private equity performance fee
received in 2007, an IT data center restructuring fee and in-
creased allocations from Global Wealth Management &
Business Banking reflecting higher operating volumes.

Depreciation rose 10%, to CHF 231 million in 2008 from
CHF 210 million in 2007, as the real-estate restructuring
charges mentioned above resulted in additional depreciation
costs. Amortization of intangible assets, at CHF 83 million in
2008, was down from CHF 172 million a year earlier. A
goodwill impairment charge of CHF 341 million relating to
the exiting of the municipal securities business by the Invest-
ment Bank was recognized in second quarter 2008. There
was no goodwill impairment charge for full-year 2007.

Included in the 2008 expenses mentioned above is a re-
structuring charge of CHF 737 million recorded in fourth
quarter, consisting of CHF 435 million of personnel expenses
and CHF 302 million of costs related to real estate.
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UBS business divisions and Corporate Center
Investment Bank

2007

Key performance indicators

Neither the cost/income ratio nor the compensation ratio
was meaningful in 2007 due to negative total operating in-
come. In 2006, the cost/income ratio was 74.6% and the
compensation ratio 53.8%.

Average requlatory Value at Risk (VaR) (10-day, 99% con-
fidence, 5 years of historical data) increased to CHF 514 mil-
lion, up from CHF 410 million in 2006. Year-end regulatory
VaR was also higher at CHF 552 million, up from CHF 465
million the previous year. These increases reflect the signifi-
cant pick-up in market volatility in the second half of 2007.
Refer to the “Market risk” section of this report for more
information on the Investment Bank’s VaR.

The Investment Bank's gross lending portfolio was CHF
148 billion, up from CHF 120 billion on 31 December 2006,
reflecting the expanding prime brokerage and exchange-
traded derivatives businesses. The gross impaired lending
portfolio to total gross lending portfolio ratio rose to 0.4%
in 2007 from 0.1% in 2006.

Results

In 2007 the Investment Bank recorded a pre-tax loss of CHF
16,669 million compared with a profit of CHF 5,568 million
in 2006, primarily due to losses recorded on positions related
to the US residential real estate market which more than
offset the solid performance in other areas.

For full-year 2007, equities posted record results with very
strong cash commissions, derivatives and prime services rev-
enues. The investment banking department also had a re-
cord year in 2007, with all geographical regions showing
double-digit growth. Operating expenses for the Investment
Bank decreased from 2006, mainly reflecting lower perfor-
mance-related bonus accruals and a change in the composi-
tion of bonus between cash and shares. This was partially
offset by higher salary and general and administrative costs,
driven by increased average staff levels over the year.

Operating income

Total operating income in 2007 was negative CHF 804 mil-
lion, down from positive CHF 21,773 million a year earlier.
This change was driven by losses recorded on positions re-
lated to the US residential real estate market.

Operating income by segment
Investment banking
Revenues of the investment banking department, at CHF

6,636 million in 2007, increased 33% from CHF 4,999 million
the previous year. This reflected growth in each geographical
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region, especially in the Americas. While the advisory and eg-
uity capital markets businesses reported significant gains over
the prior year (up 48% and 33% respectively), the debt capital
markets business declined 4% as it was impacted by challeng-
ing markets in the second half of 2007.

Sales and trading

Revenues declined to negative CHF 7,833 million from posi-
tive CHF 16,727 million, driven by negative revenues of CHF
16,837 in FICC that were only partly offset by a positive rev-
enue contribution of CHF 9,004 from Equities.

Equities

Equities revenues, at CHF 9,004 million in 2007, were up 7%
from CHF 8,387 million in 2006. Overall, cash equity reve-
nues were higher, with strong volumes leading to record
commissions, partially offset by greater client facilitation
costs. Despite a slowdown in the second half of 2007, the
derivatives business posted its highest ever results following
strong growth in Asia Pacific and Europe, Middle East and
Africa. The exchange-traded derivatives business rose as it
benefited from a full year of ABN AMRO’s futures and op-
tions revenues (ABN AMRO’s futures and options business
was acquired on 30 September 2006). Prime brokerage ser-
vices continued to grow as client numbers and balances in-
creased. Equities proprietary trading revenues sharply de-
clined compared to the prior year, related to the credit market
dislocation in the US. The equity linked businesses also con-
tributed lower returns compared to 2006.

Fixed income, currencies and commodities

FICC revenues were negative CHF 16,837 million, down
from positive CHF 8,340 million a year earlier. The credit
market dislocation affected most of the FICC businesses in
the second half of 2007, leading to losses on mortgage-re-
lated positions. Credit recorded losses in both client and pro-
prietary trading in the context of extreme market disruption
and low liquidity at the end of 2007. Structured products
revenues were down compared to the previous year, largely
driven by the negative impact of the credit dislocation. Com-
modities revenues declined due to lower volumes and vola-
tility, especially affecting power and gas and to a lesser ex-
tent precious metals.

These negative effects were only partially offset by posi-
tive results in other areas. The emerging markets business
result was up as full-year revenues from Banco Pactual were
included. Positive results were also driven by the demutual-
ization and mark-to-market gains on the stake in the Brazil
Mercantile & Futures Exchange. The underlying foreign ex-
change spot business saw strong increases due to higher vol-
umes. The foreign exchange distribution business also post-
ed very good results, stemming from all geographical regions.
The rates business was up, driven by higher results in Euro-
pean derivatives.



Operating expenses

Operating expenses declined by CHF 340 million to CHF
15,865 million in 2007, a 2% decrease from CHF 16,205
million the previous year.

Personnel expenses, at CHF 11,286 million in 2007, de-
creased 3% from a year earlier, reflecting lower performance-
related compensation and a change in the composition of
bonuses between cash and shares. This was partially offset by
higher salary costs due to internal growth and acquisitions. In
addition, severance payments were made for redundancies
towards the end of the year. Share-based compensation was
up significantly from 2006, mainly reflecting a change in the
forfeiture rules of certain share-based awards.

General and administrative expenses were CHF 3,386
million in 2007, up 5% from CHF 3,210 million in 2006.
Professional fees were up due to higher legal-related expen-
ditures in all businesses. Occupancy costs in the Americas
and Asia Pacific, rent and maintenance of machines and
equipment and IT and other outsourcing costs rose due to

higher staff levels. Administration expenditures rose as well.
This was partially offset by lower provisions compared to
2006.

Charges from other business units decreased to CHF
811 million in 2007 from CHF 1,034 million in 2006. The
decline reflected lower charges by Global Asset Manage-
ment for management of the Investment Bank’s funds in-
vested in Dillon Read Capital Management (DRCM), which
were reintegrated into the Investment Bank in May 2007,
and as a result of a 2007 performance-related credit from
Industrial Holdings.

Depreciation rose slightly, by 3%, to CHF 210 million in
2007 from CHF 203 million in 2006. This was due to addi-
tional office space in the Americas and Europe. The amorti-
zation of intangible assets, at CHF 172 million in 2007, was
up 139% from CHF 72 million a year earlier due to the two
acquisitions — Banco Pactual and ABN AMRO’s futures and
options business. There was no goodwill impairment charge
for either full-year 2007 or 2006.
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UBS business divisions and Corporate Center
Corporate Center

Corporate Center
Description

The Corporate Center partners with the business divisions to ensure that UBS operates as an effective
and agile firm, responding effectively to trends in the financial industry according to a common vision

and set of values.

Aims and objectives

The Corporate Center assists UBS in managing its businesses
through provision of Group-level control in the areas of fi-
nance, risk, legal and compliance. It strives to maintain an
appropriate balance between risk and return in the firm’s
businesses while establishing and controlling UBS’s corpo-
rate governance processes, including compliance with rele-
vant regulations. Each functional head in the Corporate
Center has authority across UBS's businesses for his or her
area of responsibility, including the authority to issue Group-
wide policies for that area, and is directly reported to by his
or her business division counterpart.

The Corporate Center is responsible for the following ac-
tivities in UBS: financial, tax and capital management; risk
control, legal and compliance activities; communicating with
all UBS stakeholders; branding; and positioning the firm as
an employer of choice. In addition, the Corporate Center
also assumes operational responsibility for certain business
units that provide shared services to the business divisions —
among them the information technology infrastructure and
offshoring units (including the service centers in India and
Poland).

Organizational structure

The Corporate Center consists of operational functions
plus the information technology infrastructure and Group
offshoring units. It is led by the Chief Operating Officer
(COO) of the Corporate Center and its operational func-
tions are managed by the Corporate Center executive com-
mittee.

Chief Operating Officer of the Corporate Center

The COO of the Corporate Center is responsible for its busi-
ness planning and forecasting, as well as its human resourc-
es core processes. The holder of this position is responsible
for information technology infrastructure, group offshoring
activities and the corporate real estate portfolio for UBS's
own use.

Group Chief Financial Officer

The Group Chief Financial Officer (Group CFO) is responsi-
ble for ensuring transparency within the reporting of finan-
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cial results for both the Group and its businesses. The role
also entails responsibility for the Group’s financial report-
ing, planning, forecasting and controlling processes, as
well as the provision of advice on financial aspects of stra-
tegic plans and mergers and acquisitions transactions. Fur-
ther responsibilities include overseeing UBS's tax and trea-
sury functions. In coordination with the Group General
Counsel, the Group CFO defines the standards for account-
ing, reporting and disclosure and, together with the Chief
Executive Officer, provides external certifications under sec-
tions 302 and 404 of the US Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
These duties are in addition to managing relations with in-
vestors and coordination of working relationships with in-
ternal and external auditors.

Group Chief Risk Officer

The Group Chief Risk Officer (Group CRO) is responsible for
the development and implementation of UBS’s risk manage-
ment and control principles, including the development of
appropriate control frameworks for market, credit and op-
erational risks throughout the Group. The Group and busi-
ness division risk functions work together to manage the fol-
lowing: formulating and implementing risk policies and
control processes; developing risk quantification methods;
monitoring associated limits and controls; ensuring that risks
are completely and consistently recorded and aggregated,
and ensuring that exposures are continuously monitored,
controlled and remain within approved risk profiles. Each risk
officer exercises specific risk control authorities.

Group General Counsel

The Group General Counsel, supported by the head of Group
Compliance, has Group-wide responsibility for legal and com-
pliance matters and for legal and compliance policies and pro-
cesses. The position is responsible for defining the strategy,
goals and organizational structure of the legal function, in ad-
dition to setting and monitoring the Group-wide quality stan-
dards for handling the legal affairs of the Group. Supported
by the head of Group Compliance, the Group General Coun-
sel is responsible for ensuring that UBS meets relevant regula-
tory and professional standards in the conduct of its business.
Other responsibilities include supervision of the General Coun-
sels of the business divisions and working closely with the
Group CRO with regard to the operational risk aspects of legal



and liability risk. Furthermore, the Group General Counsel
represents UBS's interests to policy-makers and, in close coop-
eration with the Group CRO and Group CFO as appropriate,
establishes Group-wide management and control processes
for the Group’s relationship with regulators.

Group Treasurer

The Group Treasurer is responsible for the management of
UBS’s financial resources and financial infrastructure. The
position is responsible for Group-level governance of trea-
sury processes and transactions relating to UBS’s corporate
legal structure, regulatory capital, balance sheet, funding
and liquidity, and non-trading currency and interest rate
risk. Additional responsibilities include the issuance of poli-
cies to ensure proper management and efficient co-ordina-
tion of treasury processes on a Group-wide basis. The Group
Treasurer manages the Group’s equity, taking into account
financial ratios and regulatory capital requirements, with a
view to maintaining strategic flexibility and adequate capi-
talization and ratings levels. The position manages UBS's
holdings of its own shares and recommends corporate ac-
tions to the Group Executive Board (GEB) and the Board of
Directors (BoD).

Head of Group Controlling & Accounting

The Head of Group Controlling & Accounting has UBS-wide
responsibility for financial control. The position is responsible
for the production and analysis of accurate and objective reg-
ulatory, financial and management accounts and reports. The
Head of Group Controlling & Accounting communicates rel-
evant financial and regulatory information to the BoD, the
GEB, the audit committee, internal and external auditors and
the CFOs of the business divisions. The position is also re-
sponsible for operating the UBS-wide quarterly and annual
SOX 302-certification process and supports the Group CFO in
the Group’s planning and forecasting process.

Head of Group Tax

The Head of Group Tax is responsible for managing the
bank’s corporate income tax affairs, in such a manner that
UBS achieves sustainable tax efficiency whilst acting in com-
pliance with all applicable tax laws, regulations and other
requirements. Group Tax also provides tax advice to the busi-
ness divisions in relation to their business activities, and acts
as a control function in the review of new business initiatives
and transactions requiring pre-approval.

Head of Group Accounting Policy

The Head of Group Accounting Policy establishes Group-
wide financial accounting policies and supports the business
divisions and the Corporate Center in their responsibility to
implement and enforce the Group accounting policy frame-
work. The position manages relations with external auditors
and accounting standards bodies.

Chief Communication Officer

The Chief Communication Officer is responsible for manag-
ing UBS's communications with its various stakeholders. An-
other key responsibility is the development of the strategy,
content and positioning of communications of corporate im-
portance, emphasizing transparency, consistency, speed and
integrity. The Chief Communication Officer presents UBS
and its businesses to the media, enhancing and protecting
the firm’s reputation. To employees, the position promotes
understanding of the firm’s strategies, performance and cul-
ture. The Chief Communication Officer also coordinates
UBS's approach to corporate responsibility.

Head of Group Strategic Advisory &

Financial Communication

The Head of Group Strategic Advisory & Financial Communi-
cation provides independent advice to the GEB (collectively
and individually) and the BoD on strategic matters and sup-
ports the business divisions in the execution of their strate-
gies. The position coordinates cross-business division strate-
gic initiatives, drives the implementation of challenging
Group strategic targets and measures progress towards
goals. Additionally, it monitors the competitive environment
and assesses the impact of opportunities and threats on
Group strategy. The Head of Group Strategic Advisory & Fi-
nancial Communication also communicates with investors,
analysts and rating agencies about developments at UBS and
is responsible for preparing and publishing quarterly and an-
nual reports.

Group Head Human Resources

The Group Head Human Resources has Group-wide re-
sponsibility for the management of human resources, the
development of the relevant human capital strategies as
well as the governance over their effective implementa-
tion. This includes shaping a meritocratic culture of ambi-
tion and performance, building UBS’s capacity to attract
and retain high-quality, diverse and mobile talent, as well
as creating an attractive and flexible work environment.
The position is ultimately and directly responsible for the
management of talent and development of leadership
within UBS’s senior management group. Additionally,
Group Human Resources is mandated to design, develop
and administer global compensation programs, to oversee
regional and local benefit strategies, and to establish in-
novative and competitive incentive frameworks on a firm-
wide basis.

Chief Technology Officer

The Chief Technology Officer is the head of the informa-
tion technology infrastructure unit (ITl). This unit encom-
passes all information technology infrastructure teams
across UBS, covering management of data networks, tele-
phone and other communications systems, IT security, dis-
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UBS business divisions and Corporate Center
Corporate Center

tributed computing and servers, mainframes and data cen-
ters, market data services, user services and desktop
computing. The unit focuses on serving all UBS’s business-
es in a client-driven and cost-efficient way, as well as build-
ing towards a consistent technical architecture across UBS
through the execution of the information technology in-
frastructure strategy.
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Head of Group Offshoring

The Head of Group Offshoring is responsible for delivering
offshoring services to the business divisions at appropriate
and competitive prices. The service centers, which are
operated by UBS staff in India and Poland, ensure that phys-
ical and technical features meet UBS risk and quality stan-
dards and comply with the operational risk framework.



Results

Corporate Center reporting

As of or for the year ended % change from
CHF million, except where indicated 31.12.08 31.12.07 31.12.06 31.12.07
Total operating income 998 3,562 607 (72)
Cash components 1,069 1,244 1,179 (14)
Sharebasedcomponents* ......................................................................... S Ly o (94)
Total personnel expenses 1,076 1,365 1,319 (21)
oo penses ............................................................ : 299 ............... 1306 ............... 1255 ................... (.1.).
Services (to)/from other business units (2.066) 070 (199 0
Depreuatlonofpropertyandeqmpment720 ................. B B (.3.).
R, oflntanglble e g SRR g
Total operating expenses? 1,029 1,340 1,396 (23)
Performance from continuing operations before tax (31) 2,222 (789) (101)
Performance from discontinued operations before tax 198 s 88 37
Performance before tax 167 2,367 99 (93)
Contributions from private equity/ Industrial Holdings
Total operating income 22 689 313 97)
o operatlng expenses .......................................................................... o T G (67)
o peratm g prof 8 fromcontlnumg operatlon e (32) ................ e e
oot e operatlon e e e o -
Additional information
BIS risk-weighted assets (CHF billion)® 8.8 10.2 11.5
Personnel(fulltlmeequwalents)“7285 ............... 6913 ............... 47715
Personnel for the Operational Corporate Center (full-time equivalents) 1512 162 1452 3)
PersonnelforlTlS(fuIIt|meeqU|vaIents)4066 ............... 4343 ............... 3055 ................... (6')'
Personnel for Group Offshoring (full-time equivalents) 1646 98 w4 74

1 Includes social security contributions and expenses related to alternative investment awards. 2 Includes expenses for the Company Secretary, Board of Directors and Group Internal Audit.
3 BIS risk-weighted assets (RWA) are according to Basel Il for 2008, and according to the Basel | framework for 2007 and 2006. 4 Personnel numbers exclude ful